

# **UNSW Cricket Club Annual Report 2015/2016**

**Never Stand Still** 



UNSW Cricket Club would like to thank the following supporters:

























## **CONTENTS**

Office Bearers	3
Past Office Bearers	4
Representative Honours 2015/2016	6
Representative Honours - Career	7
Award Winners 2015/2016	10
Award Winners - Career	11
Club Honours (inc Premiership Winning Teams)	15
1st Grade Caps	20
President's Report	22
Treasurer's Report	24
Coaching Report	25
Competition Tables	26
Captains' Records	30
First Grade Report	31
Second Grade Report	39
Third Grade Report	45
Fourth Grade Report	48
Fifth Grade Report	52
Poidevin-Gray Shield Report	57
A.W. Green Shield Report	60
Metropolitan Cup (Black) Report	64
Metropolitan Cup (Gold) Report	68
Universities Women's Cricket Club	72
Australian University Championships	73
Tour Match versus ADFA XI – Scorecard	75
Old Boys Social Match	76
SCG "Peter Richardson Memorial" Test Match Breakfast	77
US Open Golf Day and Breakfast	
Junior Development (Junior Academy and In2Cricket)	79
Snake-Rooter Cup	80
Combined Club Statistics 2015/2016	81
Player of the Year Points 2015/2016	85
Career Statistics	<u>.</u> 87
Club Records	.97
Partnership Records	112
Financial Report 2015/2016	116

COVER PHOTO:
Hayden McLean bowling during the 2<sup>nd</sup> Grade Grand Final versus Sydney at Drummoyne Oval, 1 April 2016.

## PHOTO ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

All the photos in this report have been taken by Matt Sanders, except where otherwise stated.

## Office Bearers 2015/2016

PRESIDENT Matthew Sanders

SENIOR VICE PRESIDENTS David Jebb Paul Serov

HONORARY SECRETARY Alex Charlwood

HON. ASSISTANT SECRETARY Philip Hood

HONORARY TREASURER Peter Scolari

CHAIRMAN OF SELECTORS John Lupton

HEAD COACH Corey Richards

COMMITTEE MEMBERSMark AppletonDanny Bhandari

Matthew Garland Joshua Gavan Pyke Gunning Geoff Lawson Sam McCormick Michael Rea Jack Roach Murray Stanton Darren Sue Christopher Ward

SELECTION COMMITTEE John Lupton (Chairman)

Benjamin Wakim
Thomas Atallah
Mark Appleton
Michael Rea
Alex Charlwood
Matthew Garland
Murray Stanton

NSWCA & SCA DELEGATES Danny Bhandari (NSWCA & SCA)

Paul Serov (SCA)

## LIFE MEMBERS

1962	J.R.Beard	1982	W.J.Rogers	2001	G.A.Clark
1965	M.J.Reidy	1983	Prof. J.P.Barford	2002	M.R.Sanders
1968	H.C.Bundy	1983	P.E.James	2003	T.D.Boyce
1968	J.Mck.Middleton	1983	J.D.MacFarlane	2003	D.Lemon
1969	Prof. S.E.Livingstone	1992	G.F.Lawson	2004	P.W.Jourdain
1969	Dr. E.C.Watton *	1993	G.R.Livingstone	2004	R.W.Stark
1960	C.H.Barrington *	1993	J.G.Robson	2009	P.D.Richardson *
1960	Capt.J.Morris *	1998	G.G.Robinson	2010	D.C.Jebb
1977	G.M.Garland	1999	J.B.Martel	2011	P.Serov
1978	A.J.Taylor *	1999	D.P.Meagher	2012	D.J.Carson
1980	R.W.Merrell	2000	J.S.Dixon	2014	A.C.Jones
1982	A.Epstein	2000	M.J.Slater	2015	D.J.Sue
1982	M.Ray	2001	C.J.Chapman		

Deceased

## **UNSW Sports Association Honorary Life Membership**

J.B.Martel G.F.Lawson

# **PAST OFFICE BEARERS**

	PRESIDENT	Honorary Secretary	HONORARY TREASURER	CHAIRMAN OF SELECTORS
1951-52	Major R.K.Wilthew	V.Turner		
1952-53	Major R.K.Wilthew	V.Turner		
1953-54	Prof. A.E.Alexander	J.Brooks		
1954-55	Prof. A.E.Alexander	Dr. E.C.Watton	R.Emerson	
1955-56	Prof. A.E.Alexander	Dr. B.Frawley	R.Emerson	
1956-57	Prof. A.E.Alexander	J.R.Beard	G.Wilton	
1957-58	Prof. E.B.Smyth	J.R.Beard	W.C.Dwyer	
1958-59	Prof. E.B.Smyth	R.N.Warrener	W.C.Dwyer	
1959-60	Prof. E.B.Smyth	M.J.Reidy	W.C.Dwyer	
1960-61	Prof. E.B.Smyth	C.H.Barrington	J.Mck.Middleton	
1961-62	Prof. H.J.Oliver	C.H.Barrington	J.T.Hall	H.C.Bundy
1962-63	Prof. H.J.Oliver	D.T.Lacey	J.T.Hall	T.D.Creer
1963-64	Prof. S.E.Livingstone	G.M.Garland	J.T.Hall	P.A.Ward
1964-65	Dr. E.C.Watton	G.M.Garland	J.A.Chegwyn	G.Sylvester/M.Gosling/J.Pigott
1965-66	Dr. E.C.Watton	M.J.Gosling	J.A.Chegwyn	G.M.Garland
1966-67	C.H.Barrington	Dr. P.J.Schofield	A.Conomos	J.T.Hall
1967-68	C.H.Barrington	J.E.Pratley	G.J.Cole	P.J.McEachran
1968-69	C.H.Barrington	J.E.Pratley	G.J.Cole	P.C.Emery
1969-70	C.H.Barrington	J.R.Wegner	D.E.Wills	J.D.Dormon
1970-71	C.H.Barrington	J.R.Wegner	P.C.Emery	A.D.Thomas
1971-72	C.H.Barrington	J.R.Wegner	H.W.Hopkins	A.Epstein
1972-73	C.H.Barrington	Dr. J.P.Barford	H.W.Hopkins	A.P.Goodwin
1973-74	C.H.Barrington C.H.Barrington	Dr. J.P.Barford	H.W.Hopkins	A.P.Goodwin
1974-75 1975-76	C.H.Barrington	Dr. J.P.Barford	R.W.Merrell R.W.Merrell	R.S.March G.E.Mullins
1975-76	Y.Marshall	J.R.Wegner / R.P.Zabell G.F.Mullins	R.W.Merrell	A.Epstein
1970-77	A.Epstein	Ms. J.Ratcliffe	R.W.Merrell	J.D.MacFarlane
1978-79	A.Epstein	Ms. J.Ratcliffe	R.W.Merrell	J.D.MacFarlane
1979-80	Dr. J.E.Ingleson	A.N.McMaster	P.E.James	J.D.MacFarlane
1980-81	Dr. J.E.Ingleson	A.N.McMaster	M.T.Sample	C.W.Jones
1981-82	Dr. J.E.Ingleson	A.N.McMaster	M.T.Sample	I.Kellaway
1982-83	Dr. J.E.Ingleson	A.N.McMaster	M.T.Sample	I.Kellaway
1983-84	Dr. J.E.Ingleson	S.G.Campbell	M.T.Sample	G.Holt
1984-85	Dr. J.E.Ingleson	L.Darmody	M.T.Sample	G.Holt
1985-86	Dr. J.E.Ingleson	L.Darmody	M.T.Sample	E.Robb
1986-87	D.P.Meagher	L.Darmody	P.W.Jourdain	E.Robb
1987-88	D.P.Meagher	P.W.Godber	P.W.Jourdain	J.M.Baker
1988-89	D.P.Meagher	P.W.Godber	P.W.Jourdain	D.J.Bell
1989-90	D.P.Meagher	P.W.Godber	P.W.Jourdain	A.C.Shaw
1990-91	G.A.Clark	P.W.Godber	P.W.Jourdain	M.R.Sanders
1991-92	C.J.Chapman	P.W.Godber	P.W.Jourdain	M.R.Sanders
1992-93	C.J.Chapman	P.W.Godber	P.W.Jourdain	R.Anderson
1993-94	C.J.Chapman	J.O.Carmichael	P.W.Jourdain	D.A.Little
1994-95	C.J.Chapman	J.O.Carmichael	P.W.Jourdain	D.A.Little
1995-96	C.J.Chapman	J.O.Carmichael	P.W.Jourdain	G.G.Robinson
1996-97	C.J.Chapman	A.C.Jones	P.W.Jourdain	G.G.Robinson
1997-98	C.J.Chapman	C.C.Vonwiller	D.Quinlin	G.G.Robinson
1998-99	C.J.Chapman	M.R.Sanders	D.Quinlin	G.A.Clark
1999-00	C.J.Chapman	M.R.Sanders	D.Quinlin	G.A.Clark
2000-01	C.J.Chapman	M.R.Sanders	D.Quinlin	G.A.Clark
2001-02	P.W.Jourdain	M.R.Sanders	T.F.Buckett	G.A.Clark / J.S.Dixon
2002-03	P.W.Jourdain	M.R.Sanders P.Serov	J.S.Dixon	J.S.Dixon
2003-04	P.W.Jourdain P.W.Jourdain	P.Serov	J.S.Dixon J.S.Dixon	J.S.Dixon
2004-05 2005-06	P.W.Jourdain	P.Serov	J.S.Dixon	J.S.Dixon D.C.Jebb
2005-06	P.W.Jourdain	P.Serov	J.S.Dixon	D.C.Jebb D.C.Jebb
2000-07	P.W.Jourdain	P.Serov	J.S.Dixon	D.J.Carson
2007-08	P.W.Jourdain	P.Serov	Vacant	D.J.Sue
2009-10	A.C.Jones	P.Serov	P.L.Scolari	D.J.Sue
2010-11	A.C.Jones	D.S.Bowcock	P.L.Scolari	D.Bhandari
2011-12	A.C.Jones	D.S.Bowcock	P.L.Scolari	D.Bhandari
2012-13	A.C.Jones	D.S.Bowcock	P.L.Scolari	D.Bhandari
2013-14	D.Bhandari	D.S.Bowcock	P.L.Scolari	J.C.Lupton
2014-15	M.R.Sanders	A.G.Charlwood	P.L.Scolari	J.C.Lupton
2015-16	M.R.Sanders	A.G.Charlwood	P.L.Scolari	J.C.Lupton
				-

## **PATRON**

1954-67	Mr. G.L.Macauley Esq.
1967-72	Mr. E.H.Davis Esq.
1972-81	Prof. R.H.Myers
1981-85	Prof. L.M.Birt
1985-94	Hon. G.J.Samuels AC, CVO, QC (Life Patron 1994)
1994-04	Sir Anthony F. Mason AC, KBE, QC
2004-06	Prof. M.S.Wainwright AM
2006-15	Prof. F.G.Hilmer AO
2015-16	No Patron

## **VICE PRESIDENTS**

1951-55	Unavailable
1955-56	G.Borwick
1956-79	Refer to Annual Reports
1979-84	C.H.Barrington/A.Epstein/R.W.Merrell
1984-01	Unavailable
2001-09	G.G.Robinson/G.R.Livingstone/M.J.Gregg
2008-09	A.C.Jones (Deputy President)
2009-13	D.J.Carson / J.S.Dixon
2013-14	D.C.Jebb / M.R.Sanders
2014-16	D.C.Jebb / P.Serov

## **HONORARY ASSISTANT SECRETARY**

1951-56	Unavailalbe
1956-57	G.W.Wheeler
1957-58	M.J.Reidy
1958-59	P.Newman
1959-60	J.Maddy
1960-61	D.T.Lacey
1961-10	Vacant
2010-16	P.J.Hood

## **HONORARY AUDITOR**

1951-61	Unavailalbe
1961-62	A.A.Foster / D.C.Orrock
1962-70	D.C.Orrock
1970-03	J.T.Hall
2003-07	D.Quinlin
2007-16	Vacant

## HEAD COACH

1973-84 1984-85	Unavailable J.E.Pym
1985-95	Unavailable
1995-98	G.R.Livingstone
1998-02	G.S.Milliken
2002-03	L.D.Sutton
2003-07	J.S.Dixon
2007-09	W.H.Smith
2009-11	M.W.Creed
2011-13	T.E.Lang
2013-14	D.C.Jebb
2014-16	C.J.Richards

## **UNSW Sports Association Delegates**

1954-60 Unavailable 1960-61 D.W.Clark / D.T.Lacey 1961-62 B.G.Andrews / C.H.Barringto 1962-63 D.T.Lacey / C.H.Barringto	•
1961-62 B.G.Andrews / C.H.Barrin 1962-63 D.T.Lacey / C.H.Barringto	•
1962-63 D.T.Lacey / C.H.Barringto	•
	on
1963-64 C.H.Barrington	OH
1000 OT O.I I.Dailligion	
1964-65 C.H.Barrington / G.M.Ga	rland
1965-66 G.M.Garland / M.Gosling	
1966-67 C.H.Barrington / A.Conor	
1967-68 C.H.Barrington / R.Preiss	8
1968-70 Unavailable	
1970-71 H.W.Hopkins / J.R.Wegn	er / D.E.Wills
1971-72 H.W.Hopkins / A.D.Thom	
1972-74 J.P.Barford / H.W.Hopkin	
1974-75 R.S.March / J.P.Barford	
1975-76 A.T.McKendry / Y.Marsha	all
1976-77 G.E.Mullins / R.W.Merrel	
1977-78 R.Ratcliffe / T.D.Boyce	
1978-79 J.Ratcliffe / G.A.Clark	
1979-80 A.N.McMaster / G.A.Clar	k
1980-81 I.Kellaway / C.W.Jones	
1981-83 I.Kellaway / I.E.Smith	
1983-84 G.Holt / M.Hoy	
1984-85 S.Debello / G.Holt	
1985-86 G.Holt / E.Robb	
1986-87 S.Debello / G.Holt	
1987-88 S.Debello / I.F.Murray	
1988-89 W.G.Reynolds/Adrian Whit	e
1989-90 A.Fleming / W.G.Reynold	
1990-91 L.Mathew / W.G.Reynold	
1991-93 B.Calver / D.A.Little	
1993-95 D.A.Little / P.Urquhart	
1995-96 P.Urquhart / Z.Zavos	
1996-97 D.J.Carson / Z.Zavos	
1997-98 D.J.Carson / S.A.Mohide	en
1998-99 D.J.Carson / M.D.Mullen	
1999-01 T.J.Hoare / M.D.Mullen	
2001-02 J.M.Hargrave / T.J.Hoare	<b>1</b>
2002-04 P.H.Maguire / C.M.Thom	
2004-05 J.R.F.Day / S.W.McKay	
2005-07 D.L.Mann / S.W.McKay	
	H.M.J.Le Lievre/C.N.Ward
2008-09 H.M.J.Le Lievre/ C.N.Wa	
2009-10 C.N.Ward	. ••
2010-11 P.J.Hood	
2011-12 D.J.Carson	
2012-13 P.J.Hood	
20.2 10 1 10.11000	

## **NSWCA & SCA DELEGATES**

1973-75	G.M.Garland / C.H.Barrington
1975-76	G.M.Garland / Y.Marshall
1976-79	G.M.Garland / W.J.Rogers
1979-80	W.J.Rodgers / T.L.Buddin / A.N.McMaster
1980-84	T.L.Buddin / A.N.McMaster
1984-87	T.L.Buddin / D.P.Meagher
1987-91	G.R.Livingstone/ D.P.Meagher
1991-92	R.S.March / D.P.Meagher
1992-94	P.W.Godber / D.P.Meagher
1994-96	G.A.Clark / D.P.Meagher
1996-98	G.A.Clark / J.S.Dixon
1998-01	G.A.Clark / C.C.Vonwiller
2001-02	J.Plunkett-Cole/ C.C.Vonwiller
2002-07	G.F.Lawson / M.R.Sanders
2007-14	M.R.Sanders / P.Serov
2014-16	D.Bhandari / P.Serov

## Representative Honours - Season 2015/2016

## **DOMESTIC - NEW SOUTH WALES**

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES FUTURES LEAGUE**

C.A.Wakim D.O.D.White (Debut) L.R.Maladay (Debut)

#### SYDNEY SIXES (BIG BASH)

C.A.Wakim (Debut - Squad only)

#### **New South Wales Under 19s**

D.O.D.White (NSW Metro) J.A.Venianakis (NSW Metro) (Debut) L.R.Maladay (ACT/NSW Country) (Debut)

## **DOMESTIC - OTHER**

#### ONE DAY (LIST A)

K.M.Mack - ACT Meteors (Womens)

#### **FUTURES LEAGUE/SECOND XI**

J.M.Bennett - ACT Futures League

#### **TWENTY 20**

K.M.Mack – ACT Meteors (Womens)
K.M.Mack – Melbourne Stars (WBBL) (Debut)
T.van der Gugten – Hobart Hurricanes

#### **TRIFORCE SUPER T20 CUP**

J.J.Connelly D.G.Dawson C.A.Wakim (Debut) A.M.Ali (Debut)

## **CRICKET NSW**

## **NSW UNDER 19 COUNTRY SQUAD**

L.R.Maladay

#### **NSW STATE CHALLENGE SQUAD U19**

D.O.D.White – NSW City J.A.Venianakis – NSW City L.R.Maladay – NSW Country T.D.Byrnes – NSW Country

#### **NSW COUNTRY COLTS U19**

L.R.Maladay – North Coastal T.D.Byrnes – Riverina

## NSW STATE CHALLENGE SQUAD U14

J.R.K.Attenborough – East City J.L.Greenburg – East City T.A.Greig – East City

#### **NSW STATE CHALLENGE SQUAD U13**

A.van Vugt - East City

## **INTER-VARSITY**

#### AUSTRALIAN COMBINED UNIVERSITIES - TOUR OF ENGLAND

H.C.McLean C.A.Wakim N.J.Walker D.O.D.White

#### **AUSTRALIAN UNIVERSITY GAMES T20 (MERIT TEAM)**

M.A.Attallah J.J.Byrnes E.Leten H.C.McLean

## **S**CHOOLS

N.D.Tanner – NSW CHS (Sydney North) Y.N.A.Gunewardhane – NSW School Boys U15 N.D.Tanner – NSW School Boys U15

## OTHER REPRESENTATIVE

B.P.Wakim - Northern Territory Invitational XI vs. Kenya

## Representative Honours - Career

## INTERNATIONAL - AUSTRALIA

## AUSTRALIA - TESTS

DEBUT PLAYER 1980-81 G.F.Lawson 1993 M.J.Slater

D.T.Christian (12<sup>th</sup>Man only) 2011-12

#### AUSTRALIA - ONE-DAY

DEBUT PLAYER 1980-81 G.F.I. awson 1993-94 M.J.Slater 2011-12 D.T.Christian

#### **AUSTRALIA - TWENTY 20**

DEBUT PLAYER 2009-10 D.T.Christian

#### Australia – Under 19s

DEBUT PLAYER 2001-02 D.T.Christian 2006-07 T.L.W.Cooper

#### AUSTRALIA - UNDER 17S (MERIT TEAM ONLY)

DEBUT PLAYER 2007-08 T.van der Gugten 2008-09 A.J.Robson 2012-13 T.A.Jagot

#### **AUSTRALIA – INVITATIONAL 6S**

DEBUT PLAYER 2005-06 D.T.Christian

## **DOMESTIC - NEW SOUTH WALES**

#### **New South Wales - First Class** PLAYER

DEBUT

1977-78 G.G.Watson 1977-78 G.F.Lawson 1978-79 C.J.Chapman(12<sup>th</sup>Man only) 1980-81 M.Ray M.J.Slater 1991-92 1994-95 J.C.Young 2011-12 T.van der Gugten 2011-12 D.G.Dawson 2011-12 C.P.Tremain

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES - ONE-DAY (LIST A)**

DEBUT PLAYER 1978-79 G.F.Lawson 1992-93 M.J.Slater 2006-07 D.T.Christian T.van der Gugten 2011-12 2011-12 C.P.Tremain 2012-13 D.G.Dawson

## NEW SOUTH WALES - TWENTY20

DEBUT 2005-06 D.T.Christian 2006-07 T.E.Lang

#### SYDNEY THUNDER - TWENTY20

DEBUT PLAYER 2012-13 C.P.Tremain

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES COLTS**

DEBUT PLAYER M.Ray 1973-74 1976-77 G.G.Watson 1977-78 G.F.Lawson 1980-81 G.R.Livingstone 1981-82 J.S.Dixon 2000-01 T.J.Hoare D.T.Christian 2002-03

#### **NSW CRICKET ASSOCIATION XI**

DEBUT PLAYER G.F.Lawson 1976-77 1976-77 M.Watt 1976-77 J.G.Robson 1976-77 C.J.Chapman 1976-77 G.G.Watson

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES 2ND XI**

DEBUT PLAYER 1990-91 J.M.Baker 1993-94 J.C.Young 1994-95 M.J.Phelps 2004-05 D.T.Christian 2004-05 M.W.Creed 2005-06 T.E.Lang 2006-07 T.L.W.Cooper 2008-09 M.Gowland 2011-12 T.van der Gugten 2011-12 D.G.Dawson C.P.Tremain J.J.Connolly 2011-12 2014-15



John Venianankis in action during Round 2 versus St George. John had a stellar season leading the 2<sup>nd</sup> grade attack to the Grand Final. playing for NSW in the Australian U19 Championships ... and earning the honour to wear the Barr-Turn jacket for the next 12 months!

Photo: Darren Sue

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES FUTURES LEAGUE**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2010-11	T.van der Gugten
2010-11	J.A.Henry
2011-12	D.G.Dawson
2011-12	P.W.Molinari
2011-12	C.P.Tremain
2014-15	C.A.Wakim
2015-16	D.O.D.White
2015-16	L.R.Maladay

#### **New South Wales Under 19s**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2000-01	D.T.Christian
2006-07	T.L.W.Cooper
2006-07	S.D.Robson
2008-09	T.van der Gugten
2009-10	B.J.Hutchison
2010-11	A.J.Robson
2012-13	T.S.Rogers
2013-14	T.A.Jagot
2013-14	T.M.Skelly
2014-15	D.O.D.White
2015-16	J.A.Venianakis
2015-16	L.R.Maladay

#### **New South Wales Under 17s**

DEBUT	PLAYER
1992-93	D.J.Carson
1999-00	D.T.Christian
2006-07	T.van der Gugten
2008-09	A.J.Robson
2012-13	T.A.Jagot
2012-13	Z.J.Churchill
2013-14	J.A.Venianakis

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES IMPARJA CUP**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2008-09	A.J.Julian
0044.40	LT Managin

J.T.Manning-Bancroft J.M.Turner 2011-12

2014-15

## **NEW SOUTH WALES INDOOR CRICKET**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2011	J.J.Dunning

## INTERNATIONAL - OTHER

## ONE DAY

DEBUT	PLAYER	For
2010	T.L.W.Cooper	The Netherlands
2012	T van der Guaten	The Netherlands

## TWENTY 20

DEBUT	PLAYER	FOR
2012	T.L.W.Cooper	The Netherlands
2012	T.van der Gugten	The Netherlands

## UNDER 19S

DEBUT	PLAYER	For
2013	T.R.R.Manoosingh	Canada

## **DOMESTIC - OTHER**

## FIRST CLASS

PLAYER	For
D.T.Christian	South Australia
T.L.W.Cooper	South Australia
T.E.Lang	South Australia
	D.T.Christian T.L.W.Cooper

### ONE DAY (LIST A)

-	-	
DEBUT	PLAYER	For
1982-83	M.Ray	Tasmania
2008-09	T.L.W.Cooper	South Australia
2010-11	T.E.Lang	South Australia
2012-13	K.M.Mack	ACT (Womens)

#### **TWENTY 20**

<i>DЕВИТ</i> 2008-09	PLAYER T.L.W.Cooper	For South Australia
2006-09	C.P.Tremain	Sydney Thunder
2012-13	K.M.Mack	ACT (Womens)
2015-16	T.van der Gugten	Hobart Hurricanes
2015-16	K.M.Mack	Melbourne Stars (WBBL)

#### FUTURES LEAGUE/SECOND XI

2015-16	J.M.Bennett	ACT Futures League
2014-15	J.J.Connolly	ACT Futures League
2014-15	D.G.Dawson	ACT Futures League
2013-14	T.S.Rogers	ACT Futures League
2010-11	T.E.Lang	South Australia 2nd XI
1991-92	J.M.Baker	South Australia 2nd XI
DEBUT	PLAYER	FOR

## **CRICKET NSW**

#### SOUTH-EAST SYDNEY (NSW STATE LEAGUE)

DEBUT	PLAYER
2005-06	T.D.Cox
2005-06	D.T.Christian
2005-06	A.M.Neilan
2005-06	T.E.Lang
2005-06	M.W.Creed
2005-06	A.D.Jeffrey
2006-07	J.R.F.Day
2006-07	S.D.Robson

#### **TRIFORCE SUPER T20 CUP**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2015-16	C.A.Wakim
2015-16	J.J.Connelly
2015-16	D.G.Dawson
2015-16	A.M.Ali

## **NEW SOUTH WALES UNDER 19 CITY SQUAD**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2012-13	T.A.Jagot
2012-13	T.S.Rogers
2013-14	N.D.L.Kellaway

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES UNDER 19 COUNTRY SQUAD**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2013-14	T.M.Skelly
2015-16	L.R.Maladay

## **NSW STATE CHALLENGE SQUAD U19**

2015-16	D.O.D.White (City)
2015-16	J.A.Venianakis (City)
2015-16	L.R.Maladay (Country)
2015-16	T.D.Byrnes (Country)

#### **NSW COUNTRY COLTS U19**

2015-16	L.R.Maladay (North Coastal)
2015-16	T.D.Byrnes (Riverina)

#### **NEW SOUTH WALES UNDER 17 CITY SQUAD**

DEBUT	PLAYER
2008-09	K.J.C.Emery
2012-13	T.A.Jagot
2012-13	Z.J.Churchill
2013-14	J.A.Venianakis
2013-14	D.O.D.White

## **NSW STATE CHALLENGE SQUAD U16**

2014-15	J.M.Mellick (City)
2014-15	N.D.Tanner (City)

## **NSW STATE CHALLENGE SQUAD U14**

2015-16	J.K.R.Attenborough (East City)
2015-16	J.L.Greenburg (East City)
2015-16	T.A.Greig (East City)

#### **NSW STATE CHALLENGE SQUAD U13** 2015-16 A.van Vugt (East City)

## **SYDNEY CRICKET ASSOCIATION**

## METROPOLITAN FIRST XI

1976-77 M.Ray 1976-77 G.G.Watson

## METROPOLITAN SECOND XI

1976-77 G.G.Watson

#### ANZ BANK CUP

DEBUT	PLAYER
1976-77	M.Ray
1976-77	G.G.Watson
1976-77	C.J.Chapman
1976-77	J.G.Robson

## A.W.GREEN SHIELD MERIT TEAM (1ST XI)

1998-99	D.T.Christian
1999-00	I.C.Foster
2011-12	T.A.Jagot (Captain)
2011-12	Z.J.Churchill

## A.W.GREEN SHIELD MERIT TEAM (2ND XI)

2010-11	T.A.Jagot
2012-13	T.J.Henry
2012-13	D.O.D.White
2012-13	J.A.Venianakis
2012-13	D.J.Carr

## **INTER-VARSITY**

#### **AUSTRALIAN COMBINED UNIVERSITIES**

DEBUT 1960-61 1961-62 1962-63	PLAYER T.H.Lee S.W.Gilchrist J.A.Chegwyn
1962-63 1962-63	R.S.J.Levi P.A.Ward
1965-66	G.James
1969-70	J.E.Pratley
1969-70	D.E.Wills
1976-77	C.J.Chapman
1976-77	G.F.Lawson
1976-77	J.G.Robson
1976-77	G.G.Watson
1977-78	S.G.Campbell
1979-80	G.R.Livingstone
1979-80	G.Kirkwood
1981-82	J.S.Dixon
1986-87	J.M.Baker
2003-04	S.A.Mohideen
2003-04	C.M.Thomas
2011	D.R.Mulvenna
2012	C.A.Wakim
2012	N.J.Walker
2014	J.R.F.Day
2014	B.P.Wakim
2015	S.K.Thanabalasingam
2016	D.O.D.White
2016	H.C.McLean

## **AUSTRALIAN UNIVERSITY GAMES (MERIT TEAM)**

1995-96	P.W.Carson
1995-96	M.W.Hayward
1995-96	P.Levett
1995-96	M.J.Phelps
2007-08	J.A.Byrne
2007-08	S.W.McKay
2009-10	J.L.McNeil
2009-10	H.G.Campbell
2010-11	J.L.McNeil
2010-11	A.J.Redman
2011-12	T.G.Atallah
2011-12	A.J.Redman
2011-12	N.J.Walker
2012-13	C.A.Wakim

2012-13	G.B.Ashmore
2012-13	T.G.Atallah
2013-14	T.S.Rogers
2013-14	H.C.McLean
2014-15	M.A.Atallah
2014-15	R du Plessis
2014-15	H.C.McLean
2014-15	N.J.Walker
2015-16	M.A.Atallah
2015-16	J.J.Byrnes
2015-16	E.Leten
2015-16	H.C.McLean

# RED BULL WORLD COLLEGE CRICKET CHAMPIONSHIPS ALL STAR TEAM

2012-13	T.G.Atallah
2012-13	J.L.McNeil
2012-13	B.J.McLean
2013-14	T.G.Atallah
2013-14	J.L.McNeil

## **S**CHOOLS

DEBUT	PLAYER	For
2008-09	A.J.Robson (c)	NSW Under 17 Schools
2011	T.A.Jagot	Australian U15 Schools
2011-12	Z.J.Churchill	NSW Catholic Colleges
2012-13	T.A.Jagot	NSW Schoolboys
2012-13	Z.J.Churchill	NSW CHS 1st XI
2012-13	M.A.Atallah	NSW GPS 1st XI
2013-14	J.A.Venianakis	NSW Catholic Colleges
2013-14	D.O.D.White	NSW Catholic Colleges
2015-16	N.D.Tanner	NSW CHS (Sydney Nth)
2015-16	Y.N.A.Gunewardhane	NSW U15 Schools
2015-16	N.D.Tanner	NSW U15 Schools

## **OTHER REPRESENTATIVE**

_		_
SEASON	Name	DESCRIPTION
1995-98	G.F.Lawson	Coach - NSW
2005-07	P.D.Richardson	Manager – SE Sydney
2007-08	G.F.Lawson	Coach - Pakistan
2010-11	M.W.Creed	Coach - City Colts
2010-11	L.A.Talay	Grade XI vs. Shires XI
2011-12	C.P.Tremain	Grade XI vs. Shires XI
2013-14	C.P.Tremain	Australian Invitational XI
2016	B.P.Wakim	NT Invitational XI

## Awards 2015/2016

## SYDNEY PREMIER GRADE CRICKET

1ST GRADE - SCA MERIT TEAM

D.G.Dawson - SCA First Grade Merit Team

## **UNIVERSITY OF NEW SOUTH WALES**

SPORTING HALL OF FAME

A.J.Blackwell

**SPORTING BLUE** 

C.A.Wakim G.Redmayne

3.rtournayno

**SPORTS RECOGNITION AWARD** 

T.G.Atallah

FEMALE ATHLETE OF THE YEAR

G.Redmayne

**BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLAR** 

G.Redmayne

**ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS** 

G.T.Ho – Peter D. Richardson Scholarship L.R.Maladay – Peter Dodd Scholarship J.J.Byrnes - UNSWCC Award M.A.Atallah – EAP T1 H.C.McLean – EAP T1 N.J.Walker – EAP T1

## UNIVERSITY OF NEW SOUTH WALES CRICKET CLUB

E.H. "TED" DAVIS AWARD FOR PLAYER OF THE YEAR

D.G.Dawson

W.JOHN ROGERS AWARD FOR POIDEVIN-GRAY (U21) PLAYER OF THE YEAR

L.R.Maladay

A.W.GREEN SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR

N.D.Tanner

ROOKIE OF THE YEAR

L.R.Maladay

MOST OUTSTANDING NEW PLAYER

O.R.Batchelor

**CAPTAIN JOHN MORRIS FIELDING TROPHY** 

N.J.Walker

THE BARR-TURN JACKET

J.A.Venianakis

CLUBMAN OF THE YEAR - PETER D. RICHARDSON TROPHY

A.G.Charlwood

#### **BATTING & BOWLING**

1st Grade Batting D.G.Dawson 1st Grade Bowling D.O.D.White 2nd Grade Batting R.Rizwan 2nd Grade Bowling B.M.Irving-Holliday 3rd Grade Batting F.W.A.Ruffell 3rd Grade Bowling M.S.Appleton 4th Grade Batting M.P.Rea 4th Grade Bowling C.N.Ward 5th Grade Batting D.R.Mulvenna 5th Grade Bowling A.G.Charlwood Metropolitan Cup (Black) Batting M.J.Stanton Metropolitan Cup (Black) Bowling O.G.H.Howard Metropolitan Cup (Gold) Batting S.A.D.Nguyen Metropolitan Cup (Gold) Bowling J.A.D.Morgan

## **AWARDS - CAREER**

## **NSW CRICKET ASSOCIATION**

**CRICKET NSW - HALL OF FAME** 

2013-14 G.F.Lawson

**CRICKET NSW - LIFE MEMBERSHIP** 

2002-03 G.F.Lawson

## SYDNEY GRADE CRICKET

SYDNEY CRICKET ASSOCIATION - LIFE MEMBERSHIP

2002 J.G.Robson

GRADE CRICKET - PLAYER OF THE YEAR

1976-77 M.Ray 1980-81 M.Ray

1<sup>ST</sup> GRADE – PLAYER OF THE YEAR

1980-81 M.Ray 1999-00 I.D.K.Salisbury

1<sup>ST</sup> GRADE - CAPTAIN OF THE YEAR

1976-77 W.J.Rogers 1999-00 I.D.K.Salisbury

1<sup>ST</sup> GRADE – PLAYER OF THE FINAL

2004-05 T.E.Lang

1<sup>ST</sup> GRADE - SCA MERIT TEAM

2012-13 D.G.Dawson 2014-15 D.G.Dawson **2015-16 D.G.Dawson** 

POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD - PLAYER OF THE YEAR

1975-76 G.G.Watson

POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD - PLAYER OF THE FINAL

1976-77 G.F.Lawson

## **UNIVERSITY OF NEW SOUTH WALES**

**UNSW - SPORTING HALL OF FAME** 

2003 G.F.Lawson
 2010 M.J.Slater
 2016 A.J.Blackwell

**UNSW - SPORTING BLUE** 

1956 L.J.Lawrence 1959 M.J.Reidy 1959 W.J.Rogers 1959 R.N.Warrener J.Mck.Middleton 1961 1965 R.S.J.Levi 1965 D.March P.A.Ward 1965 J.A.Chegwyn 1967 1967 K.Daly 1967 J.Piggott H.C.Bundy 1969 1969 D.C.Clark 1971 J.N.Healey 1973 R.W.D.Robertson 1973 G.G.Robinson 1974 J.B.Martel 1976 M.Ray S.Van der Sluys 1976 1977 P.J.Grattan-Smith 1978 C.J.Chapman 1978 G.G.Watson G.F.Lawson 1979 1982 J.S.Dixon J.G.Robson 1982 1985 J.M.Baker 1988 M.Back 1988 G.R.Livingstone 1991 Adrian White 1996 M.J. Phelps 1999 D.J.Carson 2003 T.S.Richardson A.J.Blackwell 2005

J.R.F.Day

S.L.Hungerford

D.G.Dawson

C.A.Wakim

2007

2008

2012

2013

2016



With just under a thousand runs, two centuries and twenty six dismissals, Dawso was once again UNSW Player of the Year and also earned selection in the SCA 1st Grade Merit team (for the third time).

There are only two guys with more than 3,000 first grade runs for the club with an average over 50 ... Dawso and one Michael J Slater!

Here he is on his way to a half century against Fairfield-Liverpool in Round 5 at the Village Green.

UNSW-	ALUMNI AWARD FOR SERVICES TO SPORT	2011-12	A.J.Robson	PDR
		2011-12	C.P.Tremain	PDR
2015	A.J.Blackwell	2011-12	N.J.Walker	PDR
		2011-12	R.C.Close	IPCM
UNSW -	SPORTS RECOGNITION AWARD	2011-12	T.S.Rogers	UNAW
4070	C I I Damin when	2012-13	T.S.Rogers	HPT1
1976	C.H.Barrington			
1977	R.W.Merrell	2012-13	H.G.Nichols	HPT1
1978	G.M.Garland	2012-13	D.Ferrara	HPT2
1978	W.J.Rogers	2012-13	H.G.Campbell	HPT2
1979	A.Epstein	2012-13	L.A. Talay	PDR
1981	J.D.MacFarlane	2012-13	N.J.Walker	PDR
1983	J.E.Ingleson	2012-13	T.S.Rogers	PDR
2000	J.S.Dixon	2013-14	T.G.Atallah	HP
2003	M.R.Sanders	2013-14	H.G.Nichols	HP
	D.C.Jebb	2013-14	C.A.Wakim	HP
2005				
2007	P.D.Richardson	2013-14	H.J.Walker	HP
2008	P.Serov	2013-14	J.A.Venianakis	PDR
2009	D.J.Sue	2014-15	M.A.Atallah	EAP T2
2011	M.J.O'Brien	2014-15	T.G.Atallah	EAP T2
2013	A.C.Jones	2014-15	R.du Plessis	EAP T2
2014	D.S.Bowcock	2014-15	N.J.Walker	EAP T2
2016	T.G.Atallah	2014-15	R.du Plessis	IPCM
_0.0	Trop tandi	2014-15	T.M.Skelly	PDR
LINICIA	CLUB OF THE YEAR	2015-16	J.J.Byrnes	UNAW
CNSW-	OLUB UF THE TEAK	2015-16	M.A.Atallah	EAP T1
2011-12	Club		N.J.Walker	EAP T2
2012-13	Club	2015-16		
0	_ <del></del>	2015-16	G.T.Ho	PDR
HINGIM	TEAM OF THE YEAR	2015-16	L.R.Maladay	PD
UNSW -		2016-17	J.J.Byrnes	UNAW
2011-12	1 <sup>st</sup> Grade	2016-17	M.A.Atallah	EAP T1
2013-14	AUGs T20	2016-17	H.C.McLean	EAP T1
		2016-17	N.J.Walker	EAP T1
IINSW_	MALE ATHLETE OF THE YEAR			
ONSW -	WALE ATTLETE OF THE TEAR	_	_	
2011-12	D.G. Dawson	OTHER .	<u>Awards</u>	
UNSW -	FEMALE ATHLETE OF THE YEAR	MEDAL OF	THE ORDER OF AUS	TD ALIA
0045.40	<b>a.</b>	WIEDAL OF	THE ORDER OF AUS	FIRALIA
2015-16	G.Redmayne	1990	G.F.Lawson	
		0000	\\\       C :4 -	
		2009	vv.H.Smith	
UNSW-	COACH OF THE YEAR	2009	W.H.Smith	
<b>UNSW</b> – 2012-13	COACH OF THE YEAR T.E.Lang		A SPORTS MEDAL	
2012-13	T.E.Lang			
2012-13		AUSTRALIA	A SPORTS MEDAL	
2012-13 UNSW –	T.E.Lang	Australia 2000	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson	R AWADDS
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner	Australia 2000	A SPORTS MEDAL	3 Awards
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming	Australia 2000	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson	3 Awards
2012-13  UNSW 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps	Australia 2000 UNSW	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson CRICKET CLUE	B <b>A</b> WARDS  R PLAYER OF THE YEAR
2012-13  UNSW 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson	Australia 2000 UNSW	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson CRICKET CLUE	
2012-13  UNSW 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare	Australia 2000 UNSW	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson	AUSTRALIA 2000 <u>UNSW</u> E.H. "TED 1967-68	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole	
2012-13 UNSW – 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "Ted	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson CRICKET CLUE " DAVIS AWARD FO	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day	AUSTRALIA 2000 <u>UNSW</u> E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE " DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray	
2012-13  UNSW - 1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell	
2012-13  UNSW -  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray	
2012-13  UNSW -  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway	
2012-13  UNSW -  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G. Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray	
2012-13  UNSW -  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway	
2012-13  UNSW -  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G. Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray M.Ray	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson	
2012-13  UNSW -  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW -	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS R.J.Medley HP	AUSTRALIA 2000 UNSW E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1978-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS R.J.Medley J.L.McNeil HP	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Roboson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1999-00 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2010-11	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91	A SPORTS MEDAL G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-11 2010-11 2010-11	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker M.J.Slater	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2010-11 2010-11	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray S.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robinson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker J.G.Robloson J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker J.G.Roboson	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-12 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  "DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Campbell M.Ray I.Kellaway M.Ray J.G.Robinson R.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker M.J.Slater D.J.Gallop J.C.Young M.J.Phelps	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2006-07 2007-08 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker D.J.Gallop J.C.Young M.J.Phelps J.G.Robson	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2005-09 2006-07 2007-08 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah HPT1	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker M.J.Slater D.J.Gallop J.C.Young M.J.Phelps J.G.Robson A.Lindsay	
2012-13  UNSW —  1988-89 1992-93 1998-99 1999-00 2000-02 2000-01 2002-04 2003-04 2004-06 2004-05 2006-07 2007-08 2010-13 2011-12 2012-13 2015-17  UNSW —  2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2009-10 2010-11 2010-11 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12 2011-12	T.E.Lang  BEN LEXCEN SPORTING SCHOLARS  W.Faulkner A.Fleming M.J.Phelps D.J.Carson T.J.Hoare T.S.Richardson D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day S.W.McKay A.J.Blackwell G.W.Dobbie S.L.Hungerford T.L.W.Cooper R.J.Kember D.G.Dawson J.L.McNeil K.Sutherland T.S.Rogers G.Redmayne  ELITE ATHLETE SPORTING SCHOLARS  R.J.Medley HP J.L.McNeil HP C.A.Wakim EASP N.J.Walker EASP T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1 T.G.Atallah EASP C.A.Wakim HPT1 N.J.Walker HPT1	AUSTRALIA 2000  UNSW  E.H. "TED 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96	G.F.Lawson  CRICKET CLUE  DAVIS AWARD FO  G.J.Cole A.J.Taylor G.M.Garland G.M.Garland P.J.Schofield G.M.Garland M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray M.Ray J.G.Robson N.Perger G.G.Robinson G.A.Clark G.R.Livingstone M.J.Gregg A.P.R.Clements J.M.Baker J.G.Robson J.M.Baker D.J.Gallop J.C.Young M.J.Phelps J.G.Robson	

		_	
1998-99	I.D.K.Salisbury	ROOKIE OF	THE YEAR
1999-00	A.Lamb	1989-90	B.Calver
2000-01	D.J.Carson	1990-91	D.Trafford
2001-02	R.W.Stark	1991-92	M.W.Hayward
2002-03	R.W.Stark	1992-93	M.J.Phelps
2003-04	D.T.Christian M.W.Creed/T.E.Lang	1993-97	Not Awarded
2004-05	8	1997-98	T.J.Hoare
2005-06	D.T.Christian D.T.Christian	1998-99	T.D.Cox
2006-07	M.W.Creed	1999-00	D.Bhandari
2007-08 2008-09	T.E.Lang	2000-01	S.A.Bray
2008-09	D.G.Dawson	2001-02	G.S.McDonald
2010-11	D.G.Dawson	2002-03	M.W.O'Connor
2010-11	D.G.Dawson	2003-04	M.W.Creed
2012-13	D.G.Dawson	2004-05	T.E.Lang
2012-13	D.G.Dawson	2005-06	T.van der Gugten
2013-14	D.G.Dawson	2006-07	A.J.Robson
<b>2015-16</b>	D.G.Dawson	2007-08	H.M.J.Le Lievre
2013-10	D.G.Dawson	2008-09	B.S.Dean
W. Joun Bo	OGERS AWARD FOR POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD	2009-10	B.J.Hutchison
		2010-11	C.P.Tremain
(U21) PLAY	ER OF THE YEAR	2011-12	Z.J.Churchill
1976-77	J.G.Robson	2012-13	T.S.Rogers
1983-84	M.Hoy	2013-14	J.J.Byrnes
1984-85	L.Gray	2014-15	H.F.Stening
1985-86	S.P.O'Brien	2015-16	L.R.Maladay
	M.Back	2010 10	Littimaladay
1986-87 1987-88	Adrian White		
		Most Outs	STANDING NEW PLAYER
1988-89	A.Fleming A.Fleming	2011-12	P.W.Molinari
1989-90	P.Sinclair		
1990-91		2012-13	R.W.Banham
1991-92	M.W.Hayward	2013-14	L.W.P.Wells
1992-93	D.J.A.Gainsford	2014-15	J.J.Connolly
1993-94	M.K.Paine	2015-16	O.R.Batchelor
1994-95	S.A.Mohideen		
1995-96	B.P.J.Nott	CARTAIN IC	HN MORRIS FIELDING TROPHY
1996-97	P.D.Hemphill	CAPTAIN 3C	THIN WICKRIST IELDING TROPHT
1997-98	A.Lamb	1958-59	J.Mck.Middleton
1998-99	R.M.K.Hamman	1959-60	R.Werley
1999-00	T.J.Hoare		D.T.Lacey
	** B = W	1960-61	D. I.Lacev
2000-01	M.R.Elliott	1960-61 1961-62	•
2000-01 2001-02	A.P.Langdon	1961-62	H.J.Boulton
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian	1961-62 1962-63	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 <b>2015-16</b>	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 <b>2015-16</b>	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 <b>2015-16</b>	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 A.W.GREEN	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 <b>2015-16</b> <b>A.W.GREE</b> 1997-98 1998-99	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 <b>2015-16</b> <b>A.W.GREE</b> 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  S. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 A.W.GREEN 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 A.W.GREEI 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 A.W.GREEN 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR  J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 <b>2015-16</b> <b>A.W.GREE</b> 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1976-77 1977-78 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 <b>2015-16</b> <b>A.W.GREE</b> 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N.SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 A.W.GREEN 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1991-92	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 A.W.GREEI 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N.SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-87 1987-88	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 A.W.GREEI 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah A.J.Robson	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill A.D.Pratt
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16  A.W.GREET 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah A.J.Robson S.Gray	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill A.D.Pratt M.Kovacs
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16  A.W.GREEN 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah A.J.Robson S.Gray S.W.R.Murn	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill A.D.Pratt M.Kovacs B.Schirmer
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16  A.W.GREEI 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah A.J.Robson S.Gray S.W.R.Murn T.A.Jagot	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill A.D.Pratt M.Kovacs B.Schirmer A.Lamb
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16  A.W.GREEI  1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR  J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah A.J.Robson S.Gray S.W.R.Murn T.A.Jagot T.A.Jagot T.A.Jagot T.A.Jagot T.A.Jagot	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1976-77 1977-78 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill A.D.Pratt M.Kovacs B.Schirmer A.Lamb S.A.Mohideen
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16  A.W.GREEI 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR  J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah A.J.Robson S.Gray S.W.R.Murn T.A.Jagot T.A.Jagot T.A.Jagot T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1979-80 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1997-98 1998-99	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett B.Everett B.Everett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill A.D.Pratt M.Kovacs B.Schirmer A.Lamb S.A.Mohideen A.M.Neilan
2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16  A.W.GREEN 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2011-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14	A.P.Langdon D.T.Christian D.T.Christian J.R.F.Day J.R.F.Day/S.D.Robson M.Gowland H.M.J.Le Lievre M.Gowland B.J.Hutchison J.L.McNeil C.A.Wakim T.S.Rogers T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White L.R.Maladay  N. SHIELD (U16) PLAYER OF THE YEAR J.Hill D.T.Christian D.Tartak R.A.Dooley A.R.Braid P.Aley N.G.P.Matthews R.J.Medley M.Treuburg T.G.Atallah A.J.Robson S.Gray S.W.R.Murn T.A.Jagot D.O.D.White S.K.Murthy	1961-62 1962-63 1963-64 1964-65 1965-66 1966-67 1967-68 1968-69 1969-70 1970-71 1971-72 1973-74 1974-75 1976-77 1977-78 1976-77 1977-78 1978-79 1980-81 1981-82 1982-83 1983-84 1984-85 1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98	H.J.Boulton R.W.Smith G.Sylvester J.Mck.Middleton D.Webster G.J.Cole R.S.J.Levi D.E.Wills R.W.D.Robertson R.W.D.Robertson J.B.Martel D.T.Pratt I.E.Smith C.J.Chapman D.P.Meagher J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.P.Barford C.M.Hanger J.Sackett J.Sackett B.Everett M.Back J.S.Dixon M.Back M.Kovacs D.Cummins A.D.Pratt S.A.Norbury G.Hill A.D.Pratt M.Kovacs B.Schirmer A.Lamb S.A.Mohideen

2001-02	A.M.Neilan
2002-03	C.M.Britton
2003-04	A.M.Neilan
2004-05	A.M.Neilan
2005-06	M.C.Sykes
2006-07	M.Gowland
2007-08	A.J.Robson
2008-09	V.A.Mauric
2009-10	J.A.Henry
2010-11	J.L.McNeil
2011-12	J.L.McNeil
2012-13	M.Gowland
2014-15	G.T.Ho
2015-16	N.J.Walker

## THE BARR-TURN JACKET

I HE DAKK-I	URN JACKET
1968-69	R.W.Lucas
1969-70	G.M.Garland
1970-71	R.W.D.Robertson
1971-72	P.J.Larkin
1972-73	P.N.Dobell-Brown
1973-74	R.W.Merrell
1974-75	J.E.Pym
1975-76	R.E.Pym
1976-77	P.J.Grattan-Smith
1977-78	J.O'Brien
1978-79	G.G.Robinson
1979-80	D.T.Pratt
1980-81	D.P.Meagher
1981-82	J.G.Robson
1982-83	R.W.Stark
	G.Holt
1983-84	
1984-85	P.L.Scolari
1985-86	M.B.Ryan
1986-87	E.Robb
1987-88	J.S.Dixon
1988-89	J.Gallagher
1989-90	M.Kovacs
1990-91	P.Sinclair
1991-92	M.W.Hayward
1992-93	D.Trafford
1993-94	M.J.Phelps
1994-95	M.J.Gregg
1995-96	T.F.Buckett
1996-97	D.C.Jebb
1997-98	D.J.Stephen
1998-99	T.J.Hoare
1999-00	M.Plunkett-Cole
2000-01	M.Mag
2001-02	P.W.Carson
2002-03	M.C.Leahy
	A D Lanadan
2003-04	A.P.Langdon
2004-05	R.A.Dooley
2005-06	S.W.McKay
2006-07	D.J.Carson
2007-08	H.M.J.Le Lievre
2008-09	P.Serov
2009-10	M.S.Appleton
2010-11	N.J.Walker
2011-12	A.C.Jones
2012-13	D.G.Dawson
2013-14	C.P.Tremain
2014-15	D.R.Mulvenna
2015-16	J.A.Venianakis

## CLUBMAN OF THE YEAR – PETER D. RICHARDSON TROPHY

1976-77	A.T.McKendry
1980-81	I.Kellaway
1991-92	P.W.Trimble
1992-93	D.Downing
1994-95	M.Kovacs
1995-96	J.O.Carmichael
1996-97	A.C.Jones
1997-98	G.F.Lawson/J.S.Dixon
1998-99	M.R.Sanders
1999-00	J.Plunkett-Cole
2000-01	D.C.Jebb

2001-02	P.D.Richardson
2002-03	D.J.Sue
2003-04	P.Serov
2004-05	O.W.Higgins
2005-06	Ms. T.Christian
2006-07	P.H.Maguire
2007-08	S.W.McKay
2008-09	M.J.O'Brien
2009-10	A.W.Reid
2010-11	D.S.Bowcock
2011-12	M.B.J.Garland
2012-13	D.Bhandari
2013-14	M.J.Stanton
2014-15	Ms. J.Lawson
2015-16	A.G.Charlwood

## **GOLF DAY COUNTRY SCHOLARSHIPS**

2000-01	T.S.Richardson
2001-02	T.D.Cox
2002-03	M.W.O'Connor
2004-05	M.C.Sykes
2005-06	M.Gowland
2007-08	R.J.Medley

#### WOMEN'S PLAYER OF THE YEAR

1989-90	J.Van Ardenne
1990-91	J.Van Ardenne
1991-92	J.Van Ardenne
1992-93	P.van Oploo
1994-95	S.Zeppos
1995-96	A.Sanders
1996-97	Not awarded
1997-98	G.Connolly
1998-99	Not awarded
1999-00	Not awarded
2000-01	G.Connolly
2001-02	J.Miller
2002-03	G.Connolly
2003-04	No Ladies Team
Universities	Women's Cricket Club:

 2004-05
 K.A.Blackwell

 2005-06
 A.Vaughan

 2006-07
 R.Earnshaw

 2007-08
 K.Owen

 2008-09
 K.A.Blackwell

 2009-10
 A.Vaughan

 2010-11
 F.Wunsch

## **CLUB HONOURS**

## SYDNEY GRADE COMPETITION (ENTERED 1973-74)

#### **CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP**

1978-79 CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS

#### **FIRST GRADE**

- **1976-77 PREMIERS** W.J.Rogers (c), J.B.Martel, R.E.Pym, G.G.Watson, G.R.Livingstone, C.J.Chapman, J.G.Robson, G.F.Lawson, J.O'Brien, P.G.Deegan, M.Ray, S.G.Campbell, P.J.Grattan-Smith, M.Watt.
- **PREMIERS (SMH Team of the Year)** M.Ray (c), T.L.Buddin, C.J.Chapman, G.F.Lawson, B.Handley, C.M.Hanger, J.S.Dixon, P.Tout, N.Perger, S.G.Campbell, N.Jansson, G.R.Livingstone, J.G.Robson, A.H.Wijeratne, D.P.Meagher.
- 1981-82 Finalists M.Ray (c), S.G.Campbell, C.J.Chapman, J.S.Dixon, B.Handley, C.M.Hanger, G.F.Lawson, G.R.Livingstone, D.P.Meagher, R.E.Pym, J.G.Robson
- 2004-05 Finalists D.J.Carson (c), C.Brown, D.T.Christian, T.L.W.Cooper, T.D.Cox, M.W.Creed, T.E.Lang, A.M.Neilan, M.W.O'Connor, I.D.K.Salisbury, E.J.W.Zehner, C.M.Thomas (12th Man)
- 2011-12 MINOR PREMIERS Semi-Finalists D.G.Dawson (c), M.D.Birrell, J.A.Byrne, G.W.Clarence, M.Gowland, T.E.Lang, J.L.McNeil, P.W.Molinari, L.A.Talay, C.P.Tremain, N.J.Walker, C.A.Wakim (12<sup>th</sup> Man), C.E.Matthews (13<sup>th</sup> Man).
- 2012-13 MINOR PREMIERS Semi-Finalists T.E.Lang (c), R.W.Banham, J.A.Byrne, J.R.F.Day, D.G.Dawson, M.Gowland, J.L.McNeil, T.S.Rogers, C.P.Tremain, B.P.Wakim, C.A.Wakim, T.A.Jagot (12th man).

#### **LIMTED OVERS COMPETITION**

- 1987-88 Quarter Finalists
- 1993-94 Semi Finalists J.S.Dixon (c), M.Back, M.Boyer, G.Breusch, D.J.Gallop, M.W.Hayward, J.Horley, M.J.Phelps, A.D.Pratt, J.G.Robson, D.Trafford, J.C.Young.
- 1994-95 Finalists J.S.Dixon (c), M.Boyer, D.J.Gallop, M.W.Hayward, J.Horley, M.Kovacs, M.D.Mullen, M.J.Phelps, A.D.Pratt, D.Trafford, J.C.Young.
- 2004-05 **PREMIERS** D.J.Carson (c), D.T.Christian, M.W.Creed, M.W.O'Connor, C.Brown, J.R.F.Day, T.E.Lang, I.D.K.Salisbury, A.M.Neilan, E.J.W.Zehner, T.D.Cox, M.R.Elliott.
- 2011-12 Semi-Finalists D.G.Dawson (c), M.D.Birrell, J.A.Byrne, G.W.Clarence, M.Gowland, T.E.Lang, J.L.McNeil, P.W.Molinari, L.A.Talay, C.P.Tremain, T.van der Gugten, C.A.Wakim (12th Man).
- 2012-13 Semi-Finalists T.E.Lang (c), R.W.Banham, J.A.Byrne, J.R.F.Day, D.G.Dawson, M.Gowland, J.L.McNeil, M.T.Reed, T.S.Rogers, C.P.Tremain, B.P.Wakim, C.A.Wakim.

## **TWENTY20 COMPETITION**

- 2008-09 Quarter Finalists T.E.Lang (c), M.W.Creed, B.S.Dean, M.Gowland, H.M.J.Le Lievre, R.T.Lyons, S.W.McKay, R.Nikolovski, M.W.O'Connor, B.J.Small, T.van der Gugten.
- 2011-12 Quarter Finalists D.G.Dawson (c), M.D.Birrell, J.A.Byrne, G.W.Clarence, M.Gowland, J.L.McNeil, P.W.Molinari, L.A.Talay, C.P.Tremain, T.van der Gugten, C.A.Wakim (12th Man).
- 2012-13 Finalists D.G.Dawson (c), R.W.Banham, J.A.Byrne, J.R.F.Day, M.Gowland, T.E.Lang, J.L.McNeil, M.T.Reed, T.S.Rogers, B.P.Wakim, C.A.Wakim, N.J.Walker (12th Man).

## SECOND GRADE

- 1974-75 Encouragement Award R.W.D.Robertson (c) , G.M.Garland, A.J.Taylor, P.J.Burnett, D.G.Smith, D.R.Barbour, P.W.Watkins, C.A.Brown, G.Kirkwood, A.J.Jacobs, P.J.Grattan-Smith, A.H.Wijeratne, P.G.Noble
- 1977-78 **PREMIERS** T.L.Buddin (c), P.G.Deegan, R.Campbell, N.Jansson, P.Tout, B.Handley, G.Kirkwood, R.E.Pym, R.S.March, G.G.Robinson, I.E.Smith, J.B.Martel, N.Perger, D.T.Pratt, P.C.Emery, J.Sands, P.W. Jourdain.
- 1978-79 Finalists J.B.Martel (c)
- 1985-86 Semi Finalists
- 1990-91 Semi Finalists P.W.Trimble (c)
- 1991-92 Semi Finalists P.W.Trimble (c), G.Breusch, A.P.R.Clements, D.Coots, D.Downing, D.J.A.Gainsford, D.J.Gallop, M.W.Hayward, M.Kovacs, P.Sinclair.
- 1992-93 Semi Finalists P.W.Trimble (c), M.Back, M.Boyer, G.Breusch, A.P.R.Clements, D.Coots, D.Downing, D.J.A.Gainsford, D.J.Gallop, M.J.Phelps, A.D.Pratt.
- 1999-00 Finalists G.S.Milliken (c), D.Bhandari, T.F.Buckett, D.T.Christian, D.Coots, M.R.Elliott, A.Lamb, P.B.Mitchell, M.D.Mullen, A.D.Pratt, E.J.W.Zehner.
- 2000-01 Qualifying Finalists G.S.Milliken (c), D.Bhandari, S.A.Bray, T.D.Cox, D.P.Dermody, M.R.Elliott, G.T.Meredith, P.B.Searle, D.J.Stephen, C.M.Thomas, E.J.W.Zehner.
- 2002-03 Semi Finalists M.C.Leahy (c), J.Bedi, M.C.Bennett, D.Bhandari, P.W.Carson, B.S.Cox, T.D.Cox, R.M.K.Hamman, M.W.O'Connor, R.T.Smith, E.J.W.Zehner.
- 2005-06 Semi Finalists D.Bhandari (c), P.W.Carson, M.R.Elliott, M.Gowland, R.Nikolovski, A.J.O'Sullivan, T.S.Richardson, D.J.Stephen, M.C.Sykes, E.J.W.Zehner, A.D.Zell, S.W.McKay (12th Man).
- 2015-16 Finalists T.G.Atallah (c), M.A.Atallah, J.J.Byrnes, N.R.Charlwood, J.A.Henry, B.M.Irving-Holliday, L.R.Maladay, B.J.McLean, H.C.McLean, R.Rizwan, J.A.Venianakis, C.S.Jackson (12<sup>th</sup> Man)

#### **THIRD GRADE**

- 1975-76 Encouragement Award J.E.Ingleson (c), C.P.Kiefel, I.E.Smith, B.R.Cox, G.J.Cole, G.M.Garland, S.J.Howard, M.N.Bryce, R.P.Zabell, J.N.Cutler, T.B.Haymet.
- 1978-79 Finalists J.E.Ingleson (c)
- 1979-80 Semi Finalists J.E.Ingleson (c)
- 1980-81 Semi Finalists J.E.Ingleson (c)
- 1988-89 Semi Finalists D.P.Meagher (c)
- 2000-01 Semi Finalists J.S.Dixon (c), C.M.Britton, T.F.Buckett, G.M.Dennis, M.W.Hayward, A.P.Langdon, M.C.Leahy, S.A.Mohideen, H.P.E.Nott, A.D.Pratt, C.C.Vonwiller.

#### **FOURTH GRADE**

- 1978-79 Semi Finalists A.Epstein (c)
- 1992-93 Semi Finalists D.Quinlin (c)
- 1994-95 Finalists M.J.Gregg (c), D.J.Culhane, G.Hackney, J.C.Lupton, S.A.Mohideen, M.Morson, M.K.Paine, J.G.Robson, S.Schirmer, P.Urquhart, Z.Zavos.
- 1996-97 Semi Finalists R.W.Stark (c)
- 1998-99 Semi Finalists R.W.Stark (c)
- 1999-00 Semi Finalists R.McLachlan (c)
- 2000-01 Semi Finalists R.McLachlan (c)

#### FIFTH GRADE

- 1975-76 Semi Finalists
- 1976-77 Finalists P.E.James (c)
- 1977-78 Finalists J.D.MacFarlane (c)
- 1981-82 Finalists K.Madden (c)
- 1986-87 Semi Finalists
- 1988-89 Semi Finalists
- 1995-96 PREMIERS R.W.Stark (c), P.B.Searle, C.Neal, C.W.Jameson, S.B.H.Gerber, T.F.Buckett, G.R. Shepherd, P.W.Carson, G.J.Harris, P.Levett, M.Robson, G.A.Clark, M.Hughes.
- 1996-97 Finalists M.R.Sanders (c)
- 2000-01 Finalists D.Quinlin (c)
- 2001-02 Qualifying Finalists R.W.Stark (c), P.W.Carson, G.C.Clowes, N.C.Dornan, M.J.Gregg, G.J.Harris, C.W.Jamison, P.B.Mitchell, M.Plunkett-Cole, R.T.Smith, L.R.Taylor.
- 2002-03 Semi Finalists R.W.Stark (c), N.C.Dornan, R.H.Fleming, S.B.H.Gerber, C.W.Jameson, M.Kulkarni, C.P.Maxwell, P.B.Mitchell, M.Plunkett-Cole, J.G.Robson, L.R.Taylor.
- 2005-06 Semi Finalists P.B.Mitchell (c), H.A.Bachmann, S.B.H.Gerber, J.R.Glenday, P.A.Harris, E.Kargas, C.J.Morris, C.O'Brien, J.G.Robson, D.W.Ross, M.Treuberg.

#### Poidevin-Gray Shield (under 21's)

- 1976-77 **PREMIERS** J.G.Robson (c), M.N.Bryce, J.O.Carmichael, S.J.Howard, N.Jansson, P.W.Jourdain, G.Kirkwood, G.F.Lawson, G.R.Livingstone, D.P.Meagher, N.Perger, M.Watt.
- 1981-82 Semi Finalists J.S.Dixon (c), J.M.Baker, D.Dixon, P.Dixon, M.Hamwood, M.Hoy, M.Kilborn, John McLachlan, M.B.Ryan, I.W.Smith, R.W.Stark.
- 2005-06 Finalists J.R.F.Day (c), T.L.W.Cooper, G.W.Dobbie, R.A.Dooley, M.Gowland, S.W.McKay, R.Nikolovski, S.D.Robson, M.C.Sykes, T.van der Gugten, J.Webb, S.J.Crowl (12th Man), S.L.Crichton (Sub).
- 2011-12 Quarter Finalists A.J.Robson (c), T.G.Atallah, K.Bascaran, J.J.Dunning, T.D.Gallop, T.A.Jagot, H.G.Nichols, J.P.Roach, C.P.Tremain, C.A.Wakim, N.J.Walker.

## A.W.GREEN SHIELD (UNDER 16'S)

- 2011-12 Finalists T.A.Jagot (c), M.A.Atallah, Z.J.Churchill, O.B.Duffy, J.A.Erickson, G.D.Gillespie, J.Habib, N.D.L.Kellaway, R.B.Lawrence Jnr, N.G.Tsoukalas, J.A.Venianakis, D.O.D.White, S.P.Furlong (sub).
- 2012-13 Quarter Finalists N.G.Tsoukalas (c), D.J.Carr, A.W.Dinclik, S.P.Furlong, T.J.Henry, S.Hoque, R.B.Lawrence Jnr, J.G.Lyras, A.Patel, M.L.Scolari, J.A.Venianakis, D.O.D.White.

## SYDNEY METROPOLITAN CUP COMPETITION

#### METROPOLITAN CUP - ENTERED FROM 1998-99

- 2001-02 Semi Finalists P.Serov (c), V.Bourke, D.J.Dunne, D.M.Kachor, M.Kulkarni, D.A.Little, M.S.Lucas, P.H.Maguire, C.Mampityarachchi, J.Maroulis, I.Ornelis.
- 2005-06 Semi Finalists A.C.Jones (c), M.B.J.Garland, S.Halikas, S.K.Kalagara, M.Kulkarni, M.S.Lucas, M.J.Roucek, P.Serov, J.J.H.Tan, B.D.Tate, N.Weerakkody, H.Sangster (12th Man).
- 2012-13 Qualifying Finalists A.G.Charlwood (c), A.C.Autar, A.C.Jones, J.C.Lupton, T.R.R.Manoosingh, S.A.D.Nguyen, T.G.Perera, L.G.Peters, M.B.Rowe, M.J.Stanton, J.J.H.Tan, S.Hoque (12th Man).
- 2014-15 Semi Finalists M.B.J.Garland (c), M.Ali, L.J.Evans, S.Hoque, R.W.Makin, J.Mohan, T.G.Perera, L.G.Peters, A.L.Ward, A.Xu, E.Zamprogno, G.Araujo (12<sup>th</sup> Man).
- 2015-16 Semi Finalists M.J.Stanton ©, J.P.Dickens, F.P.Geraghty, O.G.H.Howard, N.R.Janzen, V.Karunasinghe, R.B.Lawrence Jnr, A.Nayak, N.R.A.Senaratha, J.J.H.Tan, A.L.Ward, R.W.Makin (12<sup>th</sup> Man)

## TIM CREER CUP — ENTERED FROM 2011-12

- 2011-12 Semi-Finalists A.G.Charlwood (c), R.G.Agar, A.D.Coovre, C.A.de Silva, M.B.J.Garland, B.P.Karmakar, S.Kumar, J.C.Lupton, J.J.H.Tan, T.B.Whitton, N.J.Williams, S.B.Raza (12th Man).
- 2012-13 **PREMIERS** C.A.de Silva (c), G.Araujo, M.J.Brandy, A.D.Coovre, M.B.J.Garland, B.P.Karmakar, K.Kishor, P.H.Maguire, L.G.Peters, S.B.Raza, T.L.Stening, A.Xu (12th Man), J.L.Marsden (Sub).
- 2013-14 Semi Finalists C.A.de Silva (c), C.J.Allister, K.Balasubramaniam, A.Gnyawali, B.P.Karmakar, K.Kishor, R.W.Makin, J.L.Marsden, S.B.Raza, T.L.Stening, A.Xu, A.J.Buckland (12th man).
- 2014-15 Semi Finalists C.A.de Silva (c), R.C.Autar, A.Dhar, J.P.Dickens, O.B.Duffy, M.S.Guerry, O.O.A.Kirk, K.Kishor, D.K.Senarath, N.D.Tanner, A.Tripathi.

## INTER-VARSITY (AUSTRALIAN UNIVERSITY CHAMPIONSHIPS)

- 1974-75 CHAMPIONS J.B.Martel (c), C.J.Chapman, J.G.Robson, P.E.James, J.P.Barford, S.R.Tait, R.S.March, S.G.Wiblin, C.A.Brown, R.P.Zabell, G.Kirkwood, D.R.Barbour, M.Ray, P.J.Grattan-Smith.
- 1975-76 Finalists J.B.Martel (c), M.N.Bryce, S.G.Campbell, C.J.Chapman, P.G.Deegan, T.Heymet, C.W.Jones, C.P.Kiefel, S.Lockhart, J.G.Robson, G.G.Watson.
- 1986-87 CHAMPIONS J.M.Baker (c), J.Abbott, B.Cooper, A.Szabo, J.Martin, S.P.O'Brien, D.Roper, W.McKay, L.Gray, P.Warrington, M.N.Palin, N.Horne, M.Back, J.Orchard.
- 1988-89 CHAMPIONS A.C.Shaw (c), P.Sinclair, D.Coots, A.Fleming, M.Kovacs, N.Wood, A.White, A.McCallum, T.Grosser, S.Raju, D.Cummins.
- 1990-91 Finalists A.C.Shaw (c), D.Allan, R.Anderson, D.A.Little, M.Lollback, R.McLachlan, S.Rajun, B.Schirmer, S.Schirmer, D.Singer, D.Trafford, R.Wickremasena
- 1995-96 CHAMPIONS M.J.Phelps (c), P.W.Carson, D.J.Carson, D.J.Culhane, S.A.Mohideen, M.C.Leahy, P.Levett, P.B.Searle, S.B.H.Gerber, M.W.Hayward, A.Cavill, G.Shanthan
- 2003-04 CHAMPIONS C.M.Thomas (c), S.A.Mohideen, O.M.Zafar, J.R.F.Day, D.L.Mann, D.Mitchell, J.A.Byrne, J.MacCallum, N.Singh, W.E.Sommerville, N.Ball, M.G.Watson.
- 2007-08 Semi Finalists S.W.McKay (c), F.M.Afzal, S.Ali, S.A.Butler, J.A.Byrne, R.A.Dooley, S.Maguire, V.A.Mauric, M.S.Owers, S.Sivapalan, S.J.Towers.
- 2009-10 Finalists Silver Medal R.J.Medley (c), T.G.Atallah, J.R.N.Brown, H.G.Campbell, R.C.Close, S.G.Kostoglou, V.A.Mauric, J.L.McNeil, N.Mostafa, S.Sivapalan, T.A.Yazdani, B.P.Karmakar (12th Man).
- 2010-11 Finalists Silver Medal J.L.McNeil (c), B.E.Aggar, T.G.Atallah, M.Choudhury, L.D.Ford, P.P.Hartig-Franc, J.A.Pepper, A.J.Redman, C.A.Wakim, N.J.Walker, C.S.Wills, N.E.Woellner.
- 2011-12 Bronze Medal J.L.McNeil (c), G.B.Ashmore, T.G.Atallah, D.Ferrera, T.D.Gallop, H.G.Nichols, A.J.Redman, C.P.Tremain, C.A.Wakim, N.J.Walker, N.E.Woellner, A.D.Jenkins (12<sup>th</sup> Man), P.J.Hood (Manager).
- **2012-13 CHAMPIONS** C.A.Wakim (c), G.B.Ashmore, T.G.Atallah, M.P.Crowe, D.Ferrara, T.D.Gallop, E.J.Hannah, B.J.McLean, T.B.C.Muthanna, H.G.Nichols, T.S.Rogers, N.J.Walker, T.B.Whitton (Sub).
- 2013-14 CHAMPIONS C.A.Wakim (c), T.G.Atallah, T.D.Gallop, M.C.Jones, E.Leten, B.J.McLean, H.C.McLean, H.G.Nichols, J.R.Reid, T.S.Rogers, N.J.Walker, D.K.Senarath (sub), T.C.Wakim (sub).
- 2014-15 Finalists Silver Medal T.G.Atallah (c), M.A.Atallah, J.J.Byrnes, M.Dedes, R.du Plessis, T.D.Gallop, J.Green, N.D.L.Kellaway, A.E.P.May, S.A.McCormick, H.C.McLean, N.J.Walker.
- 2015-16 Finalists Silver Medal M.A.Atallah (c), J.J.Byrnes, M.Dedes, G.T.Ho, S.N.Krishnan, E.Leten, H.F.Stening, J.Mallett, H.C.McLean, A.Ramakrishnan, S.H.Smyth, L.Thorburn.

## SYDNEY WOMEN'S GRADE COMPETITION

#### UNSW CRICKET CLUB:

- 1975-76 2nd Grade Finalists G.Myers (c), K.Bennett, J.Calcraft, S.Cater, J.Cowan, C.Donohue, V.Ellis, H.Godfrey, P.Grant, A.Medennis, M.Myers, S.Walker, E.Wilkinson.
- 1990-91 4th Grade Semi Finalists
- 2000-01 4th Grade Finalists A.Casamento (c)
- 2001-02 3rd Grade PREMIERS J. Miller, A.Martel, J.Skinner, C.Firkin, M.Hone, C.Lees, K.Soo, J.Kinna, G.Connolly, L.Caruso, N.Martel, S.Anderson, J.Kimber.

#### UNIVERSITIES WOMEN'S CRICKET CLUB (FROM 2002/03):

- 2008-09 1st Grade -Finalists
- 2009-10 2nd Grade Semi Finalists A.Vaughan (c), E.Bath, C.Hodgkinson, S.Issa, W.Maxwell, C.Murray, T.Seymour, J.Still, A.Street, F.Wunsch.
- 2011-12 1st Grade Semi Finalists K.Owen (c), E.Bath, F.Goodwin, H.Laughton, J.Livesey, E.Mifsud, C.Mizzi, C.Murray, A.Parkin, G.Redmayne, A.Vaughan, P.Tulloch (12th Women).
- 2011-12 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Semi-Finalists
- 2011-12 Brewer Shield Finalists R.Hebden (c), K.Bubalo, C.Iemma, M.Kay, R.Li, G.Ohlin, G.Puckett, D.Srinivas, O.Toolin, T.Wesson, K.Wong.
- 2012-13 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Finalists A.J.Blackwell (c), R.L.Haynes, K.Sutherland, E.Burns, S.L.Hungerford, G.Redmayne, C.Mizzi, A.Parkin, E.Mifsud, C.Hodgkinson, M.Gibson, F.Goodwin.
- 2012-13 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Qualifying Finalists W.Maxwell (c), K.Murphy, K.Holland, J.Bellamy, K.Brown, C.Birchall, A.Chisholm, B.Lutz, C.Perry, O.Toolin, V.White.
- 2013-14 1st Grade PREMIERS R.L.Haynes (c), K.Owen, G.Redmayne, K.A.Blackwell, A.Parkin, K.Sutherland, E.Mifsud, F.Goodwin, M.S.Norup, S.Miyaji, C.Hodgkinson, B.Lutz, K.Wong (sub).
- 2013-14 1st Grade T20 Finalists R.L.Haynes (c), K.Owen, G.Redmayne, A.Parkin, K.Sutherland, E.Mifsud, F.Goodwin, M.S.Norup, S.Miyaji, R.Li, B.Lutz, S.Katti.
- 2013-14 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Semi-Finalists A.Chisholm, (c), W.Maxwell, K.Serena, B.Atkins, S.Farrar, L.M.Lam, K.Murphy, K.Regan, K.Holland, M.Anderson, C.Cushway, L.East, S.Healy.
- 2013-14 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade T20 Semi-Finalists W.Maxwell (c), A.Chisholm, K.Serena, K.Murphy, K.Regan, K.Holland, V.White, L.Barker, M.Esperon, B.Lutz, S.Miyagi.
- 2013-14 Brewer Shield PREMIERS D.Srinivas (c), J.Christie, S.Liu, M.Jones, M.Darke, A.Sims, Z.Benjamin, N.Gibson, O.Porter, A.McKay, S.Robinson, J.Manchester.
- 2013-14 Brewer Shield T20 PREMIERS D.Srinivas (c), J.Christie, S.Liu, M.Jones, M.Darke, A.Sims, Z.Benjamin, N.Gibson, O.Porter, A.McKay, S.Robinson, J.Manchester.
- 2014-15 First Grade Finalists A.J.Blackwell (c), L.Askew, K.Coppack, M.Gibson, R.L.Haynes, S.Kaukiono, E.Mifsud, M.S.Norup, K.Owen, L.Poulton, G.Redmayne, K.Sutherland.
- **2014-15** First Grade T20 PREMIERS A.J.Blackwell (c), R.L.Haynes, D.Kannan, S.Kaukiono, E.Mifsud, M.S.Norup, K.Owen, L.Poulton, G.Redmayne, A.Sims, D.Srinivas, K.Sutherland.
- 2014-15 Second Grade T20 Semi-Finalists R.Hebden (c), K.Coppack, E.Geering, B.Harpley, E.Jackson, L.M.Lam, R.Lambe, R.Li, S.Liu, B.Lutz, C.Perry, O.Toolin.
- 2014-15 Third Grade Semi-Finalists W.Maxwell (c), B.Atkins, A.Chisholm, L.East, K.Holland, L.M.Lam, D.Martin, L.Molden, K.Murphy, K.Regan, K.Serena, F.White.
- 2014-15 Third Grade T20- Semi-Finalists J.Still (c), H.Cantrill, K.Edwards, I.Gavel, S.Healy, J.Moriarty, L.O'Brien, G.Sanderson, A.Satchell, M.Stott, C.Van Schalkwyk, M.Wherry.
- **2014-15 Brewer Shield PREMIERS –** D.Srinivas (c), Z.Benjamin, J.Christie, M.Darke, N.Gibson, D.Kannan, S.Liu, A.McKay, O.P.Porter, S.Robinson, A.Sims, S.M.Turner.
- 2014-15 Brewer Shield T20 PREMIERS D.Srinivas (c), Z.Benjamin, S.Campbell, J.Christie, M.Darke, N.Gibson, D.Kannan, S.Liu, A.McKay, O.P.Porter, S.Robinson, S.M.Turner.
- 2015-16 First Grade Semi-Finalists G.Redmayne (c), M.Gibson, N.Gibson, R.Haynes, R.Hebden, C.Johnston, L.Lam, B.Lutz, E.Mifsud, M.Norup, K.Owen, A.Sims.
- 2015-16 First Grade T20 Finalists G.Redmayne (c), C.Brown, A.Davidson-Richards, B.Harpley, R.Hebden, C.Johnston, E.Mifsud, J.Moriarty, M.Norup, K.Owen, S.Robinson, D.Srinivas.
- 2015-16 Third Grade T20 Semi-Finalists A.Chisholm (c), B.Atkins, Z.Benjamin, D.Brown, S.Healy, R.Hebden, B.Lutz, L.Molden, K.Murphy, L.Osborne, K.Serena.
- 2014-15 Brewer Shield PREMIERS 0.Porter (c), S.Campbell, J.Christie, M.Darke, C.Johnston, D.Kannan, J.Keelan, A.McKay, S.Robinson, D.Srinivas.
- 2014-15 Brewer Shield T20 PREMIERS 0.Porter (c), Z.Benjamin, S.Campbell, J.Christie, M.Darke, K.Grantham, D.Kannan, J.Keelan, A.McKay, S.Robinson, D.Srinivas, S.Turner.

## **MUNICIPAL AND SHIRES COMPETITION (ENTERED 1951-1973)**

## **CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP**

1964-65	CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS
1965-66	CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS
1966-67	CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS
1967-68	CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS
1968-69	CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS
1970-71	CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS
1971-72	CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP WINNERS

#### **A DIVISION**

1962-63	Semi Finalists - Prof. J.H.M.Salmon (c)
1963-64	Semi Finalists - J. A. Chegwyn (c)

- 1964-65 PREMIERS J.A.Chegwyn (c), J.Mck.Middleton (vc), B.G.Andrews, D.C.Clark, R.G.Ballantyne, K.Daly, G.M.Garland, J.Piggott, G.Sylvester, M.J.Reidy, P.A.Ward.
- 1965-66 PREMIERS J.A.Chegwyn (c), J.McK Middleton (vc), B.G.Andrews, H.C.Bundy, D.C.Clark, K.Daly, G.M.Garland, M.Gosling, I.Lowe, J.Pigott, G.Sylvester, M.J.Reidy.
- 1966-67 Semi Finalists J.A.Chegwyn (c)
- **1967-68 PREMIERS -** H.C.Bundy (c), J.E.Pratley (vc), B.G.Andrews, R.G.Ballantyne, J.N.Healey, H.Herbert, R.S.J.Levi, I.Lowe, P.J.McEarchran, J.Mck.Middleton, D.E.Wills, P.C.Emery (12th man).
- 1968-69 Finalists J.E.Pratley (c) 1969-70 Finalists - J.E.Pratley (c)
- **1970-71 PREMIERS -** J.E.Pratley (c), G.M.Garland (vc), G.J.Cole, B.R.Cos, A.E.Dietsch, P.A.Heaney, J.B.Martel, Z.Pirjevec, R.W.D.Robertson, G.G.Robinson, D.G.Smith.
- 1971-72 PREMIERS G.M.Garland (c), A.E.Dietsch (vc), G.J.Cole, B.R.Cos, P.A.Heaney, J.B.Martel, G.A.N.Preston, C.A.P.Samerasekera, A.J.Taylor, P.Whalen, D.E.Wills, H.W.Hopkins, R.W.D.Robertson, G.G.Robinson.
- 1972-73 Semi Finalists G.M.Garland (c)

#### **B** DIVISION

- 1952-53 Semi Finalists
- **PREMIERS -** H.C.Bundy (c), T.D.Creer (vc), R.G.Ballantyne, R.Bayfield, D.C.Clark, J.Hollington, I.Lowe, F.Martin, I.Potter, G.Sylvester, R.W.Smith, C.Relton (12th man).
- 1964-65 Semi Finalists (H.C.Bundy ©)
- 1966-67 PREMIERS R.W.Lucas ©, P.J.Schofield, C.H.Barrington, R.Bayfield, A.Bishop, G.J.Cole, D.T.Lacey, D.Pocock,, A.J.Taylor, R.A.Turner, D.E.Wills.
- **1967-68 PREMIERS -** R.W.Lucas (c), P.J.Schofield (vc), C.H.Barrington, D.Brady, R.Bayfield, G.J.Cole, J.Piggott, C.Relton, A.J.Taylor, A.R.Turner, P.A.Ward.

## **C** DIVISION

1964-65 Semi Finalists - J.Tainsh (c)
1971-72 Semi Finalists - A.Epstein (c)
1972-73 Semi Finalists - A.Epstein (c)

## **D** DIVISION

**1986-87** PREMIERS (One Day Competition) - D.J.Bell (c), D.Hughes, J.Hughes, P.Bush, S.Bell, M.Howe, D.Joseph, G.Morgan, D.Graham, J.Warrington, D.Fitzsimmons.

## MOORE PARK

1990-91	NSW Catholic Cricket Assn – 1st Grade – Finalists - M.Phillips (c)
1990-91	NSW Catholic Cricket Assn – 3rd Grade – Semi Finalists
1991-92	NSW Catholic Cricket Assn – 3rd Grade – PREMIERS - A.Burgess (c)
1991-92	NSW Catholic Cricket Assn – 2nd Grade – Semi Finalists - M.Phillips (c)
1992-93	Randwick Catholic Youth Movement Comp - 3rd Grade - PREMIERS - A.Sachs (c), A.Burgess, S.Fenton, A.C.Jones, L.Joseph, S.Joseph, T.Lynch, N.Mistry, M.Perkins, G.Sendall, R.Sirimanne, A.Wunsch, A.Webster.
1994-95	<b>MP&amp;SECA – 3rd Grade – PREMIERS</b> - A.C.Jones (c), W.Campion, A.Cavill, N.Conolly, P.Cranmer, A.Greenhill, A.Linsday, C.Neal, M.Plunkett-Cole, R.Wickremasena, A.Wunsch.
1995-96	MP&SECA – 1st Grade – Semi Finalists - A.C.Jones (c)
1998-99	MP&SECA – 5th Grade – Finalists - R.Ward (c)
1999-00	MP&SECA – 2nd Grade – Semi Finalists - R.Ward (c)

# 1ST GRADE CAPS

Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season	Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season	Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season
1	GM Garland	73-74	75	E Robb	87-88	149	CM Thomas	03-04
2	LG Cupper	73-74	76	PL Scolari	87-88	150	OM Zafar	03-04
3	BG Andrews	73-74	77	NC Dornan	87-88	151	C Brown	04-05
4	VE Carvalho	73-74	78	PW Trimble	87-88	152	TE Lang	04-05
5	JN Cutler	73-74	79	APR Clements	87-88	153	TLW Cooper	04-05
6	AE Dietsch	73-74	80	M Kovacs	88-89	154	GW Dobbie	04-05
7	PJ Grattan-Smith	73-74	81	AC Shaw	88-89	155	AD Jeffrey	05-06
8 9	AJ Jacobs AS Johnston	73-74 73-74	82 83	A Cane W Faulkner	88-89 88-89	156 157	MC Sykes SD Robson	05-06 05-06
9 10	RC Mansfield	73-74 73-74	84	MH Carmichael	88-89	157	GP Smith	06-07
11	JB Martel	73-74	85	S Debello	88-89	159	T van der Gugten	06-07
12	CW Meredith	73-74	86	S Price	88-89	160	S Lane	06-07
13	JM Middleton	73-74	87	D Coots	89-90	161	M Gowland	06-07
14	PG Noble	73-74	88	M Boyer	89-90	162	R Nikolovski	06-07
15	DT Pratt	73-74	89	A McCallum	89-90	163	M Mag	07-08
16	MG Pullen	73-74	90	G Breusch	90-91	164	HMJ Le Lievre	07-08
17	M Ray	73-74	91	M Crawley	90-91	165	RJ Medley	07-08
18	RWD Robertson	73-74	92	MJ Slater	90-91	166	J Webb	07-08
19	GG Robinson	73-74	93	D Trafford	90-91	167	SW McKay	07-08
20	AJ Taylor	73-74	94	JC Young	91-92	168	SL Crichton	07-08
21	PJ Tonkin	73-74	95	J Horley	91-92	169	W Lindsay	08-09
22	S Van der Sluys	73-74	96	D Downing	91-92	170	BS Dean	08-09
23	PW Watkins	73-74	97	MW Hayward	91-92	171	BJ Small	08-09
24	GG Watson	73-74	98	D Carroll	92-93	172	AJ Robson	08-09
25	CJ Chapman	74-75	99	MJ Phelps	92-93	173	RT Lyons	08-09
26	G Kirkwood	74-75	100	DJA Gainsford	92-93	174	BP Wakim	08-09
27	JE Pym	74-75	101	SA Norbury	93-94	175	JL McNeil	08-09
28	RE Pym	74-75	102	S Herzberg	94-95	176 177	CD Stewart	08-09
29 30	JG Robson IE Smith	74-75 74-75	103 104	MD Mullen DJ Carson	94-95 94-95	177 178	JA Henry DG Dawson	09-10 09-10
30 31	PJ Burnett	74-75 74-75	104	WR Saunders	94-95 94-95	179	BJ Hutchison	09-10
32	WJ Rogers	75-76	106	BPJ Nott	94-95	180	CE Matthews	09-10
33	AH Wijeratne	75-76 75-76	107	AW Johnson	95-96	181	ANJ Day	09-10
34	CW Jones	75-76	108	G Hackney	96-97	182	NJ Walker	10-11
35	MK Grave	75-76	109	B Schirmer	96-97	183	LA Talay	10-11
36	PG Deegan	75-76	110	TF Buckett	96-97	184	CP Tremain	10-11
37	GF Lawson	76-77	111	P Urguhart	96-97	185	CA Wakim	10-11
38	J O'Brien	76-77	112	HPE Nott	96-97	186	JA Byrne	10-11
39	M Watt	76-77	113	SA Mohideen	96-97	187	TP Colley	10-11
40	SG Campbell	76-77	114	DJ Stephen	96-97	188	GW Clarence	11-12
41	GR Livingstone	76-77	115	GS Milliken	97-98	189	PW Molinari	11-12
42	P Tout	77-78	116	IDK Salisbury	97-98	190	MD Birrell	11-12
43	N Perger	77-78	117	PW Carson	97-98	191	TS Rogers	12-13
44	N Jansson	78-79	118	M Morson	97-98	192	RW Banham	12-13
45 46	J Sands	78-79 79-80	119	P Chin RMK Hamman	98-99 98-99	193	TBC Muthanna	12-13
46 47	TL Buddin JS Dixon	79-80 79-80	120 121	MR Elliott	98-99	194 195	MT Reed SB Keshar	12-13 12-13
48	CM Hanger	79-80 79-80	122	DCH Heysen	98-99	196	GD Whichello	12-13
49	B Handley	79-80	123	TJ Hoare	98-99	197	TA Jagot	12-13
50	DP Meagher	80-81	124	AM Neilan	98-99	198	JA Venianakis	12-13
51	M Hamwood	81-82	125	TD Cox	98-99	199	SE McCann	13-14
52	C Deegan	81-82	126	DP Dermody	98-99	200	R du Plessis	13-14
53	JM Baker	82-83	127	PB Searle	98-99	201	TG Atallah	13-14
54	A Dillon	82-83	128	TS Richardson	99-00	202	LWP Wells	13-14
55	M Hoy	82-83	129	D Langford-Smith	99-00	203	TM Skelly	13-14
56	M Kilborn	82-83	130	DT Christian	99-00	204	MA Atallah	13-14
57	RS March	82-83	131	D Bhandari	99-00	205	JJ Connolly	14-15
58	W Hetherington	82-83	132	A Lamb	99-00	206	JM Turner	14-15
59	I Kellaway	82-83	133	CJ Adams	00-01	207	AJ Redman	14-15
60	P Bishell	83-84	134	SA Bray	00-01	208	DR Morton	14-15
61 62	DR Pringle	83-84	135	BM Day	01-02	209	JJ Byrnes	14-15
62 63	S Keers PW Jourdain	83-84 83-84	136 137	K Danenbergsons LD Sutton	01-02 01-02	210 211	RH Patel DOD White	14-15 14-15
64	B Everett	83-84	138	MG Watson	01-02	211	SK Thanabalasingam	14-15
65	P Dodd	84-85	139	J Bedi	01-02	213	BJ McLean	15-16
66	GA Clark	84-85	140	GS McDonald	01-02	214	JM Bennett	15-16
67	M Back	85-86	141	EJW Zehner	01-02	215	AM Ali	15-16
68	DJ Gallop	85-86	142	AP Langdon	01-02	216	R Rizwan	15-16
69	G Eades	85-86	143	BS Cox	02-03	217	HC McLean	15-16
70	AD Pratt	85-86	144	MW O'Connor	02-03	218	BM Irving-Holliday	15-16
71	G Holt	86-87	145	MC Leahy	02-03	219	LR Maladay	15-16
72	MB Ryan	86-87	146	MW Creed	03-04	220	FWA Ruffell	15-16
73	PW Godber	87-88	147	JRF Day	03-04			
74	Adrian White	87-88	148	RS Ferley	03-04			

# 1ST GRADE CAPS (LIMITED OVERS)

Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season	Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season	Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season
1	GF Lawson	92-93	41	AM Neilan	99-00	81	SW McKay	08-09
2	JS Dixon	92-93	42	TS Richardson	99-00	82	RT Lyons	08-09
3	M Back	92-93	43	CJ Adams	00-01	83	JA Henry	09-10
4	M Boyer	92-93	44	D Bhandari	00-01	84	DG Dawson	09-10
5	D Coots	92-93	45	DT Christian	00-01	85	BJ Hutchison	09-10
6	DJ Gallop	92-93	46	DP Dermody	00-01	86	CD Stewart	09-10
7	MW Hayward	92-93	47	A Lamb	00-01	87	CE Matthews	09-10
8	J Horley	92-93	48	J Bedi	01-02	88	ANJ Day	09-10
9	M Kovacs	92-93	49	K Danenbergsons	01-02	89	JL McNeil	09-10
10	MJ Phelps	92-93	50	BM Day	01-02	90	AJ Robson	10-11
11	JG Robson	92-93	51	LD Sutton	01-02	91	NJ Walker	10-11
12	MJ Slater	92-93	52	MG Watson	01-02	92	LA Talay	10-11
13	D Trafford	92-93	53	EJW Zehner	01-02	93	CP Tremain	10-11
14	JC Young	92-93	54	BS Cox	02-03	94	JA Byrne	10-11
15	G Breusch	93-94	55	MW O'Connor	02-03	95	CA Wakim	10-11
16	SA Norbury	93-94	56	MW Creed	03-04	96	MD Birrell	11-12
17	AD Pratt	93-94	57	JRF Day	03-04	97	GW Clarence	11-12
18	S Herzberg	94-95	58	RS Ferley	03-04	98	BP Wakim	11-12
19	M Kilborn	94-95	59	CM Thomas	03-04	99	PW Molinari	11-12
20	MD Mullen	94-95	60	OM Zafar	03-04	100	TS Rogers	12-13
21	BPJ Nott	94-95	61	C Brown	04-05	101	MT Reed	12-13
22	WR Saunders	94-95	62	TE Lang	04-05	102	RW Banham	12-13
23	AW Johnson	95-96	63	AP Langdon	04-05	103	SB Keshar	12-13
24	DJ Carson	95-96	64	AD Jeffrey	05-06	104	GD Whichello	12-13
25	B Schirmer	95-96	65	MC Sykes	05-06	105	LWP Wells	13-14
26	TF Buckett	96-97	66	TLW Cooper	05-06	106	TA Jagot	13-14
27	G Hackney	96-97	67	SD Robson	05-06	107	TM Skelly	13-14
28	SA Mohideen	96-97	68	GP Smith	06-07	108	MA Atallah	13-14
29	P Urquhart	96-97	69	T van der Gugten	06-07	109	R du Plessis	14-15
30	GS Milliken	97-98	70	S Lane	06-07	110	JM Turner	14-15
31	HPE Nott	97-98	71	M Gowland	06-07	111	JJ Connolly	14-15
32	IDK Salisbury	97-98	72	R Nikolovski	07-08	112	RH Patel	14-15
33	DJ Stephen	97-98	73	M Mag	07-08	113	DOD White	14-15
34	TD Cox	98-99	74	HMJ Le Lievre	07-08	114	DR Morton	14-15
35	RMK Hamman	98-99	75	RJ Medley	07-08	115	BJ McLean	15-16
36	TJ Hoare	98-99	76	W Lindsay	08-09	116	JM Bennett	15-16
37	PB Searle	98-99	77	BS Dean	08-09	117	AM Ali	15-16
38	MR Elliott	99-00	78	SL Crichton	08-09			
39	DCH Heysen	99-00	79	BJ Small	08-09			
40	D Langford-Smith	99-00	80	J Webb	08-09			

# 1ST GRADE CAPS (TWENTY 20)

Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season	Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season	Cap No	Players Name	Debut Season
1	TE Lang	08-09	21	EJW Zehner	09-10	41	R du Plessis	13-14
2	MW O'Connor	08-09	22	CE Matthews	09-10	42	TG Atallah	13-14
3	BS Dean	08-09	23	ANJ Day	09-10	43	JA Venianakis	13-14
4	SL Crichton	08-09	24	CA Wakim	10-11	44	TM Skelly	13-14
5	W Lindsay	08-09	25	JA Byrne	10-11	45	TA Jagot	13-14
6	SW McKay	08-09	26	JL McNeil	10-11	46	MA Atallah	14-15
7	R Nikolovski	08-09	27	AJ Robson	10-11	47	JJ Connolly	14-15
8	SJ Towers	08-09	28	LA Talay	10-11	48	JM Turner	14-15
9	BJ Small	08-09	29	CP Tremain	10-11	49	RH Patel	14-15
10	RT Lyons	08-09	30	TP Colley	10-11	50	SK Thanabalasingam	14-15
11	J Webb	08-09	31	NJ Walker	10-11	51	JJ Byrnes	14-15
12	MW Creed	08-09	32	MD Birrell	11-12	52	DR Morton	14-15
13	SD Gilmour	08-09	33	PW Molinari	11-12	53	JM Bennett	15-16
14	M Gowland	08-09	34	GW Clarence	11-12	54	AM Ali	15-16
15	T van der Gugten	08-09	35	JRF Day	12-13	55	BJ McLean	15-16
16	HMJ Le Lievre	08-09	36	TS Rogers	12-13	56	HC McLean	15-16
17	DG Dawson	09-10	37	RW Banham	12-13	57	BM Irving-Holliday	15-16
18	JA Henry	09-10	38	BP Wakim	12-13		g ,	
19	BJ Hutchison	09-10	39	MT Reed	12-13			
20	CD Stewart	09-10	40	LWP Wells	13-14			

## PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Another season for UNSWCC has flown by. This season presented many challenges and we have many more ahead in the coming year or two, but I feel that we are slowly improving and that further success is well within reach.

As far as the Clubs on field success this year, we improved significantly on recent years performances. The highlight was clearly **Tom Atallah** and the 2<sup>nd</sup> Grade boys making it all the way the Grand Final to fall at the last hurdle to a very well drilled and ruthless Sydney Cricket Club. There were a few key moments in the match where if things went our way, we could have won it, but at the end of the day Sydney were the better team and deserved the title. Tom has done a great job with two's in recent years and is growing as a leader. They will all be better for the experience and hope to go all the way next season.

We had a strong improvement in the Club Championship ladder finishing 13<sup>th</sup>. But for a very poor round against Easts towards the end of the season, a top 10 would have been achieved, so we are very close. Another improvement next year, and winning a few of the tight games, and things will be looking very much better.

We did have some further success on the field with **Murray Stanton's** Metro Cup lads making the finals, only to be beaten by Penrith. Garlo and Muzz did wonderful jobs with Metro and the Club thanks them for their efforts.

The Australian University Games team led by **Marcus Atallah** also had success at the AUG's which this year was held on the Gold Coast. The team played a great tournament before losing the final to UTS. Full scores and report by Marcus are available later in the Annual Report.

I am not going to go heavily into the player and team stats and team performances as the remainder of this Annual Report could be described as a stats nerds Nirvana. The stats team of **Darren Sue** and **Peter Maguire** have once again done an amazing job in the compilation of the stats for the Club. Once again, the Annual Report is the benchmark for Sydney Grade cricket. Well done guys!

From a representative cricket perspective, the Club is going ahead in leaps and bounds. It is our role to produce representative players and I cannot remember a year when more UNSWCC members succeeded at the higher levels. **Charlie Wakim** and **Katie Mack** represented the Sydney Sixers and Melbourne Stars respectively in the coveted Big Bash League. **Charlie Wakim, Declan White** and **Lewin Maladay** all represented NSW at Futures League level, with **Josh Bennet** lining up for ACT in the same competition. **Lewin Maladay, Tom Byrnes, John Venianakis** and **Declan White** all competed in the U19 State challenge representing NSW and ACT / NSW Country.

Our juniors through Randwick Junior Cricket and the Green Shield program also excelled with **Jack Attenborough**, **Tom Greig**, **Jake Greenberg** and **Alex Van Gugt** representing at NSW age group level. **Nivek Tanner** and **Yushan Gunewardhane** played for NSW School boys U15's.

**Ben Wakim** lined up for the Northern Territory Invitational XI in Darwin against Kenya, and **Charlie Wakim**, **Declan White** and **Nick Walker** represented Australian Universities in the UK and clocked up a 1<sup>st</sup> Class fixture for their trouble. Lastly, **Dave Dawson** once again was named in the SCA 1<sup>st</sup> Grade merit team. A fine group of performances indeed.

Congratulations also to **Charlie Wakim** on being awarded a UNSW Blue, the highest honour in sport at UNSW. In addition, **Tom Atallah** received a Sports Recognition Award for his long term contribution to the Club and Uni Games as an undergraduate.

Special congratulations to **Alex Blackwell** on being inducted into the UNSW Sporting hall of Fame. Alex is a superb ambassador of UNSW and UNSW Cricket. Also, congratulations to **Georgia Redmayne** on her UNSW Blue and Female sportsperson of the year awards.

The coaching at UNSWCC is now comparable with the best on offer across all grade cricket. **Corey Richards** has been instrumental in the improving results and the efforts of **David Jebb, Tim Lang** and **Dave Dawson** have largely contributed to our improving performances. Again, Henry is always there offering support and advice. The Club could not be in better hands. Corey and the team are continuing on in their roles and we welcome **Sutha Thanabalasingam** into the Green Shield coaching role for next season.

Sponsorship support from our sponsor partners has been fantastic this year. **Mark Mellick** from Mellick Wealth, **Peter Byrnes** from Workspace and **Mike Black** from Clovelly Chiropractic are key to the ongoing success of the Club. Thanks to them and all the minor sponsors.

Our partnership with Randwick Junior Cricket Club is going from strength to strength. This season saw players as young as 13yo from RJCC step out for UNSW in the lower grades. This is a very exciting step for us as we look to develop players from a very young age and give them a solid and clear pathway into Grade Cricket. I would like to thank **Vic Ferrara, Peter Byrnes** and **Phil Cambouris** along with everyone at RJCC who strive to develop the partnership.

A Club like ours can only run with the input of many, many people. I thank everyone who took some time this season to help out at various times, but specifically would like to mention:

Our captains – Ben Wakim, Tom Attallah, Mark Appleton, Micky Rea, Alex Charlwood, Matt Garland, Murray Stanton. Week in week out these guys all give many, many hours to the Club

**Alex Charlwood** – Charlie won the Clubman of the Year this year for a very good reason. A great man to have looking after the Club and handling the Clubs affairs. Thanks mate, you are a dead set legend.

**Peter Scolari** – Again, Springer stepped up as Treasurer. Having recently moved to Sydney and set up an office, he still managed to find time to look after the Clubs finances.

**John Lupton** – Rattler takes on two of the toughest jobs in the Club, Chairman of Selectors and practice co-ordinator. He does both with passion.

**Darren Sue** – deserves a special mention as his contributions are around the worst jobs at the Club. Fee collection, scorers rosters, stats, registrations – Suey is on top of all of it, and offers so much to the Club.

**Geoff Lawson** – Club captain, club legend, club mentor and coach, Henry always has time for the Bees.

Others who all heavily contribute to UNSW and make the Club run day to day. Phil Hood, Eddie DuPlessis, Julie Lawson, Richie Bowman, David Jebb, Matt Garland, Murray Stanton, Sam McCormack, Josh Gavan, Micky Rea, Paul Serov and Danny Bhandari all do an enormous of work behind the scenes and the Club thanks you all.

The scorers, Janelle, Terry, George, lan and everyone else who filled in here and there, thank you!

I would like to make special thanks to two past UNSWCC presidents, **Andrew Jones** and **Chris Chapman**. Our struggles with UNSW over support and grounds have been well documented, and Andrew & Chris have been incredibly helpful to me in my dealings with UNSW throughout the year. Thanks to both of them and I know I can count on their ongoing help.

Special mention also to **Paul Serov** and the team that compiles the Annual Report. It takes 100's of hours work to produce such a first class document and everyone at the Club should thank them and buy them a beer!

Lastly, to my very patient wife, Angelique as well as Amy and Tim, thanks you for your support and patience as I spend so much time on UNSWCC matters.

Apologies if I missed anyone or forgot anything! It is an honour to act as President of UNSW Cricket Club and I will continue to work hard with the aim of making the Club the best Grade Cricket club in Sydney.

#gotthebees

MATT SANDERS
PRESIDENT

## TREASURER'S REPORT

It is with pleasure that I table the Treasurer's Report for 2015/16.

After allowing for an infrastructure spend on cricket nets (approx. \$20,000), which has been expensed to the profit & loss statement, the club has posted a loss of approximately \$16,000 for the year. This includes \$4,000 in scholarships which was not taken from the Foundation account. Therefore the club's financial performance has been quite strong as it continues to spend some of its built up reserves on areas that will help us to get some solid results on the field.

As at 30 June 2016 we had \$101,905 in our bank and net assets of \$96,699.

I would like to thank everybody that assisted with the fundraising efforts throughout the year including Glen Clark with the Old Boys fixture, David Jebb with the annual SCG Breakfast which this year was badly affected by the weather. Special mention should also go to Matt Sanders with his sponsorship raising efforts and I encourage all those associated with the club past and present to support these companies wherever they can. Thank you Seros for your help with the Annual Dinner and reports.

As always, Suey has done a power of work chasing subs and keeping track. The many hours he puts in to this should never be taken for granted.

To our secretary Charlie and Bandit, thank you for your assistance with the grant submissions.

To my business partner Phil Comerford and our staff at Scolari Comerford thank you for assisting me and allowing me to serve the club in a small way.

Finally to our President Matt Sanders, thank you for your help during the year with the finance function. As a club we are so fortunate to have a guy who devotes so much of his time and so unselfishly.

Please refer to page 116 for the detailed financial statements.

PETER SCOLARI
HONORARY TREASURER

## COACHING REPORT

Firstly my thanks to Matt Sanders and the UNSW Committee for your support in everything that we are trying to implement at the club. To David Jebb and all of the coaching and support staff, thankyou also for your efforts throughout the year, it is very much appreciated.

To Tom Atallah and the boys who played 2nd grade this season, my sincere congratulations on a tremendous runner up finish. The way that you approached the game, the team spirit, the belief and trust that you had in each other was amazing to see and anyone that was around you guys have surely gained a better understanding of why you succeeded as a team and I can only hope that your positive example has rubbed off on every club member thus allowing them to take the experience back to their own team heading into next season for which I am sure will be a successful one.

In regards to the season as a whole, we as a club have made significant progress and achieved 2 of the 3 goals that both Matt Sanders and I had set for us.

#### The goals were:

- to play finals cricket;
- finish in the top 10 of the Club Championship; and
- produce players for the next level.

In every grade and underage team (bar 1st Grade) there was a significant improvement in the position on the ladder from the previous season and this ultimately allowed us to climb from 19th to 13th in the Club Championship so well done to everybody.

UNSW had 2nd Grade play finals cricket and with 3rd Grade and PG's narrowly missing out, it was almost an amazing season, next year will be different for those teams.

We had numerous players play representative cricket, in either underage NSW teams or 2nd X1which is a credit to those individual players for all of their hard work. The list is a long one but a special mention must go to Katie Mack who played for the ACT Meteors and the Melbourne Stars WBBL. For Katie to take herself outside of her comfort zone and to challenge herself against men week in and week out has no doubt helped game so well done Katie.

The only goal that eluded us was finishing in the top 10 of the Club Championship and ultimately we were only 40 points away from achieving this but with hard work, a team and club focus by players then I am sure that we can achieve and surpass that next year.

Finally and most importantly, there is no question in my mind that as a club, we are heading upwards and I encourage everybody to keep challenging yourself to improve as individuals but have a TEAM focus so that next season we can set the bar even higher, and who knows what might happen.

COREY RICHARDS
CLUB COACH

# **COMPETITION TABLES 2015/2016**

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - Club Championship - The Sydney Smith Cup

RANK	CLUB	POINTS
1	Penrith Cricket Club	1303
2	Sydney Cricket Club	1275
3	Sutherland Cricket Club	1232
4	St George Cricket Club	1181
5	Northern District Cricket Club	1173
6	Eastern Suburbs Cricket Club	1128
7	Mosman Cricket Club	1046
8	Sydney University Cricket Club	1037
9	Manly-Warringah Cricket Club	1027
10	Gordon Cricket Club	962
11	Randwick Petersham Cricket Club	942
12	Bankstown Cricket Club	927
13	UNSW Cricket Club	922
14	Parramatta District Cricket Club	897
15	Campbelltown-Camden Cricket Club	879
16	Blacktown Cricket Club	822
17	Fairfield-Liverpool Cricket Club	726
18	Hawkesbury Cricket Club	547
19	Western Suburbs Cricket Club	513
20	North Sydney Cricket Club	283

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - First Grade - The Belvidere Cup

RANK	TEAM	Р	W1	W2	D	L1	L2	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	QUOT.
1	Bankstown	15	11	0	1	3	0	4072	112	3623	138	66	1.3848
2	Penrith	15	10	0	2	3	0	3378	108	3232	116	60	1.1226
3	Sydney	15	9	0	1	5	0	3429	116	3777	126	54	0.9861
4	St George	15	7	1	2	5	0	3959	90	3774	127	52	1.4803
5	Campbelltown-Camden	15	7	1	2	5	0	3458	118	3390	113	52	0.9768
6	Sutherland	15	8	0	1	6	0	3593	123	3531	135	49	1.1168
7	Northern District	15	8	0	1	6	0	3856	118	3550	121	49	1.1138
8	Manly-Warringah	15	6	1	1	7	0	4183	99	4094	146	48	1.5068
9	Gordon	15	8	0	2	5	0	3824	114	3663	118	48	1.0806
10	Eastern Suburbs	15	6	1	2	6	0	4084	129	4061	144	47	1.1226
11	Randwick Petersham	15	7	0	4	4	0	4145	102	3946	135	42	1.3903
12	Blacktown	15	7	0	3	5	0	3749	121	3681	108	42	0.9091
13	Parramatta	15	7	0	2	6	0	3532	109	4043	100	42	0.8015
14	Fairfield-Liverpool	15	6	0	2	7	0	3170	118	3524	122	38	0.9300
15	UNSW	15	5	0	5	5	0	4279	125	4143	122	30	1.0080
16	Mosman	15	5	0	1	8	1	4102	139	4056	132	30	0.9604
17	Sydney University	15	5	0	2	8	0	3074	124	3470	126	30	0.9002
18	North Sydney	15	2	0	1	11	1	3487	138	3775	95	12	0.6359
19	Hawkesbury	15	2	0	2	10	1	3291	139	3422	84	12	0.5812
20	Western Suburbs	15	1	0	1	12	1	3595	173	3505	107	6	0.6344

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - First Grade Limited-Over

1         Bankstown         4         4         0         0         833         33         742         37         24           2         Sydney         4         3         0         1         848         25         812         30         18           3         Blacktown         4         3         0         1         849         34         791         38         18           4         St George         4         3         0         1         926         23         909         32         18           5         Sutherland         4         3         0         1         598         37         620         39         18           6         Penrith         4         3         0         1         857         34         912         32         18           7         Fairfield-Liverpool         4         2         0         2         756         26         719         34         14           8         Eastern Suburbs         4         2         0         2         893         26         855         30         12           10         Northern District         4	RANK	TEAM	Р	W	D	L	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	NRR
3       Blacktown       4       3       0       1       849       34       791       38       18         4       St George       4       3       0       1       926       23       909       32       18         5       Sutherland       4       3       0       1       598       37       620       39       18         6       Penrith       4       3       0       1       857       34       912       32       18         7       Fairfield-Liverpool       4       2       0       2       756       26       719       34       14         8       Eastern Suburbs       4       2       0       2       1023       30       794       32       13         9       Randwick Petersham       4       2       0       2       1893       26       855       30       12         10       Northern District       4       2       0       2       933       29       919       33       12         11       Mosman       4       2       0       2       884       28       860       28       12	1	Bankstown	4	4	0	0	833	33	742	37	24	0.5652
4       St George       4       3       0       1       926       23       909       32       18         5       Sutherland       4       3       0       1       598       37       620       39       18         6       Penrith       4       3       0       1       857       34       912       32       18         7       Fairfield-Liverpool       4       2       0       2       756       26       719       34       14         8       Eastern Suburbs       4       2       0       2       1023       30       794       32       13         9       Randwick Petersham       4       2       0       2       893       26       855       30       12         10       Northern District       4       2       0       2       933       29       919       33       12         11       Mosman       4       2       0       2       884       28       860       28       12         12       Sydney University       4       2       0       2       817       32       806       31       12	2	Sydney	4	3	0	1	848	25	812	30	18	0.4880
5         Sutherland         4         3         0         1         598         37         620         39         18           6         Penrith         4         3         0         1         857         34         912         32         18           7         Fairfield-Liverpool         4         2         0         2         756         26         719         34         14           8         Eastern Suburbs         4         2         0         2         1023         30         794         32         13           9         Randwick Petersham         4         2         0         2         893         26         855         30         12           10         Northern District         4         2         0         2         933         29         919         33         12           11         Mosman         4         2         0         2         884         28         860         28         12           12         Sydney University         4         2         0         2         817         32         806         31         12           13         Gordon	3	Blacktown	4	3	0	1	849	34	791	38	18	0.3053
6         Penrith         4         3         0         1         857         34         912         32         18           7         Fairfield-Liverpool         4         2         0         2         756         26         719         34         14           8         Eastern Suburbs         4         2         0         2         1023         30         794         32         13           9         Randwick Petersham         4         2         0         2         893         26         855         30         12           10         Northern District         4         2         0         2         933         29         919         33         12           11         Mosman         4         2         0         2         884         28         860         28         12           12         Sydney University         4         2         0         2         817         32         806         31         12           13         Gordon         4         2         0         2         893         25         811         22         12           14         Parramatta	4	St George	4	3	0	1	926	23	909	32	18	0.2571
7         Fairfield-Liverpool         4         2         0         2         756         26         719         34         14           8         Eastern Suburbs         4         2         0         2         1023         30         794         32         13           9         Randwick Petersham         4         2         0         2         893         26         855         30         12           10         Northern District         4         2         0         2         933         29         919         33         12           11         Mosman         4         2         0         2         884         28         860         28         12           12         Sydney University         4         2         0         2         817         32         806         31         12           13         Gordon         4         2         0         2         893         25         811         22         12           14         Parramatta         4         2         0         2         733         32         1006         29         12           15         Manly-Warringah<	5	Sutherland	4	3	0	1	598	37	620	39	18	-0.0991
8         Eastern Suburbs         4         2         0         2         1023         30         794         32         13           9         Randwick Petersham         4         2         0         2         893         26         855         30         12           10         Northern District         4         2         0         2         933         29         919         33         12           11         Mosman         4         2         0         2         884         28         860         28         12           12         Sydney University         4         2         0         2         817         32         806         31         12           13         Gordon         4         2         0         2         893         25         811         22         12           14         Parramatta         4         2         0         2         893         25         811         22         12           15         Manly-Warringah         4         1         0         3         817         30         891         38         7           16         UNSW <td< td=""><td>6</td><td>Penrith</td><td>4</td><td>3</td><td>0</td><td>1</td><td>857</td><td>34</td><td>912</td><td>32</td><td>18</td><td>-0.2750</td></td<>	6	Penrith	4	3	0	1	857	34	912	32	18	-0.2750
9       Randwick Petersham       4       2       0       2       893       26       855       30       12         10       Northern District       4       2       0       2       933       29       919       33       12         11       Mosman       4       2       0       2       884       28       860       28       12         12       Sydney University       4       2       0       2       817       32       806       31       12         13       Gordon       4       2       0       2       893       25       811       22       12         14       Parramatta       4       2       0       2       733       32       1006       29       12         15       Manly-Warringah       4       1       0       3       817       30       891       38       7         16       UNSW       4       1       0       3       820       33       839       30       6         17       Hawkesbury       4       1       0       3       745       28       753       23       6 <t< td=""><td>7</td><td>Fairfield-Liverpool</td><td>4</td><td>2</td><td>0</td><td>2</td><td>756</td><td>26</td><td>719</td><td>34</td><td>14</td><td>0.6174</td></t<>	7	Fairfield-Liverpool	4	2	0	2	756	26	719	34	14	0.6174
10         Northern District         4         2         0         2         933         29         919         33         12           11         Mosman         4         2         0         2         884         28         860         28         12           12         Sydney University         4         2         0         2         817         32         806         31         12           13         Gordon         4         2         0         2         893         25         811         22         12           14         Parramatta         4         2         0         2         733         32         1006         29         12           15         Manly-Warringah         4         1         0         3         817         30         891         38         7           16         UNSW         4         1         0         3         820         33         839         30         6           17         Hawkesbury         4         1         0         3         745         28         753         23         6           18         North Sydney         4	8	Eastern Suburbs	4	2	0	2	1023	30	794	32	13	1.0947
11       Mosman       4       2       0       2       884       28       860       28       12         12       Sydney University       4       2       0       2       817       32       806       31       12         13       Gordon       4       2       0       2       893       25       811       22       12         14       Parramatta       4       2       0       2       733       32       1006       29       12         15       Manly-Warringah       4       1       0       3       817       30       891       38       7         16       UNSW       4       1       0       3       820       33       839       30       6         17       Hawkesbury       4       1       0       3       745       28       753       23       6         18       North Sydney       4       1       0       3       773       32       851       25       6	9	Randwick Petersham	4	2	0	2	893	26	855	30	12	0.3640
12     Sydney University     4     2     0     2     817     32     806     31     12       13     Gordon     4     2     0     2     893     25     811     22     12       14     Parramatta     4     2     0     2     733     32     1006     29     12       15     Manly-Warringah     4     1     0     3     817     30     891     38     7       16     UNSW     4     1     0     3     820     33     839     30     6       17     Hawkesbury     4     1     0     3     901     36     929     22     6       18     North Sydney     4     1     0     3     745     28     753     23     6       19     Campbelltown-Camden     4     1     0     3     773     32     851     25     6	10	Northern District	4	2	0	2	933	29	919	33	12	0.0700
13       Gordon       4       2       0       2       893       25       811       22       12         14       Parramatta       4       2       0       2       733       32       1006       29       12         15       Manly-Warringah       4       1       0       3       817       30       891       38       7         16       UNSW       4       1       0       3       820       33       839       30       6         17       Hawkesbury       4       1       0       3       901       36       929       22       6         18       North Sydney       4       1       0       3       745       28       753       23       6         19       Campbelltown-Camden       4       1       0       3       773       32       851       25       6	11	Mosman	4	2	0	2	884	28	860	28	12	0.0657
14       Parramatta       4       2       0       2       733       32       1006       29       12         15       Manly-Warringah       4       1       0       3       817       30       891       38       7         16       UNSW       4       1       0       3       820       33       839       30       6         17       Hawkesbury       4       1       0       3       901       36       929       22       6         18       North Sydney       4       1       0       3       745       28       753       23       6         19       Campbelltown-Camden       4       1       0       3       773       32       851       25       6	12	Sydney University	4	2	0	2	817	32	806	31	12	-0.0299
15       Manly-Warringah       4       1       0       3       817       30       891       38       7         16       UNSW       4       1       0       3       820       33       839       30       6         17       Hawkesbury       4       1       0       3       901       36       929       22       6         18       North Sydney       4       1       0       3       745       28       753       23       6         19       Campbelltown-Camden       4       1       0       3       773       32       851       25       6	13	Gordon	4	2	0	2	893	25	811	22	12	-0.2021
16         UNSW         4         1         0         3         820         33         839         30         6           17         Hawkesbury         4         1         0         3         901         36         929         22         6           18         North Sydney         4         1         0         3         745         28         753         23         6           19         Campbelltown-Camden         4         1         0         3         773         32         851         25         6	14	Parramatta	4	2	0	2	733	32	1006	29	12	-1.2255
17     Hawkesbury     4     1     0     3     901     36     929     22     6       18     North Sydney     4     1     0     3     745     28     753     23     6       19     Campbelltown-Camden     4     1     0     3     773     32     851     25     6	15	Manly-Warringah	4	1	0	3	817	30	891	38	7	0.1220
18 North Sydney 4 1 0 3 745 28 753 23 <b>6</b> 19 Campbelltown-Camden 4 1 0 3 773 32 851 25 <b>6</b>	16	UNSW	4	1	0	3	820	33	839	30	6	-0.2085
19 Campbelltown-Camden 4 1 0 3 773 32 851 25 <b>6</b>	17	Hawkesbury	4	1	0	3	901	36	929	22	6	-0.3210
	18	North Sydney	4	1	0	3	745	28	753	23	6	-0.5387
20 Western Suburbs 4 0 0 4 739 39 819 27 <b>0</b>	19	Campbelltown-Camden	4	1	0	3	773	32	851	25	6	-0.5429
	20	Western Suburbs	4	0	0	4	739	39	819	27	0	-0.5892

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - Second Grade - The Albert Cup

.RANK	TEAM	Р	W1	W2	D	L1	L2	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	QUOT
1	Sydney	15	11	1	1	2	0	2901	111	2440	146	79	1.5638
2	Penrith	15	8	3	2	2	0	3446	130	2606	156	78	1.5868
3	Sutherland	15	6	3	1	4	0	4145	122	3856	158	69	1.3921
4	UNSW	15	10	0	2	3	0	3043	94	2566	105	61	1.3247
5	Sydney University	15	10	0	0	4	1	3049	119	2794	133	61	1.2197
6	St George	15	8	1	2	4	0	3364	136	3183	140	59	1.0879
7	Eastern Suburbs	15	7	1	1	6	0	3161	108	3085	145	54	1.3757
8	Blacktown	15	6	1	0	5	2	3533	149	3559	154	50	1.0260
9	Northern District	15	8	0	2	5	0	3378	90	3340	122	49	1.3710
10	Mosman	15	6	1	1	6	1	3066	144	3009	154	49	1.0897
11	Parramatta	15	7	0	2	6	0	2910	124	2981	133	42	1.0470
12	Manly-Warringah	15	6	0	1	8	0	2938	126	2762	128	37	1.0806
13	Randwick Petersham	15	6	0	1	8	0	3152	131	3133	115	36	0.8832
14	Gordon	15	5	0	1	8	1	3349	145	3520	128	30	0.8399
15	Hawkesbury	15	4	0	2	6	3	2971	154	3171	103	25	0.6266
16	Campbelltown-Camden	15	4	0	3	8	0	2586	123	3135	123	24	0.8249
17	Fairfield-Liverpool	15	4	0	3	8	0	2280	108	2635	93	24	0.7451
18	Western Suburbs	15	3	0	2	10	0	3008	131	3233	98	18	0.6960
19	Bankstown	15	3	0	1	11	0	3167	134	3706	108	18	0.6887
20	North Sydney	15	1	0	2	9	3	3192	174	3925	111	7	0.5188

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - Third Grade - The Mitchell Cup

RANK	TEAM	Р	W1	W2	D	L1	L2	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	QUOT.
1	Sydney	15	9	1	1	3	1	2646	133	2430	137	64	1.1216
2	Eastern Suburbs	15	9	0	1	4	1	2951	115	2766	145	61	1.3452
3	Mosman	15	8	1	0	6	0	3092	150	2814	155	58	1.1354
4	Sydney University	15	9	0	3	3	0	2817	112	2265	138	57	1.5324
5	Manly-Warringah	15	7	1	1	5	1	2672	133	3071	157	50	1.0271
6	Randwick Petersham	15	7	1	1	6	0	3164	143	3017	129	50	0.9461
7	Northern District	15	8	0	1	6	0	2983	123	2325	124	49	1.2934
8	Gordon	15	8	0	2	5	0	2336	112	2585	140	49	1.1296
9	Western Suburbs	15	6	1	1	7	0	2325	124	2383	135	49	1.0622
10	UNSW	15	5	2	0	8	0	2789	142	3138	147	47	0.9201
11	Fairfield-Liverpool	15	7	0	1	7	0	2713	153	2388	120	42	0.8911
12	Bankstown	15	6	0	3	6	0	2619	116	2564	123	37	1.0831
13	St George	15	6	0	3	6	0	2061	102	2596	121	37	0.9418
14	Sutherland	15	6	0	1	8	0	2408	135	2625	121	36	0.8222
15	Parramatta	15	4	1	3	7	0	2518	121	2643	134	35	1.0551
16	Penrith	15	5	0	3	6	1	2186	118	2152	120	33	1.0330
17	Blacktown	15	5	0	3	5	2	2111	122	2332	104	31	0.7717
18	Campbelltown-Camden	15	5	0	2	8	0	2670	126	2552	107	30	0.8885
19	Hawkesbury	15	2	1	1	10	1	2565	147	2771	110	26	0.6927
20	North Sydney	15	2	0	3	8	2	2332	143	2541	103	14	0.6610

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - Fourth Grade - The Reid Cup

RANK	TEAM	Р	W1	W2	D	L1	L2	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	QUOT.
1	Northern District	15	9	2	1	3	0	2777	88	2338	149	78	2.0111
2	Penrith	15	8	1	4	2	0	2977	103	2485	148	62	1.7214
3	St George	15	10	0	2	3	0	2522	100	1977	112	62	1.4288
4	Sydney University	15	8	1	1	5	0	2855	110	2801	154	60	1.427
5	Eastern Suburbs	15	6	2	4	3	0	2025	95	2061	147	56	1.5203
6	Manly-Warringah	15	9	0	2	4	0	2800	99	2637	120	55	1.287
7	Sydney	15	8	0	3	3	1	2576	119	2098	117	50	1.2072
8	Sutherland	15	8	0	2	5	0	2377	118	2387	134	50	1.1308
9	Parramatta	15	8	0	1	6	0	2974	115	2983	128	49	1.1097
10	Mosman	15	6	0	4	4	1	2063	104	2464	133	37	1.0707
11	UNSW	15	4	1	3	7	0	2539	110	2569	127	34	1.1411
12	Western Suburbs	15	5	0	2	8	0	2541	120	2686	111	31	0.8751
13	Blacktown	15	5	0	5	5	0	2326	115	2498	105	30	0.8502
14	Bankstown	15	4	0	1	8	1	2827	149	2601	110	28	0.8024
15	Gordon	15	4	0	3	4	3	2928	155	2561	98	27	0.7229
16	North Sydney	15	4	0	2	9	0	2310	144	3017	115	24	0.6115
17	Campbelltown-Camden	15	3	0	3	9	0	1977	118	2305	80	19	0.5815
18	Randwick Petersham	15	3	0	3	8	1	2176	124	2481	90	18	0.6366
19	Hawkesbury	15	2	0	2	11	0	2692	136	2932	99	12	0.6684
20	Fairfield-Liverpool	15	1	0	6	8	0	1807	119	2188	64	6	0.4442

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - Fifth Grade - The David Sherwood Cup

RANK	TEAM	Р	W1	W2	D	L1	L2	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	QUOT.
1	Campbelltown-Camden	15	8	2	3	2	0	2589	122	1996	159	70	1.6905
2	Eastern Suburbs	15	11	0	1	3	0	2292	107	2000	120	68	1.2852
3	Gordon	15	8	1	3	3	0	2589	103	1814	121	60	1.6767
4	Mosman	15	7	1	1	4	2	2459	134	2552	147	55	1.0570
5	Parramatta	15	7	1	2	5	0	2289	101	2528	138	53	1.2372
6	Sutherland	15	6	1	2	6	0	2564	125	2682	147	48	1.1243
7	Sydney University	15	5	2	2	5	1	2630	149	2475	139	48	0.9913
8	Penrith	15	5	1	4	3	2	2002	117	1996	134	45	1.1487
9	Hawkesbury	15	7	0	3	5	0	2584	113	2106	105	43	1.1401
10	Randwick Petersham	15	7	0	2	6	0	2213	128	2223	121	42	0.9411
11	Manly-Warringah	15	7	0	2	6	0	2224	130	2315	120	42	0.8868
12	St George	15	5	0	4	6	0	2067	90	1864	94	30	1.1582
13	Sydney	15	4	0	3	5	1	1983	127	2423	126	30	0.8120
14	Northern District	15	5	0	2	7	1	2118	136	2361	112	30	0.7388
15	Western Suburbs	15	4	0	4	6	0	2013	104	2121	103	28	0.9400
16	UNSW	15	4	0	0	10	1	2744	155	2728	142	25	0.9215
17	Fairfield-Liverpool	15	4	0	5	5	1	1882	122	1772	82	24	0.7139
18	Bankstown	15	3	0	3	9	0	2204	110	2605	104	19	0.7999
19	Blacktown	15	3	0	4	8	0	1862	112	2038	100	18	0.8158
20	North Sydney	15	2	0	4	8	0	2059	113	2768	84	15	0.5530

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - Poidevin-Gray Shield

RANK	TEAM	Р	W	T	D	L	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	NRR
1	Sutherland	6	5	0	0	1	1285	42	1049	55	32	1.4682
2	St George	6	5	0	1	0	947	28	789	49	30	1.0450
3	Fairfield-Liverpool	6	4	0	0	2	835	44	758	53	27	0.5444
4	Randwick Petersham	6	4	0	0	2	1184	45	1016	47	25	0.6124
5	Bankstown	6	4	0	0	2	1143	49	1126	51	24	0.0759
6	Penrith	6	3	1	1	1	817	39	672	41	22	0.7917
7	Gordon	6	3	1	0	2	954	41	1039	49	22	-0.1370
8	Campbelltown-Camden	6	3	0	2	1	866	37	660	35	19	1.0300
9	UNSW	6	3	0	1	2	829	36	811	41	19	0.4892
10	Mosman	6	3	0	1	2	996	37	946	41	18	0.1643
11	Sydney	6	3	0	0	3	1149	39	1114	52	18	0.2891
12	Hawkesbury	6	2	0	1	3	842	38	1036	40	13	-0.1660
13	Blacktown	6	2	0	0	4	1071	53	1057	39	13	-0.3778
14	Northern District	6	2	0	2	2	985	31	1028	27	12	-0.2150
15	Sydney University	6	2	0	1	3	798	42	941	36	12	-0.7483
16	Manly-Warringah	6	2	0	0	4	722	42	863	49	12	-0.7108
17	Eastern Suburbs	6	1	0	0	5	993	55	980	31	7	-0.3732
18	Parramatta	6	1	0	1	4	726	47	949	45	6	-0.9537
19	Western Suburbs	6	1	0	0	5	1117	55	1152	42	6	-0.2999
20	North Sydney	6	0	0	1	5	700	49	973	26	0	-3.1938

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - AW Green Shield

RANK	TEAM	Р	W	D	L	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	NRR
1	Northern District	7	5	2	0	1173	23	694	49	32	1.9858
2	Mosman	7	5	2	0	826	26	749	47	32	1.5778
3	Bankstown	7	4	2	1	821	33	660	47	25	1.3330
4	Sutherland	7	4	2	1	753	30	741	43	25	0.4990
5	Hawkesbury	7	4	2	1	961	33	806	39	24	0.3397
6	Randwick Petersham	7	4	2	1	765	45	681	37	24	0.0739
7	St George	7	3	2	2	737	33	798	41	20	0.1276
8	Manly-Warringah	7	3	2	2	931	41	646	45	19	1.2867
9	Penrith	7	3	2	2	895	43	727	36	19	0.8529
10	Campbelltown-Camden	7	3	3	1	632	48	603	35	18	0.1689
11	Gordon	7	2	2	3	682	35	706	40	13	0.1091
12	Fairfield-Liverpool	7	2	3	2	443	30	435	25	12	-0.8498
13	UNSW	7	1	2	4	669	37	719	44	7	-0.0400
14	Western Suburbs	7	1	3	3	597	30	679	39	6	-0.4838
15	Parramatta	7	1	3	3	623	28	844	21	6	-1.1320
16	Blacktown	7	1	2	4	822	43	891	33	6	-0.3260
17	North Sydney	7	1	2	4	876	43	1023	31	6	-0.7762
18	Sydney	7	1	2	4	537	44	647	32	6	-1.1358
19	Sydney University	7	0	2	5	474	47	780	33	0	-1.8009
20	Eastern Suburbs	7	0	2	5	549	47	937	22	0	-2.5403

## Sydney Premier Grade Cricket - Kingsgrove Sports Twenty20 Cup - CSG Twenty20 Cup

Sydney Thunder Conference RANK TEAM POINTS LOST Sydney University 1.6625 Campbelltown-Camden 2.2378 Northern District 0.9271 Bankstown 1.7261 Australian Capital Territory 1.3089 Blacktown 0.7507 Parramatta -0.0125 Penrith -2.4000 Hawkesbury -0.5453 Fairfield-Liverpool -0.9250 Central Coast -1.7931

12	Western Suburbs	4	0	0	4	492	34	729	26	0	-2.9625
Sydney S	Sixers Conference										
RANK	TEAM	Р	W	D	L	RUNS FOR	WKTS LOST	RUNS AGST	WKTS TAKEN	POINTS	NRR
1	Randwick Petersham	4	4	0	0	712	22	560	31	24	1.9560
2	Manly-Warringah	4	4	0	0	533	26	501	38	24	1.1232
3	St George	4	3	0	1	528	19	554	29	18	0.3411
4	Newcastle	4	3	0	1	539	22	560	23	18	-0.0322
5	Gordon	4	2	1	1	374	20	321	29	12	1.3286
6	Sydney	4	2	0	2	625	31	618	17	12	-0.2003
7	North Sydney	4	2	0	2	499	29	620	27	12	-1.4335
8	UNSW	4	1	1	2	454	18	370	21	6	1.2777
9	Sutherland	4	1	0	3	603	22	538	30	6	0.6694
10	Mosman	4	0	1	3	399	23	402	14	0	-0.7715
11	Eastern Suburbs	4	0	1	3	357	27	383	14	0	-1.6846
12	Illawarra	4	0	0	4	419	31	617	17	0	-2.8461

#### Sydney Metropolitan Competition - Triforce Sports Metropolitan Cup

RANK	TEAM	Р	WON	LOST	DRAWN	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGAINST	PTS	QUOT.
1	Penrith	15	12	1	1	108	2953	164	1991	87	2.25
2	Randwick Petersham Gold	14	8	3	3	110	2329	116	2344	59	1.05
3	Gordon	15	9	4	2	95	2759	122	2588	57	1.37
4	UNSW Black	15	6	4	4	119	2299	123	2525	48	0.94
5	Georges River	13	6	6	1	122	2302	115	2570	45	0.84
6	Sydney University	15	7	6	2	112	2114	110	1742	43	1.19
7	Blacktown	15	5	7	3	122	2071	102	2009	30	0.86
8	UNSW Gold	14	3	8	3	108	2566	113	2595	27	1.03
9	Mosman	15	4	6	5	118	2252	119	2466	27	0.92
10	Sydney	15	4	6	3	135	2183	115	2602	27	0.71
11	Randwick Petersham Green	15	3	9	3	128	2602	100	2719	18	0.75
12	Hawkesbury	15	2	9	4	132	2286	110	2565	12	0.74

## **CAPTAIN'S RECORDS**

Grade	Captain	Mts					Resul	lts					ВР	Tot.	Win	Pos
			OW <sup>1</sup>	OW <sup>2</sup>	W1	T1	Draw	NR	L1	OL <sup>1</sup>	OL <sup>2</sup>	Bye		Pts	%	
1st	Wakim,Benjamin P	11	-	-	4	-	4	1	2	-	-	-	-	24	40.0	
	Total	11	-	-	4	-	4	1	2	-	-	-	-	24	40.0	15th
1LO	Wakim,Benjamin P	4	-	-	1	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	6	25.0	
	Total	4	-	-	1	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	6	25.0	16th
1T20	Wakim,Benjamin P	4	-	-	1	-	-	1	2	-	-	-	-	6	33.3	
	Total	4	-	-	1	-	-	1	2	-	-	-	-	6	33.3	8th
2nd	Atallah,Thomas G	18	-	-	12	-	-	2	4	-	-	-	1	61	75.0	
	Total	18	-	-	12	-	-	2	4	-	-	-	1	61	75.0	4th
3rd	Appleton,Mark S	14	1	1	5	-	-	-	7	-	-	-	1	47	50.0	
	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	0	0.0	
	Total	15	1	1	5	-	-	-	8	-	-	-	1	47	46.7	10th
4th	Rea,Michael P	15	1	-	4	-	1	2	7	-	-	-	-	34	38.5	
	Total	15	1	-	4	-	1	2	7	-	-	-	-	34	38.5	11th
5th	Charlwood, Alexander G	12	-	-	4	-	-	-	7	-	1	-	1	25	33.3	
	Lupton, John C	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	0	0.0	
	Total	15	-	-	4	-	-	-	10	-	1	-	1	25	26.7	16th
MC	Stanton, Murray J	15	1	-	6	-	1	2	5	-	-	-	2	48	53.8	
Black	Janzen, Nicholas R	1	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-	0	0.0	
	Total	16	1	-	6	-	1	3	5	-	-	-	2	48	53.8	4th
MC	Garland, Matthew B J	12	-	-	2	-	1	1	7	-	-	1	1	21	18.2	
Gold	Stewart, Timothy J	3	-	-	1	-	1	-	1	-	-	-	-	6	33.3	
	Total	15	-	-	3	-	2	1	8	-	-	1	1	27	21.4	8th
GS	de Silva, Pranesh D	7	-	-	1	-	-	2	4	-	-	-	1	7	20.0	
	Total	7	-	-	1	-	-	2	4	-	-	-	1	7	20.0	13th
PG	Atallah, Marcus A	6	-	-	3	-	-	1	2	-	-	-	1	19	60.0	
	Total	6	-	-	3	-	-	1	2	-	-	-	1	19	60.0	9th
Club	Total	126	3	1	44	-	8	13	55	-	1	1	8	304	42.5	13th

## **Explanation of Headings**

Mts = Matches as Captain

OW<sup>1</sup> = Outright win after leading on first innings OW<sup>2</sup> = Outright win after trailing on first innings

W1 = Win on first innings
T1 = Tie on first innings
Draw = Drawn match
NR = No Result

L1 = Loss on first innings

OL<sup>1</sup> = Outright loss after leading on first innings OL<sup>2</sup> = Outright loss after trailing on first innings

Bye = Bye (Metropolitan Cup Only - Maximum Points Gained in the Round Awarded for Bye)

WF = Win on Forfeit

BP = Bonus Points Gained (Limited Overs matches only)

Tot. Pts = Total Points Obtained

Win % = Percentage of matches won from matches played with a result

Pos = Final position/placing in competition

## FIRST GRADE REPORT

In a season where the UNSW 1<sup>st</sup> XI scored the MOST runs of any team in the whole competition and registered the same or LESS losses than 4 of the 6 teams in the finals – it was tough to see the Bees find themselves languishing in 15<sup>th</sup> position at the conclusion of the season.

Having finished the season with the same number of wins/draws/losses (5 each) it pains me to look back at some of the games we let slip. Had we capitalised on some key moments we would have definitely been in finals contention.

To highlight these missed opportunities we had Bankstown, and eventual Premiers, in all sorts of trouble at 3 for 28 and fell short by ten runs after dropping a key batter who went on to get 90. Against Parramatta we restricted them to 220 and were 3 for 140 in reply before collapsing short. Of the 5 draws we were within 1 wicket (Blacktown) or 1 run (Manly) of victory and against Fairfield rain interrupted after they were 3 for 30 chasing 300. Like I said ... painful.



1<sup>st</sup> Grade Debutants – Round 3 v Blacktown @ Joe McAleer Oval Aadil Ali, Hayden McLean, Raza Rizwan, Blaize Irving-Holliday

Our draw against Manly will no doubt go down as one of the most memorable games I have ever played.

I had won the toss and, like many games this year, sent them in and backed ourselves to chase whatever they made. Manly proceeded to bat well and smash us around for the whole day to declare 5 for 422. Upon entering the sheds on day 2 before a ball had been bowled there was a belief in ourselves like I've never seen and was very, very proud to see us put ourselves in a position to win after a huge 259 run partnership between Dawso and Charlie who hit a superb 169 and 126 respectively. In the end wickets fell towards the death and we required 3 runs off the final delivery of the game for victory. Josh 'Bone' Connolly 'placed' a beautiful outside edge to the third man boundary requiring a diving stop to prevent the ball from hitting the boundary. The fielder then picked up the ball and threw a perfect one bounce throw to catch Jimmy Henry one yard short of a famous victory. 422 v 422 – zero points.

While the season was definitely dominated across the board by the bat, which is no more evidenced than the 7 DOUBLE centuries and over 100 centuries, I was very happy to see the way our batting unit has matured this season.

**David Dawson** does what Dawso does and finished the season again among the top 5 runscorers in the competition averaging just under 60. All class.

**Charlie Wakim** came firing out of the blocks to be in the top 3 runscorers at the Christmas break with a couple of fine hundreds and fifties which saw him gain NSW 2<sup>nd</sup> XI representation again this season.

Perhaps the biggest development this year was **Nick 'Cheeksy' Walker**. Having harshly missed out on the first couple games this season he showed how far he has come as a batsman and is key part of our lineup. This culminated in a beautiful maiden First Grade century, 126\* against Easts, that helped get the side out of trouble after being 3 for not many early on. I can easily say everyone was just as ecstatic for Cheeks as he was. Watch this bloke.

Our overseas **Aadil Ali** made an immediate impact with a brilliant 162 on debut against Blacktown. Aadil also seamlessly fitted into the Bees culture on and off the field and was a delight to captain and play with him. We wish him all the best back in the UK for Leicester in the season ahead.

**Rico du Plessis** had an indifferent season with a few fifties early on before dropping the knee to wife to be Katy. Congrats legend! Looking forward to seeing Rico getting back to his best next year.

**Mitch Gowland** put on a classy ton against a hapless Randwick after forcing his way back into the team with some solid performances in Second Grade.



Aadil Ali on his way to a half century versus Fairfield-Liverpool in Round 5 at the Village Green.

Clearly it was not a year to be a bowler but I was heartened by the fact that the bowlers constantly looked for ways to break through on these lifeless wickets and did their best to stick to a plan to restrict the opposition. This was no more evidenced than against rivals Sydney Uni where we bowled superbly to roll them for 165 to set up victory.

**Declan 'Walter' White** went from strength to strength this year and with 27 wickets and a lot of overs under his belt he is prime for a great year next season. Having represented NSW U19s in the national champs Declan is one to watch out for.

**Jake 'Moose' Turner** grabbed a valuable 30 wickets this year as he managed to grab vital wickets constantly thoughout the year. As team clown it's easy to laugh with and at Jake but he constantly works well with the younger bowlers at training so hopefully we continue to see him become the bowling leader he can be.

**Josh Connolly** had an average year by his standards with 22 wickets. Being the methodical and meticulous operator Bone is he will no doubt reap the rewards of his hard work this year. Always first to have a laugh and enjoy the main thing that is friendship in this game, I'm looking forward to Bone snapping up poles and becoming one of the lead spinners in the comp next year.

Josh 'Benno' Bennett had his first year up in Sydney after coming from Canberra. As with many seam bowlers Benno struggled with a ball that offered very little in the air or off the seam and even less help

from the wickets. I know Benno will be a better bowler after learning from this year so looking forward to see what he brings next season.

I'd also like to thank and congratulate Tommy and the Second grade boys firstly on having such a great year getting themselves all the way the big dance but also for constantly pushing themselves into contention for first grade selection. It's never an easy job picking the sides and it's great we have such a talented, close, and good bunch of blokes who will no doubt make next year even tougher.

Special mentions to Jimmy Henry, Blaize Irving-Holliday, Marcus Attallah, Raza Rizwan, Bant twins Brandon and Hayden McLean, Lewin Maladay, Joey Byrnes and Freddie Ruffell on either making debuts or stepping up after pushing their way into the side.

The top squad and Club will only go from strength to strength and I know that continued hard work will see up push for trophies next season.

Carn the Bees

## BEN WAKIM



Jake Turner in action versus Bankstown @ Bankstown Oval (Limited Overs Round 1) - Photo: Darren Sue

<b>MATCH SUMMARIES -</b>	1st Grade Two Da	y Matches 2015/2016

Rd	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov				
3	Joe McAleer	2D	UNSW	7/397 d.	87	Blacktown	9/377	103				
	Oval		Ali,Aadil M	162	(223)	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	5/86	26				
			Dawson, David G	87	(128)	Turner,Jake M	3/123	29				
			du Plessis,Rico	65	(110)							
			Wakim, Charles A	31	(24)							
	Captain:	Wakim	,Benjamin P (Toss : Won)									
	Result:	Draw (	Draw (0 points)									
		UNSW	CC 1st Grade Debut: AM Ali, R Riz	wan, HC Mcl	ean, BN	1 Irving-Holliday						
4	Owen Earle	2D	UNSW	7/390 d.	96	Hawkesbury	161	43.1				
	Oval		Wakim, Charles A	108	(155)	White, Declan O D	4/33	12				
			Dawson,David G	86	(164)	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	4/48	9				
			du Plessis,Rico	52	(96)	Connolly, Joshua J	1/30	10.1				
			Wakim,Benjamin P	37	(47)	Turner,Jake M	1/33	9				
						(2nd Inns)	0/94	19				
	Captain:	Wakim	,Benjamin P (Toss : Lost)									
	Result:	Win or	1st Innings (6 points)									
5	Village Green	2D	UNSW	9/307 d.	89.1	Fairfield-Liverpool	3/112	30.3				
			Wakim,Benjamin P	84	(149)	Turner,Jake M	2/28	9				
			Ali,Aadil M	72	(134)	White, Declan O D	1/28	9				
			Dawson, David G	53	(117)							
			Henry, James A	30	(90)							
	Captain:	Wakim	,Benjamin P (Toss : Lost)									
	Result:	No Res	sult (0 points) - Day 2 Washed Out									
6	Pratten Park	2D	Western Suburbs	248	93.5	UNSW	8/314	74.5				
			Turner, Jake M	4/57	22	Walker, Nicholas J	95	(89)				
			Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	1/27	16	Wakim, Benjamin P	79	(108)				
			White, Declan O D	1/52	20	du Plessis,Rico	37	(59)				
						Ali,Aadil M	35	(62)				
	Captain:	Wakim	,Benjamin P (Toss : Won)									
	Result:	Win or	1st Innings (6 points) - Bracketing	- Day 1: DOD	White,	Day 2: JM Bennett						

7	Village Green	2D	Manly Warringah Connolly,Joshua J Bennett,Joshua M Ali,Aadil M	<b>5/422 d.</b> 2/109 1/61 1/65	<b>96</b> 24 18 17	UNSW Dawson,David G Wakim,Charles A Henry,James A Ali,Aadil M	<b>8/422</b> 169 126 28 27	<b>96</b> (242) (171) (33) (79)
	Captain: Result:		,Benjamin P (Toss : Won) D points)			7 til,7 taali W	21	(13)
10	Village Green	2D		<b>9/300 d.</b> 5/79 4/55	96.3 28 14.3	UNSW Wakim,Benjamin P Walker,Nicholas J Turner,Jake M Ali,Aadil M	<b>225</b> 62 52 27 22	71 (100) (94) (30) (37)
	Captain: Result:		Benjamin P (Toss : Lost) 1st Innings (0 points)					
11	Chatswood Oval	2D	Gordon Atallah,Marcus A White,Declan O D Connolly,Joshua J	<b>7/341 d.</b> 3/45 2/67 2/93	<b>95</b> 19 18 21	UNSW Dawson,David G Wakim,Benjamin P Wakim,Charles A Walker,Nicholas J	<b>9/269</b> 100* 43 33 28	82 (200) (77) (67) (46)
	Captain: Result:		,Benjamin P (Toss : Won) ) points) - (Saturday/Sunday Mat	ch)				
12	Village Green	2D	Sydney University Turner, Jake M Connolly, Joshua J White, Declan O D du Plessis, Rico (2nd Inns) Turner, Jake M Bennett, Joshua M	165 3/42 3/53 2/24 1/7 4/186 d. 2/53 1/18	67 14 16 15 8 45 11	Wakim,Benjamin P Dawson,David G  (2nd Inns) Wakim,Charles A Turner,Jake M	3/166 d. 72* 43* 7/143 36 36	53 (131) (125) 20.4 (19) (19)
	Captain: Result:		,Benjamin P (Toss : Lost) 1st Innings (6 points) - UNSWC0	: 1st Grade Deb	ut· I R N	Dawson,David G	30	(26)
13	Waverley Oval	2D	UNSW Walker, Nicholas J Wakim, Benjamin P Dawson, David G Turner, Jake M	359 126* 91 56 28	90.5 (127) (132) (129) (27)	Eastern Suburbs White, Declan O D Turner, Jake M Connolly, Joshua J	<b>8/360</b> 3/68 2/90 2/110	93.1 22 20.1 33
	Captain: Result:		Benjamin P (Toss : Lost)  1 1st Innings (0 points) - (Saturda		. ,			
14	Village Green	2D	Randwick-Petersham Connolly,Joshua J Turner,Jake M	<b>7/386 d.</b> 3/102 2/84	<b>90.2</b> 23.2 18	UNSW Gowland,Mitchell Wakim,Charles A Wakim,Benjamin P Turner,Jake M	<b>9/314</b> 132 44 35 25	99 (202) (93) (65) (26)
	Captain: Result:		,Benjamin P (Toss : Lost) 0 points)					
15	Village Green  Captain: Result:	Win on	North Sydney Bennett, Joshua M Wakim, Charles A White, Declan O D Connolly, Joshua J Benjamin P (Toss: Won) 1st Innings (6 points) - Match do CC 1st Grade Debut: FWA Ruffel		48.1 10 10 9.1 10	UNSW Wakim,Benjamin P Gowland,Mitchell LO competition.	<b>5/153</b> 48 35	<b>37.2</b> (76) (49)
MATC	H SUMMARIES - 1		e Limited Overs Competition					
Rd LO1	Venue Bankstown		Fmt Inns of: LO Bankstown	Score 9/201	Ov 40	Inns of: UNSW	Score 7/190	Ov 40
LOI	Oval		Bennett, Joshua M White, Declan O D du Plessis, Rico	3/36 2/28 1/32	7 8 6	Wakim,Charles A Dawson,David G McLean,Brandon J	96 40 22	(95) (72) (16)
	Captain: Result:	Lo	akim,Benjamin P (Toss : Won) ss on 1st Innings (0 points) - (Rd ISWCC 1st Grade Debut: BJ McI	1) Rain reduced	d to 40 c	vers per side.		
LO2	Village Green		LO UNSW  Wakim,Charles A  Wakim,Benjamin P  Dawson,David G	9/209 76 50 48	50 (110) (54) (88)	St.George White,Declan O D	<b>2/210</b> 2/40	<b>44.4</b> 10
	Captain: Result:		akim,Benjamin P (Toss : Won) ss on 1st Innings (0 points) - (Rd		(00)			
LO3	Village Green	Lo	LO Sydney White,Declan O D Atallah,Marcus A Turner,Jake M	9/209 3/33 2/24 2/53	<b>50</b> 10 10 9	UNSW Walker,Nicholas J Wakim,Benjamin P	<b>7/210</b> 79* 52	<b>49.1</b> (106) (87)
	Captain: Result:	Wi	akim,Benjamin P (Toss : Lost) n on 1st Innings (6 points) - (Rd 8					
LO4	Old Kings Oval		LO Parramatta White, Declan O D Turner, Jake M Connolly, Joshua J Bennett, Joshua M	<b>219</b> 5/54 3/45 1/27 1/33	<b>49</b> 10 9 10 9	UNSW du Plessis,Rico Walker,Nicholas J Dawson,David G Connolly,Joshua J	<b>211</b> 66 65 32 20	<b>49.1</b> (83) (91) (58) (28)
	Captain: Result:		akim,Benjamin P (Toss : Won) ss on 1st Innings (0 points) - (Rd		-		-	

Rd	Venue	Fmt Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov						
1	Village Green	T20 UNSW			Gordon								
	Captain:	Wakim, Benjamin P (Toss: N/A)											
	Result:	No Result (0 points) - Washed Out.											
2	Village Green	T20 UNSW	7/134	20	Randwick-Petersham	6/136	19.3						
	_	Dawson, David G	54	(44)	White, Declan O D	3/19	3.3						
		Wakim,Benjamin P	23	(24)	Turner,Jake M	1/27	4						
	Captain:	Wakim, Benjamin P (Toss: Won)											
	Result:	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points) - UNS	oss on 1st Innings (0 points) - UNSWCC 1T20 Debut: JM Bennett										
3	Tunks Park	T20 UNSW	6/144	20	North Sydney	5/145	19.2						
		Dawson, David G	79*	(63)	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	1/13	2						
		Wakim, Charles A	22	(18)	Connolly, Joshua J	1/18	4						
	Captain:	Wakim,Benjamin P (Toss : Lost)											
	Result:	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)											
		UNSWCC 1T20 Debut:AM Ali, BJ McLean, HC McLean, BM Irving-Holliday.											
5	North Dalton	T20 UNSW	5/176	20	Illawarra	89	17.4						
	Park	Walker, Nicholas J	46	(25)	McLean,Brandon J	2/6	2						
		Wakim,Benjamin P	40	(31)	Connolly, Joshua J	2/26	4						
		Wakim, Charles A	33	(38)	du Plessis,Rico	1/11	2						
		du Plessis,Rico	29*	(13)	McLean,Hayden C	1/14	3						
	Captain:	Wakim,Benjamin P (Toss : Lost)											
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)											

### BATTING - 1st Grade - Combined 2015/2016

Overs Faced: Runs Scored For: Wickets Lost: 1145.1 4733 143 33.10 48.05 Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: Runs / Over: 4.13

8/422 vs Manly Warringah (Rd7) (# New 1st Grade Club Record) 7/134 vs. Randwick-Petersham (1T20 Rd2) Highest Score For: Lowest Score For:

Lowest Score For:	7/134	vs. Ra	nawick	-Petersr	nam (11∠	(U Raz)											
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Dawson, David G	18	19	3	169	961	60.06	6	2	58.31	107	8	4	22	4	1	3	1907
Wakim,Benjamin P	18	19	1	91	775	43.06	7	-	67.27	93	3	5			2	2	1040
Walker, Nicholas J	16	16	2	126*	575	41.07	4	1	83.21	54	22	11			1	-	931
Wakim, Charles A	17	18	-	126	698	38.78	2	2	73.63	82	4	4			1	2	1153
Ali,Aadil M	11	11	-	162	420	38.18	1	1	61.31	49	4	9			1	-	691
Gowland,Mitchell	7	8	-	132	191	23.88	-	1	60.63	23	-	4			-	-	387
du Plessis,Rico	15	16	1	66	320	21.33	3	-	64.91	40	4	6			-	-	550
Connolly, Joshua J	18	14	8	24	112	18.67	-	-	49.78	11	-	10			-	1	955
Turner, Jake M	18	15	2	36	207	15.92	-	-	95.39	24	5	1			1	-	1072
White, Declan O D	13.5	6	4	20*	27	13.50	-	-	30.00	2	-	2			-	-	857
Henry, James A	8	8	1	30	79	11.29	-	-	47.02	2	-	3			-	-	150
McLean,Brandon J	5	5	1	22	39	9.75	-	-	97.50	3	1	1			-	-	44
Atallah, Marcus A	4	4	-	7	20	5.00	-	-	41.67	-	-	-			-	-	155
Bennett, Joshua M	12.5	6	3	2*	3	1.00	-	-	5.88	-	-	3			-	-	418
Also Batted:																	
Maladay,Lewin R	2	2	1	23	34	34.00	-	-	40.48	3	-	-	5	-	-	-	194
Rizwan,Raza	3	3	2	19*	33	33.00	-	-	75.00	-	1	1			-	-	73
Byrnes, Joseph J	1	1	-	12	12	12.00	-	-	31.58	2	-	-			-	-	12
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	7	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-			-	-	370
Ruffell,Freddie W A	1	1	1	15*	15	-	-	-	100.00	1	-	-			-	-	25
McLean, Hayden C	3	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-		-	-	1			-	-	-
Extras					212												
LINCW 4nt Cunda Dahut.		ARA AI:	IMA Day	matt DN	ماليم شممال	III day ID	Malad	DIA	Aal aan LIC	Mal acu	D D:		DAIA D.	44 11			

UNSW 1st Grade Debut: AM~Ali,~JM~Bennett,~BM~Irving-Holliday,~LR~Maladay,~BJ~McLean,~HC~McLean,~R~Rizwan,~FWA~Ruffell~AM~Ali,~JM~Bennett,~BM~Irving-Holliday,~LR~Maladay,~BJ~McLean,~HC~McLean,~R~Rizwan,~FWA~Ruffell~AM~Ali,~JM~Bennett,~BM~Irving-Holliday,~LR~Maladay,~BJ~McLean,~HC~McLean,~R~Rizwan,~FWA~Ruffell~AM~Ali,~AM~A

#### BATTING - 1st Grade Two Day Matches 2015/2016

Overs Faced: Runs Scored For: 896.5 3459 Wickets Lost: 92 Average / Wicket: 37.60 Balls / Wicket: 58.49 Runs / Over: 3.86 Highest Score For:

8/422 vs Manly Warringah (Rd7)

Lowest Score For:	225 vs Campbelltown-Camden (Rd10)																
Name	Mts	lnn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Dawson, David G	11	12	2	169	698	69.80	4	2	53.45	87	4	4	15	3	-	-	1578
Wakim, Benjamin P	11	12	1	91	593	53.91	5	-	63.97	78	3	4			1	-	858
Ali,Aadil M	7	7	-	162	370	52.86	1	1	57.10	42	4	4			-	-	615
Wakim, Charles A	11	12	-	126	442	36.83	-	2	67.79	56	3	4			1	-	887
Gowland, Mitchell	4	5	-	132	184	36.80	-	1	61.54	23	-	2			-	-	344
Walker, Nicholas J	11	11	1	126*	357	35.70	2	1	80.95	36	15	8			1	-	727
du Plessis,Rico	9	10	-	65	214	21.40	2	-	59.28	28	1	4			-	-	414
Connolly, Joshua J	11	9	5	24	76	19.00	-	-	43.68	9	-	8			-	-	846
Turner, Jake M	11	10	1	36	170	18.89	-	-	99.42	22	4	1			1	-	880
White, Declan O D	8.5	4	2	20*	26	13.00	-	-	29.21	2	-	1			-	-	461
Bennett, Joshua M	7.5	4	2	1*	1	0.50	-	-	2.13	-	-	3			-	-	301
Also Batted:																	
Maladay,Lewin R	2	2	1	23	34	34.00	-	-	40.48	3	-	-	5	-	-	-	194
Rizwan,Raza	3	3	2	19*	33	33.00	-	-	75.00	-	1	1			-	-	73
Henry,James A	3	3	-	30	60	20.00	-	-	46.15	2	-	-			-	-	70
Byrnes, Joseph J	1	1	-	12	12	12.00	-	-	31.58	2	-	-			-	-	12
Atallah,Marcus A	2	2	-	7	11	5.50	-	-	45.83	-	-	-			-	-	96
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	5	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-			-	-	370
McLean,Brandon J	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-			-	-	-
Ruffell,Freddie W A	1	1	1	15*	15	-	-	-	100.00	1	-	-			-	-	25
McLean, Hayden C	1	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-
Extras					163												

#### **BATTING - 1st Grade Limited Overs Competition 2015/2016**

Overs Faced: Runs Scored For: 820 33 24.85 34.24 Wickets Lost: Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: Runs / Over: 4.35

Highest Score For: 211 vs Parramatta (LO4) Lowest Score For: 7/190 vs. Bankstown (LO1)

Name	Mts	lnn	No	НS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Wakim, Charles A	3	3	-	96	186	62.00	2	-	81.94	19	1	-			-	2	266
Dawson, David G	4	4	-	48	129	32.25	-	-	55.36	9	1	-	5	1	-	2	329
Wakim,Benjamin P	4	4	-	52	117	29.25	2	-	70.48	9	-	1			-	1	182
du Plessis, Rico	3	3	-	66	71	23.67	1	-	63.96	10	1	1			-	-	136
Connolly, Joshua J	4	4	2	20	29	14.50	-	-	63.04	1	-	2			-	1	109
Turner, Jake M	4	4	1	17	37	12.33	-	-	82.22	2	1	-			-	-	192
Henry, James A	4	4	-	5	10	2.50	-	-	35.71	-	-	3			-	-	80
Also Batted:																	
Walker, Nicholas J	2	2	1	79*	144	144.00	2	-	73.10	14	3	-			-	-	204
Ali,Aadil M	2	2	-	15	26	13.00	-	-	118.18	4	-	1			-	-	76
McLean,Brandon J	2	2	-	22	24	12.00	-	-	109.09	2	1	1			-	-	44
Atallah, Marcus A	2	2	-	7	9	4.50	-	-	37.50	-	-	-			-	-	59
Bennett, Joshua M	4	2	1	2*	2	2.00	-	-	50.00	-	-	-			-	-	117
Gowland,Mitchell	2	2	-	3	3	1.50	-	-	30.00	-	-	2			-	-	43
White, Declan O D	4	2	2	1*	1	-	-	-	100.00	-	-	1			-	-	396
Extras	•				32												

#### BATTING - Kingsgrove Sports Twenty20 Cup 2015/2016

Overs Faced: 60 Runs Scored For: 454 Wickets Lost: 18 Average / Wicket:
Balls / Wicket:
Runs / Over:
Highest Score For:
Lowest Score For: 25.22 20.00

7.57 5/176 vs Illawarra (Rd5)

7/134 vs. Randwick-Petersham (Rd2)

LOWEST SCOTE I OI.	1/13	T V3. I	1/104 V3. INDIAWICK-1 ELEISHAITI (INDZ)														
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Dawson, David G	3	3	1	79*	134	67.00	2	-	122.94	11	3	-	2	-	1	1	-
Walker, Nicholas J	3	3	-	46	74	24.67	-	-	139.62	4	4	3			-	-	-
Wakim, Charles A	3	3	-	33	70	23.33	-	-	101.45	7	-	-			-	-	-
Wakim,Benjamin P	3	3	-	40	65	21.67	-	-	110.17	6	-	-			1	1	-
du Plessis,Rico	3	3	1	29*	35	17.50	-	-	166.67	2	2	1			-	-	-
McLean,Brandon J	2	2	1	15	15	15.00	-	-	107.14	1	-	-			-	-	-
Ali,Aadil M	2	2	-	20	24	12.00	-	-	160.00	3	-	4			1	-	-
Also Batted:																	
Gowland, Mitchell	1	1	-	4	4	4.00	-	-	66.67	-	-	-			-	-	-
Turner, Jake M	3	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-			-	-	-
Henry, James A	1	1	1	9*	9	-	-	-	90.00	-	-	-			-	-	-
Connolly, Joshua J	3	1	1	7*	7	-	-	-	140.00	1	-	-			-	-	-
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-
McLean, Hayden C	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1			-	-	-
Bennett, Joshua M	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-
White, Declan O D	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-
Extras					17												

 
 BOWLING - 1st Grade - Combined 2015/2016

 Overs Bowled:
 1160.5

 Runs Scored Against:
 4513

 Wickets Taken:
 143
 Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: 31.56 48.71 Runs / Over: 3.89

Highest Score Against: 5/422 vs Manly Warringah (Rd7)

Lowest Score Against:	89 vs Illav	89 vs Illawarra (1T20 Rd5)											
Name	0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb		
White, Declan O D	197.4	31	30	644	5/54	21.47	3.26	39.53	1	21	-		
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	73	12	11	269	5/86	24.45	3.68	39.82	1	1	9		
Turner,Jake M	242	38	32	1033	4/55	32.28	4.27	45.38	-	6	50		
Atallah, Marcus A	58	13	5	170	3/45	34.00	2.93	69.60	-	-	-		
Bennett, Joshua M	127	19	13	523	4/29	40.23	4.12	58.62	-	3	5		
Connolly, Joshua J	298.5	33	26	1107	5/79	42.58	3.70	68.96	1	5	-		
du Plessis,Rico	64.4	12	5	230	1/7	46.00	3.56	77.60	-	-	1		
Also Bowled:													
Wakim,Charles A	21	3	4	66	3/33	16.50	3.14	31.50	-	-	-		
McLean,Brandon J	12	-	2	84	2/6	42.00	7.00	36.00	-	1	-		
Ali,Aadil M	33.4	1	3	155	1/20	51.67	4.60	67.33	-	-	-		
McLean,Hayden C	15	2	1	62	1/14	62.00	4.13	90.00	-	2	2		
Rizwan,Raza	7	2	-	10	0/3	-	1.43	-	-	-	-		
Henry,James A	1	-	-	4	0/4	-	4.00	-	-	-	-		
Gowland,Mitchell	8	-	-	34	0/8	-	4.25	-	-	-	-		
Walker, Nicholas J	2	-	-	16	0/16	-	8.00	-	-	-	-		
Extras				106									

<b>BOWLING - 1st Grade Two Day</b>	Matches 2015/2016
------------------------------------	-------------------

Overs Bowled:	920.4
Runs Scored Against:	3304
	92
Average / Wicket:	35.91
	60.04
Runs / Over:	3.59

Highest Score Against: Lowest Score Against: 5/422 vs Manly Warringah (Rd7) 152 vs North Sydney (Rd15)

Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	69	12	10	244	5/86	24.40	3.54	41.40	1	-	9
White, Declan O D	156.1	28	15	470	4/33	31.33	3.01	62.47	-	8	-
Turner, Jake M	196.4	37	24	785	4/55	32.71	3.99	49.17	-	2	42
Atallah, Marcus A	38	10	3	100	3/45	33.33	2.63	76.00	-	-	-
Connolly, Joshua J	248.5	33	21	879	5/79	41.86	3.53	71.10	1	1	-
Bennett, Joshua M	94	15	8	364	4/29	45.50	3.87	70.50	-	1	5
du Plessis,Rico	46	12	2	111	1/7	55.50	2.41	138.00	-	-	1
Also Bowled:											
Wakim, Charles A	21	3	4	66	3/33	16.50	3.14	31.50	-	-	-
Ali,Aadil M	21	1	1	88	1/65	88.00	4.19	126.00	-	-	-
McLean, Hayden C	10	2	-	31	0/31	-	3.10	-	-	-	2
Rizwan, Raza	7	2	-	10	0/3	-	1.43	-	-	-	-
Gowland, Mitchell	6	-	-	23	0/8	-	3.83	-	-	-	-
McLean, Brandon J	4	-	-	29	0/29	-	7.25	-	-	-	-
Walker, Nicholas J	2	-	-	16	0/16	-	8.00	-	-	-	-
Henry, James A	1	-	-	4	0/4	-	4.00	-	-	-	-
Extras	•			84							

## BOWLING - 1st Grade Limited Overs Competition 2015/2016

Overs Bowled:	183.4
Runs Scored Against:	839
Wickets Taken:	30
Average / Wicket:	27.97
Balls / Wicket:	36.73
Runs / Over:	4.57

Highest Score Against: 219 vs Parramatta (LO4) Lo

_owest Score Against:	9/209	9 vs Syd	dney (L0	<b>J</b> 3)
Name	0	М	W	F

Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
White, Declan O D	38	3	12	155	5/54	12.92	4.08	19.00	1	13	-
Turner,Jake M	36	1	6	175	3/45	29.17	4.86	36.00	-	2	6
Bennett, Joshua M	29	4	4	131	3/36	32.75	4.52	43.50	-	2	-
Atallah,Marcus A	20	3	2	70	2/24	35.00	3.50	60.00	-	-	-
Connolly, Joshua J	38	-	1	145	1/27	145.00	3.82	228.00	-	3	-
Also Bowled:											
Ali,Aadil M	6	-	1	30	1/20	30.00	5.00	36.00	-	-	-
du Plessis,Rico	8.4	-	1	55	1/32	55.00	6.35	52.00	-	-	-
McLean,Brandon J	6	-	-	49	0/18	-	8.17	-	-	1	-
Gowland,Mitchell	2	-	-	11	0/11	-	5.50	-	-	-	-
Extras				18							

#### BOWLING - Kingsgrove Sports Twenty20 Cup 2015/2016

Overs Bowled:	56.3
Runs Scored Against:	370
Wickets Taken:	21
Average / Wicket:	17.62
Balls / Wicket:	16.14
Runs / Over:	6.55
Highest Score Against:	5/145 vs North

5/145 vs North Sydney (Rd3) 89 vs Illawarra (Rd5) Lowest Score Against:

0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
12	-	4	83	2/26	20.75	6.92	18.00	-	1	-
10	-	2	64	1/11	32.00	6.40	30.00	-	-	-
9.2	-	2	73	1/27	36.50	7.82	28.00	-	2	2
6.4	-	1	37	1/28	37.00	5.55	40.00	-	-	-
2	-	2	6	2/6	3.00	3.00	6.00	-	-	-
3.3	-	3	19	3/19	6.33	5.43	7.00	-	-	-
4	-	1	25	1/13	25.00	6.25	24.00	-	1	-
4	-	1	28	1/28	28.00	7.00	24.00	-	-	-
5	-	1	31	1/14	31.00	6.20	30.00	-	2	-
			4							
	12 10 9.2 6.4 2 3.3 4 4	12 - 10 - 9.2 - 6.4 - 2 - 3.3 - 4 - 4 -	12 - 4 10 - 2 9.2 - 2 6.4 - 1 2 - 2 3.3 - 3 4 - 1 4 - 1	12 - 4 83 10 - 2 64 9.2 - 2 73 6.4 - 1 37 2 - 2 6 3.3 - 3 19 4 - 1 25 4 - 1 28 5 - 1 31	12 - 4 83 2/26 10 - 2 64 1/11 9.2 - 2 73 1/27 6.4 - 1 37 1/28 2 - 2 6 2/6 3.3 - 3 19 3/19 4 - 1 25 1/13 4 - 1 28 1/28 5 - 1 31 1/14	12     -     4     83     2/26     20.75       10     -     2     64     1/11     32.00       9.2     -     2     73     1/27     36.50       6.4     -     1     37     1/28     37.00       2     -     2     6     2/6     3.00       3.3     -     3     19     3/19     6.33       4     -     1     25     1/13     25.00       4     -     1     28     1/28     28.00       5     -     1     31     1/14     31.00	12         -         4         83         2/26         20.75         6.92           10         -         2         64         1/11         32.00         6.40           9.2         -         2         73         1/27         36.50         7.82           6.4         -         1         37         1/28         37.00         5.55           2         -         2         6         2/6         3.00         3.00           3.3         -         3         19         3/19         6.33         5.43           4         -         1         25         1/13         25.00         6.25           4         -         1         28         1/28         28.00         7.00           5         -         1         31         1/14         31.00         6.20	12     -     4     83     2/26     20.75     6.92     18.00       10     -     2     64     1/11     32.00     6.40     30.00       9.2     -     2     73     1/27     36.50     7.82     28.00       6.4     -     1     37     1/28     37.00     5.55     40.00       2     -     2     6     2/6     3.00     3.00     6.00       3.3     -     3     19     3/19     6.33     5.43     7.00       4     -     1     25     1/13     25.00     6.25     24.00       4     -     1     28     1/28     28.00     7.00     24.00       5     -     1     31     1/14     31.00     6.20     30.00	12     -     4     83     2/26     20.75     6.92     18.00     -       10     -     2     64     1/11     32.00     6.40     30.00     -       9.2     -     2     73     1/27     36.50     7.82     28.00     -       6.4     -     1     37     1/28     37.00     5.55     40.00     -       2     -     2     6     2/6     3.00     3.00     6.00     -       3.3     -     3     19     3/19     6.33     5.43     7.00     -       4     -     1     25     1/13     25.00     6.25     24.00     -       4     -     1     28     1/28     28.00     7.00     24.00     -       5     -     1     31     1/14     31.00     6.20     30.00     -	12     -     4     83     2/26     20.75     6.92     18.00     -     1       10     -     2     64     1/11     32.00     6.40     30.00     -     -       9.2     -     2     73     1/27     36.50     7.82     28.00     -     2       6.4     -     1     37     1/28     37.00     5.55     40.00     -     -       2     -     2     6     2/6     3.00     3.00     6.00     -     -       3.3     -     3     19     3/19     6.33     5.43     7.00     -     -       4     -     1     25     1/13     25.00     6.25     24.00     -     1       4     -     1     28     1/28     28.00     7.00     24.00     -     -       5     -     1     31     1/14     31.00     6.20     30.00     -     2

PARTNERSHIPS - 1	1st Grade	Two Day	Matches	2015/2016
------------------	-----------	---------	---------	-----------

1st         3         Blacktown         1         du Plessis, Rico         6         Ali, Aadil M         33         du Plessis, Rico         52         80           6         Western Suburbs         1         du Plessis, Rico         37         Ali, Aadil M         35         67           2nd         3         Blacktown         1         Ali, Aadil M         162         Dawson, David G         87         166           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Ali, Aadil M         72         Dawson, David G         53         112           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim, Charles A         44         Gowland, Mitchell         132         106           7         Manly Warringah         1         Ali, Aadil M         27         Dawson, David G         169         71           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Wakim, Charles A         126         Dawson, David G         169         72           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Dawson, David G         86         Wakim, Charles A         108         177           3 Blacktown         1         Dawson, David G         87         Wakim, Charles A         31         53 <th>Wkt</th> <th>Rd</th> <th>Opponent</th> <th>Inn</th> <th>Bat 1</th> <th>Sc</th> <th>Bat 2</th> <th>Sc</th> <th>P/S</th>	Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
6         Western Suburbs         1         du Plessis, Rico         37         Ali, Aadil M         35         67           2nd         3         Blacktown         1         Ali, Aadil M         162         Dawson, David G         87         166           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Ali, Aadil M         72         Dawson, David G         53         112           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim, Charles A         44         Gowland, Mitchell         132         106           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Ali, Aadil M         27         Dawson, David G         169         71           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Wakim, Charles A         126         Dawson, David G         169         259           4         Hawkesbury         1         Dawson, David G         86         Wakim, Charles A         108         177           3         Blacktown         1         Dawson, David G         87         Wakim, Charles A         31         53           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson, David G         87         Wakim, Charles A         31         53	1st	3	Blacktown	1	du Plessis,Rico	65	Ali,Aadil M	162	130
2nd   3   Blacktown   1   Ali,Aadil M   162   Dawson,David G   57   166		4	Hawkesbury	1	Ali,Aadil M	33	du Plessis,Rico	52	80
5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Alf, Aadil M         72         Dawson, David G         53         112           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim, Charles A         44         Gowland, Mitchell         132         106           7         Manly Warringah         1         Ali, Aadil M         27         Dawson, David G         169         71           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Wakim, Charles A         126         Dawson, David G         169         259           4         Hawkesbury         1         Dawson, David G         86         Wakim, Charles A         108         177           3         Blacktown         1         Dawson, David G         87         Wakim, Charles A         31         53           11         Gordon         1         Wakim, Charles A         33         Dawson, David G         100*         100*           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson, David G         56         Wakim, Benjamin P         91         143           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         43         Dawson, David G         43*         122*           11         Go		6	Western Suburbs	1	du Plessis,Rico	37	Ali,Aadil M	35	67
14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Charles A         44         Gowland,Mitchell         132         106           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Wakim,Charles A         126         Dawson,David G         169         71           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Wakim,Charles A         126         Dawson,David G         169         259           4         Hawkesbury         1         Dawson,David G         86         Wakim,Charles A         108         177           3         Blacktown         1         Dawson,David G         87         Wakim,Charles A         31         53           11         Gordon         1         Waskim,Charles A         33         Dawson,David G         100*         51           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         56         Wakim,Benjamin P         91         143           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72*         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72*         Dawson,David G         100*         43*         122*	2nd	3	Blacktown	1	Ali,Aadil M	162	Dawson, David G	87	166
7         Manly Warringah         1         Ali,Aadil M         27         Dawson,David G         169         71           3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Wakim,Charles A         126         Dawson,David G         169         259           4         Hawkesbury         1         Dawson,David G         86         Wakim,Charles A         108         177           3         Blacktown         1         Dawson,David G         87         Wakim,Charles A         31         53           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Charles A         33         Dawson,David G         100*         51           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         56         Wakim,Benjamin P         91         143           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72*         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs		5	Fairfield-Liverpool	1	Ali,Aadil M	72	Dawson, David G	53	112
3rd         7         Manly Warringah         1         Wakim,Charles A         126         Dawson,David G         169         259           4         Hawkesbury         1         Dawson,David G         86         Wakim,Charles A         108         177           3         Blacktown         1         Dawson,David G         87         Wakim,Charles A         31         53           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Charles A         33         Dawson,David G         100*         51           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         56         Wakim,Benjamin P         91         143           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72*         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         100*         80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         100*         80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs <td></td> <td>14</td> <td>Randwick-Petersham</td> <td>1</td> <td>Wakim, Charles A</td> <td></td> <td>Gowland,Mitchell</td> <td>132</td> <td></td>		14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Wakim, Charles A		Gowland,Mitchell	132	
4         Hawkesbury         1         Dawson,David G         86         Wakim,Charles A         108         177           3         Blacktown         1         Dawson,David G         87         Wakim,Charles A         31         53           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Charles A         33         Dawson,David G         100*         51           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72*         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         100*         80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79         6           6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         34         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         65           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Walkim,Benjamin P		7	Manly Warringah	1	Ali,Aadil M	27	Dawson, David G	169	
3         Blacktown         1         Dawson,David G         87         Wakim,Charles A         31         53           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         56         Wakim,Benjamin P         91         143           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72*         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         100*         80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         34         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         65           15         North Sydney         1         Walker,Nicholas J         13         Wakim,Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         62         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Henry,James A         30         Wakim,Benjamin P         84         85 <td< td=""><td>3rd</td><td>7</td><td>Manly Warringah</td><td>1</td><td>Wakim, Charles A</td><td>126</td><td>Dawson, David G</td><td>169</td><td>259</td></td<>	3rd	7	Manly Warringah	1	Wakim, Charles A	126	Dawson, David G	169	259
11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Charles A         33         Dawson,David G         100*         51           4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         56         Wakim,Benjamin P         91         143           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72*         Dawson,David G         43*         122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         100*         80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         34         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         65           15         North Sydney         1         Walker,Nicholas J         13         Wakim,Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Walkim,Benjamin P         62         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5th         10         Campbe		4	Hawkesbury	1	Dawson, David G	86	Wakim, Charles A	108	177
4th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Dawson, David G         56         Wakim, Benjamin P         91         143           12         Sydney University         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         72*         Dawson, David G         43*         122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         43         Dawson, David G         100*         80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         35         Gowland, Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson, David G         34         Wakim, Benjamin P         79         65           15         North Sydney         1         Walker, Nicholas J         13         Wakim, Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         62         Walker, Nicholas J         52         100           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Henry, James A         30         Wakim, Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         37         Walker, Nicholas J         34         55 <t< td=""><td></td><td>3</td><td>Blacktown</td><td>1</td><td>Dawson, David G</td><td>87</td><td>Wakim, Charles A</td><td>31</td><td>53</td></t<>		3	Blacktown	1	Dawson, David G	87	Wakim, Charles A	31	53
12         Sydney University         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         72* Dawson,David G         43* 122*           11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         100* 80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         34         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         65           15         North Sydney         1         Walker,Nicholas J         13         Wakim,Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         62         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Henry,James A         30         Wakim,Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         37         Walker,Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay,Lewin R         23         Walker,Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University		11		1	Wakim, Charles A	33	Dawson, David G	100*	51
11         Gordon         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         43         Dawson,David G         100*         80           14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         34         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         65           15         North Sydney         1         Walker,Nicholas J         13         Wakim,Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         62         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Henry,James A         30         Wakim,Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         37         Walker,Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay,Lewin R         23         Walker,Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner,Jake M         36         Maladay,Lewin R         11*         45 <td< td=""><td>4th</td><td>13</td><td>Eastern Suburbs</td><td>1</td><td>Dawson, David G</td><td>56</td><td>Wakim,Benjamin P</td><td>91</td><td>143</td></td<>	4th	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Dawson, David G	56	Wakim,Benjamin P	91	143
14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         35         Gowland,Mitchell         132         79           6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson,David G         34         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         65           15         North Sydney         1         Walker,Nicholas J         13         Wakim,Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         62         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5         Faiifield-Liverpool         1         Henry,James A         30         Wakim,Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         37         Walker,Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay,Lewin R         23         Walker,Nicholas J         126*         65           6         Western Suburbs         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         Walker,Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner,Jake M         36         Maladay,Lewin R         11*         45		12	Sydney University	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	72*	Dawson, David G	43*	122*
6         Western Suburbs         1         Dawson, David G         34         Wakim, Benjamin P         79         65           15         North Sydney         1         Walker, Nicholas J         13         Wakim, Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         62         Walker, Nicholas J         52         100           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Henry, James A         30         Wakim, Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         37         Walker, Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay, Lewin R         23         Walker, Nicholas J         126*         65           6         Western Suburbs         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         79         Walker, Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner, Jake M         36         Maladay, Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner, Jake M         28         Walker, Nicholas J         126*		11		1	Wakim,Benjamin P	43	Dawson, David G	100*	80
15         North Sydney         1         Walker,Nicholas J         13         Wakim,Benjamin P         48         56           5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         62         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Henry,James A         30         Wakim,Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         37         Walker,Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay,Lewin R         23         Walker,Nicholas J         126*         65           6         Western Suburbs         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         Walker,Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner,Jake M         36         Maladay,Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner,Jake M         28         Walker,Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker,Nicholas J         95         Connolly,Joshua J         8*         52 <td></td> <td>14</td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Gowland,Mitchell</td> <td>132</td> <td></td>		14		1			Gowland,Mitchell	132	
5th         10         Campbelltown-Camden         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         62         Walker,Nicholas J         52         100           5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Henry,James A         30         Wakim,Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         37         Walker,Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay,Lewin R         23         Walker,Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner,Jake M         36         Maladay,Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner,Jake M         28         Walker,Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker,Nicholas J         95         Connolly,Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly,Joshua J         24         White,Declan O D         20*         27		-		1	Dawson, David G	34	Wakim,Benjamin P	79	
5         Fairfield-Liverpool         1         Henry, James A         30         Wakim, Benjamin P         84         85           4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         37         Walker, Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay, Lewin R         23         Walker, Nicholas J         95         65           6         Western Suburbs         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         79         Walker, Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner, Jake M         36         Maladay, Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner, Jake M         28         Walker, Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker, Nicholas J         95         Connolly, Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly, Joshua J         24         White, Declan O D         20*         27		15	North Sydney	1	Walker, Nicholas J	13	Wakim,Benjamin P	48	56
4         Hawkesbury         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         37         Walker,Nicholas J         34         55           6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay,Lewin R         23         Walker,Nicholas J         126*         65           6         Western Suburbs         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         Walker,Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner,Jake M         36         Maladay,Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner,Jake M         28         Walker,Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker,Nicholas J         95         Connolly,Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly,Joshua J         24         White,Declan O D         20*         27	5th	10	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	62	Walker, Nicholas J	52	100
6th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Maladay, Lewin R         23         Walker, Nicholas J         126*         65           6         Western Suburbs         1         Wakim, Benjamin P         79         Walker, Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner, Jake M         36         Maladay, Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner, Jake M         28         Walker, Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker, Nicholas J         95         Connolly, Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly, Joshua J         24         White, Declan O D         20*         27		5	Fairfield-Liverpool	1					
6         Western Suburbs         1         Wakim,Benjamin P         79         Walker,Nicholas J         95         54           7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner, Jake M         36         Maladay,Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner, Jake M         28         Walker,Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker,Nicholas J         95         Connolly,Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly,Joshua J         24         White,Declan O D         20*         27		4	Hawkesbury	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	37	Walker, Nicholas J	34	55
7th         12         Sydney University         2         Turner, Jake M         36         Maladay, Lewin R         11*         45           8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner, Jake M         28         Walker, Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker, Nicholas J         95         Connolly, Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly, Joshua J         24         White, Declan O D         20*         27	6th	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Maladay,Lewin R	23	Walker, Nicholas J	126*	65
8th         13         Eastern Suburbs         1         Turner, Jake M         28         Walker, Nicholas J         126*         66           6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker, Nicholas J         95         Connolly, Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly, Joshua J         24         White, Declan O D         20*         27		6	Western Suburbs	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	79	Walker, Nicholas J	95	54
6         Western Suburbs         1         Walker, Nicholas J         95         Connolly, Joshua J         8*         52           9th         14         Randwick-Petersham         1         Connolly, Joshua J         24         White, Declan O D         20*         27	7th	12	Sydney University	2	Turner,Jake M	36	Maladay,Lewin R	11*	45
9th 14 Randwick-Petersham 1 Connolly,Joshua J 24 White,Declan O D 20* 27	8th	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Turner,Jake M	28	Walker, Nicholas J	126*	66
		6	Western Suburbs	1	Walker, Nicholas J	95	Connolly, Joshua J	8*	52
10th 14 Randwick-Petersham 1 Bennett, Joshua M 1* White, Declan O D 20* 16*	9th	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Connolly, Joshua J	24	White, Declan O D	20*	27
	10th	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Bennett, Joshua M	1*	White, Declan O D	20*	16*

NOTE: CA Wakim & DG Dawson's 3rd Wicket Partnership was the Highest in SCA 1st Grade for 2015/2016

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg		Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	12	-	442	36.83	•	6th	11	1	216	21.60
2nd	12	-	637	53.08		7th	10	-	213	21.30
3rd	12	-	642	53.50		8th	10	2	219	27.38
4th	12	2	614	61.40		9th	6	1	81	16.20
5th	11	-	358	32.55		10th	5	3	37	18.50
3rd 4th	12	2	642 614	53.50 61.40		8th 9th	10 6		219 81	1

PARTNERSHIPS - 1st Grade Limited Overs Competition 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	lnn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	LO3	Sydney	1	Ali,Aadil M	15	Wakim,Charles A	14	15
2nd	LO4	Parramatta	1	Dawson, David G	32	du Plessis,Rico	66	82
3rd	LO1	Bankstown	1	Dawson, David G	40	Wakim, Charles A	96	93
	LO2	St.George	1	Dawson, David G	48	Wakim, Charles A	76	90
4th	LO2	St.George	1	Wakim, Charles A	76	Wakim,Benjamin P	50	70
5th	LO3	Sydney	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	52	Walker, Nicholas J	79*	86
6th	LO1	Bankstown	1	McLean,Brandon J	22	Wakim,Charles A	96	34
7th	LO3	Sydney	1	Turner, Jake M	17	Walker, Nicholas J	79*	26
8th	LO4	Parramatta	1	Walker, Nicholas J	65	Connolly, Joshua J	20	44
9th	LO2	St.George	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	50	Bennett, Joshua M	2*	3
10th	LO2	St.George	1	White, Declan O D	1*	Bennett, Joshua M	2*	2*

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	
1st	4	-	32	8.00	6th	4	-	76	
2nd	4	-	113	28.25	7th	4	-	72	
3rd	4	-	188	47.00	8th	4	2	74	
4th	4	-	159	39.75	9th	2	-	3	
5th	4	_	101	25.25	10th	2	1	2	

#### PARTNERSHIPS - Kingsgrove Sports Twenty20 Cup 2015/2016

1 417111		ii o - itiiigagi ove opoi	to I Wellt	YZO OUP ZOIJIZOIO				
Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	2	Randwick-Petersham	1	Wakim, Charles A	15	Walker, Nicholas J	18	34
2nd	3	North Sydney	1	Wakim, Charles A	22	Dawson,David G	79*	36
3rd	2	Randwick-Petersham	1	Wakim, Benjamin P	23	Dawson, David G	54	67
	5	Illawarra	1	Wakim, Charles A	33	Wakim,Benjamin P	40	54
4th	3	North Sydney	1	Walker, Nicholas J	10	Dawson, David G	79*	31
5th	5	Illawarra	1	Walker, Nicholas J	46	du Plessis,Rico	29*	68 #
6th	3	North Sydney	1	McLean,Brandon J	15	Dawson,David G	79*	56 #
7th	2	Randwick-Petersham	1	Turner,Jake M	0	Henry, James A	9*	1
8th	2	Randwick-Petersham	1	Connolly, Joshua J	7*	Henry, James A	9*	12*

# New club record.

Partnersl	nip Avera	ges							
Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	3	-	70	23.33	6th	3	1	67	33.50
2nd	3	-	38	12.67	7th	2	1	1	1.00
3rd	3	-	126	42.00	8th	1	1	12	-
4th	3	-	54	18.00	9th	-	-	-	-
5th	3	-	86	28.67	10th	-	-	-	-

### SECOND GRADE REPORT



Second Grade Grand Final Team – Drummoyne Oval, 1-3 April 2016
Standing (L-R): Corey Richards, Raza Rizwan, Joe Byrnes, Nick Charlwood, Marcus Atallah,
John Venianakis, Matt Sanders (President), Michael Black.
Front Row (L-R): Blaize Iving-Holliday, Hayden McLean, Brandon McLean, James Henry,
Tom Atallah (c), Connor Jackson, Lewin Maladay.

The Second Grade 2015/16 season was undeniably a special one. Somehow, an eclectic mix of characters, egos, introverts, lunatics, experience and youth combined to make this team a fantastic cricket side and an even better group of young men. Whilst we fell just short of the ultimate team goal, I'm extremely confident we achieved the dual goal of preparing players for 1st grade and motivating lower graders to aspire to higher grade cricket. I can honestly say that season 2015/16 was the most enjoyable, challenging and rewarding season I've had in over 10 seasons with the UNSWCC. I've never been more proud to call myself a Bee, and that is because I had the privilege of leading the men below:

**Joe Byrnes**: Consistent season with a highlight of 108 against Manly. Carried that good form into the finals with a fast start against Sutherland and a match-winning 63 in the Semi-Final against Penrith. Unwavering team-first man and quiet leader.

**Nick Charlwood**: His 49 against Blacktown laid the platform for victory and his constant energy; chat and selflessness meant he was an invaluable squad member. Dependable in the field and handy with the ball when needed.

**Nick Walker**: His 81 against Bankstown spoke volumes about his character and confirmed he rightly belonged back in 1st grade. The rest was history this year.

**Oli Batchelor**: Waited a while for his chance in 2's but delivered when it mattered. Three half-centuries in 7 games including a gritty 81 against Sydney University propelled us into the finals. Classic opening batsman that would be welcome back in the future.

**Raza Rizwan**: Undeniably classy player that delivered in big games. Half-centuries against St. George and Parramatta delivered victories, whilst his 112 against Sutherland was a mixture of pure technique and bullish power. Overcame niggling injuries to feature prominently with the ball towards the end of the season and was safe as houses in the cordon. Above all else, one of the best people you'll ever meet and someone UNSWCC now holds very dear.

**Mitchell Gowland**: Gowlo's effortless innings of 64 against Sydney and 80 against Gordon were testament to his natural talent. His experience was invaluable and he rightly deserved promotion back to 1st grade.

Marcus Atallah: Objectively, Marcus had his most complete season as a 2nd grade cricketer. Strong personal performances consistently coincided with team success. The value of his output of 550 runs and 19 wickets was confirmed by his 2nd place on the 2nd Grade Champion player table, validating his unrivalled importance to our side and ensuring his stature within the grade's best players. His maiden grade 100 against Wests and his 65 in a match-winning partnership with Raza against Sutherland were personal highlights. Subjectively, I was very proud of his season. He showed class, flair and composure and was rightly revered by opposition sides.



Marcus Atallah hits out during the Semi Final versus Penrith at Old Kings Oval.

**Brandon McLean**: Another fantastic addition to our side and consistently contributed with bat, ball and banter. One of the spiritual leaders and a hardened top-grade cricketer. Maiden grade 100 against Wests, composed match-defining innings against Manly and Sydney Uni, and key wickets along the way. Brandon is a wonderful addition to UNSWCC, both now and for years to come.

**James Henry**: His experience, composure and guidance was invaluable to the side and I. His 45\* against Sydney Uni was match winning and his holistic contribution to the group far outweighed his statistical output. Selfless, team-first player that makes those around him better cricketers and people.

**Lewin Maladay**: What a debut season! Lewin's impressive glovework was rewarded with him claiming the most dismissals for keepers across the competition. His commitment to his bowlers and fielders is incomparable. Lewin consistently played match-defining innings with the bat as well. His 46 off 22 balls against St. George was outrageous, his 32\* against Manly showed composure beyond his years, his 47 against Parramatta saved our innings and his scores of 40+ in both the Semi-Final and Final were a true reflection of Lewin as a cricketer – that being a fantastic combination of natural skill, sheer determination and an insatiable appetite for personal and team success. He is a wonderful young man that will contribute immensely to UNSWCC for years to come.

**Hayden McLean**: The heart and soul of the bowling attack. There is never a deck too flat, a ball too old or a boundary too small for Hayden. His commitment to the team was unparalleled. His effort was rewarded with a fantastic finals campaign, where he consistently took important wickets and changed the game. Tasted 1st grade this season and will no doubt build on that next year. The most reliable fielder in the team and a very determined lower-order batsman.

**Johnny Venianakis**: I've played a lot of 2nd grade cricket with 'JV' now, but this was most certainly his breakout season. His ability to swing the new ball back into right-handers delivered arguably the "peaches" of the season – just ask his mate Ned! A strike-rate of 36 for an opening bowler speaks for itself, but it was Johnny's ability to take wickets whatever the circumstances that impressed me most. JV's growth as a bowler and young man this season is deeply intertwined. Great in the field and very capable with the bat too, I would pick "Junior" in my side every day of the week.

**Blaize "Ivan" Irving-Holliday**: The loveable lunatic. With an uncanny knack of taking wickets in clumps and a relentless desire to lead the attack, Blaize was a fantastic spearhead for us this season. A strikerate of 29 and an average of 16 were phenomenal yet a great reward for a tireless worker and talented bowler. His passion, commitment and will are something I would never question. Mainly out of fear.

**Connor Jackson**: Limited opportunities but showed skill and composure against Blacktown and North Sydney to help secure victory. Important contributor overall.

**Rico du Plessis**: Great teammate and competitor, contributed with a great spell of 2-15 off 10 against North Sydney to secure a bonus point victory.

**Sam McCormick**: Wonderful reserve keeper-batsman, fantastic teammate and someone who will play lots of 2nd grade in the future.

**Sutha Thanabalasingam**: Difficult season for Sutha after some handy contributions against Bankstown, Hawkesbury and Wests but his support for the side and I was relentless. His natural skill and work rate will see him back in 2nd grade and contributing, I'm sure of it.

**Sid Shankar, Gavin Ho & Dean Jones**: Limited opportunities but valuable squad members. All three had good years in 3rd grade and will push for spots in 2016/17.

On a personal note, I'd like to thank Matty Sanders, Corey Richards, John Lupton, David Jebb and Darren Sue for their contributions to our side's success this season. I'd also like to thank Terry Stamp, George Venianakis, Ian White, Richard Bowman and Anthony Atallah for their game-day support and their efforts scoring. We rode the season together and we'll hopefully do it all again next year.

#### TOM ATALLAH



Brandon McLean in action during the Grand Final versus Sydney at Drummoyne Oval.

MATCH SUMMARIES - 2nd Grade 2015/2016

Rd	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	Village Green	LO	UNSW	7/229	42	Bankstown	6/166	34.5
	_		Walker, Nicholas J	81	(97)	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	3/33	8
			Atallah,Marcus A	56	(58)	McLean, Hayden C	1/22	7
			Thanabalasingam,SK	32	(37)	-		
	Captain:	Atallah	Thomas G (Toss : Won)					
	Result:	Win on	1st Innings (6 points) - Rain re	duced to 42 overs	s per sid	e. D-L Target: 181		
2	Harold Fraser	LO	St.George	8/214	50	UNSW	4/218	42.5
	Reserve		Venianakis, John A	4/44	9	Rizwan,Raza	71*	(118)
			Atallah,Marcus A	2/39	10	Maladay,Lewin R	46*	(22)
			Charlwood, Nicholas R	1/21	3	Byrnes, Joseph J	42	(55)
	Captain:	Atallah	,Thomas G (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:	Win on	1st Innings (6 points)					
3	Village Green	2D	Blacktown	241	81.4	UNSW	7/283	83.3
	_		Atallah, Marcus A	3/50	18.4	Atallah, Marcus A	71	(127)
			Venianakis, John A	2/43	18	Byrnes, Joseph J	51	(113)
			McLean,Brandon J	2/59	15	Charlwood, Nicholas R	49	(71)
						McCormick,Sam A	40	(59)
	Captain:	Atallah	Thomas G (Toss : Lost)					. ,
	Result:	Win on	1st Innings (6 points)					

	V:!! O	an uniow	004	70.0	Handrack	0/000	00
4	Village Green	2D UNSW Henry,James A	<b>261</b> 49	<b>70.2</b> (76)	Hawkesbury Venianakis,John A	<b>8/262</b> 6/75	<b>88</b> 21
		Gowland,Mitchell	39	(45)	McLean,Brandon J	1/19	6
		Byrnes, Joseph J	35	(82)	Atallah, Thomas G	1/33	17
		McLean,Brandon J	34	(59)			
	Captain:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Won)					
	Result: Fairfield Oval	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)  2D Fairfield-Liverpool			UNSW		
3	Captain:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: N/A)			ONSW		
	Result:	No Result (0 points) - Day's 1 & 2 Was	shed Out				
6	Village Green	2D Western Suburbs	250	79.5	UNSW	6/398	83.3
		Bennett, Joshua M	3/38	13.5	McLean,Brandon J	114	(158)
		Atallah,Marcus A	3/55	17	Atallah,Marcus A	100	(147)
		Rizwan,Raza	1/14 1/26	6 10	Maladay,Lewin R	48 40	(39)
	Captain:	Venianakis, John A Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Lost)	1/20	10	Rizwan,Raza	40	(60)
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points) - Bracket	ing - Day 1: JM E	Bennett.	Day 2: CS Jackson		
7	Manly Oval	2D Manly Warringah	8/277 d.	98	UNSW	8/280	75
		McLean,Brandon J	3/76	25	Byrnes,Joseph J	108	(148)
		Atallah,Marcus A	2/74	23	McLean,Brandon J	46	(87)
		McLean,Hayden C	1/30 1/54	16 14	Atallah,Marcus A	34 32*	(60)
	Captain:	Rizwan,Raza Atallah,Thomas G (Toss : Lost)	1/54	14	Maladay,Lewin R	32	(63)
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points) - Bracket	ing - Day 1:SA M	1cCormic	k Day 2: LR Maladay		
8	Birchgrove	LO UNSW	168	44.5	Sydney	7/170	37.2
	Park	Gowland, Mitchell	64	(60)	McLean,Hayden C	2/25	8
		Rizwan,Raza	30	(53)	McLean,Brandon J	2/35	6
	04-1	Atallala Than 2000 (Tour Maria			Rizwan,Raza	1/16	4
	Captain:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Won)					
9	Result: Village Green	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)  LO UNSW	9/199	50	Parramatta	141	38.2
9	vinage Green	Rizwan,Raza	9/199 59	<b>50</b> (97)	Atallah, Thomas G	3/17	<b>38.2</b> 10
		Maladay,Lewin R	47	(70)	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	3/17	7.2
		Gowland, Mitchell	23	(34)	Rizwan,Raza	1/6	2
	Captain:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Lost)		` '	•		
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)					
10	Raby 1	2D Campbelltown-Camden			UNSW		
	Captain: Result:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: N/A)	had Out				
11	Village Green	No Result (0 points) - Days 1 & 2 Was	6/259	50	Gordon	7/146	39
•••	Village Oreen	Gowland, Mitchell	80	(84)	Venianakis,John A	3/21	7
		Batchelor, Oliver R	65	(97)	McLean,Hayden C	1/14	6
		Henry, James A	29	(45)	Atallah, Thomas G	1/29	9
		Jackson,Connor S	28*	(26)			
	Captain:	Atallah,Thomas G (Toss: Lost)	d d 4= 00 =		den lane Di Terret 040		
12	Result: Sydney	Win on 1st Innings (6 points) - Rain red 2D Sydney University	236	96.4	UNSW	4/237	89.5
12	University 1	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	3/44	15.4	Batchelor, Oliver R	81	(209)
	Chirolony 1	McLean,Hayden C	2/34	17	Henry, James A	45*	(99)
		Atallah,Marcus A	2/52	22	McLean,Brandon J	43*	(76)
		Atallah,Thomas G	1/17	13	Atallah, Marcus A	41	(94)
	Captain:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Lost)					
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)	400	40	Factory Culturals	4/400	27.4
13	Village Green	LO UNSW Byrnes, Joseph J	<b>186</b> 45	<b>46</b> (71)	Eastern Suburbs	<b>1/189</b> 1/33	<b>37.1</b> 7
		McLean,Brandon J	38	(52)	McLean,Hayden C	1/33	1
		Batchelor, Oliver R	37	(44)			
	Captain:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Lost)		( )			
	Result:	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)					
14	Coogee Oval	2D Randwick-Petersham	150	76	UNSW	8/200	81
		Venianakis, John A	4/31	16	Batchelor,Oliver R	74	(177)
		Irving-Holliday,Blaize M Atallah,Marcus A	2/33 2/42	11 16	Rizwan,Raza	31	(70)
		McLean,Hayden C	2/42 1/7	15			
	Captain:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Won)	.,,	.0			
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)					
15	Tunks Park	LO North Sydney	124	44.4	UNSW	5/125	27.5
		Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	4/33	6.4	Atallah,Marcus A	41	(31)
		du Plessis,Rico	2/15	10	Byrnes,Joseph J	20	(42)
	Cantain	Atallah, Marcus A	2/24	10			
	Captain: Result:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Won) Win on 1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)					
QF	Glenn McGrath	2D Sutherland	194	67.1	UNSW	5/267	72
	Oval	Rizwan,Raza	2/9	6.1	Rizwan,Raza	112	(191)
		Venianakis, John A	2/15	11	Atallah,Marcus A	65	(144)
		McLean, Hayden C	2/40	17	Henry, James A	35	(38)
	04-1	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	2/57	14	Byrnes, Joseph J	28	(31)
	Captain: Result:	Atallah, Thomas G (Toss: Won) Win on 1st Innings					
SF	Old Kings Oval	2D Penrith	153	60.3	UNSW	234	102.5
٥.	Jia iangs Oval	McLean,Hayden C	3/25	13.3	Byrnes, Joseph J	63	(160)
		Rizwan,Raza	2/25	10	Maladay,Lewin R	43	(60)
		Venianakis, John A	2/28	11	Atallah, Marcus A	35	(94)
		Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	2/30	12	Rizwan,Raza	31	(59)
		(2nd Inns)	6/44	8.4			
		McLean, Hayden C	3/21	4.4			
	Captain:	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M Atallah,Thomas G (Toss: Lost)	3/23	4			
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings					
		oo					

F	Drummoyne	2D	Sydney	210	90	UNSW	142	64.2
	Oval		Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	3/35	14	Maladay,Lewin R	45	(78)
			McLean,Brandon J	2/27	6	Atallah, Marcus A	36	(80)
			(2nd Inns)	322	108.2	(2nd Inns)	3/33	6
			Rizwan,Raza	4/47	13.2	,		
			Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	2/33	18			
	Captain:	Atallah	Thomas G (Toss : Won)					
	Result:	Loss or	n 1st Innings					



Lewin Maladay in action during the the Semi-Final versus Penrith at Old Kings Oval

### BATTING - 2nd Grade 2015/2016

Overs Faced: Runs Scored For: Wickets Lost: 1031.5 3719 122 Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: 30.48 50.75 Runs / Over:

Highest Score For: 6/398 vs Western Suburbs (Rd6)

Lowest Score For:	142 v	s Sydn	ey (F)														
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Rizwan,Raza	11	12	2	112	424	42.40	2	1	56.61	47	2	6			-	-	549
Maladay,Lewin R	10.5	11	3	48	323	40.38	-	-	70.99	32	4	-	31	3	1	4	975 #
Batchelor,Oliver R	7	7	-	81	280	40.00	3	-	46.51	29	1	4			-	-	430
Gowland, Mitchell	6	6	-	80	235	39.17	2	-	82.17	27	3	4			-	-	430
Atallah,Marcus A	13	14	-	100	548	39.14	3	1	57.32	76	2	7			1	-	1100
Jackson,Connor S	7.5	8	5	33*	108	36.00	-	-	71.52	9	-	1			-	-	208
McLean,Brandon J	13	13	2	114	340	30.91	-	1	53.71	39	6	2			-	2	804
Byrnes, Joseph J	14	15	-	108	461	30.73	2	1	55.81	58	1	3			-	2	631
Venianakis, John A	14	7	4	22	83	27.67	-	-	47.70	5	-	4			-	2	926
Henry, James A	8	9	2	49	189	27.00	-	-	53.39	21	1	5			-	-	203
Thanabalasingam, Suthangon K	8	8	1	34*	113	16.14	-	-	59.79	13	1	1			-	-	193
Charlwood, Nicholas R	5	5	-	49	71	14.20	-	-	44.10	8	-	4			-	-	217
McLean, Hayden C	15	8	2	18	65	10.83	-	-	29.41	3	-	4			1	1	484
Atallah, Thomas G	16	11	3	15	77	9.63	-	-	42.78	5	-	5			-	-	467
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	12	5	3	10	13	6.50	-	-	31.71	1	-	6			1	-	628
Also Batted:																	
Walker, Nicholas J	2	2	-	81	98	49.00	1	-	75.38	10	2	1			-	-	163
McCormick,Sam A	4.5	3	-	40	42	14.00	-	-	66.67	5	-	-	7	-	-	1	247
Shankar, Siddharth	3	1	-	8	8	8.00	-	-	25.81	1	-	1			-	-	48
Ruffell,Freddie W A	1	1	-	7	7	7.00	-	-	31.82	1	-	-			-	-	17
du Plessis,Rico	2	2	-	7	11	5.50	-	-	68.75	1	-	1			-	-	81
Ho,Gavin T	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-			-	-	10
Jones,Dean N	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1			-	-	30
Bennett, Joshua M	0.5	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-			-	-	95
Extras					223												

# LR Maladay's 34 Wicket Keeping Dismissals is a new Club 2nd Grade Record.

NOTE: LR Maladay's 34 Wicket Keeping Dismissals was the most taken in SCA 2nd Grade for 2015/2016.

#### **BOWLING - 2nd Grade 2015/2016**

1136.1 3489 151 23.11 45.15 3.07 322 vs Sydney (F) 124 vs North Sydney (Rd15) Overs Bowled: Runs Scored Against: Wickets Taken: Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: Runs / Over:

Highest Score Against: Lowest Score Against:

127 13 110	itii Oyui	ncy (ito	110)							
0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
62.5	14	13	200	4/47	15.38	3.18	29.00	-	2	4
134.4	22	27	444	4/33	16.44	3.30	29.93	-	24	23
168	32	28	511	6/75	18.25	3.04	36.00	1	13	10
191.5	51	22	494	3/21	22.45	2.58	52.32	-	12	7
215.4	60	19	612	3/50	32.21	2.84	68.11	-	2	1
119	10	15	495	3/76	33.00	4.16	47.60	-	9	8
179.2	51	10	393	3/17	39.30	2.19	107.60	-	2	-
13.5	4	3	38	3/38	12.67	2.75	27.67	-	-	-
12	1	2	28	2/15	14.00	2.33	36.00	-	-	-
10	-	2	78	1/21	39.00	7.80	30.00	-	10	-
20	5	-	45	0/12	-	2.25	-	-	-	2
5	3	-	5	0/5	-	1.00	-	-	-	-
2	-	-	6	0/6	-	3.00	-	-	-	-
2	-	-	15	0/15	-	7.50	-	-	-	-
			125							
	0 62.5 134.4 168 191.5 215.4 119 179.2 13.5 12 10 20 5	O M 62.5 14 134.4 22 168 32 191.5 51 215.4 60 119 10 179.2 51 13.5 4 12 1 10 - 20 5 5 3 2 -	O         M         W           62.5         14         13           134.4         22         27           168         32         28           191.5         51         22           215.4         60         19           119         10         15           179.2         51         10           13.5         4         3           12         1         2           10         -         2           20         5         -           5         3         -           2         -         -	62.5 14 13 200 134.4 22 27 444 168 32 28 511 191.5 51 22 494 215.4 60 19 612 119 10 15 495 179.2 51 10 393  13.5 4 3 38 12 1 2 28 10 - 2 78 20 5 - 45 5 3 - 5 2 - 6 2 - 15	O         M         W         R         Best           62.5         14         13         200         4/47           134.4         22         27         444         4/33           168         32         28         511         6/75           191.5         51         22         494         3/21           215.4         60         19         612         3/50           119         10         15         495         3/76           179.2         51         10         393         3/17           13.5         4         3         38         3/38           12         1         2         28         2/15           10         -         2         78         1/21           20         5         -         45         0/12           5         3         -         5         0/5           2         -         6         0/6           2         -         -         6         0/6           2         -         -         6         0/5	O         M         W         R         Best         Avg           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00           10         -         2         78         1/21         39.00           20         5         -         45         0/12         -           5         3         -         5         0/5         -           2         -         -         6         0/6         -           10 <t< td=""><td>O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33           10         -         2         78         1/21         39.00         7.80           20         5         -         45         0/12         -         2.25           5         3<td>O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33         36.00           10         -         2         78         1/21         39.00</td><td>O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R         5wi           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00         -           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93         -           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00         1           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32         -           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11         -           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60         -           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60         -           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67         -           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33</td><td>O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R         5wi         Wd           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00         -         2           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93         -         24           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00         1         13           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32         -         12           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11         -         2           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60         -         9           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60         -         2           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67         -</td></td></t<>	O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33           10         -         2         78         1/21         39.00         7.80           20         5         -         45         0/12         -         2.25           5         3 <td>O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33         36.00           10         -         2         78         1/21         39.00</td> <td>O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R         5wi           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00         -           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93         -           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00         1           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32         -           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11         -           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60         -           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60         -           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67         -           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33</td> <td>O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R         5wi         Wd           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00         -         2           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93         -         24           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00         1         13           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32         -         12           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11         -         2           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60         -         9           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60         -         2           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67         -</td>	O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33         36.00           10         -         2         78         1/21         39.00	O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R         5wi           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00         -           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93         -           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00         1           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32         -           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11         -           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60         -           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60         -           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67         -           12         1         2         28         2/15         14.00         2.33	O         M         W         R         Best         Avg         Econ         S/R         5wi         Wd           62.5         14         13         200         4/47         15.38         3.18         29.00         -         2           134.4         22         27         444         4/33         16.44         3.30         29.93         -         24           168         32         28         511         6/75         18.25         3.04         36.00         1         13           191.5         51         22         494         3/21         22.45         2.58         52.32         -         12           215.4         60         19         612         3/50         32.21         2.84         68.11         -         2           119         10         15         495         3/76         33.00         4.16         47.60         -         9           179.2         51         10         393         3/17         39.30         2.19         107.60         -         2           13.5         4         3         38         3/38         12.67         2.75         27.67         -

### PARTNERSHIPS - 2nd Grade 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	3	Blacktown	1	Charlwood, Nicholas R	49	Byrnes,Joseph J	51	85
	2	St.George	1	Byrnes, Joseph J	42	Rizwan,Raza	71*	80
	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Batchelor,Oliver R	37	Byrnes, Joseph J	45	74
	4	Hawkesbury	1	Gowland,Mitchell	39	Byrnes, Joseph J	35	64
2nd	11	Gordon	1	Gowland,Mitchell	80	Batchelor,Oliver R	65	150
	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Rizwan,Raza	31	Batchelor,Oliver R	74	73
	SF	Penrith	1	Rizwan,Raza	31	Byrnes,Joseph J	63	60
	QF	Sutherland	1	Byrnes, Joseph J	28	Rizwan,Raza	112	52
	6	Western Suburbs	1	Rizwan,Raza	40	Gowland,Mitchell	22	51
3rd	QF	Sutherland	1	Atallah,Marcus A	65	Rizwan,Raza	112	129
	7	Manly Warringah	1	Atallah, Marcus A	34	Byrnes,Joseph J	108	98
	8	Sydney	1	Rizwan,Raza	30	Gowland,Mitchell	64	93
	1	Bankstown	1	Atallah, Marcus A	56	Walker, Nicholas J	81	92
	12	Sydney University	1	Atallah,Marcus A	41	Batchelor,Oliver R	81	79
	SF	Penrith	1	Atallah, Marcus A	35	Byrnes,Joseph J	63	72
4th	6	Western Suburbs	1	Atallah,Marcus A	100	McLean,Brandon J	114	191
	1	Bankstown	1	Thanabalasingam,SK	32	Walker, Nicholas J	81	87
	QF	Sutherland	1	Rizwan,Raza	112	Henry, James A	35	63
	3	Blacktown	1	McLean,Brandon J	24	Atallah,Marcus A	71	59
5th	12	Sydney University	1	McLean,Brandon J	43*	Henry, James A	45*	86*
	2	St.George	1	Maladay,Lewin R	46*	Rizwan,Raza	71*	67*
6th	6	Western Suburbs	1	Maladay,Lewin R	48	Thanabalasingam,SK	34*	52
7th	3	Blacktown	1	McCormick,Sam A	40	Jackson,Connor S	33*	73
8th	9	Parramatta	1	Maladay,Lewin R	47	McLean, Hayden C	18	38
9th	F	Sydney	1	Venianakis, John A	10	Maladay,Lewin R	45	45
10th	4	Hawkesbury	1	Shankar,Siddharth	8	Venianakis, John A	21*	27

NOTE: M Gowland & OR Batchelor's 2nd Wicket Partnership was the highest in SCA 2nd Grade for 2015/2016

r ai illei s	IIID AVEIA	iyes							
Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	17	-	536	31.53	6th	13	1	221	18.42
2nd	17	-	635	37.35	7th	12	2	244	24.40
3rd	17	-	771	45.35	8th	10	2	133	16.63
4th	17	-	575	33.82	9th	8	2	166	27.67
5th	16	2	378	27.00	10th	6	1	60	12.00

#### THIRD GRADE REPORT

After a promising start to the season which saw us topping the table after six rounds, we ended up in 10<sup>th</sup> position, just half a win out of finals contention. While it was disappointing to not compete in the finals, it was probably a true reflection of how we played throughout the year. We played at the extremes of the spectrum with some big victories, some calamitous losses and also a few nail biters.

Our team showed some tremendous spirit with tight victories against the odds versus Hawkesbury with JMB bamboozling their tail to get the final wicket with three balls to spare and by defeating the eventual champions Sydney Uni by three runs after a Bandit indiscretion left us with only 10 fielders. Many other teams would have given up, but we fought through to the end and came up trumps.

We had some good contributions from new players to the club with the likes of Batchelor, Ruffell, Nick Charlwood and Coleman all fitting into the side well and providing match winning contributions throughout the season.

Our bowling was especially strong and the usual tactic was to stick the opposition in and hope to roll them cheaply. This tactic helped us win outright against Blacktown and almost secure another outright versus Wests. Apples, Ho, Deano, Charlie, Ruffell and JMB all picked up at least 12 wickets at less than 30.

The batting was less of a good news story as it lacked consistency and too many players got out softly when set. Only Freddie Ruffell averaged over 30 with the bat and we scored only eleven 50s with no centuries. This isn't acceptable when we play at DP regularly, especially when we witnessed a few opposition go on and score big and take the game away from us. We will need to learn to do the same if we're to be a real competition threat.

I'd like to thank all of my team mates, the support staff and coaches for another very enjoyable season. It was great to see some of our hard work finally result in some victories. I was also proud of the way that the entire club supported 2<sup>nd</sup> grade in their very successful campaign. Hopefully next year we get a few more teams into finals and even win one of the grades.

#### MARK APPLETON

<b>MATCH SUMMARIES</b>	- 3rd Grade 2015/2016

Rd	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	Jensen Park	LO	Bankstown	9/188	50	UNSW	7/189	47.1
			Manning Bancroft, Jack T	4/36	10	Manning Bancroft, Jack T	83	(107)
			Venianakis, John A	3/14	10	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	41	(81)
	Captain:	Applete	on,Mark S (Toss : Lost)					` '
	Result:	Win on	1st Innings (6 points)					
2	David Phillips	LO	UNSW	144	30	St.George	5/148	35.5
	South		Ruffell,Freddie W A	37	(34)	Jones,Dean N	2/22	8
			Batchelor,Oliver R	35	(40)	Appleton, Mark S	2/23	8
	Captain:	Applete	on,Mark S (Toss : Won)		, ,	,		
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
3	Jim Hanshaw	2D	Blacktown	62	34	UNSW	8/139 d.	46
	Oval		Appleton, Mark S	6/4	9	Batchelor, Oliver R	63	(116)
			Ho.Gavin T	3/18	7			( -/
			Ruffell,Freddie W A	1/6	5			
			(2nd Inns)	142	47	(2nd Inns)	4/66	13.2
			Appleton,Mark S	3/39	13	Ruffell.Freddie W A	40	(48)
			Manning Bancroft, Jack T	3/54	13	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		( -/
			Ruffell.Freddie W A	2/3	6			
			Stanton,Matthew H T	1/7	3			
	Captain:	Applete	on,Mark S (Toss : Won)	.,,	Ū			
	Result:		nt Win after Leading on 1st Inni	nas (10 points)				
4	Bensons Lane 2	2D	UNSW	104	49.2	Hawkesbury	3/107 d.	25.1
			Ruffell,Freddie W A	27	(82)	Jones, Dean N	2/24	7
			Ho.Gavin T	20	(21)			
			(2nd Inns)	5/199 d.	51	(2nd Inns)	145	27.3
			Batchelor, Oliver R	67	(115)	Manning Bancroft, Jack T	3/22	5.3
			Ruffell,Freddie W A	54*	(46)	Jones, Dean N	3/48	10
			Jackson.Connor S	36	(45)	Appleton, Mark S	2/35	5
			Bhandari, Danny	26	(66)	Ho,Gavin T	1/16	4
	Captain:	Applete	on,Mark S (Toss : Lost)		(00)	,	.,	•
	Result:		nt Win after Trailing on 1st Innir	nas (6 points)				
- 5	David Phillips	2D	UNSW	138	47.3	Fairfield-Liverpool	6/188	39
•	South		Manning Bancroft, Jack T	30	(58)	Ho.Gavin T	3/17	6
			Batchelor, Oliver R	27	(55)	Ruffell,Freddie W A	2/26	6
			Bhandari, Danny	21	(25)	. tao., roadio 17 /	2,25	·
	Captain:	Tsouks	alas,Nikolas G (Toss : Lost)	21	(20)			
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
	Noouit.	L033 U	ii ist iiiiiigs (o poliits)					

6	Blick Oval	2D	Western Suburbs Appleton,Mark S Ho,Gavin T	<b>113</b> 4/19 3/24	<b>43.1</b> 11 6.1	UNSW Patel,Ankit Ruffell,Freddie W A Ho,Gavin T	<b>8/255 d.</b> 65 43 33	<b>65</b> (82) (79) (35)
	Captain:	Applete	(2nd Inns) Ho,Gavin T on,Mark S (Toss : Lost)	<b>4/138</b> 2/26	<b>43</b> 8	Bhandari,Danny	27	(83)
	Result:	Win or	1st Innings (6 points) - Brack		Jackson	, Day 2: A Patel		
7	David Phillips	2D	Manly Warringah	7/341 d.	80	UNSW	268	84
	South		Appleton,Mark S	3/63	16	Bhandari,Danny McCormick,Sam A Tsoukalas,Nikolas G	74 56 36	(133) (63) (66)
	Captain:		on,Mark S (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points) - Brack					
8	David Phillips	LO	Sydney	9/242	50	UNSW	202	47.4
	South		Bhandari, Danny	3/24	7	Jackson, Connor S	59	(71)
			Appleton,Mark S	2/14	4	Charlwood, Nicholas R	30	(43)
	0	A 1 . 4	Shankar,Siddharth	2/28	10	Manning Bancroft, Jack T	26	(64)
	Captain:		on,Mark S (Toss : Won)					
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)	202	47.4	LINICIW	440	25
9	Merrylands	LO		203	47.1	UNSW	118	35
	Oval		Appleton, Mark S	4/38	10	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	36	(50)
			Charlwood, Nicholas R	2/30	7.1			
			Jones, Dean N	2/37	10			
	Ot-i	A 1 - 4	Ruffell,Freddie W A	1/14	4			
	Captain:		on,Mark S (Toss : Won)					
40	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)	264	76.2	UNSW	242	CE E
10	David Phillips	2D	Campbelltown-Camden	264	76.3		242	65.5
	South		Charlwood, Nicholas R	3/54	16	Batchelor,Oliver R	77	(118)
			Jones, Dean N	2/37	12.3	Charlwood, Nicholas R Ruffell, Freddie W A	49	(106)
	Contoin	Anniat	Appleton, Mark S	2/57	15	Rullell,Fleddle W A	47	(66)
	Captain: Result:		on,Mark S  (Toss : Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points) - Brack	oting Dov 1:A D	lotal Day	2.ND Thomphologingon		
11	Killara Oval	LOSS O	Gordon	143	48.3	UNSW	7/138	43.1
11	Kiliala Oval	LO		4/34	10	Ruffell,Freddie W A		
			Appleton,Mark S Ho,Gavin T	2/21	10	Bowcock, Daniel S	53 33	(68) (62)
			Ruffell,Freddie W A	2/36	8.3	Bowcock, Daniel S	33	(62)
			Charlwood, Nicholas R	1/19	8 8			
	Captain:	Applet	on,Mark S (Toss : Lost)	1/19	0			
	Result:		i 1st Innings (6 points) - Rain S	Stopped Play LIN	SW/ Won	on superior Run Rate		
12	David Phillips	2D	UNSW	196	73.4	Sydney University	193	72.5
12	South	20	Ho,Gavin T	43	(82)	Charlwood, Nicholas R	5/38	16
	30000		Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	40	(76)	Appleton, Mark S	2/45	17
			Thanabalasingam,SK	29	(74)	, ipplotoff, Mark O	2,70	"
			Charlwood, Nicholas R	27	(62)			
	Captain:	Applete	on,Mark S (Toss : Won)		(02)			
	Result:		1 1st Innings (6 points)					
13	Trumper Park	LO	UNSW	107	49.1	Eastern Suburbs	0/108	26.3
			Bowcock, Daniel S	22	(50)		0, 100	
	Captain: Result:		on,Mark S (Toss : Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)		()			
14	David Phillips	2D	Randwick-Petersham	308	77.3	UNSW	173	61.4
	South		Appleton,Mark S	4/53	18	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	69	(139)
			Jones,Dean N	2/65	15	Ho,Gavin T	26	(29)
	Captain:		on,Mark S (Toss : Lost)			Patel,Ankit	23	(61)
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
15	David Phillips	LO	North Sydney	107	38.1	UNSW	3/111	18.4
	South		Thanabalasingam,SK	3/15	5	Charlwood, Nicholas R	35	(29)
			Appleton,Mark S	2/6	6	Patel, Ankit	33	(47)
			Jones,Dean N	2/11	6	Thanabalasingam,SK	26*	(30)
	Captain: Result:		on,Mark S (Toss : Lost) 1 1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)					

 BATTING - 3rd Grade 2015/2016

 Overs Faced:
 828.1

 Runs Scored For:
 2789

 Wickets Lost:
 142

 Average / Wicket:
 19.64

 Balls / Wicket:
 34.99

 Runs / Over:
 3.37

 Highest Score For:
 268 vs Manly Warringah (Rd7)

 Lowest Score For:
 104 vs Hawkesbury (Rd4)

 Name
 Mts Inn No HS Runs

Name	Mts	lnn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Ruffell,Freddie W A	11	13	1	54*	381	31.75	2	-	66.15	43	3	3			-	-	791
Batchelor,Oliver R	10	12	-	77	301	25.08	3	-	58.33	36	1	1			-	-	456
Jackson,Connor S	6.5	8	1	59	175	25.00	1	-	61.62	18	6	2			-	-	270
Manning Bancroft, Jack T	8	9	1	83	197	24.63	1	-	62.74	23	3	2			-	-	642
Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	15	16	2	69	318	22.71	1	-	52.65	38	4	2			2	1	503
Charlwood, Nicholas R	8	8	-	49	165	20.63	-	-	50.15	18	4	3			-	-	640
Patel, Ankit	9	9	-	65	159	17.67	1	-	45.69	15	1	4			-	-	304
McCormick,Sam A	7.5	7	1	56	97	16.17	1	-	78.86	13	2	-	11	4	-	3	532
Bhandari,Danny	11.5	14	-	74	226	16.14	1	-	43.13	19	-	7			-	1	566
Ho,Gavin T	14	14	1	43	205	15.77	-	-	61.75	20	8	8			1	2	920
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	5	5	1	29	55	13.75	-	-	45.45	4	3	2			1	2	260
Appleton,Mark S	14	10	4	16*	63	10.50	-	-	27.16	4	1	2			-	1	1403
Stening,Hamish F	3.5	4	2	7*	20	10.00	-	-	18.52	2	-	-	11	2	-	1	435
Byrnes,Thomas D	3	5	-	18	31	6.20	-	-	54.39	1	-	-			-	-	61

Shankar, Siddharth	7	6	2	11*	24	6.00	-	-	41.38	2	-	2			-	-	174	
Thanabalasingam, Nirmalan R	3.5	4	1	12	18	6.00	-	-	31.03	2	-	1			-	-	58	
Jones,Dean N	13	10	4	14*	23	3.83	-	-	46.00	4	1	3			-	-	528	
Also Batted:																		
Bowcock, Daniel S	4	3	-	33	60	20.00	-	-	42.55	5	-	-			-	-	80	
Gavan,Joshua P	1	1	-	19	19	19.00	-	-	35.19	1	1	1			-	-	39	
Bascaran,Kabilan	1	1	-	11	11	11.00	-	-	25.58	-	-	-			-	-	11	
Coleman, Andrew J	3	2	-	13	14	7.00	-	-	35.90	2	-	-	9	-	-	1	299	
Stanton, Matthew H T	3	2	-	1	1	0.50	-	-	2.56	-	-	-			-	-	31	
Carvosso,Rhys	2	2	2	11*	11	-	-	-	28.95	1	-	1			-	-	41	
Venianakis, John A	1	1	1	10*	10	-	-	-	100.00	-	-	-			-	-	105	
Muraleedaran,Krijan	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1			-	-	20	
Extras	· •				193													

BOWLING - 3rd Grade 2015/2016
Overs Bowled:
Runs Scored Against:
Wickets Taken:
Average / Wicket:
Balls / Wicket:
Bulls / Overs 861.5 3140 143 21.96 36.16 Runs / Over: 3.64

Highest Score Against:
Lowest Score Against: 7/341 vs Manly Warringah (Rd7) 62 vs Blacktown (Rd3)

West Ocore / Igainst.	02	iacitiow	II (IXGO	_
ame	0	M	W	
opleton,Mark S	174	39	41	

Name	0	M	w	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Appleton,Mark S	174	39	41	535	6/4	13.05	3.07	25.46	1	5	-
Charlwood, Nicholas R	83.4	18	13	275	5/38	21.15	3.29	38.62	1	14	-
Ruffell,Freddie W A	79.3	14	12	281	2/3	23.42	3.53	39.75	-	19	16
Jones,Dean N	137	24	18	496	3/48	27.56	3.62	45.67	-	27	5
Ho,Gavin T	139.1	14	19	542	3/17	28.53	3.89	43.95	-	12	5
Manning Bancroft, Jack T	78.1	8	12	349	4/36	29.08	4.46	39.08	-	16	1
Shankar, Siddharth	59.5	13	4	185	2/28	46.25	3.09	89.75	-	12	3
Also Bowled:											
Venianakis, John A	10	5	3	14	3/14	4.67	1.40	20.00	-	1	-
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	22	5	4	71	3/15	17.75	3.23	33.00	-	-	-
Bhandari, Danny	20	4	4	87	3/24	21.75	4.35	30.00	-	15	-
Stanton, Matthew H T	26	7	1	78	1/7	78.00	3.00	156.00	-	-	-
Batchelor,Oliver R	15	2	1	94	1/59	94.00	6.27	90.00	-	5	1
Patel, Ankit	1.3	-	-	4	0/4	-	2.67	-	-	-	-
Carvosso,Rhys	16	2	-	45	0/8	-	2.81	-	-	1	-
Absent	•		1								

NOTE: MS Appleton's 41 Wickets was the most taken in SCA 3rd Grade for 2015/2016

PARTNERSHIPS - 3rd Grade 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	2	St.George	1	Batchelor,Oliver R	35	Ruffell,Freddie W A	37	74
	15	North Sydney	1	Charlwood, Nicholas R	35	Patel, Ankit	33	65
2nd	6	Western Suburbs	1	Ruffell,Freddie W A	43	Bhandari,Danny	27	58
	10	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Ruffell,Freddie W A	47	Charlwood, Nicholas R	49	54
3rd	8	Sydney	1	Charlwood, Nicholas R	30	Jackson,Connor S	59	72
	4	Hawkesbury	2	Jackson,Connor S	36	Batchelor,Oliver R	67	58
4th	10	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Charlwood, Nicholas R	49	Batchelor,Oliver R	77	88
	7	Manly Warringah	1	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	36	Bhandari,Danny	74	75
	6	Western Suburbs	1	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	26	Patel, Ankit	65	74
	4	Hawkesbury	2	Batchelor,Oliver R	67	Ruffell,Freddie W A	54*	64
5th	1	Bankstown	1	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	41	Manning Bancroft, Jack T	83	103
6th	6	Western Suburbs	1	Patel, Ankit	65	Ho,Gavin T	33	59
	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Ho,Gavin T	26	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	69	54
	12	Sydney University	1	Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	29	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	40	52
7th	4	Hawkesbury	1	Ho,Gavin T	20	Manning Bancroft, Jack T	9	30
8th	7	Manly Warringah	1	Appleton,Mark S	10	McCormick,Sam A	56	48
9th	7	Manly Warringah	1	McCormick,Sam A	56	Carvosso,Rhys	11*	27
10th	8	Sydney	1	Shankar,Siddharth	5	Appleton,Mark S	16*	31

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	_	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	17	-	395	23.24		6th	15	-	326	21.73
2nd	17	-	341	20.06		7th	14	-	158	11.29
3rd	17	-	386	22.71		8th	14	2	193	16.08
4th	17	1	461	28.81		9th	12	2	105	10.50
5th	16	-	348	21.75		10th	10	-	76	7.60

#### FOURTH GRADE REPORT

After finishing season 14/15 in 18th place, I had one primary focus ... to lift our position significantly higher and be pushing for finals; and after one round, this seemed a possibility. However, cricket is a funny game, and as easily as confidence can come, it can be lost. And unfortunately for fourth grade, for the next few rounds, it was.

The next 5 rounds saw us winless, with 2 draws and 3 losses, and coming into the last round before Christmas with only one win on the board. Either side of Christmas however brought wins, and we were starting to build some momentum. A washout against Campbelltown stifled this, and we could only manage 2 wins from the last 5. These two victories however, signify what the team is capable of.

The first, against eventual premiers Sydney Uni, had us defending 167. After being sent in on what could be described as something you would find in the toilet bowl after a big night on the kirk, we managed to bat the day out and post something defendable. Week two saw us turn up to the complete opposite of week one, but our determination, and bowling discipline (which was the strongest part of our game this year) saw us bowl out Sydney Uni for 147. Sid Shankar claiming 4 in a fine display of bowling.

The second, was my highlight of the year, and probably the best performance I've ever been involved in at any club. The term clinical would be an understatement. Turning up to play Randy-Petes, a green, but indeed very hard Petersham oval awaited us. After Critter asked his captain if he would bat should he win the toss, Critter was met with a blank stare. I won the toss, and backing our bowlers as it had been our better discipline, I sent them in. Cue the Crichton show. If any ill informed folk had just turned up to the ground, they may have thought they were seeing a first grade fixture, with keeper and slips standing over 20m back and the ball carrying through shoulder height. For all his pace and exuberance, Critter only managed one, although I think a couple of batsmen may have needed some new undies. It was left to Rattler and Stantos to rip through the Randwick line up, taking 4 and 3 respectively, bowling them out for 71 in the 29th over. We went out to bat, still believing that if we got through the new ball, this would be the best wicket of the season to bat on, and that proved true. At 2/14, things weren't looking great and Randwick were up and about. This quickly evaporated, as Markel and Mulvey added 112 in short time and get the 6 points, before Rea was out. Critter kept everyone entertained with an outstanding, quick fire 68\*, however the day belonged to Mulvey, who scored his maiden club century off 104 balls, before Micky pulled the lads in to have another crack at Randwick. A quick wicket in the evening, and they were up shit creek. The drive to Petersham and back lasted longer than the day two itself, as Crichto, Stantos and Yushan ripped them to pieces. There was no sweeter point of the game, as their skipper strode out to face Chrichto's hatrick delivery, on a pair. Crighto went for the old two card trick, and bowled a nice juicy fully on middle and leg, which their skipper, sensing the occasion, duly missed hahahaha. All out 38 in the 28th over and the beer had never tasted better.

The regular faces:

**Jack "Roachy" Roach** - Never set the world on fire, however his aggressive tactics from the slips cordon were always valuable in getting under the batsmens skin.

**Nirm** - Had an improved season with the bat, however lost some momentum as he was shuffled up and down the grades later in the year. He also lays claim to the worst song choice of the year.

**Daniel "Bowie" Bowcock** - like Nirm, was consistent with the bat without being on the umpires side. Lost some momentum going in and out of teams later in the year. Always good value in the slips.

**Nivek "Spray on" Tanner** - lots and lots of potential, just need to learn when to flick the switch and take the game on. Played a couple of crucial digs and was always handy with the ball.

**Phil Hood** - unfortunately his average doesn't do justice to the role he was asked to play when in the side this year. Took it upon himself to get the shine off, and helped us win the first game back from chrissy with a valuable 44. His renditions of pink floyd's "wish you were here" always got the team in the mood.

**Christopher Ward** - the best nude ball bowler to ever play fourth grade. Time and time again, you can bank on him for 2 wickets for nothing, all the while tying down ends for long periods.

**Yoshie** - very talented young fast bowler, it was always a shame he could only bowl 10 overs. He is almost too nice for his own good at the moment, and when he devlops a mean streak I'd hate to be the one facing him.

**Stantos** - always entertained us with his stories of pulling himself off thinking about the beibs on a Friday evening. It certainly worked for him though, as he proved to be a very valuable and reliable bowler this year. I think he has his game worked out and will take many more wickets in the future.

Thanks as always goes out to everyone one the committee. Colonel for everything you do as el presidente, Spoon, Jebby and Rattler for the tireless efforts you put into coaching and helping the captains put the best teams on the park. The other 6 captains, it's always great to bounce ideas and have you support. Lastly, I'd of course like to thank the awesome bunch of blokes that have passed through 4ths this year. It is always a pleasure to enjoy your company both on, and off the paddock. Speaking of which, see you all at fines day.

All the best for the off season and I hope to see you all back, ready to improve on our 11th position and hopefully push for something special.

#### MICHAEL REA

	CH SUMMARIES - 4 Venue		Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	David Phillips	LO	Bankstown	183	46.3	UNSW	3/185	43.5
	South		Ward,Christopher N	3/10	10	Patel, Ankit	57	(78)
			Thanabalasingam,NR	3/37	7.3	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	30	(60)
			Carvosso,Rhys	2/33	8	Gavan, Joshua P	27	(23)
			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			Roach, Jack P	27*	(34)
	Captain:		ichael P (Toss : Won)			,		, ,
	Result:		1st Innings (6 points)					
2	Cahill Park	LO	St.George	7/237	50	UNSW	101	37
						Patel, Ankit	26	(51)
	Contain	Doc M	ishaal D. (Tass : Man)			Bowcock, Daniel S	20	(29)
	Captain: Result:		ichael P (Toss : Won) n 1st Innings (0 points)					
3	David Phillips	2D	UNSW	336	76.5	Blacktown	8/238	84
3	South	20	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	102	(190)	Ward,Christopher N	5/75	28
	Journ		Roach, Jack P	50	(41)	ward, offisiopher in	3/13	20
			Gavan, Joshua P	45	(54)			
			Patel, Ankit	37	(39)			
	Captain:	Poo M	ichael P (Toss : Won)	31	(39)			
	Result:		0 points)					
4	David Phillips	2D	Hawkesbury	332	79.5	UNSW	122	38.3
•	South	20	Carvosso,Rhys	3/45	13	Thanabalasingam,NR	30	(57
	Journ		Patel, Ankit	3/43	17.5	Bowcock,Daniel S	23	(44
			Stanton,Matthew H T	2/85	20	Dowoock, Dailler 3	23	(44
			Gtaritori, Mattriew 11 1	2/00	20	(2nd Inns)	5/154	39
						Thanabalasingam,NR	63	(77
						Patel,Ankit	48	(75
	Captain:	Rea M	ichael P (Toss : Lost)			1 atol,7 tilat	10	(, 0
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
5	Don Dawson Oval		Fairfield-Liverpool			UNSW		
	Captain:		ichael P (Toss: N/A)					
	Result:		sult (0 points) - Day's 1 & 2 Washe	ed Out				
6	David Phillips	2D	Western Suburbs	278	68.4	UNSW	236	84.
	South		Stanton, Matthew H T	4/73	22	Bowcock, Daniel S	78	(138
			Carvosso,Rhys	3/72	13.4	Gavan, Joshua P	36	(77
			Ward, Christopher N	2/71	21	Bascaran, Kabilan	32	(36
			Patel, Ankit	1/19	6	Roach, Jack P	29	(73
	Captain:	Rea,M	ichael P (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points) - Bracketir	ng - Day 1: A l	Patel, Da	ay 2: ND Tanner		
7	Graham	2D	UNSW	221	94.2	Manly Warringah	5/223	52.5
	Reserve		Tanner, Nivek D	47	(194)	Ward,Christopher N	2/81	18
			Gunning,Pyke O L	40	(117)	Bowcock, Daniel S	1/5	3
			Rea,Michael P	34	(62)	Thanabalasingam,NR	1/20	10
			Tripathi, Abhishek	25	(25)			
	Captain:		ichael P (Toss : Won)					
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points) - Bracketir					
						g & NR Thanabalasingam		
8	Ryde Oval	LO	UNSW	7/179	50	Sydney	138	41.
			Thanabalasingam,NR	45	(67)	Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	3/29	7
			′					6
			Rea,Michael P	35	(37)	Stanton, Matthew H T	2/6	
			Coleman, Andrew J	22*	(31)	Ward, Christopher N	2/37	9.2
			Coleman,Andrew J Gavan,Joshua P					9.2 6
	Captain:		Coleman,Andrew J Gavan,Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won)	22*	(31)	Ward, Christopher N	2/37	9.2
	Result:	Win on	Coleman,Andrew J Gavan,Joshua P ichael P (Toss : Won) n 1st Innings (6 points)	22* 20	(31) (62)	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR	2/37 1/11	9.2 6
9	Result:  David Phillips		Coleman,Andrew J Gavan,Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) a 1st Innings (6 points) Parramatta	22* 20 <b>183</b>	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b>	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b>	9.2
9	Result:	Win on	Coleman,Andrew J Gavan,Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) 1 st Innings (6 points) Parramatta Gunewardhane,Yushan N A	22* 20 <b>183</b> 3/41	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR UNSW Hood,Philip J	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44	9.2 6 <b>49</b> . (73
9	Result:  David Phillips	Win on	Coleman, Andrew J Gavan, Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) 1 st Innings (6 points) Parramatta Gunewardhane, Yushan N A Rea, Michael P	22* 20 <b>183</b> 3/41 2/26	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10 5	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR UNSW Hood,Philip J Bowcock,Daniel S	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44 35	9.2 6 <b>49.</b> (73 (65
9	Result:  David Phillips	Win on	Coleman, Andrew J Gavan, Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) 1st Innings (6 points)  Parramatta Gunewardhane, Yushan N A Rea, Michael P Ward, Christopher N	22* 20 183 3/41 2/26 2/27	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10 5	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR  UNSW Hood,Philip J Bowcock,Daniel S Voleti,Aditya	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44 35 20	9.2 6 <b>49.</b> (73 (65 (36
9	Result:  David Phillips South	Win on	Coleman, Andrew J Gavan, Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) 1st Innings (6 points)  Parramatta Gunewardhane, Yushan N A Rea, Michael P Ward, Christopher N Stening, Hamish F	22* 20 <b>183</b> 3/41 2/26	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10 5	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR UNSW Hood,Philip J Bowcock,Daniel S	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44 35	9.2 6 <b>49.</b> (73 (65 (36
9	Result: David Phillips South  Captain:	Win on	Coleman, Andrew J Gavan, Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) 1st Innings (6 points) Parramatta Gunewardhane, Yushan N A Rea, Michael P Ward, Christopher N Stening, Hamish F ichael P (Toss: Won)	22* 20 183 3/41 2/26 2/27	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10 5	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR  UNSW Hood,Philip J Bowcock,Daniel S Voleti,Aditya	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44 35 20	9.2 6 <b>49.</b> (73 (65 (36
	Result:  David Phillips South  Captain: Result:	Win on LO Rea,M Win on	Coleman, Andrew J Gavan, Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) n 1st Innings (6 points) Parramatta Gunewardhane, Yushan N A Rea, Michael P Ward, Christopher N Stening, Hamish F ichael P (Toss: Won) n 1st Innings (6 points)	22* 20 183 3/41 2/26 2/27	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10 5	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR  UNSW Hood,Philip J Bowcock,Daniel S Voleti,Aditya Stening,Hamish F	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44 35 20	9.2 6 <b>49.</b> (73 (65 (36
9	Result:  David Phillips South  Captain: Result:  Raby 2	Rea,M Win on	Coleman, Andrew J Gavan, Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) 1 st Innings (6 points)  Parramatta Gunewardhane, Yushan N A Rea, Michael P Ward, Christopher N Stening, Hamish F ichael P (Toss: Won) 1 st Innings (6 points)  Campbelltown-Camden	22* 20 183 3/41 2/26 2/27	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10 5	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR  UNSW Hood,Philip J Bowcock,Daniel S Voleti,Aditya	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44 35 20	9.2 6 <b>49.</b>
	Result:  David Phillips South  Captain: Result:	Rea,M Win on 2D Rea,M	Coleman, Andrew J Gavan, Joshua P ichael P (Toss: Won) n 1st Innings (6 points) Parramatta Gunewardhane, Yushan N A Rea, Michael P Ward, Christopher N Stening, Hamish F ichael P (Toss: Won) n 1st Innings (6 points)	22* 20 183 3/41 2/26 2/27 1/11	(31) (62) <b>43.2</b> 10 5	Ward,Christopher N Thanabalasingam,NR  UNSW Hood,Philip J Bowcock,Daniel S Voleti,Aditya Stening,Hamish F	2/37 1/11 <b>5/184</b> 44 35 20	9.2 6 <b>49.</b> (73 (65 (36

11	David Phillips South	LO	Gordon Muraleedaran,Krijan	<b>233</b> 5/53	<b>48.3</b> 8	UNSW Rea.Michael P	<b>8/170</b> 58	<b>41</b> (67)
	••••		Rea, Michael P	2/28	4.3	Tanner, Nivek D	32	(74)
	Captain:	Rea,M	ichael P (Toss : Won)					( /
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points) - Rain St	opped Play. Go	rdon wo	on on Superior Run Rate.		
12	St.Pauls	2D	UNSW	167	77.4	Sydney University	147	49.2
	College		Shankar,Siddharth	29	(76)	Shankar,Siddharth	4/52	18
	_		Bascaran,Kabilan	23	(59)	Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	2/19	9.2
						Rea,Michael P	2/25	10
	Captain:	Rea,M	ichael P (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:	Win or	1st Innings (6 points)					
13	David Phillips	LO	UNSW	9/130	50	Eastern Suburbs	7/131	38.3
	South		Roach, Jack P	45	(82)	Shankar,Siddharth	3/28	9.3
			Shankar,Siddharth	27*	(46)	Rea,Michael P	1/9	1
	Captain:	Rea,M	ichael P (Toss : Won)					
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					
14	Petersham Oval	2D	Randwick-Petersham	71	28.4	UNSW	3/234 d.	40
			Lupton, John C	4/20	7.4	Mulvenna, Daniel R	100*	(104)
			Stanton,Matthew H T	3/17	10	Crichton,Samuel L S	68*	(56)
			Rea,Michael P	1/9	4	Rea,Michael P	49	(52)
			(2nd Inns)	38	27.3			
			Crichton,Samuel L S	4/6*	5	(*Includes a Hat-Trick)		
			Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	2/6	4.3			
			Stanton,Matthew H T	2/16	9			
			Ward, Christopher N	1/1	5			
	Captain:		ichael P (Toss : Won)					
	Result:		nt Win after Leading on 1st Inning					
		Bracke	eting - Day 1: JC Lupton, Day 2: \					
15	North Sydney 2	LO	North Sydney	137	42.5	UNSW	120	43.5
			Gunning,Pyke O L	4/25	6.5	Voleti,Aditya	20	(60)
			Ward, Christopher N	3/29	10			
			Rea,Michael P	2/25	10			
	Captain:		ichael P (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					

 

 BATTING - 4th Grade 2015/2016

 Overs Faced:
 765

 Runs Scored For:
 253

 Wickets Lost:
 110

 Average / Wicket:
 23.0

 Balls / Wicket:
 41.7

 Runs / Over:
 3.32

 Highest Score For:
 336

 Lowest Score For:
 101

 765.5 2539 110 23.08 41.77 3.32 336 vs Blacktown (Rd3) 101 vs St.George (Rd2)

Lowest Score For:	101	vs St.	George	(Rd2)													
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Patel, Ankit	5.5	6	-	57	187	31.17	1	-	69.78	23	3	3			-	1	447
Rea,Michael P	13	13	3	58	286	28.60	1	-	60.08	31	7	11			-	1	856
Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	5	6	-	102	169	28.17	-	1	52.98	23	-	1			-	1	309
Thanabalasingam, Nirmalan R	8.5	9	1	63	198	24.75	1	-	48.18	21	3	1			-	1	448
Bowcock, Daniel S	9	9	1	78	193	24.13	1	-	53.46	26	1	5			-	1	388
Roach,Jack P	12	12	2	50	232	23.20	1	-	52.37	28	2	9			-	-	452
Bascaran,Kabilan	5	4	-	32	87	21.75	-	-	66.41	5	4	-	5	3	-	2	312
Gunning,Pyke O L	5	4	-	40	80	20.00	-	-	40.00	14	-	1			-	2	280
Gavan, Joshua P	6	7	-	45	134	19.14	-	-	51.54	22	2	-			-	-	154
Tanner, Nivek D	6.5	7	-	47	98	14.00	-	-	24.38	6	1	1			-	-	188
Ward,Christopher N	13	9	4	24*	67	13.40	-	-	48.20	7	1	10			1	1	977
Hood,Philip J	7	7	-	44	91	13.00	-	-	37.30	10	1	4	1	-	-	-	221
Muraleedaran,Krijan	4	4	-	19	47	11.75	-	-	33.81	4	-	1			-	-	287
Voleti,Aditya	5	5	-	20	44	8.80	-	-	32.12	2	-	1			-	-	84
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	7.5	6	1	19	33	6.60	-	-	35.87	3	-	2			-	-	383
Stanton,Matthew H T	10	5	2	4	10	3.33	-	-	27.78	1	-	1			1	-	505
Also Batted:																	
Mulvenna, Daniel R	2	2	1	100*	100	100.00	-	1	84.75	11	2	-			-	-	210
Shankar,Siddharth	2	2	1	29	56	56.00	-	-	45.90	4	1	-			1	-	301
Tripathi, Abhishek	2	2	1	25	31	31.00	-	-	91.18	4	-	-			-	-	31
Carvosso,Rhys	4	3	1	12	23	11.50	-	-	27.71	2	-	1			-	-	283
Stening,Hamish F	3.5	3	-	20	29	9.67	-	-	39.73	2	-	1	3	1	-	3	199
McCormick,Sam A	1	1	-	8	8	8.00	-	-	33.33	1	-	-			-	-	8
De Soysa,Shevantha T	0.5	1	-	2	2	2.00	-	-	15.38	-	-	-			-	-	2
Richards, Corey J	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-			-	-	-
Crichton,Samuel L S	1	1	1	68*	68	-	1	-	121.43	6	4	1			-	-	273
Coleman, Andrew J	3.5	3	3	22*	28	-	-	-	52.83	4	-	-	9	-	-	1	313
Lupton, John C	0.5	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	160
Extras					239												

#### BOWLING - 4th Grade 2015/2016

Overs Bowled:	701.5
Runs Scored Against:	2569
Wickets Taken:	127
Average / Wicket:	20.23
Balls / Wicket:	33.16
Runs / Over:	3.66

Highest Score Against: 332 vs Hawkesbury (Rd4)
Lowest Score Against: 38 vs Randwick-Petersham (Rd14)

Lowest Score Against.	30 VS R	andwick	-Peters	nam (Ru	14)						
Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Shankar,Siddharth	27.3	6	7	80	4/52	11.43	2.91	23.57	-	-	9
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	62.5	11	11	190	3/29	17.27	3.02	34.27	-	33	-
Ward, Christopher N	166.2	32	24	539	5/75	22.46	3.24	41.58	1	10	-
Carvosso,Rhys	43.4	8	9	207	3/45	23.00	4.74	29.11	-	11	-
Thanabalasingam, Nirmalan R	63.3	15	7	175	3/37	25.00	2.76	54.43	-	1	1
Stanton, Matthew H T	117	21	17	442	4/73	26.00	3.78	41.29	-	7	5
Rea, Michael P	73.2	13	12	317	2/25	26.42	4.32	36.67	-	39	1
Patel, Ankit	47.5	9	6	175	3/68	29.17	3.66	47.83	-	1	5
Also Bowled:											
Bowcock, Daniel S	3	1	1	5	1/5	5.00	1.67	18.00	-	-	-
Crichton,Samuel L S	12	5	5	26	4/6	5.20	2.17	14.40	-	1	-
Lupton, John C	11.4	3	5	27	4/20	5.40	2.31	14.00	-	10	-
Muraleedaran, Krijan	8	-	5	53	5/53	10.60	6.63	9.60	1	3	1
Stening, Hamish F	3.2	-	1	11	1/11	11.00	3.30	20.00	-	2	-
Gunning,Pyke O L	18.5	2	5	100	4/25	20.00	5.31	22.60	-	21	2
Tanner, Nivek D	25	4	2	96	1/20	48.00	3.84	75.00	-	9	-
Tripathi, Abhishek	18	4	-	60	0/28	-	3.33	-	-	2	-
Extras	•			66							

NOTE: SLS Crichton's 4/6 vs. Randwick-Petersham includes a Hat-Trick

#### PARTNERSHIPS - 4th Grade 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	3	Blacktown	1	Gavan, Joshua P	45	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	102	88
2nd	3	Blacktown	1	Patel, Ankit	37	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	102	77
2nd	9	Parramatta	1	Hood,Philip J	44	Bowcock, Daniel S	35	65
3rd	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Rea,Michael P	49	Mulvenna, Daniel R	100*	112
3rd	11	Gordon	1	Rea,Michael P	58	Tanner, Nivek D	32	85
3rd	4	Hawkesbury	2	Patel, Ankit	48	Thanabalasingam,NR	63	68
3rd	7	Manly Warringah	1	Rea,Michael P	34	Tanner, Nivek D	47	54
3rd	1	Bankstown	1	Patel, Ankit	57	Thanabalasingam,NR	25*	54
4th	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Crichton,Samuel L S	68*	Mulvenna, Daniel R	100*	108*
4th	6	Western Suburbs	1	Bowcock, Daniel S	78	Roach, Jack P	29	80
5th	4	Hawkesbury	1	Bowcock, Daniel S	23	Thanabalasingam,NR	30	49
6th	9	Parramatta	1	Rea,Michael P	17*	Roach,Jack P	16*	33*
7th	8	Sydney	1	Rea,Michael P	35	Coleman, Andrew J	22*	55
8th	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Roach, Jack P	45	Shankar,Siddharth	27*	56
9th	12	Sydney University	1	Shankar,Siddharth	29	Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	19	24
10th	7	Manly Warringah	1	Tripathi, Abhishek	25	Ward,Christopher N	24*	49

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	
1st	14	-	321	22.93	6th	12	1	145	13.18	
2nd	14	-	370	26.43	7th	10	-	193	19.30	
3rd	14	-	499	35.64	8th	10	1	173	19.22	
4th	14	2	399	33.25	9th	9	1	56	7.00	
5th	12	-	252	21.00	10th	8	1	131	18.71	

#### FIFTH GRADE REPORT



Fifth Grade versus Bankstown @ Grahame Thomas Oval (Round 1)
Back Row (L-R): Phillip Hood, Yushan Gunewardhane, Kabilan Bascaran,
Nivek Tanner, Anthony Melnyk, John Lupton.
Front Row (L-R): Katie Mack, Abhishek Tripathi, Alex Charlwood (c), Fionn Geraghty, Dan Mulvenna
Photo: Darren Sue

If nothing else, those who played fifth grade this year learnt the value of runs.

Fifth grade in 2015/16 finished in 16th place on the ladder - one position up from last season. Overall, a season that showed some fantastic fight at times, saw some great young players test themselves in men's cricket, witnessed some brilliant bowling displays and some hit-and-miss batting innings.

We took the third most wickets in the comp but lost the most wickets. From 15 rounds, we only scored more than 200 five times but scored less than 150 seven times, including less than 100 three times. Hard to win a season that way.

But now to the positives. I've rarely seen so much fight from 11 players when we took the field together. Week after week we were lead with the new ball by **Hugo 'Friar' Tuckfield** (24 wickets @21). This was Friar's first season at the Bees and he showed he has the skill and patience to play many years of grade cricket, consistently hitting a great line and length with a little bit of away swing. Knicks to keeper, slips and gully were his bread and butter. Backing up Friar in the medium pace department was **John 'Rattler' Lupton** (20 wickets @ 16.8) and **Anthony 'Rowdy' Melnyk** (17 @ 16.06). Both came on and put real pressure on batsmen all season. Rowdy plugged away like a metronome always hitting brilliant spots (a captain's dream) and Rattler bowled some great spells mixed in with his token wides (just to keep the captain on edge).

The season also saw up-and-coming tearaway quick and all-round man-child **Yushan Gunewardhane** (4 wickets @ 27.25) make his grade debut. While the stats don't show it, Yushan constantly put pressure on batsmen, often beating the edges with pace and showing signs of the scary quick he'll be when he can bowl more than four over spells...

With the bat, there were only two standouts, **Dan 'Hooch' Mulvenna** (321 @ 35.67) and **Krijan 'Spice' Muraleedaran** (184 @ 30.67). Krij made his grade debut this year with us and quickly found his way into fourth grade. When at the crease, he showed timing, patience, shot selection and temperament well beyond his years. Mulvy grafted out some good tough innings for us when we really needed them and took out this season's batting award. **Andrew Redman** (164 @ 82) showed everyone in fives what it takes to be a top-grade bat by being generally unfair to opposition bowlers, playing some superb innings late in the season after an injury ruled him out of our top grades.

The rest of the order was a bit lacklustre at times. With quality batsmen like **JP Gavan** playing a few good hitting knocks but missing out a few times, **Katie Mack** making her debut for the club but scoring all her runs for the Melbourne Stars in the WBBL and **Phil Hood** hitting an early 90 and then got a few dodgy calls.

Some really strong signs for next season. Let's just hope we can trouble the scoreboard more often.

#### **ALEX CHARLWOOD**



Katie Mack making her debut for the Bees in Round 1 versus Bankstown - Photo: Darren Sue

Rd	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	Grahame	LO	UNSW	90	35.4	Bankstown	3/91	19.2
	Thomas Oval		Bascaran, Kabilan	26	(30)	Charlwood, Alexander G	3/26	6
			Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	21	(63)			
	Captain:	Charlw	ood, Alexander G (Toss: Lost)		` '			
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					
2	David Phillips	LO	UNSW	7/199	50	St.George	8/200	42.1
	North		Hood,Philip J	93	(133)	Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	3/31	8
			Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	32*	(32)	Tanner, Nivek D	3/39	9
			Mulvenna, Daniel R	27	(81)	Lupton, John C	1/28	7
	Captain:	Lupton	John C (Toss: Won)		` '			
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					
3	Whalan 2	2D	UNSW	66	36.4	Blacktown	130	61
			Gunning, Pyke O L	26	(71)	Charlwood, Alexander G	7/36	23
			<i>5.</i> 7		, ,	Lupton, John C	2/18	12
			(2nd Inns)	3/81	35	,		
			Tanner.Nivek D	31*	(89)			
			Gunning, Pyke O L	27	(50)			
	Captain:	Charlw	ood, Alexander G (Toss: Won)		(/			
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
4	Bensons Lane 3	2D	Hawkesbury	7/257 d.	80	UNSW	224	74.5
			Tuckfield, Hugo F	2/44	14	De Soysa, Shevantha T	82	(106)
			Tripathi, Abhishek	2/55	14	Tanner, Nivek D	39	(148)
			Charlwood, Alexander G	2/76	27	Melnyk, Anthony B	22	(50)
	Captain:	Charlw	ood, Alexander G (Toss: Won)			- , , ,		(/
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
5	David Phillips		Fairfield-Liverpool	9/141	42	UNSW	116	33.4
-	North		Lupton, John C	3/13	10	Voleti, Aditya	30	(50)
			Tanner, Nivek D	3/19	6	Gunning, Pyke O L	23	(65)
	Captain:	Charlw	ood, Alexander G (Toss: Won)			3, 7		()
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
			Washed Out. Non Scheduled LO Ma	atch Day 2 (4	2 Overs	per side)		
6	Punchbowl Oval	2D	UNSW	204	73.3		127	58.4
			Muraleedaran, Krijan	75	(182)	Gunning, Pyke O L	3/21	10.4
			Tanner, Nivek D	32	(78)	Charlwood, Alexander G	3/33	17
			Voleti,Aditya	31	(54)	Lupton, John C	2/23	15
			Coleman, Andrew J	28	(57)	Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	1/11	5
	Captain:	Charlw	ood,Alexander G (Toss : Won)		()			-
	Result:		1st Innings (6 points) - Bracketing -	Day 4, ND 7		Day 2: DD Muhanna		

7	David Phillips North	2D	Manly Warringah Melnyk,Anthony B	<b>126</b> 3/9	<b>39.4</b>	UNSW Muraleedaran.Kriian	9/248 d.	<b>66.4</b> (97)
	North		Charlwood, Alexander G	3/15	11	Howard,Oscar G H	56 50*	(35)
			Tuckfield,Hugo F	2/33	9	Charlwood,Alexander G Mulvenna,Daniel R	35 35	(55) (93)
			(2nd Inns)	3/137	41	,		, ,
	Captain:	Charlu	Charlwood, Alexander G  /ood, Alexander G (Toss: Lost)	2/31	14			
	Result:		n 1st Innings (6 points)					
			eting - Day 1:TA Byrnes & AB MeIn					
8	David Phillips North	LO	UNSW Hood,Philip J	<b>123</b> 31	<b>41</b> (66)	Sydney Gunning,Pyke O L	<b>9/124</b> 3/6	<b>38.2</b> 3.2
	North		Stening,Hamish F	28	(56)	Melnyk,Anthony B	2/17	6
			Roach, Jack P	22	(34)	Lupton, John C	2/26	10
	Captain: Result:		vood, Alexander G (Toss: Won) in 1st Innings (0 points)					
9	Mona Park 3	LOSS O	9 1 7	168	48.5	Parramatta	141	45.4
			Mulvenna,Daniel R	75*	(83)	Tuckfield,Hugo F	3/20	7.4
			Muraleedaran,Krijan	21	(22)	Tan, Jonathan J H	2/17	9
						Lupton, John C Melnyk, Anthony B	2/30 1/11	7 7
	Captain:	Charlw	ood,Alexander G (Toss: Won)			Wellyk,Anthony B	1/11	,
	Result:	Win or	1st Innings (6 points)					
10	David Phillips North	2D	UNSW Gavan, Joshua P	<b>78</b> 19	<b>41.3</b> (44)	Campbelltown-Camden Lupton, John C	<b>7/116 d.</b> 3/32	<b>25.5</b> 8
	NOTH		Gavan, Joshua F	19	(44)	Crichton.Samuel L S	2/13	5
						Melnyk,Anthony B	1/6	0.5
			(2nd Inns)	160	49.3	(2nd Inns)	5/125	37.3
			Crichton,Samuel L S Mulvenna.Daniel R	48* 32	(35) (28)	Dickens, Jethro P Melnyk, Anthony B	2/16 1/8	7 6
			Gavan,Joshua P	32 32	(86)	Melityk,Antilony B	1/0	O
	Captain:		vood,Alexander G (Toss: Won)		()			
44	Result:		ht Loss after Trailing on 1st Innings		40.0	UNSW	5/116	35.1
11	Beauchamp Park	LO	Gordon Tuckfield,Hugo F	<b>206</b> 2/19	<b>48.3</b> 7	Mulvenna, Daniel R	<b>5/116</b> 46*	(68)
			Ward,Anthony L	2/28	6.3	Melnyk,Anthony B	30	(84)
			Lupton, John C	2/31	6			
	Captain:	Lunton	Melnyk,Anthony B ,John C (Toss : Won)	2/50	10			
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points) - Rain Stor	oped Play. Gor	don Wo	n on Superior Run Rate.		
12	David Phillips	2D	Sydney University	142	58.2	UNSW	63	49.3
	North		Tuckfield,Hugo F Melnyk,Anthony B	4/46 3/11	16 8.2	Mulvenna, Daniel R	30	(83)
			Ward, Anthony L	2/37	15			
			(2nd Inns)	6/110 d.	25	(2nd Inns)	8/126	20
			Crichton, Samuel L S	2/37	8	Mulvenna, Daniel R	41	(25)
			Mack,Katie M	1/15	2	Gavan,Joshua P Crichton,Samuel L S	39 24	(18) (12)
	Captain:	Luptor	,John C (Toss : Won)			Onomon, camaci E c	2.	(12)
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)				4440=	
13	Snape Park	LO	UNSW Redman.Andrew J	<b>9/166</b> 54	<b>50</b> (100)	Eastern Suburbs	4/167	46.5
			Melnyk,Anthony B	30	(84)			
			Tripathi, Abhishek	23	(18)			
	Captain:		vood, Alexander G (Toss: Won)					
14	Result: David Phillips	2D	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Randwick-Petersham	257	74.1	UNSW	242	82.1
	North	20	Charlwood, Alexander G	4/66	20	Voleti,Aditya	73	(133)
			Tuckfield,Hugo F	2/48	14.1	Stening,Hamish F	41	(106)
						Mack,Katie M	38	(110)
	Captain:	Charlw	vood, Alexander G (Toss: Lost)			Melnyk,Anthony B	24	(30)
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points)					
	Result:		eting - Day 1: SRE Lucas & MBJ G					
15	David Phillips	LO	UNSW Rodman Androw I	4/274	<b>50</b>	North Sydney	133 3/35	40.2
	North		Redman, Andrew J Nguyen, Sam James A D	94* 47	(100) (49)	Tuckfield,Hugo F Charlwood,Alexander G	3/35 2/7	8 7
			Gavan, Joshua P	46	(50)	Lupton, John C	2/38	8
		<b>.</b> .	Melnyk, Anthony B	29	(58)	Samarasinghe,Chamath S	1/9	6.2
	Captain:		vood, Alexander G (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:	vvin or	1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)					

#### **BATTING - 5th Grade 2015/2016**

 Overs Faced:
 873.4

 Runs Scored For:
 2744

 Wickets Lost:
 155

 Average / Wicket:
 17.70

 Balls / Wicket:
 33.82

 Runs / Over:
 3.14

Highest Score For: 4/274 vs North Sydney (Rd15)
Lowest Score For: 63 vs Sydney University (Rd12)

Lowest Score For:				versity (													
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Redman, Andrew J	3	3	1	94*	164	82.00	2	-	64.82	13	4	-	6	-	-	1	404
Mulvenna, Daniel R	9.5	12	3	75*	321	35.67	1	-	54.31	38	6	10			-	1	626
Muraleedaran,Krijan	5	6	-	75	184	30.67	2	-	49.33	19	2	3			-	-	324
Crichton, Samuel L S	2	4	1	48*	81	27.00	-	-	130.65	12	3	3			-	1	231
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	4	4	1	32*	74	24.67	-	-	55.64	6	2	1			-	-	209
Stening, Hamish F	3	3	-	41	73	24.33	-	-	41.24	7	-	2			-	-	113
De Soysa,Shevantha T	4.5	4	-	82	87	21.75	1	-	70.73	14	-	2			-	-	182
Voleti, Aditya	6	7	-	73	152	21.71	1	-	51.35	5	2	-			-	-	197
Gavan, Joshua P	6	8	-	46	159	19.88	-	-	58.67	14	6	1			-	1	199
Hood, Philip J	7	8	-	93	155	19.38	1	-	49.68	12	6	1			-	-	210
Coleman, Andrew J	2.5	3	-	28	54	18.00	-	-	50.47	3	2	-	5	-	-	-	224
Tanner, Nivek D	6	8	1	39	123	17.57	-	-	32.11	5	-	2			-	-	343
Tripathi, Abhishek	6	4	-	23	59	14.75	-	-	77.63	5	1	-			-	-	129
Gunning, Pyke O L	5	6	-	27	87	14.50	-	-	42.23	6	-	3			-	1	367
Tan,Jonathan J H	3	3	-	27	34	11.33	-	-	56.67	4	-	-			-	-	94
Melnyk, Anthony B	13.5	16	-	30	171	10.69	-	-	37.34	15	-	4			-	1	681
Mack,Katie M	8	9	-	38	92	10.22	-	-	30.07	6	-	-			-	1	152
Bascaran, Kabilan	4	4	1	26	27	9.00	-	-	75.00	3	1	-	7	2	-	-	282
Charlwood, Alexander G	12	12	3	35	77	8.56	-	-	37.56	10	2	4			-	-	1052
Lupton, John C	12.5	12	2	17	61	6.10	-	-	28.77	5	1	2			-	-	581
Ferrara, Alex	2	3	-	15	17	5.67	-	-	24.64	-	-	1			-	-	47
Byrnes, Thomas A	5.5	7	1	10	25	4.17	-	-	14.71	1	-	-	15	-	-	2	465
Geraghty, Fionn P	3	4	-	8	14	3.50	-	-	29.17	-	-	-			-	-	14
Dickens, Jethro P	5	4	1	4*	4	1.33	-	-	23.53	-	-	2			-	-	154
Tuckfield, Hugo F	13	12	4	5*	10	1.25	-	-	10.20	-	-	3			-	-	690
Also Batted:																	
Nguyen,Sam James A D	1	1	-	47	47	47.00	-	-	95.92	5	2	-			-	-	57
Roach, Jack P	1	1	-	22	22	22.00	-	-	64.71	1	2	2			-	-	62
Letton, Benjamin J	1	1	-	11	11	11.00	-	-	47.83	1	-	-			-	-	11
Mellick, Joshua M	1	1	-	4	4	4.00	-	-	20.00	1	-	-			-	-	14
Senaratha, Nikhil R A	1	1	-	3	3	3.00	-	-	8.11	-	-	1			-	-	23
Ward, Anthony L	2	2	1	3*	3	3.00	-	-	21.43	-	-	2			-	-	143
Lucas,Sam R E	1.5	1	-	1	1	1.00	-	-	5.88	-	-	1			-	1	51
Lawrence, Ronald Jnr B	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	_			-	-	-
Howard,Oscar G H	1	1	1	50*	50	-	1	_	142.86	6	4	-			_	-	80
Samarasinghe, Chamath S	i i	i	1	15*	15	_		_	187.50	2	i	-			_	-	45
Hoque,Saief	1	1	1	2*	2	_	_	_	66.67	-	-	_			_	_	2
Gilmore,Angus H	1		-	-	-	_	-	_	-	_	-	2			_	-	70
Garland, Matthew B J	0.5	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	-			_	_	20
Extras					282												_0

NOTE:DR Mulvenna's 10 catches was the most taken by a fieldsman in SCA 5th Grade for 2015/2016

#### **BOWLING - 5th Grade 2015/2016**

 Overs Bowled:
 824.2

 Runs Scored Against:
 2730

 Wickets Taken:
 141

 Average / Wicket:
 19.36

 Balls / Wicket:
 35.08

 Runs / Over:
 3.31

Runs / Over:
Highest Score Against:
Jowest Score Against:
Highest Score Against:
Jowest Score Against:
Jowest

Lowest Score Against:	126 vs M	anly Wa	rringah	(Rd7)							
Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Charlwood, Alexander G	164	40	29	428	7/36	14.76	2.61	33.93	1	6	1
Melnyk, Anthony B	95.1	22	17	273	3/9	16.06	2.87	33.59	-	8	-
Lupton, John C	112	23	20	336	3/13	16.80	3.00	33.60	-	88	1
Ward, Anthony L	28.3	3	5	91	2/28	18.20	3.19	34.20	-	4	-
Tuckfield,Hugo F	145.4	22	24	504	4/46	21.00	3.46	36.42	-	24	3
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	27	3	4	109	3/31	27.25	4.04	40.50	-	10	4
Dickens,Jethro P	56.4	8	5	200	2/16	40.00	3.53	68.00	-	7	-
Tripathi, Abhishek	42.3	5	3	159	2/55	53.00	3.74	85.00	-	15	-
Also Bowled:											
Gilmore,Angus H	1	-	1	3	1/3	3.00	3.00	6.00	-	-	-
Gunning,Pyke O L	20	3	7	46	3/6	6.57	2.30	17.14	-	7	1
Samarasinghe,Chamath S	6.2	2	1	9	1/9	9.00	1.42	38.00	-	4	-
Tanner, Nivek D	22	3	6	79	3/19	13.17	3.59	22.00	-	6	2
Crichton,Samuel L S	20	3	4	69	2/13	17.25	3.45	30.00	-	1	2
Tan,Jonathan J H	14	5	2	38	2/17	19.00	2.71	42.00	-	7	-
Garland,Matthew B J	11	2	1	27	1/27	27.00	2.45	66.00	-	1	-
Mack,Katie M	12	-	2	66	1/15	33.00	5.50	36.00	-	3	5
Lucas,Sam R E	8	-	1	33	1/33	33.00	4.13	48.00	-	-	1
Howard,Oscar G H	9	1	1	45	1/24	45.00	5.00	54.00	-	4	-
Mulvenna,Daniel R	25.3	1	2	125	1/21	62.50	4.90	76.50	-	3	2
Muraleedaran,Krijan	3	-	-	8	0/8	-	2.67	-	-	-	-
Hoque,Saief	1	-	-	22	0/22	-	22.00	-	-	-	-
Absent			1								
Extras				58							

#### PARTNERSHIPS - 5th Grade 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	15	North Sydney	1	Gavan, Joshua P	46	Mack,Katie M	17	74
2nd	6	Western Suburbs	1	Tanner, Nivek D	32	Muraleedaran,Krijan	75	79
	8	Sydney	1	Hood,Philip J	31	Stening, Hamish F	28	53
3rd	15	North Sydney	1	Nguyen,Sam James A D	47	Redman, Andrew J	94*	66
	6	Western Suburbs	1	Voleti, Aditya	31	Muraleedaran,Krijan	75	52
4th	2	St.George	1	Hood,Philip J	93	Mulvenna, Daniel R	27	112
	15	North Sydney	1	Melnyk, Anthony B	29	Redman, Andrew J	94*	107
	7	Manly Warringah	1	Muraleedaran,Krijan	56	Mulvenna, Daniel R	35	52
5th	11	Gordon	1	Melnyk,Anthony B	30	Mulvenna, Daniel R	46*	83
	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Redman, Andrew J	54	Melnyk,Anthony B	30	70
	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Stening,Hamish F	41	Voleti,Aditya	73	64
	5	Fairfield-Liverpool	1	Voleti,Aditya	30	Gunning,Pyke O L	23	59
6th	1	Bankstown	1	Bascaran, Kabilan	26	Mulvenna, Daniel R	9	36
7th	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Melnyk,Anthony B	24	Voleti,Aditya	73	57
8th	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Letton,Benjamin J	11	Tripathi, Abhishek	23	34
9th	7	Manly Warringah	1	Charlwood, Alexander G	35	Howard,Oscar G H	50*	72
	9	Parramatta	1	Charlwood, Alexander G	15	Mulvenna, Daniel R	75*	54
10th	1	Bankstown	1	Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	21	Charlwood, Alexander G	4*	22

NOTE: AG Charlwood & OGH Howard's 9th Wicket Partnership was the highest in the SCA 5th Grade for 2015/2016

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	18	-	297	16.50	6th	16	1	190	12.67
2nd	18	-	322	17.89	7th	15	-	226	15.07
3rd	18	-	362	20.11	8th	15	1	162	11.57
4th	18	-	481	26.72	9th	14	-	216	15.43
5th	17	1	424	26.50	10th	12	1	64	5.82

#### Poidevin Gray Shield Report

The 2015/16 season was a rollercoaster to say the least – ranging from the low point of coach Tim Lang threatening to quit as coach after the Penrith fixture to one of the most memorable victories against Manly-Warringah in Round 5. Much like previous years, the team showed tremendous promise at times, however we were unable to display the consistency and discipline needed to crack the top 8 and land a finals berth. While this was disappointing considering the talented group of players we had, it was nonetheless an extremely enjoyable season for all involved. I look forward to next season as most of the players will again be eligible to play, and hopefully we can make history as the second team in UNSW's history to win the Poidevin-Gray competition.

Special thanks must go to coach Tim Lang for the leadership and direction he provided all season. I speak for the team when I say that his presence was always appreciated and his coaching style really did help to get the best out of all the players. A fine example of Langy's influence is shown through the spray he gave opening batsman Oli Batchelor after Round 1 against Sutherland. Despite being 1/0 at the time, Oli decided he would choose to reverse sweep Sutherland's opening bowler, only to spoon the ball to point and leave the team reeling at 2/0. Langy's stern words clearly impacted on Oli's attitude towards his batting, who from this point forward managed to score a massive 127 in Round 4 and also played a number of crucial innings in 2<sup>nd</sup> grade. Another mention must be given to Michael Rea, whose scoring was always exemplary despite the fact that he had no doubt always consumed in excess of 15 schooners the night before a game.

**Freddie Ruffell** – Freddie was one of 3 Englishman that joined our team for season 2015/16. Despite having hands like feet, Freddie showed real promise with the bat this season. This was particularly evident in his innings against Penrith where put us in a strong position at 0/70 off 9 overs, only for the team to then lost 6/9 off the next 10. Well batted boys.

**Oli Batchelor** – Oli was by far the most consistent and prolific run-scorer in the team this season. Despite his questionable batting in Round 1, Oli scored a magnificent 127 against Northern District in Round 4 and made consistent starts in all the other matches. He is a fine player with a big future, and hopefully he will be back at the club next year!

**Aadil Ali** – Aadil is an extremely exciting young prospect for Leicestershire and English cricket. His diverse stroke play allows him to score in all areas of the ground, and his aggression is intimidating for any team he faces. He played a number of important innings for us this year, particularly in his opening stand with Oli against Northern District where the pair posted 144 before Aadil was out for 71. I have no doubt that he will represent at the highest level and expect big things from him in the future.

**Lewin Maladay** – Lewin was awarded the PG's Player of the Year this year, and deservedly so. He contributed to the team not only with the bat and gloves, but also provided me with plenty of ideas as captain and leadership and professionalism among the group. I know Lewin has already started training for next season and I expect that he will really come into his own and have a massive season for the Bees.

**Connor Jackson** – Connor is a very bright cricketer; he has an impressive skill base and a desire to win. While Connor may not have amassed the runs this season that he did last year, he played a crucial knock in the middle order against Northern District which allowed us to post a formidable target. He also impressed in the field this year, with a number of crucial catches at important moments. His banter, however, needs much improvement.

**Nik Tsoukalas** – Nik is someone I really enjoy playing cricket with. Not only is he always positive, but more importantly he enjoys post-match frothies more than no other. Despite not scoring the amount of runs he probably would have liked, I have full confidence that Nik will play a massive role in our middle order next season and in the seasons to come!

**Gavin Ho** – Gav had an incredible season with the ball this year, especially in Round 1 against the eventual Premiers Sutherland. His control and variations were a handful for batsmen of all abilities, and on many occasions he helped control the game in the middle overs with his economic bowling. Gav is also a very explosive batsman and agile fielder and I have no doubt that he will continue to grow as a cricketer as the years go by.

**Hayden McLean** – Season 2015/16 was Doss Man's first season with the club, and he immediately made an impact. He was our most consistent bowler throughout the season, and delivered impressive performances against Manly, Blacktown and Sutherland in particular. He is also a very handy lower order

batsman and possesses a desire to win; a combination which I believe will see him keep improving as a cricketer for the Bees in the years to come.

**John Venianakis** – JV was incredible both in PG's and grade cricket this season. His strong performances, particularly at the beginning of the year, resulted in his selection in the NSW U19's Metro Team that went onto win the National Championships. As captain, it is an absolute privilege to have players like John in the team as he is a genuine wicket taker that can strike at any time. I have no doubt that John will have an incredible career at the Bees, and will potentially play higher honours if he puts his mind to it.

**Declan White** – DeckChair was also selected in the NSW U19's Metro Team, and this is no surprise considering the talent that this young man possesses. I have never played with a bowler quite as skillful and crafty as Declan, and he consistently got our team off to good starts by taking early wickets this year. Declan's impressive season saw him play a NSW 2<sup>nd</sup> XI game and I know that another strong season could see him in line to take out a NSW Rookie Contract sooner rather than later. Well done Dec!

**Sid Shankar** – the middle overs specialist. Sid is an extremely consistent bowler that was important for our team this year. Despite the fact that he didn't play every game, he made significant contributions in those he did play. His ability to keep things tight during the middle overs was instrumental in our victory over Northern District in Round 4. Sid has been an important member of our PG's team over the past couple of seasons and he will definitely be missed next year.

#### MARCUS ATALLAH

MATCH	SUMMARIES - Poide	evin-Gray Shield 2015/2016					
Rd	Venue	Fmt Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
PG1	Village Green	LO Sutherland	9/222	50	UNSW	169	46
	_	McLean, Hayden C	3/42	10	Ali,Aadil M	44	(58)
		Ho,Gavin T	2/25	10	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	32	(46)
		White, Declan O D	2/59	10			
	Captain:	Atallah, Marcus A (Toss: Lost)					
	Result:	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)					
PG2	Allan Border Oval	LO Mosman			UNSW		
	Captain:	Atallah, Marcus A (Toss: N/A)					
	Result:	No Result (0 points) - Washed Out					
PG3	Howell Oval	LO UNSW	152	48.2	Penrith	3/153	34.3
		Batchelor, Oliver R	43	(103)	Ho,Gavin T	1/23	6
		Ruffell,Freddie W A	38	(35)			
		McLean,Hayden C	20*	(57)			
	Captain:	Atallah, Marcus A (Toss: Won)					
	Result:	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)					
PG4	Village Green	LO UNSW	5/290	50	Northern Districts	9/237	50
		Batchelor, Oliver R	127	(127)	Atallah,Marcus A	4/44	10
		Ali,Aadil M	71	(89)	Venianakis, John A	3/29	7
		Jackson,Connor S	51	(48)			
	Captain:	Atallah, Marcus A (Toss: Won)					
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)					
PG5	Village Green	LO UNSW	141	41.1	Manly Warringah	125	43.3
		Maladay,Lewin R	25	(51)	Venianakis, John A	3/14	7
		McLean,Hayden C	21	(46)	McLean,Hayden C	3/16	10
		Batchelor, Oliver R	20	(34)	White, Declan O D	2/36	8.3
	Captain:	Atallah, Marcus A (Toss: Won)					
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)					
PG6	Joe McAleer	LO Blacktown	74	24.5	UNSW	1/77	10
	Oval	Atallah, Marcus A	3/1	2	Atallah,Marcus A	31*	(25)
		McLean,Hayden C	3/20	7			
		White, Declan O D	3/21	8.5			
	Captain:	Atallah, Marcus A (Toss: Won)					
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)					

# BATTING - Poidevin-Gray Shield 2015/2016 Overs Faced: 195.3

Overs Faced. 199.3
Runs Scored For: 829
Wickets Lost: 36
Average / Wicket: 23.03
Balls / Wicket: 32.58
Runs / Over: 4.24
Highest Score For: 5/290

Highest Score For: 5/290 vs Northern Districts (PG4)
Lowest Score For: 141 vs Manly Warringah (PG5)

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Batchelor,Oliver R	5	5	1	127	209	52.25	-	1	71.09	27	-	1			-	-	359
McLean, Hayden C	5	4	2	21	66	33.00	-	-	43.14	3	-	1			-	2	411
Ali,Aadil M	5	5	-	71	152	30.40	1	-	83.52	18	4	1			-	-	227
Jackson, Connor S	5	4	-	51	86	21.50	1	-	83.50	5	-	2			-	-	181
Atallah, Marcus A	5	5	1	31*	59	14.75	-	-	75.64	7	-	2			-	-	384
Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	5	4	1	32	40	13.33	-	-	62.50	3	1	-			-	-	70
Maladay,Lewin R	5	4	-	25	42	10.50	-	-	50.00	4	-	-	11	1	1	1	492
Ho,Gavin T	5	3	-	13	30	10.00	-	-	42.25	3	1	2			-	1	170
White, Declan O D	5	3	-	15	25	8.33	-	-	38.46	1	-	4			-	-	325
Venianakis, John A	5	3	1	11*	14	7.00	-	-	35.90	1	-	-			-	-	274

Also Batted: Ruffell,Freddie W A	3	2	_	38	38	19.00	_	-	100.00	8	_	1	-	-	68
Jones, Dean N	1	1	1	5*	5	-	-	-	50.00	1	-	-	-	-	15
Shankar, Siddharth	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	30
Extras	•				63										

<sup>^</sup> Poidevin-Gray Shield points do not contribute to overall Club Player of the Year Points.

NOTE: LR Maladay's 12 Wicket Keeping Dismissals was the equal most taken in the PG Competition for 2015/2016

#### **BOWLING - Poidevin-Gray Shield 2015/2016**

Overs Bowled: 202.5 Runs Scored Against: 811 Wickets Taken: 41 Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: Runs / Over: 19.78 29.68 4.00

9/237 vs Northern Districts (PG4) 74 vs Blacktown (PG6) Highest Score Against:

Lowest Score Against:	74 VS DI	ackiow	11 (PG6)								
Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Venianakis, John A	29	1	9	119	3/14	13.22	4.10	19.33	-	7	2
McLean, Hayden C	42	4	10	146	3/16	14.60	3.48	25.20	-	6	1
Atallah, Marcus A	38	5	9	145	4/44	16.11	3.82	25.33	-	3	-
White, Declan O D	44.2	5	7	177	3/21	25.29	3.99	38.00	-	22	-
Ho,Gavin T	26	3	3	86	2/25	28.67	3.31	52.00	-	-	-
Also Bowled:											
Ali,Aadil M	12.3	1	-	73	0/16	-	5.84	-	-	2	-
Ruffell,Freddie W A	5	-	-	15	0/1	-	3.00	-	-	3	-
Shankar,Siddharth	4	-	-	23	0/23	-	5.75	-	-	-	3
Jones,Dean N	2	-	-	5	0/5	-	2.50	-	-	1	-
Extras	•			22							

#### PARTNERSHIPS - Poidevin-Gray Shield 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	PG4	Northern Districts	1	Ali,Aadil M	71	Batchelor,Oliver R	127	144
	PG3	Penrith	1	Ruffell,Freddie W A	38	Batchelor,Oliver R	43	69
2nd	PG6	Blacktown	1	Atallah, Marcus A	31*	Batchelor,Oliver R	19*	50*
3rd	PG1	Sutherland	1	Atallah, Marcus A	13	Ali,Aadil M	44	43
4th	PG4	Northern Districts	1	Batchelor,Oliver R	127	Jackson,Connor S	51	92
5th	PG1	Sutherland	1	Ali,Aadil M	44	Jackson,Connor S	15	15
6th	PG1	Sutherland	1	Jackson, Connor S	15	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	32	14
7th	PG1	Sutherland	1	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	32	Ho,Gavin T	13	33
8th	PG1	Sutherland	1	Ho,Gavin T	13	McLean,Hayden C	17	16
9th	PG1	Sutherland	1	McLean,Hayden C	17	Venianakis, John A	11*	21
10th	PG3	Penrith	1	White, Declan O D	15	McLean,Hayden C	20*	35

NOTE: AM Ali & OR Batchelor's 1st Wicket Partnership was the Highest in the PG Competition for 2015/2016

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	V	Vkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	5	-	279	55.80		6th	4	1	34	11.33
2nd	5	1	73	18.25	-	7th	3	-	73	24.33
3rd	4	-	78	19.50		3th	3	-	32	10.67
4th	4	-	142	35.50	9	9th	3	-	29	9.67
5th	4	-	29	7.25	1	0th	3	-	60	20.00

#### **AW GREEN SHIELD REPORT**

After some positive performances last season and with many of our young guns returning for last season our coaching staff and squad were looking forward to being highly competitive during the 2015/16 Green Shield season.

I enjoyed the difficult task of putting together our squad and with unprecedented numbers at our net trials during July and August I was keen to see what this quality group of young cricketers could produce. I selected a 15 man squad with 5 development players also being added to gain experience and exposure to the UNSW Green Shield programme.

We kicked our season off against the fancied Mosman team at the Village Green. Our skipper Pranesh de Silva won the toss and elected to bat on a typical VG surface. Our openers Jack Attenborough and Krijan Muraleedaran got the young Bees off to a flyer – 0/55 off 12. Spin was produced and this is where we become unstuck. Unfortunately, this was the pattern of our Green Shield season. We bumbled our way to 153 with Krijan top scoring with 35. This was never going to be enough and we were defeated by 4 wickets inside 36 overs. Young quick Yushan Gunewardhane was the pick of our bowlers with 4 wickets

I spoke to the boys after the loss and explained this performance wasn't up to standard and things needed to changed quickly if we were to be any chance of being competitive in future rounds. We needed our senior batsman to aim up and take plenty of the responsibility. I talked about how we would come up against some quality spinners in the games to come. Batsman needed to work out their individual plan to play the spinners effectively. There needed to be more intent shown and the bad ball needed to be punished early in a spinners spell.

Unfortunately, we were very disappointing against some quality spinners throughout the competition and this is one skill area that will need to be improved on if we are to compete in future seasons.

After a number of frustrating washouts our best performance came against Fairfield-Liverpool. Our bowling attack did a job on the young Lions skittling them for just 70. All our bowlers were impressive with Tanner, Gunawardhane, Bryson and Wu all picking up 2 wickets. We then knocked the runs off with relative ease and gained a bonus point in the process. Krijan finished 27 not out while De Silva made a classy 21.

The boys were pumped and our rendition of the 'The Grundler' was average but full of passion and laughter. This was no doubt the highlight of our season!!

All-rounder Nivek Tanner was awarded Green Shield Player of the Year for a good Green Shield season. Due to a number of washouts Nivek finished with 72 runs @ 18 with a highest score of 44 and took 9 wickets @ 12.4 with a best of 5-22. Congratulations Nivek.

What is exciting is that we have many of this group returning next season. We will be looking to the like of Nivek, fast bowler Yushan Gunawardhane, wicket keeper Tom Byrnes and batsman Josh Mellick, Alex Ferrara and Jack Attenborough to lead the way next season. These boys have been in the system for a few years now and its time they stood up and produced for their team and club.

**Pranesh de Silva (C)** – Pranesh should be very proud of the way he led his team in what was a difficult season at times. He produced some classy knocks without making a big score. His captaincy was thoughtful and thorough and I know he was very well respected by his peers. One of the best fielders in the competition!

**Matthew Bryson (VC)** - The veteran of our squad has been there and done it all before. Bryso showed us glimpses of what he can do with bat and ball. His 5/22 against Penrith was first class while he continues to develop his batting skills. Matthew will no doubt progress through the grade ranks in the years to come.

**Jack Attenborough** – Jack showed us that he is very well equipped to be a quality top order bat in future seasons. He displays a very good technique and temperament for such a young lad and will score heavily for the Bees in the years to come. Jack just needs to expand his game and show a little bit more intent in the 50 overs format of the game.

**Tom Byrnes** – Unfortunately, Tommy only played one game during the campaign due to Ben Fely taking the wicket keeping duties. His attitude towards his cricket is simply outstanding and work ethic is second

to none. We look forward to seeing Tommy have a big 2016/17 season in the black and gold. Super impressive wicket keeper!

**Ben Fely** – Ben arrived from Canberra during the off season and his trial form was very good. He was given the responsibility of wicket keeper duties and middle order batsman. I thought Ben did a quality job as keeper but he didn't get going with the bat in his hand. Ben has a tremendous work ethic, is very keen to learn and displays some quality leadership skills. Let's hope he decides to return to UNSW to play grade cricket.

**Yushan Gunawardhane** – Highly impressive young fast bowler who at only 14 years of age had most opposition batsman ducking for cover. Yushan bowled with good pace and aggression with his best haul being 4-54 against premiers Mosman. This is one player to keep your eye on. Future prospects look very bright. Nothing better than seeing an angry fast bowler go about his work.

**Jack Hardwicke-Owen** –After a good finish to the previous season we were looking for Jack to star for us. Jack couldn't quite get his all-round skills together and it proved to be a frustrating campaign for him. Outstanding lad who I hope can continue to play grade cricket with UNSW.

**Jack Willis** – Jack didn't get any game time throughout the season but there is no doubt he will prove to be a quality contributor over the coming Green Shield seasons.

**Jeremy Vanos** – The character of the group. Brings a heap of energy with him and some of his banter is second to none. Showed us glimpses of what he is capable of. Unfortunately, we didn't make enough big scores as a team to enable his leg spinners to come into the game. Talented player who should continue to develop as a leg spinning all-rounder.

**Josh Mellick** – Another local junior who will no doubt perform strongly next year after having two seasons of Green Shield under his belt. Produced a fine spell of leg spin bowling against Randwick–Petersham to claim 3/26. Couldn't get it going with the bat but I'm sure with another years development we will see him flourish in next seasons competition as the go to leg spinner and hard hitter middle order batsman.

**Krijan Muraleedaran** – This stylish left hander was by far and away our best batsman scoring 139 runs at 34.8. He would have liked to kick on a make a couple of big scores after many good starts. Quality athlete in the field and hand left arm medium bowler. Highly skillful cricketer who will force his way through the grades over the coming years.

**Ben Page** – Outstanding young man and a delight to have in the team. Produced two good spells of off spin bowling against Mosman and Campbelltown–Camden but suffered because of our batting group not scoring heavily enough. Let's hope Pagey can stay with the bees and play some handy grade cricket.

**Nivek Tanner** – Nivek was awarded the Green Shield Player of the Year for a good all-round season. Highly talented young cricketer who bowls decent out swingers and a hard hitter top order batsman of the highest quality. Nivek just needs to play more cricket and develop his game mentally and I'm sure we will see him playing 1<sup>st</sup> grade cricket in the not too distant future. With another season of Green Shield left, Nivek should be one of the most dominant players in the competition.

**Alex Ferrara** – Played two games during the campaign and showed his steely determination with a gritty 26 under pressure against Randwick-Petersham. Has obvious talent as an off spin bowler and should work hard to develop this skill along with his batting to become an important player for UNSW during next seasons competition.

**Ryan Wu** – Ryan brought plenty of buzz and banter to the group with his funky cricketing mentality. Bowled some really good spells of bowling with his Jimmy Anderson like action with a best of 2/13 against Fairfield-Liverpool. Let's hope The 'Wu Man' can stick around a play some quality grade cricket for the club.

I would like to thank David Dawson and Michael Rea for assisting in the Green Shield selection trials. It's always a difficult task in turning 70 cricketers into a squad of 15 each winter. Thanks for giving up your valuable time on Sunday mornings to help me select our squad.

Big thanks to our scorers Michelle Attenborough (Jacks mum), Janelle Carew and Peter Byrnes who were fantastic support for the club during the season. I'm blessed to have such awesome people like you around to make my life much easier on game days.

Huge thank you to all the parents for your support during the season. It was a pleasure to meet you all and spend time chatting on game days. Sorry we couldn't get more wins for you but unfortunately that's how competitive this Green Shield competition is. I would especially like to thank Kevin Tanner and Mark Mellick who were organizers of the home ground lunches/teas and were always offering to lend a hand on game days. Your help and generosity was first class.

And finally well done and thank you to all players involved!! The commitment and attitude you all showed throughout the campaign was of the highest order. I had a thoroughly enjoyable time coaching you all. I trust that you all learnt a thing or two and took plenty of positives out of the season.

I wish all the older boys a successful transition into grade cricket with UNSW and whatever career path you decide to choose into the future. Work hard at your cricket but most of all make sure you are always enjoying playing our great game.

I'm moving on after three seasons as Green Shield coach. I want to wish the new coaching staff all the best and I hope to see our boys performing strongly over the next few seasons. Best of luck to new Head Coach Sutha and to Dawso who will be his assistant. I hope I've left you guys a strong legacy to continue to work off.

Remember boys - whenever you put the mighty bumblebee on you head, wear it with the upmost pride and show plenty of fight and courage in every contest you take part in.

# TIM LANG UNSW GREEN SHIELD - HEAD COACH

MATCH SUMN	MARIES - A.W.	. Green Shield	2015/2016

Rd	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
GS1	Village Green	LO	UNSW	153	48.5	Mosman	6/154	36
	_		Muraleedaran,Krijan	35	(46)	Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	4/54	10
						Muraleedaran,Krijan	1/10	4
	Captain:	de Silv	a,Pranesh D (Toss : Won)			•		
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					
GS2	David Phillips	LO	UNSW	9/171	50	Campbelltown-Camden	8/175	48.3
	North		Tanner, Nivek D	44	(62)	Tanner, Nivek D	5/22	10
			de Silva, Pranesh D	25	(63)	Bryson,Matthew T	1/25	7
			Muraleedaran, Krijan	23	(35)	-		
	Captain:	de Silv	a,Pranesh D (Toss : Lost)		. ,			
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					
GS3	Glenn McGrath Oval	LO	Sutherland			UNSW		
	Captain:	de Silv	a,Pranesh D (Toss: N/A)					
	Result:	No Re	sult (0 points) - Washed Out					
	Mark Taylor Oval		Northern Districts			UNSW		
	Captain:	de Silv	a,Pranesh D (Toss: N/A)					
	Result:	No Re	sult (0 points) - Washed Out					
GS5	Petersham Oval	LO	Randwick-Petersham	191	50	UNSW	161	46.2
			Mellick, Joshua M	3/26	10	de Silva,Pranesh D	26	(43)
			Wu,Ryan	2/24	5	Ferrara, Alex	26	(63)
			Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	1/17	3	Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	21	(38)
	Captain:	de Silv	a,Pranesh D (Toss : Lost)					, ,
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					
GS6	Rosedale Oval	LO	Fairfield-Liverpool	70	31.5	UNSW	2/71	21.4
			Bryson, Matthew T	2/6	3.5	Muraleedaran, Krijan	27*	(65)
			Tanner, Nivek D	2/11	9	de Silva, Pranesh D	21	(45)
			Wu,Ryan	2/13	4			` '
			Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	2/15	8			
	Captain:	de Silv	a, Pranesh D (Toss: Won)					
	Result:	Win or	1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)					
GS7	Village Green		Penrith	178	42	UNSW	6/113	37
	•		Bryson,Matthew T	5/31	9	Muraleedaran,Krijan	43	(64)
			Muraleedaran,Krijan	1/6	2	de Silva, Pranesh D	33	(80)
	Captain:	de Silv	a,Pranesh D (Toss: Lost)			.,		()
	Result:			nings Rain R	educed	to 37 Overs. Duckworth-Lewis Ta	arget: 129	

#### BATTING - A.W. Green Shield 2015/2016

Overs Faced: Runs Scored For: 669 37 Wickets Lost: 18.08 33.05 Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: Runs / Over: 3.28

Highest Score For: 9/171 vs Campbelltown-Camden (GS2)

Lowest Score For: 153 vs Mosman (GS1)

Lowest ocole i ol.	100 (	o ivios	man (C	101)													
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Muraleedaran,Krijan	5	5	1	43	139	34.75	-	-	60.70	12	-	2			1	-	249
Ferrara, Alex	2	2	1	26	27	27.00	-	-	33.75	3	-	-			-	-	27
de Silva, Pranesh D	5	5	-	33	109	21.80	-	-	45.61	3	-	2			-	-	179
Tanner, Nivek D	5	5	1	44	72	18.00	-	-	52.94	10	-	2			-	1	412
Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	5	3	-	21	43	14.33	-	-	59.72	1	1	4			-	-	153
Wu,Ryan	5	3	1	19*	22	11.00	-	-	78.57	2	-	-			-	1	162
Attenborough, Jack R K	3	3	-	17	30	10.00	-	-	20.98	-	-	2			-	-	80
Fely,Benjamin L	5	4	-	19	38	9.50	-	-	55.88	4	-	-	8	1	-	1	263
Bryson, Matthew T	5	4	-	19	37	9.25	-	-	35.58	5	-	1			-	-	327
Vanos, Jeremy A	5	3	1	10	13	6.50	-	-	27.08	1	-	1			1	-	103
Mellick, Joshua M	5	4	-	6	13	3.25	-	-	20.63	-	-	2			-	-	148
Also Batted:																	
Byrnes, Thomas A	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-			-	-	-
Page,Benjamin P	4	2	2	6*	8	-	-	-	33.33	-	-	2			-	1	88
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	5	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-	-	-	-	2			-	-	240
Extras	•				118												

<sup>^</sup> Green Shield points do not contribute to overall Club Player of the Year Points.

# BOWLING - A.W. Green Shield 2015/2016 Overs Bowled:

208.2 Runs Scored Against: 768 Wickets Taken: 44 Average / Wicket: 17.45 Balls / Wicket: 28.41 Runs / Over: 3.69

191 vs Randwick-Petersham (GS5) 70 vs Fairfield-Liverpool (GS6) Highest Score Against: Lowest Score Against:

Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Bryson,Matthew T	26.5	4	8	99	5/31	12.38	3.69	20.13	1	7	3
Tanner, Nivek D	44	12	9	112	5/22	12.44	2.55	29.33	1	6	1
Wu,Ryan	22	2	6	91	2/13	15.17	4.14	22.00	-	10	1
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	40.3	4	7	157	4/54	22.43	3.88	34.71	-	28	1
Also Bowled:											
Mellick, Joshua M	10	3	3	26	3/26	8.67	2.60	20.00	-	4	-
Muraleedaran,Krijan	12	2	2	34	1/6	17.00	2.83	36.00	-	4	-
Vanos, Jeremy A	11	1	2	60	1/10	30.00	5.45	33.00	-	1	1
de Silva, Pranesh D	11	-	1	45	1/32	45.00	4.09	66.00	-	4	1
Page,Benjamin P	14	2	1	52	1/33	52.00	3.71	84.00	-	3	-
Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	17	4	1	80	1/17	80.00	4.71	102.00	-	7	1
Extras				12							

#### PARTNERSHIPS - A.W. Green Shield 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	lnn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	GS1	Mosman	1	Muraleedaran,Krijan	35	Attenborough, Jack R K	11	55
2nd	GS7	Penrith	1	Muraleedaran,Krijan	43	de Silva,Pranesh D	33	69
3rd	GS5	Randwick-Petersham	1	de Silva, Pranesh D	26	Tanner, Nivek D	15	22
4th	GS2	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Tanner, Nivek D	44	de Silva, Pranesh D	25	46
5th	GS5	Randwick-Petersham	1	Tanner, Nivek D	15	Fely,Benjamin L	19	18
6th	GS1	Mosman	1	Fely,Benjamin L	18	Bryson,Matthew T	19	21
7th	GS2	Campbelltown-Camden	1	de Silva,Pranesh D	25	Vanos,Jeremy A	10	20
8th	GS5	Randwick-Petersham	1	Hardwicke-Owen,Jack	21	Ferrara,Alex	26	49
9th	GS1	Mosman	1	Wu,Ryan	2	Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	18	5
10th	GS2	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Page,Benjamin P	6*	Wu,Ryan	19*	28*

NOTE: J Hardwicke-Owen & A Ferrara's 8th Wicket Partnership was the highest in the AWGS Competition for 2015/2016.

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	5	-	142	28.40	6th	4	-	45	11.25
2nd	5	-	162	32.40	7th	4	1	50	16.67
3rd	5	1	55	13.75	8th	3	-	67	22.33
4th	4	-	57	14.25	9th	3	-	6	2.00
5th	4	-	47	11.75	10th	3	1	38	19.00

# METROPOLITAN CUP (BLACK) REPORT



Round 6 of the Metropolitan Cup at David Phillips North

A very rare intra-club derby as Black took on Gold in a Metro grudge match. All smiles at the toss between Garlo and Muz for what turned out to be a very close match. After a Jonno Tan century for Black, it was a tense run-chase by Gold. But with no one going on to post a big score, Gold fell 19 runs short.

This season saw the club field two Metropolitan Cup sides. I had the honour and privilege to be selected to captain "Metro Black". This side was made up from both young and more mature players (like myself joining the 50+ club mid season) and over the course of the season we developed into a quality side with all players contributing to our success. During the season we used a total of 29 players.

Our core playing group of 12 players were the foundation for us placing 4th after the completion of the regular season. This was particular pleasing as we missed 3 matches due to grounds being unfit for play whilst other matches were completed. There was a great deal of "Banter" between all of us which contributed to it being a fun and successful season. The semi final was not our finest two days with Penrith putting on 512 to end our grand final dreams. To the teams credit we kept our sense of humour and came out swinging only to be dismissed for a disappointing 83!!

To my team, thanks for your efforts and the great cricket you were able to produce. Hope you all return for another season with UNSWCC.

#### The Players

**Oscar Howard-** Outstanding season with the ball. 37 wickets including 3 five wicket halls and a double hatrick! This thanks to Mr Janzen, got him on the front page of the Wentworth Courier! Every week he would toil for the team and got the success he deserved. His pace and consistency made him difficult for opposition players to deal with. His only failing was he was from Cranbrook!!

**Anthony Ward**- Wardy or Tony as he is known took his leg spin to a new level this season taking 30 wickets for us and is now arguably the best bowler in his family!! He had a number of match winning performances for us with both bat and ball, and his banter was well received by opposition and teammates alike.

**Nick Janzen** – Janzo returned to UNSWCC after a number of seasons in the wilderness. He raised the age demographic and his leg spin and lower order batting improved throughout the season. He was sorely missed during January and his dressing room antics and constant pestering of opposition batmen was infectious. Great to have you back!! Still waiting for that ice cream slice!!

**Fionn Geraghty-** Had a tough start to the season struggling for runs at the top of the order. When slotted into the middle order he gained some confidence and looked solid. His fielding both in the deep and in

close was fantastic. He is an asset to any side. A big thank you to his mum Sue who keeps our bellies full wither amazing gourmet pies and rolls during tea at each home game.

**John Tan**- Johno had a consistent season with the bat, his top score being a century at DP North against USWCC Black. His straight six off Garlo he said is a career highlight! Our resident fines master takes no prisoners in the aftermath of wins or loses!

**Agnish Nayak**- consistently our best fieldsmen with great hands in close. Hid his bowling talent from us until the semi final! Agars is the only player I have ever played with that was late for every game! He even missed the captain's century after arriving over and hour late!

**Nikhil Senaratha**- our opening bat. Consistently spent time in the middle taking the shine off the new ball. His understanding of the rules around "runners" needs work and the taking of small plastic bags with plant material through security into an army barracks is not to be overlooked!

**Alan Xu-** Another solid season for "Zooey". His passion and commitment was unwavering and his weekly dressing room updates on his love life were not to be missed. A late season job opportunity saw us lose him to Canberra. Our loss is Canberra's nightclubs gain!

**Ronnie Lawrence**- Came into the side mid season and gave us some experience in the top order. His 99 v Gordon helped us draw that unwinnable match. It was a pleasure to have the "Two Ronnies" on board for our run to the finals.

**Vinod Karunasinghe -** Our youngest team mate and a real contributor with both bat and ball. His 151 ball 26 against Gordon got us a much needed draw. His mum's curry jaffles were a highlight. Keep working hard on all aspects of your game.

**Jethro Dickens**- Opening bowler who came on board for our run to the finals. Has improved his line and pace over this season and makes the batsmen earn every run. His century (bowling) and the raising of the ball to the crowd during the semi final gave us all a laugh when we were really demoralised.

**Murray Stanton-** Consistent season scoring over 300 runs. He registered his first century for the club (120no v Hawkesbury) and completed 23 dismissals as our keeper. His banter often left alot to be desired. Grandstand again knew all his stats and would tell anyone who would listen!!

To the other 17 players who turned out for "Black" this season thank you. It is always difficult to create a team environment when your side in the most affected each round by changes in all the grades above you. To this groups credit we achieved that. A great bunch of blokes (and girl) to lead and I wish you all success in the seasons to follow.

Thanks to all the club committee for their mentoring and support. This club does not function without the tireless efforts of these often unseen volunteers. Well done.

# MURRAY STANTON

MATO	H SUMMARIES	- Metropolitan Cup - Black 2015/2	<u>016</u>				
Rd	Venue	Fmt Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	David Phillips	LO UNSW (Black)			Randwick-Petersham (Gold)		
	Captain:	Stanton, Murray J (Toss: N/A)					
	Result:	No Result (0 points) - Washed Out					
2	Snape Park	LO UNSW (Black)	7/169	45	Sydney	166	44.3
	-	Gunning, Pyke O L	70*	(87)	Ward, Anthony L	3/24	8.3
		Voleti, Aditya	22	(66)	Gunning, Pyke O L	2/24	4
		•			Janzen, Nicholas R	2/32	9
	Captain:	Stanton, Murray J (Toss: Lost)					
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)					
3	David Phillips	2D UNSW (Black)	258	74.4	Blacktown	223	69.2
	North	Senaratha, Nikhil R A	53	(124)	Howard, Oscar G H	5/30	17
		Voleti, Aditya	48	(120)	Karunasinghe, Vinod	1/28	9
		Janzen, Nicholas R	38	(59)	3 1,		
		Stanton.Murray J	37	(46)			
	Captain:	Stanton, Murray J (Toss: Won)		( -/			
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)					
4	Rance Oval	2D Penrith	8/300 d.	70	UNSW (Black)	64	43.2
		Janzen, Nicholas R	3/70	18	Makin,Ryan W	18	(33)
		Ward, Anthony L	2/49	13			` ,
		Howard, Oscar G H	2/65	19			
		•			(2nd Inns)	7/60	28
					Xu,Alan	19	(53)
	Captain:	Stanton, Murray J (Toss: Lost)			•		` ,
	Result:	Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)					
5	David Phillips	LO UNSW (Black)			Randwick-Petersham (Green)		
	Captain:	Janzen, Nicholas R (Toss: N/A)			, ,		
	Result:	No Result (0 points) - Day 1 Washed	Out. Non Sc	heduled	LO Match Day 2 (Washed Out)		
6	David Phillips	2D UNSW (Black)	186	55	UNSW (Gold)	167	77
	North	Tan,Jonathan J H	104	(140)	Howard, Oscar G H	3/34	20
		Janzen, Nicholas R	32	(36)	Janzen, Nicholas R	3/37	14
		,		` '	Tan, Jonathan J H	1/8	4
	Captain:	Stanton, Murray J (Toss: Won)			•		
	Result:	Win on 1st Innings (6 points)					

7	Bensons Lane 3	2D	Hawkesbur Janzen, Nich Tuckfield, Hu Ward, Antho Karunasingl (2nd Inns) Ward, Antho	nolas R ugo F ny L ne,Vinod		<b>79</b> 4/33 2/4 2/17 1/8 <b>6/182</b> 3/57	<b>41.2</b> 13 9 6.2 5 <b>56</b> 14		UNSW (BI Stanton,M Janzen,Nic	urray					<b>9/212</b> 120 23	)*	<b>56</b> (114) (19)
	Captain:		Melnyk,Anth n,Murray J (1	ony B oss : Los		1/15	9		" D o		4.1.						
	Result: David Phillips	Win on LO	1st Innings ( UNSW (Bla		Bracke	5/264	1: HF Tu <b>50</b>	ICK	Georges F		vlelny	K			18	n	40.1
0	South	LO	Xu,Alan	CK)		57	(125	5)	Ward, Anth						4/3		10
	•		Geraghty,Fi	onn P		41	(36)		Howard,O						4/4		9.1
			Stanton, Mu			36*	(30)										
	0	0	Nayak,Agni			36	(48)	)									
	Captain: Result:		n,Murray J (1 1st Innings (														
9	David Phillips	LO			151 )	97	34.2	2	UNSW (BI	ack)					6/10	00	29.1
	North		Bryson,Matt	hew T		4/13	6		Nayak, Agr	nish					23		(49)
			Howard,Osc			4/22	9.2		Bryson,Ma	tthew	T				23	*	(27)
	Captain: Result:		n,Murray J  (1 1st Innings (														
10	Balmoral Oval	2D	Mosman	o points +	101)	8/230 d.	. 73		UNSW (BI	ack)					16	6	36.2
			Howard,Osc	ar G H		5/55	23		Geraghty,	Fionn					49		(47)
	Ot-i	044-	Vanos,Jerei		- \	2/33	11		Lawrence,	Rona	ld Jnr	В			38	3	(58)
	Captain: Result:		n,Murray J(1 n 1st Innings			Washed C	Out 120 (	OV/6	er declaratio	on Ma	tch D	av 2					
11	Whalan 2		Blacktown	(o points)	Day	vvasilea e	Jul. 120 (	OVC	UNSW (BI		iton D	uy Z					
	Captain:		n,Murray J (1						`	,							
-10	Result:		sult (0 points)	- Washed	Out	400	40.5		LINOW (DI						40		20.5
12	Alexandria Park	2D	Sydney Howard,Osc	ar G H		<b>100</b> 5/24*	<b>48.5</b> 13.5		UNSW (BI Lawrence,		ld Inr	R			<b>12</b> 9		<b>39.5</b> (65)
	I alk		Karunasing			2/19	11	,	Stanton,M						24		(25)
			· ·						Senaratha		I R A				22		(60)
			(Ond Inna)			07	20		Nayak,Agr						20 <b>7/7</b>		(21)
			(2nd Inns) Janzen, Nich	olas R		<b>97</b> 5/27	<b>28</b> 9		(2nd Inns) Stanton,M		J				26		<b>20.3</b> (20)
			Howard,Osc			3/19	9		O to morn, m	uu,	•						(20)
	Captain:		n,Murray J (1														
	Result:		it Win after Le des a Double			ngs (10 po	ints)										
13	Rance Oval	LO	UNSW (Bla		,r.)	138	41.3	3	Penrith						6/13	39	36.2
			Karunasingl	ne,Vinod		35	(106	5)	Ward,Anth	ony L					6/2		9
	0	011	Ward, Antho			32*	(27)	)									
	Captain: Result:		n,Murray J(1 n 1st Innings		n)												
14	David Phillips	2D	Gordon	(0   0   110)		7/359 d	. 76		UNSW (BI	ack)					9/27	75	82
	South		Ward, Antho	ny L		4/83	17		Lawrence,			В			99		(125)
									Karunasing Ward, Anth						26 20		(151) (46)
									Senaratha						20		(69)
	Captain:		n,Murray J (1	oss : Los	t)												, ,
15	Result: Marrickville		D points) UNSW (Bla	ols)		9/208	50		Dandwick	Doto	robor	n (Cr	nan\		8/21	10	49.5
15	Oval	LO	Nayak,Agni			9/ <b>208</b> 48	(91)	١	Randwick Ward, Anth			n (Gre	en)		2/4		<b>49.5</b> 10
	- · · · ·		Janzen, Nich	iolas R		41*	(63)			, _					_, .	•	
		<b>.</b> .	Lawrence,R			27	(32)	)									
	Captain: Result:		n,Murray J(1 n 1st Innings		ገ)												
SF	Rance Oval	2D	Penrith	(o points)		515	130.	1	UNSW (BI	ack)					83	3	25.2
			Karunasingl			2/53	18		Stanton,M		J				21		(18)
			Howard,Osc			2/89	27		Janzen, Nic	cholas	s R				21	*	(36)
			Ward, Antho Nayak, Agni			2/112 1/0	27 1.1										
	Captain:	Stantor	n,Murray J (1		t)	170											
	Result:	Loss or	n 1st Innings														
BATT	ING - Metropolita	n Cup -	Black 201	5/2016													
Overs		676.4		<u> </u>													
	Scored For:	2382	!														
Wicket	s Lost: je / Wicket:	129 18.4	7														
	Wicket:	31.4															
Runs /		3.52															
	t Score For:		5 vs Gordon														
Name	t Score For:	Mts	Penrith (Rd.	HS	Runs	Avg	50 1	00	) S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
	nce,Ronald Jnr B	6	7 -	99	193	27.57	1	-	65.65	20	3	5			-	-	338
Janzer	,Nicholas R	10	11 4	41*	185	26.43	-	-	64.01	17	1	6			2	2	1019
	n,Murray J	13	15 3	120*	315	26.25		1	89.24	36	3	-	16	7	-	-	1004
	nathan J H nty,Fionn P	7 11	8 - 13 -	104 49	190 196	23.75 15.08	-	1	78.19 56.00	21 16	4	1 3			- 1	1	366 319
	Agnish	11	12 -	48	169	14.08	-	-	52.98	9	-	4			-	-	308
Xu,Ala	n	9	10 -	57	133	13.30	1	-	31.67	6	-	2			1	-	278
	Anthony L atha,Nikhil R A	12 9	11 4 10 -	32* 53	93 127	13.29	- 1	-	41.70	11 11	-	2 5			-	1 1	1060
	atna,Niknii R A d,Oscar G H	13	10 - 12 5	53 15	127 61	12.70 8.71	-	-	34.99 72.62	11 5	3	5 2			-	1	327 1306
Karuna	singhe,Vinod	12	11 1	35	81	8.10	-	-	17.53	4	-	5			-	1	410
Dicken	s,Jethro P	4	4 2	6	12	6.00	-	-	19.35	-	-	1			-	-	46

Also Batted:															
Stewart, Timothy J	1	1	-	31	31	31.00	-	-	96.88	3	1	1	-	-	61
Bryson,Matthew T	2	2	1	23*	30	30.00	-	-	78.95	2	1	-	-	-	180
Melnyk, Anthony B	1.5	2	1	17	29	29.00	-	-	43.94	3	-	1	-	-	109
Voleti,Aditya	3	3	-	48	73	24.33	-	-	35.10	6	-	-	-	-	103
Vanos, Jeremy A	1	1	-	12	12	12.00	-	-	75.00	-	-	1	-	-	72
Makin,Ryan W	1	2	-	18	22	11.00	-	-	56.41	3	-	1	-	-	62
Mack,Katie M	1	2	-	12	17	8.50	-	-	34.69	1	-	1	-	-	67
Stening,Hamish F	1	2	-	6	11	5.50	-	-	42.31	1	-	-	-	-	21
Karmakar,Bikram P	1	2	-	6	10	5.00	-	-	35.71	2	-	-	-	-	10
Furlong,Samuel P	1	1	-	5	5	5.00	-	-	71.43	1	-	-	-	-	15
Batey,Callum W	2	3	-	7	11	3.67	-	-	47.83	1	-	-	-	-	21
Rea,Michael P	1	2	1	2*	2	2.00	-	-	50.00	-	-	2	-	-	52
Lochner, Nicholas R	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	2	-	-	60
Clark,Bradley J	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	-
Kishor,Kamal	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	10
Jamil,Hassan	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	10
Gunning,Pyke O L	1	1	1	70*	70	-	1	-	80.46	3	-	1	-	-	165
Tripathi, Abhishek	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	40
Tuckfield,Hugo F	1.5	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	100
Stening,Thomas L	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	30
Extras					303										

# BOWLING - Metropolitan Cup - Black 2015/2016 Overs Bowled: 797.5

797.5 3044 Overs Bowled:
Runs Scored Against:
Wickets Taken:
Average / Wicket:
Balls / Wicket:
Runs / Over:
Highest Score Against:
Lowest Score Against:
Name 133 22.88 39.47 3.48

515 vs Penrith (SF) 79 vs Hawkesbury (Rd7)

Name	0	М	w	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Howard,Oscar G H	202.2	50	37	537	5/24	14.51	2.65	32.81	3	28	9
Ward, Anthony L	162.5	20	30	582	6/21	19.40	3.57	32.57	1	36	2
Janzen, Nicholas R	158	22	21	553	5/27	26.33	3.50	45.14	1	13	1
Karunasinghe, Vinod	111	20	10	389	2/19	38.90	3.50	66.60	-	32	-
Dickens, Jethro P	54.1	7	3	229	1/37	76.33	4.23	108.33	-	5	2
Also Bowled:											
Nayak,Agnish	1.1	1	1	0	1/0	0.00	0.00	7.00	-	-	-
Bryson,Matthew T	10	2	4	25	4/13	6.25	2.50	15.00	-	3	1
Tuckfield,Hugo F	18	9	3	24	2/4	8.00	1.33	36.00	-	1	-
Gunning, Pyke O L	4	-	2	24	2/24	12.00	6.00	12.00	-	15	-
Makin,Ryan W	4	1	1	13	1/13	13.00	3.25	24.00	-	1	-
Melnyk, Anthony B	19	8	2	30	1/15	15.00	1.58	57.00	-	-	2
Mack, Katie M	5	-	1	15	1/15	15.00	3.00	30.00	-	1	2
Vanos, Jeremy A	11	1	2	33	2/33	16.50	3.00	33.00	-	-	1
Stening,Thomas L	6	1	1	27	1/27	27.00	4.50	36.00	-	1	1
Tan,Jonathan J H	25.2	3	2	78	1/8	39.00	3.08	76.00	-	-	-
Lochner, Nicholas R	14	2	1	39	1/39	39.00	2.79	84.00	-	-	1
Tripathi, Abhishek	11	-	1	55	1/22	55.00	5.00	66.00	-	12	-
Geraghty,Fionn P	20	1	2	117	1/21	58.50	5.85	60.00	-	4	2
Rea,Michael P	8	1	-	13	0/13	-	1.63	-	-	1	1
Furlong,Samuel P	12	3	-	34	0/34	-	2.83	-	-	-	-
Kishor,Kamal	7	-	-	20	0/20	-	2.86	-	-	1	-
Stening, Hamish F	5	1	-	20	0/20	-	4.00	-	-	1	-
Jamil,Hassan	5	-	-	35	0/35	-	7.00	-	-	9	-
Xu,Alan	1	-	-	7	0/7	-	7.00	-	-	-	-
Extras	•			140							

# PARTNERSHIPS - Metropolitan Cup - Black 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	12	Sydney	1	Senaratha, Nikhil R A	22	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	27	46
2nd	14	Gordon	1	Karunasinghe, Vinod	26	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	99	115
	8	Georges River	1	Nayak, Agnish	36	Xu,Alan	57	62
3rd	3	Blacktown	1	Senaratha, Nikhil R A	53	Voleti,Aditya	48	88
	8	Georges River	1	Tan,Jonathan J H	32	Xu,Alan	57	61
4th	6	University of NSW (Gold)	1	Melnyk, Anthony B	17	Tan,Jonathan J H	104	54
5th	8	Georges River	1	Geraghty,Fionn P	41	Stanton, Murray J	36*	72
6th	7	Hawkesbury	1	Janzen, Nicholas R	23	Stanton, Murray J	120*	58
	3	Blacktown	1	Voleti,Aditya	48	Stanton, Murray J	37	51
7th	6	University of NSW (Gold)	1	Tan,Jonathan J H	104	Janzen, Nicholas R	32*	76
	15	Randwick-Petersham (Green)	1	Nayak,Agnish	48	Janzen, Nicholas R	41*	68
8th	3	Blacktown	1	Ward, Anthony L	12	Janzen, Nicholas R	38	36
9th	7	Hawkesbury	1	Voleti,Aditya	3	Stanton, Murray J	120*	38
10th	13	Penrith	1	Dickens,Jethro P	2	Ward, Anthony L	32*	25

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	15	-	251	16.73	6th	15	1	230	16.43
2nd	15	-	329	21.93	7th	14	1	332	25.54
3rd	15	-	333	22.20	8th	13	1	102	8.50
4th	15	-	233	15.53	9th	10	-	133	13.30
5th	15	-	307	20.47	10th	10	3	132	18.86

# METROPOLITAN CUP (GOLD) REPORT

Metro Gold finished 8<sup>th</sup> out of 12 with just three wins. Given the success of our sister side and the quality of our squad, it is fairly obvious that we all underperformed (including the captain, who was probably the worst offender). Our bowling consistently lacked penetration, even when away from what seems to be the constantly shrinking DP North and it is telling that we only claimed 10 wickets in an innings in three out of 14 games.

Our win/loss ratio would have dramatically improved had we claimed just a few more wickets at key moments. Honestly, the Mosman, Sydney, Hawkesbury and UNSW Black matches were all just one key wicket from being victories. But at times the team also showed great resilience and continued fighting from difficult positions. The Georges River and Hawkesbury matches stand out in this regard. In the former, we displayed a never-give-up attitude where we threatened an outright victory despite a 50+ run first innings deficit with only 40 overs remaining, and the latter revealed the players' mental fortitude to come within a boundary of winning after 120+ overs in the field in our Saturday/Sunday fixture.

Although polish and results were lacking, players' effort rarely was. And any praise for the players' attitude has to begin with allrounder and Captain's Consigliere, **Tim Stewart.** Tim would say that this was far from his best performing season (although the stats point to him as one of our best) but his level-headed counsel and stand-in captaincy were truly invaluable and it was great to have in the team.

Chamath Samarasinghe and Will Maisey were both ridiculously over-qualified for our Grade and it was only because of their unfortunate circumstances with injuries and, well, citizenship, that prevented them from playing higher. When fit, Chama was simply too good to take Metro wickets as he seems to have been conditioned into bowling for edges and was doing so to batsmen who were missing by inches. And Will managed to score 250 runs @ 30 despite 'forgetting how to bat'. In general I recommend responsible drinking, but Will, did you notice your batting average went down about the same time in the season as your average blood/alcohol level?

Two of our better performing bowlers were both legspinners and new to the club, in the incarnations of **Jack Morgan** and **Angus Gilmore**. And the right-arm wristies bowled well individually and as a pair, especially against Georges River, where Jack's flight and accuracy were complimented beautifully by Angus' fizz and bounce off the deck. Both have a lot of potential and a future at this club, if they so choose.

Both **Ryan Makin** and **Saief Hoque** have both a future and a past at the club. They've both been around for a few years now and showed glimpses of their ability and talent. Hoquey claimed 5-for against Randy-Petes with his accurate and miserly Orthos, while Mako pinched a 'Michelle' against eventual premiers Penrith and ground out a patient, anchoring 68 against Hawkesbury which, alongside Chama's 50, gave us a shot at victory when it was looking grim at best.

**Tom Byrnes** and the boy-trapped-in-a-man's-body **Josh Mellick**, were our main Green Shield representatives in Metro this year. Both are talented cricketers and good people, ready to listen and learn. Although they still have a bit to learn with their bowling and keeping, Josh's explosiveness with the bat and Tom's maturity and dedication to improve will serve them well in the future.

All the regular members of the team have neatly fallen into pairs thus far in the this report, so I guess that just leaves us with the straightedge pair of **Sam James Nguyen** and **Jethro Dickens**. Jethro turned a corner this year with his new ball consistency, which opened the door for him to chase fame and fortune when he left us for UNSW Black in the latter part of the season, while SJ was always enthusiastic and by far our most consistent batsman, and just pipped Muz to be the top run scorer in Metro for the club this year.

Thanks to all of the Old boys, higher graders backing up and Greenies (and their parents, Pete!) who covered for us when we were short, and special thanks to Rattler Lupton, Murray Stanton and Clubman Alex Charlwood for their coaching, management and selection support, keeping Metro as a viable and valuable developmental tool for the younger cricketers and for the club as a whole. Many, many thanks to everyone associated with the team with season.

#### **MATT GARLAND**

1	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	0
	David Phillips		UNSW (Gold)					
	Captain:		d,Matthew B J (Toss : N/A)					
	Result:		points) - Maximum points obtained					
2	Marrickville	LO		8/198	45	Randwick-Petersham (Green)	9/163	45
	Oval		Maisey,William P	44	(81)	Morgan,Jack A D	2/19	7
			Byrnes,Thomas A	26	(65)	Samarasinghe,Chamath S	2/19	7
			Nguyen,Sam James A D	24	(39)	Muraleedaran,Krijan	2/44	6
			Mellick,Joshua M	21	(32)	Dickens,Jethro P	1/10	6
	Captain:		d,Matthew B J (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:	Win or	1 1st Innings (6 points)					
3	David Phillips	2D	UNSW (Gold)	261	73.3	Gordon	5/263	79
	North		Maisey,William P	89	(156)	Morgan, Jack A D	2/40	15
			Muraleedaran,Krijan	58	(118)	Mellick, Joshua M	1/30	7
			Makin,Ryan W	25	(28)			
			Mellick, Joshua M	21	(37)			
	Captain:	Garlan	d,Matthew B J (Toss : Won)					
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)					
4	David Phillips	2D	Randwick-Petersham (Gold)	124	59.3	UNSW (Gold)	3/182 d.	3
	North		Hoque,Saief	5/32	14	Muraleedaran,Krijan	64*	(10
			Stewart, Timothy J	2/26	13	Maisey,William P	48	(4
			Mellick, Joshua M	1/6	5.3	Nguyen,Sam James A D	30*	(3
			(2nd Inns)	8/126	56			
			Mellick, Joshua M	3/65	15			
			Dickens, Jethro P	2/9	8			
			Maisey,William P	1/10	9			
	Captain:	Stewa	rt,Timothy J (Toss : Lost)					
_	Result:		1st Innings (6 points)					
5	St Andrews		Sydney University			UNSW (Gold)		
	Captain:		d,Matthew B J (Toss : N/A)			, ,		
	Result:		sult (0 points) - Day 1 Washed Out.	Non Schedule	d LO M	atch Day 2 (Washed Out)		
3	David Phillips	2D	UNSW (Black)	186	55	UNSW (Gold)	167	7
	North		Hogue,Saief	3/29	10	Nguyen,Sam James A D	34	(6
			Dickens, Jethro P	2/16	8	Mellick, Joshua M	30	(1
			Morgan, Jack A D	2/60	11	,	30	′,
			Mulvenna, Daniel R	1/4	3			
	Captain:	Garlan	d,Matthew B J (Toss : Lost)	1/-	0			
	Result:		n 1st Innings (0 points) - Bracketing	- Day 1: DR N	/ulvenn:	a Day 2: T I Stewart		
,	David Phillips	2D		234	77.3	Sydney	8/235	72
' I	North	20	Nguyen,Sam James A D	52	(62)	Wu,Ryan	5/19	1
	NOITH			44	٠,		0/53	1:
			Stewart, Timothy J	27	(87)	Stening,Thomas L	0/53	1,
			Siu,Daniel H		(71)			
	Captain:	Corlon	Hoque,Saief	20	(22)			
	Result:		d,Matthew B J (Toss : Won)					
3	Balmoral Oval		n 1st Innings (0 points)	9/213	50	Maaman	8/214	5
•	Daillioral Oval	LU	UNSW (Gold)			Mosman	2/20	
			Maisey, William P	57 27	(64)	Garland,Matthew B J		1
			Samarasinghe, Chamath S	37	(30)	Maisey,William P	2/34	(
			Ferrara, Alex	23	(76)	Senarath, Diluka K	2/38	1
			Senarath, Diluka K	22	(33)	Makin,Ryan W	1/13	;
	O	0 1	d,Matthew B J (Toss : Lost)					
	Captain:							
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)			111014/6 1 1		
)	Result:  David Phillips	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown	9/170	50	UNSW (Gold)	134	
)	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P	2/26	9	Stewart, Timothy J	26	(5
)	Result:  David Phillips	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D	2/26 2/35	9 7	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A	26 25	(5 (6
)	Result:  David Phillips  North	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief	2/26	9	Stewart, Timothy J	26	(5 (6
)	Result:  David Phillips North  Captain:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)	2/26 2/35	9 7	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A	26 25	(5 (6
	Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:	Loss o LO Garlan Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) In 1st Innings (0 points)	2/26 2/35 2/38	9 7 10	Stewart,Timothy J Vanos,Jeremy A Samarasinghe,Chamath S	26 25 22	(5 (6 (2
	Result:  David Phillips North  Captain:	Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)	2/26 2/35	9 7	Stewart,Timothy J Vanos,Jeremy A Samarasinghe,Chamath S	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b>	(5 (6 (2
	Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:	Loss o LO Garlan Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) In 1st Innings (0 points)	2/26 2/35 2/38 <b>4/250 d.</b> 95	9 7 10	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17	(5 (6 (2
	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle	Loss o LO Garlan Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)	2/26 2/35 2/38 <b>4/250</b> d.	9 7 10 <b>48</b>	Stewart,Timothy J Vanos,Jeremy A Samarasinghe,Chamath S	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b>	(5 (6 (2
	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle	Loss o LO Garlan Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P	2/26 2/35 2/38 <b>4/250 d.</b> 95	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17	(5 (6 (2
	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle	Loss o LO Garlan Loss o	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D	2/26 2/35 2/38 <b>4/250 d.</b> 95 51	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17	(5 (6 (2
	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle	Loss o  Garlan Loss o  2D	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W	2/26 2/35 2/38 <b>4/250 d.</b> 95 51 39	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17	(5 (6 (2
	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval	Garlan Loss o 2D	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S	2/26 2/35 2/38 <b>4/250 d.</b> 95 51 39	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17	(5 (6 (2
	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain:	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34*	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17	(5 (6 (2
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain:	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold) Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration in	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34*	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17	(5 (6 (2
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result:	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw ( Day 1	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration in	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34*	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold)	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12	(5) (6) (2)
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw ( Day 1	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration or Randwick-Petersham (Green)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17 1/12	(£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw ( Day 1	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration r  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red <b>47</b> 4 8	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs. UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17 1/12 <b>2/147</b> 79*	(£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw ( Day 1	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold) Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration in Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L  Gilmore,Angus H	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red <b>47</b>	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs. UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17 1/12 <b>2/147</b> 79*	(£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw ( Day 1	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold) Rea,Michael P Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration r  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W Dabarera,Ramesh L Gilmore,Angus H Garland,Matthew B J	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19	9 7 10 48 (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red 47 4 8 6	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs. UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17 1/12 <b>2/147</b> 79*	(£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result:  David Phillips North  Captain:	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Loss o LO Garlan Garlan Garlan Garlan Garlan Garlan	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration r  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L  Gilmore,Angus H  Garland,Matthew B J  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29	9 7 10 48 (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red 47 4 8 6	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17 1/12 <b>2/147</b> 79*	(£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (£ (
1	Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:  Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration of the control of	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14	9 7 10 48 (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red 47 4 8 6 7	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J	26 25 22 <b>5/97</b> 3/17 1/12 <b>2/147</b> 79* 30	(§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (§ (
1	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold) Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration of Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L  Gilmore,Angus H  Garland,Matthew B J  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 1 st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red <b>47</b> 4 8 6 7	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs. UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30	27 (8 (5)
0	Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:  Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration of the control of	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14	9 7 10 48 (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red 47 4 8 6 7	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30	22 (ξ (ξ (ξ
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold) Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration of Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L  Gilmore,Angus H  Garland,Matthew B J  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 1 st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red <b>47</b> 4 8 6 7	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs. UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/43	27 (5) (6) (2) (2) (5) (5) (5)
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold) Rea,Michael P Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration r  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L Gilmore,Angus H Garland,Matthew B J d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold) Hoque,Saief	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14	9 7 10  48 (123) (67) (47) (31)  Rain red  47 4 8 6 7  31.5 (21)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/43 1/5	(5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief  Id,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S  Id,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17	9 7 10  48 (123) (67) (47) (31)  Rain red 47 4 8 6 7  31.5 (21)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns)	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99	(5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey, William P  Morgan, Jack A D  Hoque, Saief  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea, Michael P  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Makin, Ryan W  Bowcock, Daniel S  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  Id, points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration in  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin, Ryan W  Dabarera, Ramesh L  Gilmore, Angus H  Garland, Matthew B J  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  UNSW (Gold)  Hoque, Saief  (2nd Inns)  Mellick, Joshua M	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red <b>47</b> 4 8 6 7 <b>31.5</b> (21) <b>31</b> (59)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/43 1/5	(5) (6) (2) (8) (5) (5) (5)
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey, William P  Morgan, Jack A D  Hoque, Saief Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea, Michael P  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Makin, Ryan W  Bowcock, Daniel S Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) Dabarera, Ramesh L Id, Gilmore, Angus H  Garland, Matthew B J Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) Intst Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)  Hoque, Saief  (2nd Inns)  Mellick, Joshua M  Nguyen, Sam James A D	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17	9 7 10  48 (123) (67) (47) (31)  Rain red 47 4 8 6 7  31.5 (21)  31 (59) (45)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns)	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99	(5) (6) (2) (8) (5) (5) (5)
0	Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:  Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:  Lance Hutchinson Oval	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief  Id,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S  Id,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) I opoints)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration in  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L  Gilmore,Angus H  Garland,Matthew B J  Id,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) I st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)  Hoque,Saief  (2nd Inns)  Mellick,Joshua M  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Stewart,Timothy J	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17	9 7 10 <b>48</b> (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red <b>47</b> 4 8 6 7 <b>31.5</b> (21) <b>31</b> (59)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns)	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99	(5) (6) (2) (8) (5) (5) (5)
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:  Lance Hutchinson Oval	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D Garlan	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration of Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L  Gilmore,Angus H  Garland,Matthew B J  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)  Hoque,Saief  (2nd Inns)  Mellick,Joshua M  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Stewart,Timothy J  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17	9 7 10  48 (123) (67) (47) (31)  Rain red 47 4 8 6 7  31.5 (21)  31 (59) (45)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns)	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99	(5) (6) (2) (8) (5) (5) (5)
1 2	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance Hutchinson Oval	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D Garlan Loss o	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey, William P  Morgan, Jack A D  Hoque, Saief  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea, Michael P  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Makin, Ryan W  Bowcock, Daniel S  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  Id, points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration of the company of the compan	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17 5/181 d. 83 32 22	9 7 10  48 (123) (67) (47) (31)  Rain red 47 4 8 6 7  31.5 (21)  31 (59) (45) (45)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns) Tripathi, Abhishek	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99 1/13	(5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7
0	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result:  David Phillips North  Captain: Result:  Lance Hutchinson Oval	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D Garlan Loss o	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey, William P  Morgan, Jack A D  Hoque, Saief  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea, Michael P  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Makin, Ryan W  Bowcock, Daniel S  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  Id, points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration in  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin, Ryan W  Dabarera, Ramesh L  Gilmore, Angus H  Garland, Matthew B J  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)  Hoque, Saief  (2nd Inns)  Mellick, Joshua M  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Stewart, Timothy J  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17	9 7 10  48 (123) (67) (47) (31)  Rain red 47 4 8 6 7  31.5 (21)  31 (59) (45)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns)	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99	(5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7
1 2	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance Hutchinson Oval	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Draw (Day 1 LO Garlan Win or 2D Garlan Loss o	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey, William P  Morgan, Jack A D  Hoque, Saief  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea, Michael P  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Makin, Ryan W  Bowcock, Daniel S  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  Id, points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration of the company of the compan	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17 5/181 d. 83 32 22	9 7 10  48 (123) (67) (47) (31)  Rain red 47 4 8 6 7  31.5 (21)  31 (59) (45) (45)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns) Tripathi, Abhishek	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99 1/13	(5) (6) (2) (5) (6) (5) (6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7
1	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance Hutchinson Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Win or 2D Garlan Loss o LO	In 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey, William P  Morgan, Jack A D  Hoque, Saief  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea, Michael P  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Makin, Ryan W  Bowcock, Daniel S  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  Id, points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration in  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin, Ryan W  Dabarera, Ramesh L  Gilmore, Angus H  Garland, Matthew B J  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)  Hoque, Saief  (2nd Inns)  Mellick, Joshua M  Nguyen, Sam James A D  Stewart, Timothy J  Id, Matthew B J (Toss: Lost)  In 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17 5/181 d. 83 32 22	9 7 10 48 (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red 47 4 8 6 7 31.5 (21) 31 (59) (45) (45)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns) Tripathi, Abhishek	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99 1/13	(5) (6) (2) (5) (6) (5) (6) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7) (7
1 2	Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Owen Earle Oval  Captain: Result: David Phillips North  Captain: Result: Lance Hutchinson Oval  Captain: Result: Lance Hutchinson Oval	Garlan Loss o 2D Garlan Win or 2D Garlan Loss o LO Garlan Coss o Co C	n 1st Innings (0 points)  Blacktown  Maisey,William P  Morgan,Jack A D  Hoque,Saief d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)  Rea,Michael P  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Makin,Ryan W  Bowcock,Daniel S d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 0 points)  Washed Out. 120 over declaration n  Randwick-Petersham (Green)  Makin,Ryan W  Dabarera,Ramesh L  Gilmore,Angus H  Garland,Matthew B J  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) 1st Innings (6 points + 1BP)  UNSW (Gold)  Hoque,Saief  (2nd Inns)  Mellick,Joshua M  Nguyen,Sam James A D  Stewart,Timothy J  d,Matthew B J (Toss: Lost) n 1st Innings (0 points)  UNSW (Gold)	2/26 2/35 2/38 4/250 d. 95 51 39 34* match Day 2. F 143 2/14 2/19 2/29 1/14 72 17 5/181 d. 83 32 22	9 7 10 48 (123) (67) (47) (31) Rain red 47 4 8 6 7 31.5 (21) 31 (59) (45) (45)	Stewart, Timothy J Vanos, Jeremy A Samarasinghe, Chamath S  Hawkesbury Stewart, Timothy J Gilmore, Angus H  uced to 96 overs.  UNSW (Gold) Nguyen, Sam James A D Stewart, Timothy J  Georges River Morgan, Jack A D Gilmore, Angus H Hoque, Saief (2nd Inns) Tripathi, Abhishek	26 25 22 5/97 3/17 1/12 2/147 79* 30 8/124 d. 3/21 3/43 1/5 4/99 1/13	27 3 3

		Maisey,William P Samarasinghe,Chamath S	4/40 2/27	28 28	Makin,Ryan W Samarasinghe,Chamath S Gilmore,Angus H Stewart,Timothy J	68 54 29* 25	(122) (48) (20) (39)
	Captain: Result:	Stewart, Timothy J (Toss : Lost) Draw (0 points)					
15	Rance Oval	LO Penrith	9/288	50	UNSW (Gold)	176	40.2
		Makin,Ryan W	5/34	5	Lochner, Nicholas R	55	(56)
		·			Stewart, Timothy J	31	(59)
					Senarath, Diluka K	29	(30)
	Captain: Result:	Stewart, Timothy J (Toss : Lost) Loss on 1st Innings (0 points)					

Overs Faced: 673.3 Runs Scored For: Wickets Lost: Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: 2572 108 23.81 37.42 3.82 Runs / Over:

Highest Score For: Lowest Score For: 261 vs Gordon (Rd3) 72 vs Georges River (Rd12)

Lowest Score For:	72 vs Georges River (Rd12)																
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Muraleedaran,Krijan	3	3	1	64*	123	61.50	2	-	51.68	11	3	1			-	-	253
Nguyen,Sam James A D	11	12	2	79*	344	34.40	3	-	73.04	34	2	4			-	-	529
Maisey,William P	8	8	-	89	251	31.38	2	-	65.19	20	8	2			-	-	631
Gilmore,Angus H	5	4	2	29*	54	27.00	-	-	75.00	2	-	-			-	2	269
Samarasinghe, Chamath S	8	6	-	54	155	25.83	1	-	87.57	17	3	5			-	1	460
Stewart, Timothy J	9.5	9	-	44	224	24.89	-	-	48.38	24	-	1			-	-	389
Mellick, Joshua M	8	9	-	83	191	21.22	1	-	57.70	17	5	-			-	-	371
Makin,Ryan W	11	12	1	68	170	15.45	1	-	53.63	14	1	6			-	1	595
Morgan, Jack A D	10	8	5	15*	46	15.33	-	-	35.66	1	-	4			-	1	481
Byrnes,Thomas A	7	6	-	26	67	11.17	-	-	29.39	3	-	-	4	-	1	1	197
Garland, Matthew B J	11	8	2	16*	65	10.83	-	-	30.66	5	-	4			-	-	325
Hoque,Saief	11	8	-	20	70	8.75	-	-	43.21	7	-	8			-	-	655
Dickens, Jethro P	5	3	-	13	16	5.33	-	-	25.40	2	-	3			-	-	256
Also Batted:																	
Rea,Michael P	1	1	-	95	95	95.00	1	-	77.24	2	-	-			-	-	120
Lochner, Nicholas R	1	1	-	55	55	55.00	1	-	98.21	8	-	-			-	-	100
Siu,Daniel H	1	1	-	27	27	27.00	-	-	38.03	3	-	-			-	-	27
Senarath, Diluka K	2	2	-	29	51	25.50	-	-	80.95	6	-	-			-	-	91
Vanos, Jeremy A	1	1	-	25	25	25.00	-	-	39.68	2	-	1			-	-	45
Hansen,Mark A	1	1	-	16	16	16.00	-	-	39.02	3	-	1			-	-	36
Mulvenna, Daniel R	0.5	1	-	14	14	14.00	-	-	60.87	2	-	-			_	-	34
Page,Benjamin P	1	1	-	13	13	13.00	-	-	18.84	2	-	-			-	-	33
Shafiq, Wahab	1	1	_	12	12	12.00	-	-	120.00	1	1	-			_	-	12
de Silva,Chaanuk A	2	2	1	10*	12	12.00	-	-	85.71		-	-	3	1	-	-	92
Ferrara, Alex	2	2	-	23	23	11.50	-	-	29.49	-	-	2	-	-	_	-	73
Stening,Hamish F	1	1	-	7	7	7.00	-	-	25.93	-	-	-			_	-	27
Tripathi, Abhishek	1	2	1	6	7	7.00	_	_	31.82	1	_	_			_	1	57
Voleti,Aditya	2	2	1	4*	6	6.00	-	-	42.86	Ė	-	-			-	-	6
Wu,Ryan	1	1	-	6	6	6.00	_	_	66.67	1	_	_			_	_	206
Mack,Katie M	0.5	1	_	6	6	6.00	-	-	40.00		-	-			_	-	16
Coleman, Andrew J	2	1	_	5	5	5.00	_	-	31.25	_	_	_	3	2	_	_	140
Redman, Andrew J	1	2	_	8	8	4.00	_	_	32.00	1	_	_	1	1	_	1	58
Jones,Andrew C	1	1	_	4	4	4.00	_	_	17.39	-	_	_	•	•	_	-	4
Dabarera,Ramesh L	2	1	_	1	i	1.00	_	_	9.09	-	_	1			_	_	101
Karmakar,Bikram P	1	1	_	0	0	0.00	_	_	0.00	-	_	-			_	_	-
Gunning, Pyke O L	1	1	_	Ö	Õ	0.00	_	_	0.00	-	_	_			_	_	_
Bowcock,Daniel S	1	1	1	34*	34	-	_	_	109.68	_	_	_			_	_	34
Greenberg, Jake L	1	1	i	5*	5	_	_	_	100.00	_	_	_			_	_	5
Stening, Thomas L	2	2	2	3*	3	-	_	_	14.29	_	_				_	_	3
Byrnes,Peter A	1	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-	0.00	-	-	1			-	_	20
Xu,Alan	1	'		-	U	-	-	-	-	_	-		1		-	_	20
Stone, Jacob A	1	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	'		-	-	40
Stanton, Murray J	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1			-	-	30
	'	-	-	-	264	-	-	-	-	-	-	ı			-	-	30
Extras					361												

#### **BOWLING - Metropolitan Cup - Gold 2015/2016**

Overs Bowled:
Runs Scored Against:
Wickets Taken:
Average / Wicket:
Balls / Wicket: 762.5 2595 113 22.96 43.42 Runs / Over: 3.17

Highest Score Against: Lowest Score Against: 9/288 vs Penrith (Rd15) 124 vs Randwick-Petersham (Gold) (Rd4)

Lowest Score Against.	124 vs Kandwick-Petersham (Gold) (Kd4)											
Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb	
Makin,Ryan W	20	1	8	96	5/34	12.00	4.80	15.00	1	11	4	
Dickens, Jethro P	51	14	8	117	2/9	14.63	2.29	38.25	-	1	3	
Stewart, Timothy J	41	18	5	81	3/17	16.20	1.98	49.20	-	4	-	
Maisey, William P	78	21	11	211	4/40	19.18	2.71	42.55	-	41	-	
Morgan, Jack A D	80.2	20	15	310	3/21	20.67	3.86	32.13	-	9	3	
Samarasinghe,Chamath S	98	29	7	188	2/19	26.86	1.92	84.00	-	28	3	
Gilmore, Angus H	60	8	8	216	3/43	27.00	3.60	45.00	-	7	11	
Hoque,Saief	110.3	24	14	398	5/32	28.43	3.60	47.36	1	14	6	
Garland, Matthew B J	97.1	31	8	237	2/20	29.63	2.44	72.88	-	22	1	
Mellick, Joshua M	36.3	4	5	165	3/65	33.00	4.52	43.80	-	6	-	

Also Bowled:	1										
Wu,Ryan	14	9	5	19	5/19	3.80	1.36	16.80	1	-	-
Mulvenna, Daniel R	3	-	1	4	1/4	4.00	1.33	18.00	-	1	-
Dabarera,Ramesh L	12	1	3	33	2/19	11.00	2.75	24.00	-	4	-
Page,Benjamin P	4	-	1	18	1/18	18.00	4.50	24.00	-	-	-
Tripathi, Abhishek	14	2	2	42	1/13	21.00	3.00	42.00	-	1	-
Stone, Jacob A	8	3	1	27	1/27	27.00	3.38	48.00	-	3	-
Senarath,Diluka K	17	2	2	74	2/38	37.00	4.35	51.00	-	2	2
Lochner, Nicholas R	7	1	1	38	1/38	38.00	5.43	42.00	-	2	-
Muraleedaran,Krijan	18	3	2	82	2/44	41.00	4.56	54.00	-	1	-
Stening, Hamish É	19	7	1	43	1/43	43.00	2.26	114.00	-	-	-
Gunning,Pyke O L	3	-	-	5	0/5	-	1.67	-	-	1	-
Voleti,Aditya	3	-	-	6	0/6	-	2.00	-	-	-	-
Rea,Michael P	2	1	-	5	0/5	-	2.50	-	-	-	-
Stening,Thomas L	13.2	1	-	53	0/53	-	3.98	-	-	-	1
Shafiq,Wahab	6	-	-	31	0/31	-	5.17	-	-	5	-
Nguyen,Sam James A D	1	-	-	6	0/6	-	6.00	-	-	-	1
Siu,Daniel H	1	-	-	10	0/10	-	10.00	-	-	-	-
Extras				78							

PARTNERSHIPS - Metropolitan Cup - Gold 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	12	Georges River	2	Stewart, Timothy J	22	Mellick, Joshua M	83	110
	7	Sydney	1	Siu,Daniel H	27	Stewart, Timothy J	44	55
2nd	10	Hawkesbury	1	Nguyen,Sam James A D	51	Rea,Michael P	95	102
	11	Randwick-Petersham (Green)	1	Stewart, Timothy J	30	Nguyen,Sam James A D	79*	101
	7	Sydney	1	Nguyen,Sam James A D	52	Stewart, Timothy J	44	79
	15	Penrith	1	Senarath, Diluka K	29	Stewart, Timothy J	31	52
3rd	3	Gordon	1	Muraleedaran,Krijan	58	Maisey,William P	89	118
	4	Randwick-Petersham (Gold)	1	Maisey,William P	48	Muraleedaran,Krijan	64*	82
	10	Hawkesbury	1	Makin,Ryan W	39	Rea,Michael P	95	74
4th	4	Randwick-Petersham (Gold)	1	Nguyen,Sam James A D	30*	Muraleedaran,Krijan	64*	62*
5th	2	Randwick-Petersham (Green)	1	Maisey,William P	44	Byrnes,Thomas A	26	51
6th	14	Hawkesbury	1	Samarasinghe, Chamath S	54	Makin,Ryan W	68	100
	8	Mosman	1	Samarasinghe, Chamath S	37	Maisey, William P	57	76
7th	14	Hawkesbury	1	Makin,Ryan W	68	Gilmore,Angus H	29*	52
8th	7	Sydney	1	Page,Benjamin P	13	Garland, Matthew B J	16	36
9th	7	Sydney	1	Hoque,Saief	20	Garland, Matthew B J	16	28
10th	6	University of NSW (Black)	1	Dickens,Jethro P	13	Morgan, Jack A D	15*	31

Partners	hip Average	<u>es</u>							
Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	14	-	382	27.29	6th	11	-	302	27.45
2nd	14	-	490	35.00	7th	10	-	108	10.80
3rd	14	1	475	36.54	8th	10	1	184	20.44
4th	13	1	251	20.92	9th	9	1	68	8.50
5th	12	1	235	21.36	10th	8	1	77	11.00

### Universities Women's Cricket Club

Starting a new season with a substantially different and somewhat inexperienced UWCC committee was always going to be a challenge. With the stepping down of David Mifsud as Club Secretary and his enormous level of experience and productivity gone and then the loss of our new Club Secretary Gary Harpley through illness prior to Christmas the committee made valiant efforts to maintain the Universities Women's Cricket Club's high profile image and to a large degree succeeded. We did however lose several major sponsors and struggled to replace them, here's hoping 2016/17 will see this change with our new sponsorship team running down several promising leads with zeal (I am happy to report Gary is on the mend).

The club was able to field teams in every grade and in fact fielded two teams in 3rd grade once again. Our 1st grade side overcame enormous obstacles to make the semi-finals in the limited overs competition and the Grand final in the T20 competition with a number of our top players being called up for rep honours in Breakers, WBBL and Australian sides for long periods of the season.

1st grade also produced the SCA and UWCC player of the year in **Georgia Redmayne** (once again) who had a truly remarkable season as well as the batter of the year.

Players from all grades stepped up to fill the void in 1st grade and are to be congratulated for their efforts unfortunately this and injuries put a severe strain on 2nd grade who struggled all season.

3rd Grade had a very successful season with the 3rd Grade Gold side making the limited overs Grand Final and the 3rd Grade Blue side making the T20 semi-finals and produced the SCA and UWCC 3rd grade player of the year **Katrina Serena** (once again) and also being batter of the year. These girls really enjoy their cricket and while they play hard are a very gregarious social group.

Our Brewer Shield girls once again swept all before them and won both limited overs and T20 premierships undefeated an incredible effort with **Maddy Darke** taking out the SCA and UWCC Brewer Shield player of the year, batter of the year and fielder of the year. **Stella Campbell** excelled taking out SCA and UWCC bowler of the year for Brewer Shield as well.

Once again UWCC showed it's mettle and depth of talent when a large number of our players were selected in NSW Academy squads and CHS and Private School rep teams.

Our coaching staff Caitlin Rawstron (Club Coach) and Nick Stapleton (Brewer coach) supported by President Kate Owen and several first grade players each week provided hours and hours of coaching development for our players throughout the season. Unfortunately we lost Ron the 2nd Grade coach before the resumption of the season after Christmas in strange circumstances. Our Brewer coach Nick Stapleton was missing in action for a good part of the season as well due to his own playing commitments (unavoidable) but it was obvious from the Brewer teams success that his coaching of the team for the past three seasons worked a treat, fingers crossed we will see Nick back this season in some capacity.

Towards the end of the season we lost our 1st grade scorer extraordinaire and club stalwart David Frede his stats ability and all-round knowledge will be sorely missed, efforts are afoot I believe to try and turn this situation around.

Of course being a successful Club requires the support of many people and organisations. The support we get from Sydney University Sports & UNSW Sport & Rec along with their respective men's cricket clubs is much appreciated. Their assistance was invaluable this year as we were able to access the grounds and training facilities when needed, a special shout to Craig Davis of UNSW who assisted Bernice and I a number of times at short notice.

Our Treasurer John Owen has done another sterling job keeping a close eye on our finances and he and I are endeavouring to boost the bank balance with various grants.

In closing I would like to thank the committee of 2015/16 for their efforts in a tough challenging environment, the entire Club's volunteers, the players, their parents, family and friends of all our teams, for the help you have given our Club each week. Your participation at games, your willingness to help out and the great support and spirit to which the games have been played and supported is what makes Universities WCC great and fun.

I think once you get to know them our new committee will impress you with their drive and dedication ably led by our new club Secretary Lisa Darke. I look forward to the end of dreary old winter and the warm days of summer, when once again we can all yell out loudly "GO UNI'S!"

# PETER ROBINSON CARETAKER HONORARY SECRETARY 2015/16

### **AUSTRALIAN UNIVERSITY CHAMPIONSHIPS**

The 2015 Australian University Games was an experience that all involved will never forget, despite the fact that we don't remember too much of the nights either. Taking over the reigns handed down by AUG's legends Tom Atallah, Charlie Wakim and Brandon McLean, the group of men that travelled to the Gold Coast did the University proud – both on and off the field.

The first night out was a chance for a number of people to meet each other for the first time – and what better way to do so than drinking in a hotel room with 14 blokes. The night started slowly and a number of people were evidently quite shy around those they did not know. That was of course until Matthew Dedes imposed himself on the group by telling Englishman Will Maisey "your accent makes you sound like a poof." This seemed to settle the mood and within an hour, a guest appearance from Hayden McLean's alter ego "Doss Man" ensured plenty of entertainment throughout the night. While there was not much luck on the circuit, Doss Man somehow managed to go 1/1 and the first night was one to remember.

We progressed through the group stages with 2 easy victories over Curtain University and Bond University, only to suffer a narrow defeat in Round 3 to Sydney University. Despite the loss, the morale remained high within the group as we knew that we had the talent to go all the way in the tournament and secure ourselves a trip to Sri Lanka courtesy of the sponsors Red Bull. Special mention must go to Hamish Stening, who against Curtain University managed to take his first (and last) ever wicket. Well done Hamo.

The boys faced UTS in the Semi-Final of this year's competition, who were undefeated in the other pool. Because of this, we believed that they would be difficult to beat however this did not stop William Maisey, or anyone for that matter, from consuming a skinful of alcohol the night before. We managed to post a defendable total of 120 against UTS, who could only manage 27 in reply. Onto the final we marched.

The final was a very competitive game against Sydney University, who we had taunted all week because they did not participate in a single circuit and were monitored closely by the great Gary Whittaker as per usual. While we were having beers and binnies the night before the game, they were having hydralyte and powerade in order to ensure they were suitably hydrated for the final. We began the final well, taking regular poles to have Sydney Uni in a spot of bother and they were only able to manage to post 120. However, our run chase did not begin too positively, losing a few early wickets. Despite this, Joe Byrnes managed to play a remarkable innings that allowed put us in a position to win it in the final over. However, it was all too little too late and we went down by 4 runs. Despite the result, the boys can hold their heads high knowing that they had an incredibly enjoyable week and we are all looking forward to what Perth has in store in September 2016.

### MARCUS ATALLAH

MATCH SUMMARIES - Australian University Games (Twenty20) 2015/2016

Rd	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	Kerrydale Oval,	T20	Griffith University	9/77	20	UNSW	2/79	11.5
	Robina		Ho,Gavin T	2/3	2	Thorburn,Luke	49*	(29)
			Krishnan,Satya N	2/5	2			
			Ramakrishnan, Aditya	2/7	2			
			Atallah, Marcus A	2/12	4			
	Captain:	Atallah	,Marcus A (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:	Win or	n 1st Innings					
2	Cheltenham	T20	UNSW	9/136	20	Bond University	87	16.3
	Oval, Robina		Leten,Ethan	55	(35)	Smyth,Sam H	4/15	3
			Smyth,Sam H	25	(18)	Leten, Ethan	2/21	3
						Atallah, Marcus A	2/25	4
	Captain:	Atallah	,Marcus A (Toss : Won)					
	Result:	Win or	n 1st Innings					
3	Cheltenham	T20	Sydney University	7/144	20	UNSW	4/133	20
	Oval, Robina		McLean,Hayden C	2/22	4	Atallah, Marcus A	51*	(34)
			Leten,Ethan	2/38	4	McLean,Hayden C	26*	(16)
			Ramakrishnan,Aditya	1/3	2			
	Captain:		,Marcus A (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:		n 1st Innings					
SF	Kerrydale Oval,	T20	UNSW	7/135	20	University of Technology Sydney	55	11
	Robina		Leten,Ethan	33	(27)	McLean,Hayden C	4/8	4
			Smyth,Sam H	20	(10)	Dedes,Matthew	3/6	2
			Dedes,Matthew	20	(15)	Stening,Hamish F	1/4	1
						Ramakrishnan, Aditya	1/17	2
	Captain:		,Marcus A (Toss : Lost)					
	Result:		n 1st Innings					
F	Kerrydale Oval,	T20		4/114	20	Sydney University	9/117	20
	Robina		Byrnes,Joseph J	63*	(55)	Atallah,Marcus A	4/24	4
			Dedes,Matthew	20	(35)	Smyth,Sam H	1/14	3
	Captain:		,Marcus A (Toss : Won)					
	Result:	Loss o	n 1st Innings - (Gold Medal	Play-Off)				

### BATTING - Australian University Games (Twenty20) 2015/2016

Overs Faced: 91.5 Runs Scored For: 597 Wickets Lost: 26 Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: 22.96 21.19 6.50 Runs / Over:

Highest Score For: Lowest Score For: 9/136 vs Bond University (Rd2) 4/114 vs Sydney University (F)

LOWCSI OCCIO I OI.	7/11-	r vo Cy	uncy o	THVCISI	y (i /												
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Thorburn,Luke	5	3	2	49*	56	56.00	-	-	136.59	7	-	-			-	-	-
McLean, Hayden C	5	4	3	26*	53	53.00	-	-	123.26	4	-	-			-	-	-
Byrnes, Joseph J	4	3	1	63*	92	46.00	1	-	100.00	8	2	-			-	-	-
Leten, Ethan	4	4	-	55	98	24.50	1	-	115.29	9	-	-			-	-	-
Atallah, Marcus A	5	4	1	51*	69	23.00	1	-	106.15	5	4	-			-	-	-
Dedes,Matthew	5	4	-	20	61	15.25	-	-	70.93	4	-	-			-	-	-
Ho,Gavin T	5	4	-	8	10	2.50	-	-	32.26	-	-	-			-	-	-
Also Batted:																	
Smyth,Sam H	5	2	-	25	45	22.50	-	-	160.71	2	1	-			-	-	-
Maisey, William P	3	2	1	12	16	16.00	-	-	59.26	2	-	-			-	-	-
Mallett, James	5	2	1	11	13	13.00	-	-	76.47	2	-	-			-	-	-
Stening, Hamish F	5	2	-	17	24	12.00	-	-	85.71	2	-	-	-	1	-	-	-
Krishnan,Satya N	4	2	1	4*	5	5.00	-	-	62.50	-	-	-			-	-	-
Ramakrishnan, Aditya	5	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-
Unknown	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	13	3	2	5	-	-
Extras	-				49												

### BOWLING - Australian University Games (Twenty20) 2015/2016

Overs Bowled: Runs Scored Against: 480 Wickets Taken: Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: 45 10.67 11.67 Runs / Over: 5.49

Highest Score Against: 7/144 vs Sydney University (Rd3)

55 vs University of Technology Sydney (SF) Lowest Score Against:

2011001 00010 / igaii.oii	00.0		J., J.		,, _,, ,	· · ·					
Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Ramakrishnan, Aditya	11	1	4	41	2/7	10.25	3.73	16.50	-	3	1
McLean, Hayden C	18	3	8	91	4/8	11.38	5.06	13.50	-	4	3
Atallah, Marcus A	17	-	9	109	4/24	12.11	6.41	11.33	-	1	-
Smyth,Sam H	11	-	5	61	4/15	12.20	5.55	13.20	-	5	2
Dedes, Matthew	10	-	4	57	3/6	14.25	5.70	15.00	-	1	-
Leten,Ethan	9	-	4	74	2/21	18.50	8.22	13.50	-	1	-
Also Bowled:											
Krishnan,Satya N	2	-	2	5	2/5	2.50	2.50	6.00	-	-	-
Ho,Gavin T	3.3	1	3	10	2/3	3.33	2.86	7.00	-	-	-
Stening, Hamish F	3	-	1	14	1/4	14.00	4.67	18.00	-	1	-
Byrnes, Joseph J	3	-	-	13	0/4	-	4.33	-	-	3	1
Extras				5							

# PARTNERSHIPS - Australian University Games (Twenty20) 2015/2016

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Inn	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	3	Sydney University	1	Byrnes,Joseph J	11	Dedes,Matthew	17	35
2nd	1	Griffith University	1	Mallett,James	11	Thorburn,Luke	49*	34
3rd	2	Bond University	1	Stening,Hamish F	17	Leten,Ethan	55	49
4th	F	Sydney University	1	Dedes,Matthew	20	Byrnes,Joseph J	63*	67
5th	3	Sydney University	1	Atallah,Marcus A	51*	McLean, Hayden C	26*	80*
6th	SF	University of Technology Sydney	1	Leten,Ethan	33	Smyth,Sam H	20	21
7th	2	Bond University	1	McLean,Hayden C	10	Smyth,Sam H	25	25
8th	2	Bond University	1	Smyth,Sam H	25	Maisey,William P	4*	15
9th	2	Bond University	1	Krishnan,Satya N	1	Maisey,William P	4*	2
10th	2	Bond University	1	Maisey,William P	4*	Mallett, James	2*	2*

Partnership	Averages								
Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	5	-	91	18.20	6th	2	-	24	12.00
2nd	5	-	73	14.60	7th	2	-	42	21.00
3rd	5	1	106	26.50	8th	2	1	23	23.00
4th	4	-	99	24.75	9th	1	-	2	2.00
5th	4	2	135	67.50	10th	1	1	2	-

# **TOUR MATCH V ADFA XI**



Idyllic setting at Victoria Barracks, Paddington for our match against an Australian Defence Force Academy XI.

UNSWCC XI vs. Australian Defence Force Academy XI Played at Victoria Barracks, Paddington, 25th February, 2016 Toss: Victoria Barracks XI

TOSS: VICTORIA BARRACKS XI										
		Innings of: UNS	WCC XI	<u> </u>						
Batsman	How Out	Bowler	Runs	Mins	Balls	4's	6's	FOW		
D Bhandari	C.	Boland	7	-	10	1	-	1 - 12		
HF Stening	C.	Couper	3	-	7	-	-	2 - 16		
A Nayak	C.	Hill	20	-	31	1	-	3 - 52		
RW Makin	Retired	-	50	-	80	5	1	6 - 124		
NRA Senaratha	c. wk	Hill	1	-	5	-	-	4 - 61		
MJ Stanton +	C.	Couper	32	-	27	4	1	5 - 122		
AH Gilmore	st.	Goinan	3	-	3	-	-	7 - 126		
OGH Howard	C.	Couper	0	-	3	-	-	8 - 128		
AL Ward	C.	Couper	4	-	7	-	-	9 - 138		
MB Ryan	Not Out		8	-	9	1	-	-		
MBJ Garland *	Not Out		0	-	0	-	-	-		
J Scarcella	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		
Extras	(b2, lb3, w7, nb2)		14							
Overs	30	Total:	9/143	-						
Bowler	Overs	<u>Mdns</u>	Wkts	Runs	Wds	Nbs				
Boland	5	-	1	15	1	-				
Couper	6	-	4	12	-	-				
Mulligan	6	2	0	30	1	2				
Hill	5	-	2	25	5	-				
Lee	4	-	0	32	-	-				
Martin	3	-	0	20	-	-				
Goinan	1	-	1	4	-	-				

Goinan	1	-	1	4	-	-		
	Innings of: A	ustralian Defend	e Force	Acader	nv XI			
Batsman	How Out	Bowler	Runs	Mins		4's	6's	FOW
Martin	lbw	Garland	13	-	24	2	-	2 - 13
Couper	c.Stanton	Garland	0	-	2	-	-	1 - 0
Boland	c.Gilmore	Scarcella	8	-	21	-	-	4 - 24
Wiles	c.Ward	Scarcella	0	-	2	-	-	3 - 24
Lee	c.Bhandari	Ward	22	-	25	1	1	8 - 82
Hill	c.Gilmore	Bhandari	3	-	18	-	-	5 - 32
Kirkwood	b.	Ryan	1	-	2	-	-	6 - 45
Mulligan	c.Senaratha	Ward	31	-	-	5	1	7 - 82
March	st.Stanton	Ward	0	-	-	-	-	9 - 84
D Goinan	b.	Stening	9	-	-	-	1	10 - 94
R Goinan	Not Out		0	-	-	-	-	-
Extras	(b1, lb1, w3, nb2)		7					
Overs	26.2	Totals	94	-				
Bowler	<u>Overs</u>	<u>Mdns</u>	Wkts	Runs	Wds	Nbs.		
OGH Howard	4	1	0	10	2	-		
MBJ Garland	4	-	2	12	-	-		
J Scarcella	4	-	2	6	-	-		
D Bhandari	4	1	1	11	-	-		
AL Ward	5	2	3	11	1	-		
MB Ryan	4	-	1	31	-	-		
AH Gilmore	1	-	0	8	-	2		
HF Stening	0.2	-	1	2	-	-		
	UN:	SWCC XI Won I	Bv 49 R	uns				

### **OLD BOYS SOCIAL MATCH**

In what is fast becoming an established fixture on the club's social calendar, the Old Boys social match returned for the third consecutive season. With many old boys now structuring their fitness regime around being at peak fitness for this fixture, there were high hopes that another day of high quality cricket was on the cards. The format was the same as the previous year with two concurrent games of cricket played – an Overs 50's match and an Under 50's match.

With Chappo an apology (overseas), Springa stepped up to captain one of the Over 50's team against Disco's team. Captaining obviously suited Springa, because he scored a few runs, took a fe w wickets and led his team to a narrow 4 run victory.

In the Under 50's match, Kurly was determined to maintain his team's unblemished record against The Colonel's team. In a high scoring game, Kurl's outfiyt did in fact prevail by 7 runs.

Most importantly, the day offered a great opportunuity for past players to stay connected with the club and to remember what it means to be a Bee. And thanks to the generosity of all who played, a generous contribution to the club's coffers was also made.

Many thanks to Glenn Clark for doing all of the organising and ensuring the day went off without a hitch.

#### UNSWCC Old Boys Match - Over 50's Played at Village Green, UNSW, 13th March, 2016

Flag	ed at Villa					, 20.	U	
		gs of: Over 50'						
Batsman	How Out	Bowler	Runs	Mins	Balls	4's	6's	FOW
JG Robson	c.Holt	Scarcella	10	-	-	1	-	2 - 25
P Tout	c.Wilcher	Scarcella	8	-	-	1	-	1 - 14
SG Campbell	b.	Clark	4	-	-	-	-	4 - 28
W McKay	b.	Scarcella	0	-	-	-	-	3 - 28
GF Lawson	st.Wilcher	Ryan	3	-	-	-	-	5 - 45
PL Scolari *	c.Wilcher	Dixon	27 34	-	-	4 2	-	6 - 61 8 - 126
W Hetherington MJ Gregg	b.	Lupton	11	-	-	-	-	7 - 79
AC Jones	Not Out	Ryan	24	-	-	3	-	-
DC Jebb	Not Out		2		-	3	-	-
M Back +	NOI Out	_	-	-	-	-	-	-
DSF Thew	_	_	-			-	-	
Extras	(b2, lb1, w	3)	6					
Overs	25	Total:	8/129					
				D	18/4-	Niba		
Bowler	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Wds 2	Nbs		
JC Lupton	5	-	1	17		-		
J Scarcella	5	-	3 1	25	1	-		
GA Clark	4	2		13	-	-		
G Holt	2.5	- 1	0	21	-	-		
MB Ryan MH Carmichael	4 0.1	'	2 0	8 1	-	-		
	1.5	-	1	15	-	-		
JS Dixon		-			-	-		
J Gallagher	2	-	0	22	-	-		
			^	4				
MN Palin	0.1 Inni	- ngs of: Over 50	0 No Disco	4 o'c Too	- m	-		
_	<u>Inni</u>	ngs of: Over 50	)'s Disc	o's Tea		- 4's	6's	FOW
Batsman	Inni How Out	ngs of: Over 50 Bowler	)'s Disc Runs		- <u>m</u> Balls	4's	6's	FOW U/a
Batsman J Gallagher	How Out Run Out	Bowler	Disc Runs 10	o's Tea	Balls -	-	-	u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb	How Out Run Out c.	Bowler Scolari	0's Disc Runs 10 27	o's Tea		4's	6's - -	u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher	How Out Run Out c. b.	Bowler	10 27 3	o's Tea	Balls -	3	-	u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out	Scolari Hetherington	7 No. 27 10 27 3 37	o's Tea	Balls - - -	3	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c.	Bowler Scolari	0's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8	o's Tea	Balls - - -	- 3 - 4	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out	Scolari Hetherington Gregg	10 27 3 37 8 2	o's Tea	Balls	- 3 - 4	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c.	Scolari Hetherington	0's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8	o's Tea	Balls	3 - 4	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton	Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c.	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout	0's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5	o's Tea	Balls	- 3 - 4 -	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon *	Inni How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. c. b.	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout	0's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4	o's Tea	Balls	- 3 - 4 -	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark	Inni How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout	0's Disco Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4 8	o's Tea Mins - - - - - - -	Balls	3 - 4 - - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher +	Inni How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out Not Out	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout	0's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4 8 7	o's Tea Mins - - - - - - -	Balls	3 - 4 - - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin	Inni How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout	0's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4 8 7	o's Tea Mins - - - - - - -	Balls	3 - 4 - - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out Not Out - (b6, lb2) 25	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout Scolari	8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119	o's Tea Mins	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out Not Out - (b6, lb2) 25 Overs	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout Scolari	7's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119 Wkts	o's Tea Mins	Balls	3 - 4 - - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler W Hetheringtor	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out Not Out (b6, lb2) 25 Overs	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout Scolari - Totals Mdns	7's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119 Wkts	o's Tea Mins 1	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler W Hetheringtor GF Lawson	How Out C. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out Not Out Vot Not Out Not Out Vot Vot Vot Vot Vot Vot Vot Vot Vot Vo	Bowler  Scolari Hetherington  Gregg  Tout Scolari  -  Totals Mdns	8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119 Wkts 1 0	o's Tea Mins	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler W Hetheringtor	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out Not Out (b6, lb2) 25 Overs	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout Scolari - Totals Mdns	7's Disc Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119 Wkts	o's Tea Mins 1	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler W Hetheringtor GF Lawson SG Campbell JG Robson	How Out Run Out C. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. b. Not Out Not Out Not Out Obe, lib2) 25 Overs 4 3 3	Scolari Hetherington Gregg Tout Scolari - Totals Mdns	8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119 Wkts 1 0 0	o's Tea Mins - - - - - - - 1 - Runs 25 8 10	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler W Hetheringtor GF Lawson SG Campbell	How Out Run Out c. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Not Out Not Out Not Out Obe, ib2) 25 Overs 4 3 3 3 5	Bowler  Scolari Hetherington  Gregg  Tout Scolari  -  Totals Mdns  -  1	8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119 Wkts 1 0 0 0	o's Tea Mins 1 1 - 1 - 25 8 10 26	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler W Hetheringtor GF Lawson SG Campbell JG Robson MJ Gregg	Inni   How Out   C.   C.   D.   Run Out   C.   C.   Run Out   C.   D.   Not Out   Not Out   C.   D.   Not Out   C.   C.   D.   Not Out   C.   C.   C.   D.   Not Out   C.   C.   C.   C.   C.   C.   C.   C	Bowler  Scolari Hetherington  Gregg  Tout Scolari  -  Totals Mdns  -  1	8 2 5 4 8 7 5 8/119 Wkts 1 0 0 0 1	o's Tea Mins  1 1 - 1 - 25 8 10 26 12	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a
Batsman J Gallagher DC Jebb MH Carmichael G Holt J Scarcella MB Ryan JC Lupton GA Clark JS Dixon * JW Wilcher + MN Palin Extras Overs Bowler W Hetheringtor GF Lawson SG Campbell JG Robson MJ Gregg P Tout	How Out Round Out C. b. Run Out c. Run Out c. Not Out Not Out Votes  Overs  4 3 3 3 5 4 4 4 2	Bowler  Scolari Hetherington  Gregg  Tout Scolari  -  Totals Mdns  -  1	9's Disc: Runs 10 27 3 37 8 2 5 4 8 7 - 5 8/119 Wkts 1 0 0 1 1 2	o's Tea Mins  1 1 25 8 10 26 12 22 8	Balls	3 - 4 1 1 - 1	-	u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a u/a

#### UNSWCC Old Boys Match - Under 50's Played at Village Green, UNSW, 13th March, 2016

,	Innir	ngs of: Under 5	0's Kurly	s Team	<u>1</u>			
Batsman	How Out	Bowler	Runs		Balls	4's	6's	FOW
AD Pratt	c.Sanders	Finlay	22	-	-	5	-	u/a
J Horley	Retired		9	-	-	1	-	u/a
TJ Hoare	Retired		14	-	-	1	-	u/a
GJ Harris	Retired		10	-	-	-	-	u/a
SA Norbury	c. & b.	Mullen	5	-	-	1	-	u/a
PB Searle	c.McKay	Plunkett-Cole	14	-	-	-	-	u/a
DJA Gainsford	st.Sanders	McKay	14	-	-	1	-	u/a
TS Richardson	st.Sanders	Plunkett-Cole	12	-	-	2	-	u/a
CW Jameson	b.	Mullen	23	-	-	1	-	u/a
S Debello	c.McKay	Plunkett-Cole	8	-	-	-	1	u/a
SBH Gerber	b.	Zavos	5	-	-	1	-	u/a
M Kovaks *+	Not Out		21	-	-	3	-	-
GJ Harris	c.McKay	Saunders	3	-	-	-	-	u/a
Extras	(b7, w1, 3n	b)	11					
Overs	25	Total:	12 / 171	-				
Bowler	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Wds	Nbs		
WR Saunders	4	-	1	32	-	-		
J Finlay	4	-	1	24	-	1		
MD Mullen	4	_	2	24	_	Ċ		
M Mag	4	_	0	16	_	_		
W McKay	2	_	1	19	_	1		
P Serov	3		Ó	20	1	'		
M Plunkett-Cole		-	3	22	1	-		
	ร 3 1	-	1		-	1		
Z Zavos		- 		7 Taa	-	- 1		
Dotomon	How Out	s of: Under 50	Runs		<u>⊞</u> Balls	4's	6's	FOW
Z Zavos	Retired	Bowler	24	- IVIIIIS	- Dalis	3	03	2 - 35
M Plunkett-Cole		lamasaa	7		-	-	-	1 - 16
		Jameson	, 16	-		2		3 - 66
W McKay	b.	Searle		-	-	3	-	
AC Szabo	C.	Richardson	27	-	-		-	5 - 99
AC Jones	c.Kovacs	Hoare	11	-	-	1	-	4 - 88
MD Mullen	C.	Horley	9	-	-	1	-	6 - 104
MR Sanders *+			28	-	-	3	-	
J Finlay	b.	Kovacs	8	-	-	2	-	7 - 115
M Mag	st.Searle	Harris	16	-	-	3	-	8 - 140
WR Saunders	Not Out		3	-	-	-	-	-
P Serov		-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Extras	(b1, w8, nb		10	-				
Overs	25	Totals	8 / 164					
Bowler	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Wds	Nbs		
CW Jameson	2	-	1	10		-		
DJA Gainsford	2	-	0	19	1	-		
SBH Gerber	2	-	0	20	5	-		
S Debello	2	-	0	7	-	-		
SA Norbury	2	-	0	12	-	1		
PB Searle	2	-	1	7	-	-		
TJ Hoare	2	-	1	9	-	-		
GJ Harris	3	-	1	20	1	-		
TS Richardson	2	-	1	10	-	-		
J Horley	2	1	1	9	-	-		
AD Pratt	2	-	0	12	-	-		
M Kovaks	2	-	1	28	1	-		
	Under	50's Kurly's T	eam Wo	n				
		-						

# SCG Test Match (Peter Richardson Memorial) Breakfast

The annual Peter Richardson (SCG Test) Breakfast was again held on day two of the Sydney Test, this time the Australia vs West Indies fixture. Happily, despite relatively low interest in the hitherto one-sided contest (and a very dodgy weather forecast), we attracted 160 guests. This speaks for what this event has become over the years, which is as much a reunion of old friends as it is an important fundraiser for the Club. The crowd we attracted was well represented from old boys, our current players and our Randwick Junior CC comrades.

With our support in, all that was left was for our resident Cricket NSW CEO to tee up a few guests, in his customary fashion. In this, Jonesy even surpassed his previous efforts by securing two recently retired Ashes tourists, Brad Haddin and Chris Rogers (who also happens to be Club Royalty JR's son) and on the day old boy Gav Harris decided to bring another, his brother Ryan. It would not be any sort of exaggeration to say that a lineup like this is simply not available anywhere else at similar types of events. Thank you, once again, AJ (and Gav). All three guests were superb - happy to stray from the "safe script", engaging and generous with their time throughout.

On a serious note, ex-President and club legend Chris Chapman also spoke to the room about our battle over the use of the Village Green and this was invaluable for getting our predicament out there and galvanising our supporters to express their views on this to UNSW. A story managed to appear in the media about the issue not long afterwards - thanks to some attending journos.

We also managed to secure a "wild card" at the last minute via Barry Ross, father of ex club psycho David (and, perhaps less famously, Rex Mossop's "sideline eye" from the days of Seven's Big League) in Irish comedian Brian Doyle. Brian's CV included performing for US Presidents and similar dignitary types and a lot of Australian TV. After a quiet word about our wide ranging set of audience ages, he delivered a hilarious and mercifully ribaldry free monologue which was a fine way to finish the morning.

As usual, the funds raised from the Breakfast go directly towards running our pre season UNSWCC Junior Academy, and also sending a young player to attend Sachin Baja's Global Cricket Academy in India, a truly unique cricketing and cultural experience, in September of each year.

Thanks to everyone who supports this event by attending and thanks also to our "dream team" of helpers - Andrew Jones, Henry, Paul Serov, Matt Sanders and Danny Bhandari.

And finally, thank you to Jim Maxwell for another superb MC job, which always glues the morning together beautifully with, ahem, a minimum of briefing beforehand!

**DAVID JEBB** 

### **US OPEN GOLF DAY AND BREAKFAST**

The 2016 UNSWCC US Open Golf Day and Breakfast was another resounding success. After forecasts of heavy rain over the days prior, we were surprised and very lucky to be greeted by clear skies and a sunny day on arrival at St Michaels Golf Club.

The day featured around 60 golfers made up of past players, current players, friends and sponsors and raised over \$2,500 for the Club. This money goes to toward the UNSW Young Cricketer support program and helps us to offer some financial support to new UNSW students moving from the country and settling into UNSW and city life.

It was fantastic to see one of our major sponsors, the Workspace Commercial Furniture team, take out the honours on the day. Peter Byrnes and Workspace have been to every UNSWCC Golf day held, and finally wrapped up a win (albeit with stacked team and a scratch marker). Peter has been and continues to be a wonderful supporter of UNSWCC and we thank him sincerely. The team win a free entry to next year's event to defend their title.

Second place on the day went to Damian Peppitt and his Insight Projects team. Insight Projects have also been incredibly supportive of the Club over 20+ years and continue to do so.

Longest drive prizes were won by Lewin Maladay who pumped out a 290m+ bomb on the 8th and Mark Nomchong who has also played at every UNSWCC Golf day ever held. Nearest the pin prizes went to Todd Hoare, Peter Tremain, Jim Dixon and Greg Bell.

I would like to thank Paul Serov for his help at registration, Bowie for running successful raffle and Robert and all the staff at St Michaels Golf Club who once again turned out the course in fantastic condition.

See you next year.

#### **MATT SANDERS**



The winning team from Workspace Commercial Furniture, perfectly led by their non-playing captain Peter Byrnes (second from left), fired a flawless 62 off the stick to easily win both the scratch and handicap prizes.

### **UNSW JUNIOR ACADEMY**

For the last few seasons, the Club has run a Junior Pre-Season Academy for selected young cricketers from Randwick Juniors Cricket Club. The initiative is part of the developing partnership between the Club and the RJCC to provide a development pathway for junior cricketers in the local area.

The Academy is designed to give talented cricketers from RJCC an opportunity to further develop their skills. It comprises approximately 50 young cricketers in the Under 12 to Under 16 age groups. RJCC select and invite the participants from their membership – it is usually those players who have been selected in the SEJCA representative teams for the upcoming season, plus a few more players who have been identified as having potential to play rep cricket. The Academy runs over 6-7 sessions during the pre-season, generally for a few hours immediately following the UNSWCC pre-season sessions (approx. 1.00-4.00pm). The sessions are primarily skills focussed but will also contain some fitness.

Player numbers were a little low this season, though there are plans to boost these numbers for next season, but feedback from players (and their parents) was that the learnt a great deal. Many thanks to the coaches – Corey Richards, Jake Turner, David Jebb, Joe Byrnes, Jack Manning-Bancroft and Raza Rizwan –for planning and running the sessions.

**PAUL SEROV** 

### **UNSW In2Cricket Academy**

The 2015/6 in2cricket season, under the watchful eye of coach David Jebb, was again very successful. In combination with Randwick Junior Cricket Club around 70 young boys and girls between 4yo and 8yo headed to the program every week to get a taste for cricket in fun and enjoyable environment. The challenge of dealing with so many kids is a great one, but Jebby and the coaching team managed to once again run some awesome sessions for the kids that hopefully sees them coming back for more.

In2cricket is an essential part of our junior development program with kids starting there and progressing through our pathway to Randwick Junior Cricket and onto UNSW in the future. Hopefully in coming years we will start to see our first crop of in2cricket kids stepping out for the Bumblebees in Green Shield, Grade Cricket and beyond.

The Club thanks David Jebb and all the coaches for the incredible contribution to UNSWCC, and all the kids and their parents for being involved.

MATT SANDERS

### **SNAKE ROOTER CUP**

Znother successful Snake Rooter Cup has been completed. This year it was won for the second year in a row by Corey's Gold Diggers! It was an amazing final with it going down to the second last ball. Rattler's Purple Haze were not disgraced.

A big thank you to you all for supporting Snake again this year. It is great to see everyone involved and enjoying a snag and a drink. Thanks to the Garlands - Umpire Geoff and Barman Matt for their great efforts on the night. To all who helped on the BBQ and Scored- Thank you! Thanks to all the parents and supporters who can along.

### **MURRAY STANTON**

Rd	Venue	Fmt	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	David Phillips	LO	Green Berets	7/76	8	Purple Haze	4/82	7
	South		Turner,Jake M	27*	(11)	Atallah, Marcus A	26*	(12)
			Howard,Oscar G H	26*	(15)	Manning Bancroft, Jack T	23	(9)
			Manning Bancroft, Jack T	2/10	1	Howard, Oscar G H	1/4	1
			Byrnes, Thomas A	1/8	1	Willis,Jack H	1/13	1
	Captain:		Turner, Jake M (Toss : Won)			Lupton, John C		
	Result:	Purple	Haze won with 6 balls to spare			·		
2	David Phillips	LO	Orange Peels	5/83	8	Gold Diggers	4/84	6.3
	South		Connolly, Joshua J	18	(9)	Wakim, Charles A	28*	(6)
			Ferrara, Alex	18	(11)	Melnyk,Anthony B	25*	(13)
			Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	1/2	1	Charlwood, Alexander G	1/13	1
			Melnyk, Anthony B	1/8	1			
	Captain:		de Silva, Pranesh D (Toss: Won)			Richards, Corey J		
	Result:	Gold D	iggers won with 9 balls to spare					
F	David Phillips	LO	Purple Haze	6/100	8	Gold Diggers	6/112	8
	South		Muraleedaran,Krijan	26*	(11)	Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	27*	(10)
			Batchelor,Oliver R	24*	(6)	Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	20*	(9)
			Melnyk,Anthony B	2/13	1	Batchelor,Oliver R	1/8	1
			Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	1/8	1	Byrnes,Thomas A	1/10	1
	Captain:		Lupton, John C (Toss: Won)			Richards, Corey J		
	Result:	Gold D	iggers won by 12 runs			-		

### SNAKE ROOTER CUP - CAREER STATISTICS (2007/08 - 2015/16)

# SNAKE ROOTER CUP - LEADING BATSMEN

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avge	50s	S/R	4s	6s
Wakim,Benjamin P	9	9	7	27*	147	73.50	0	229.69	13	9
Wakim, Charles A	9	9	2	32	124	17.71	0	169.86	15	4
Creed, Murray W	5	6	1	52*	106	21.20	1	143.24	13	1
Rogers, Thomas S	5	5	3	51*	101	50.50	1	150.75	11	4
Bhandari, Danny	6	6	0	31	88	14.67	0	107.32	9	0
Gavan, Joshua P	5	5	4	28*	85	85.00	0	197.67	5	6
Tremain, Christopher P	6	5	2	27	83	27.67	0	197.62	4	6
Walker, Nicholas J	3	3	1	29	61	30.50	0	145.24	7	2
Wells,Luke W P	3	3	2	26*	58	58.00	0	187.10	3	4
Melnyk, Anthony B	4	4	2	25*	54	27.00	0	180.00	7	2
du Plessis,Rico	3	3	1	26*	53	26.50	0	147.22	5	2
Raza,Syed B	4	3	2	24*	51	51.00	0	231.82	3	4
McKay, Stuart W	3	3	1	29*	51	25.50	0	137.84	4	1
Dawson, David G	8	5	1	22	50	12.50	0	116.28	7	1

### **SNAKE ROOTER CUP - LEADING BOWLERS**

Name	0	М	W	R	B/B	Avge	Econ	S/R	5wi
O'Brien, Christopher	8	0	6	47	3/16	7.83	5.88	8.00	0
Serov,Paul	8	0	6	68	5/27	11.33	8.50	8.00	1
Dawson, David G	16	0	6	136	3/22	22.67	8.77	15.50	0
Crowe,Murray P	4	0	5	17	3/7	3.40	4.43	4.60	0
Rea,Michael P	6	0	5	43	2/25	8.60	7.17	7.20	0
Wakim, Charles A	12	0	5	110	2/25	22.00	9.17	14.40	0
Atallah,Thomas G	3	0	4	31	2/9	7.75	10.33	4.50	0
Appleton,Mark S	9	0	4	61	2/10	15.25	6.78	13.50	0

### **SNAKE ROOTER CUP - LEADING FIELDERS**

Name	Cts Field	Cts WK	St.	Total Dismissals
Wakim,Benjamin P	2	3	2	7
Wakim, Charles A	5	0	1	6
de Silva, Chaanuk A	1	2	2	5
Edwards, Matthew J	5	-	-	5
Lindsay, William	3	0	1	4
Bowcock, Daniel S	4	-	-	4
Sanders, Matthew R	-	2	2	4
Lambros Andrew D	1	_	_	1

### **SNAKE ROOTER CUP - OTHER RECORDS**

Highest Individual Score:	52* (33)	MW Creed (for Presidents XI)	2010 / 11
Highest Team Score:	4/176 (16)	JD's Players	2007 / 08
Lowest Team Score (to Loose):	2/65 (7)	SRC - Gold	2013 / 14
Best Bowling Figures:	5/27 (4) -	P Seroy (for UNSWCC XI)	2010 / 11

# **COMBINED CLUB STATISTICS 2015/2016**

BATTING - Combined Club Statistics 2015/2016 (All Grades & Competitions - Grade,1LO,1T20,MC,PG & GS)

Overs Faced:
Runs Scored For:
6394.1
22976

Wickets Lost: Average / Wicket: Balls / Wicket: Runs / Over: Highest Score For: 982 23.40 39.07 3.59 8/422

Highest Score For:	8/422 - 1st Grade vs Manly Warringah (Rd7) 63 - 5th Grade vs Sydney University (Rd12)																
Lowest Score For: Name	63 -	5th Gra	ade vs <b>No</b>	Sydney HS	/ Univers	sity (Rd12 Avg	2) <b>50</b>	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Dawson,David G	18	19	3	169	961	60.06	6	2	58.31	107	8	4	22	4	1	3	1907
Batchelor,Oliver R	22	24	1	127	790	34.35	6	1	55.95	92	2	6			-	-	1245
Wakim,Benjamin P	18 17	19	1	91	775 698	43.06	7 2	2	67.27	93	3 4	5 4			2	2	1040
Wakim,Charles A Walker,Nicholas J	18	18 18	2	126 126*	673	38.78 42.06	5	1	73.63 81.97	82 64	24	12			1 1	-	1153 1094
Atallah,Marcus A	22	23	1	100	627	28.50	3	1	57.95	83	2	9			1	-	1639
Ali,Aadil M	16	16	-	162	572	35.75	2	1	65.97	67	8	10			1	-	918
Muraleedaran,Krijan	17 15	18 16	2	75 108	493 473	30.81	4 2	- 1	50.36	46 60	5 1	8 3			1	- 2	1133 643
Byrnes,Joseph J Rizwan,Raza	14	15	4	112	473 457	29.56 41.55	2	1	54.75 57.63	47	3	3 7			-	-	622
Ruffell,Freddie W A	16	17	2	54*	441	29.40	2	-	67.74	53	3	4			-	-	901
Mulvenna, Daniel R	12	15	4	100*	435	39.55	1	1	59.43	51	8	10			-	1	870
Gowland,Mitchell Maladay,Lewin R	13 17.5	14 17	- 4	132 48	426 399	30.43 30.69	2	1	70.88 64.04	50 39	3 4	8	47	4	2	- 5	817 1661
Nguyen,Sam James A D	12	13	2	79*	391	35.55	3	-	75.19	39	4	4	71	7	-	-	586
Rea,Michael P	15	16	4	95	383	31.92	2	-	63.52	33	7	13			-	1	1028
McLean, Brandon J	18	18	3	114	379	25.27	-	1	56.32	42	7	3			-	2	848
Jackson,Connor S Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	19 12	20 14	6	59 102	369 362	26.36 25.86	2 1	- 1	68.59 58.77	32 43	6 3	5 6			-	- 1	659 647
Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	20	20	3	69	358	21.06	1	-	53.59	41	5	2			2	1	573
Patel, Ankit	14.5	15	-	65	346	23.07	2	-	56.17	38	4	7			-	1	751
du Plessis,Rico	17	18	1	66 420*	331	19.47	3	-	65.03	41	4	7	46	7	-	-	631
Stanton,Murray J Gavan,Joshua P	14 13	15 16	3	120* 46	315 312	26.25 19.50	-	1	89.24 53.33	36 37	3 9	1 2	16	7	-	- 1	1034 392
Tanner, Nivek D	17.5	20	2	47	293	16.28	-	-	31.81	21	1	5			-	1	943
Bowcock, Daniel S	14	13	2	78	287	26.09	1	-	53.85	31	1	5			-	1	502
Voleti,Aditya	16	17	1	73	275	17.19	1	-	41.98	13	2	1			-	-	390
Henry,James A Stewart,Timothy J	16 10.5	17 10	3	49 44	268 255	19.14 25.50	-	-	51.34 51.52	23 27	1 1	8 2			-	-	353 450
Roach, Jack P	13	13	2	50	254	23.09	1	-	53.25	29	4	11			-	-	514
Maisey, William P	8	8	-	89	251	31.38	2	-	65.19	20	8	2			-	-	631
Hood, Philip J	14 12	15 12	- 1	93 70*	246 237	16.40 21.55	1	-	44.24 47.21	22 23	7	5 5	1	-	-	3	431
Gunning,Pyke O L Charlwood,Nicholas R	13	13	-	49	236	18.15	1	-	48.16	26 26	- 4	7			-	-	812 857
Ho,Gavin T	20	18	1	43	235	13.82	-	-	58.17	23	9	10			1	3	1100
Bhandari,Danny	11.5	14	-	74	226	16.14	1	-	43.13	19	-	7			-	1	566
Tan,Jonathan J H Thanabalasingam,Nirmalan R	10 12	11 13	2	104 63	224 216	20.36 19.64	- 1	1	73.93 46.06	25 23	4 3	1 2			-	1 1	460 506
Geraghty, Fionn P	14	17	-	49	210	12.35	-	-	52.76	16	-	3			1	-	333
Mellick, Joshua M	14	14	-	83	208	14.86	1	-	50.24	18	5	2			-	-	533
Turner, Jake M	18	15	2	36	207	15.92	-	-	95.39	24	5	1			1	-	1072
Melnyk,Anthony B Manning Bancroft,Jack T	15 8	18 9	1 1	30 83	200 197	11.76 24.63	- 1	-	38.17 62.74	18 23	3	5 2			-	1	790 642
Makin,Ryan W	12	14	1	68	192	14.77	1	-	53.93	17	1	7			-	1	657
Janzen,Nicholas R	10	11	4	41*	185	26.43	-	-	64.01	17	1	6			2	2	1019
Redman, Andrew J	4 9	5 7	1 1	94* 54	172 170	43.00	2	-	61.87	14	4 4	- 5	7	1	-	2	462 505
Samarasinghe,Chamath S Nayak,Agnish	11	, 12	-	54 48	169	28.33 14.08	1	-	91.89 52.98	19 9	4	5 4			-	1	308
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	13	13	2	34*	168	15.27	-	-	54.19	17	4	3			1	2	453
Crichton,Samuel L S	3	5	2	68*	149	49.67	1	-	126.27	18	7	4			-	1	504
McCormick,Sam A Stening,Hamish F	13 12	11 13	1 2	56 41	147 140	14.70 12.73	1	-	70.00 34.06	19 12	2	3	18 14	4 3	-	4 4	787 795
Xu,Alan	10	10	-	57	133	13.30	1	-	31.67	6	-	2	1	-	1	-	298
McLean, Hayden C	23	13	5	21	131	16.38	-	-	35.03	6	-	6			1	3	895
Senaratha, Nikhil R A	10	11	-	53	130	11.82	1	-	32.50	11	-	6	40	_	-	1	350
Bascaran,Kabilan Mack,Katie M	10 9.5	9 12	1 -	32 38	125 115	15.63 9.58	-	-	59.52 31.08	8 7	5 -	- 1	12	5	-	2 1	605 235
Connolly, Joshua J	18	14	8	24	112	18.67	-	-	49.78	11	-	10			-	1	955
Howard, Oscar G H	14	13	6	50*	111	15.86	1	-	93.28	11	7	2			-	-	1386
de Silva,Pranesh D	5 20	5	-	33	109	21.80	-	-	45.61	3	-	2 4			-	2	179
Venianakis, John A Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	16.5	11 11	6 3	22 32*	107 107	21.40 13.38	-	-	47.98 47.56	6 9	- 2	5			-	-	1305 832
Coleman, Andrew J	11	9	3	28	101	16.83	-	-	46.98	9	2	-	26	2	-	2	976
Tripathi, Abhishek	11	8	2	25	97	16.17	-	-	73.48	10	1	-			-	1	257
Ward,Anthony L Bvrnes.Thomas A	14	13 14	5	32*	96	12.00	-	-	40.51	11	-	4	10		-	1	1203
De Soysa,Shevantha T	13.5 5	5	1 -	26 82	92 89	7.08 17.80	1	-	22.77 65.44	4 14	-	- 2	19	-	1 -	3	662 184
Shankar, Siddharth	13	9	3	29	88	14.67	-	-	41.71	7	1	4			1	-	553
Karunasinghe, Vinod	12	11	1	35	81	8.10	-	-	17.53	4	-	5			-	1	410
Atallah,Thomas G Charlwood,Alexander G	16 12	11 12	3 3	15 35	77 77	9.63 8.56	-	-	42.78 37.56	5 10	- 2	5 4			-	-	467 1052
Hoque,Saief	12	9	1	20	72	9.00	-	-	43.64	7	-	8			-	-	657
Bryson,Matthew T	7	6	1	23*	67	13.40	-	-	47.18	7	1	1			-	-	507
Ward, Christopher N	13	9	4	24*	67	13.40	-	-	48.20	7	1	10			1	1	977
Ferrara,Alex Garland,Matthew B J	6 11.5	7 8	1 2	26 16*	67 65	11.17 10.83	-	-	29.52 30.66	3 5	-	3 4			-	-	147 345
Canana, Matariow D 0		3	-	.0	33	10.00			55.00	3		т					0.0

Appleton,Mark S	Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Lochner, Nicholas R Gilmore, Angus H G 4 2 29' 54 27.00 - 75.00 2 - 2 - 2 - 160 Gilmore, Angus H G 4 2 29' 54 27.00 - 75.00 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 339 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 80.95 6 - 8 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 80.95 6 - 9 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 93.83 3 - 9 - 93.66 1 - 4 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 93.66 6 1 - 4 - 91 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 - 9 - 8 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 - 9 - 8 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 20' 52 10.40 - 9 - 95.88 8 4 - 9 8 1 - 9 15 White, Declan O D 18.5 9 4 2	Appleton,Mark S			4	16*	63	10.50	-	-	27.16	4	1				-	1	1403
Glimore, Angus H Mile, Declan O D  18.5 9 4 20° 52 10.40 - 33.55 3 - 6	Lupton, John C	13	12	2	17	61	6.10	-	-	28.77	5	1	2			-	-	741
White Declan O D         18.5         9         4         20°         52         10.40         -         -         33.55         3         -         6         -         -         1182           Senarath, Diluka K         2         2         2         2         5         51         25.50         -         80.33.55         3         -         6         -         91           Vanos, Jeremy A         7         5         1         25         50         12.50         -         39.37         3         -         3         1         -         220           Morgan, Jack A D         10         8         5         15°         46         15.33         -         35.66         1         4         -         1         481           Hardwicke-Owen, Jack         5         3         -         19         38         9.50         -         55.88         4         -         -         8         1         1         1         223           Dickens, Jethro P         14         11         11         1         1         1         1         1         2         2         2         2         2         2         2	Lochner, Nicholas R	2			55	55		1	-			-				-	-	
Senarth Diluka K   2   2   2   2   2   2   5   5   25.50   3   80.95   6   0   0   0   0   0	Gilmore,Angus H	6	4	2	29*	54	27.00	-	-	75.00	2	-	2			-	2	339
Vanos_Jeremy A	White, Declan O D	18.5	9	4	20*	52	10.40	-	-	33.55	3	-	6			-	-	1182
Morgan, Jack \(^1\) A D	Senarath, Diluka K	2	2	-	29	51	25.50	-	-	80.95	6	-	-			-	-	91
Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	Vanos, Jeremy A	7	5	1	25	50	12.50	-	-	39.37	3	-	3			1	-	220
Fely, Benjamin L  5 4 4 - 19 38 9.50 - 55.88 4 - 6 8 1 - 1 263 Carvosso, Rhys  6 5 3 12 34 17.00 - 22.54 2 - 6 6 - 324 Dickens, Jethro P  14 11 3 13 32 4.00 - 22.54 2 - 6 6 - 324 Byrnes, Thomas D  3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 22.54 2 - 6 6 - 3 61 Byrnes, Thomas D  3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 25.43 9 1 - 6 - 6 6 - 6 6 Byrnes, Thomas D  3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 54.39 1 - 6 - 6 6 - 6 6 Byrnes, Thomas D  3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 54.39 1 - 6 - 6 6 - 6 6 Byrnes, Thomas D  3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 55.88 3 - 7 6 6 6 - 6 6 Byrnes, Thomas D  3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 6 54.39 1 - 6 - 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	Morgan, Jack A D	10	8	5	15*	46	15.33	-	-	35.66	1	-	4			-	1	481
Carvosso, Rhys  6 5 3 12 34 17.00 - 28.10 3 - 2 - 324  Dickens, Jethro P  14 11 3 13 32 4.00 - 22.54 2 - 6  Styrnes, Thomas D  3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 25.439 1 6  Attenborough, Jack R K  3 3 5 - 18 31 6.20 - 20.98 - 2 2 - 6  Attenborough, Jack R K  3 3 3 - 17 30 10.00 - 20.98 - 2 2  8 0 Mu, Ryan  6 4 1 19* 28 9.33 - 75.68 3 2  Siu, Daniel H  1 1 1 - 27 27 27 27.00 - 38.03 3 2  27 27 28 1.00 - 22.58 2 - 2  Page, Benjamin P  5 3 2 13 21 21.00 - 22.58 2 - 2  Brain-Holliday, Blaize M  19 6 3 10 13 4.33 - 30.02 3 - 1  Brain-Holliday, Blaize M  19 6 3 10 13 4.33 - 30.00 1 1 - 6  Brain-Holliday, Blaize M  10 1 1 - 12 12 12.00 - 38.51 1 - 6  11 1 - 12 12 12.00 - 12.00 1 1 - 6  Brain-Holliday, Blaize M  11 1 - 12 12 12.00 - 12.00 1 1 - 6  Brain-Holliday, Blaize M  10 1 1 - 12 12 12.00 - 12.00 1 1 - 6  Brain-Holliday, Blaize M  11 1 - 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Hardwicke-Owen, Jack	5	3	-	21	43	14.33	-	-	59.72	1	1	4			-	-	153
Dickens_Jethro P	Fely,Benjamin L	5	4	-	19	38	9.50	-	-	55.88	4	-	-	8	1	-	1	263
Byrnes, Thomas D	Carvosso,Rhys	6	5	3	12	34	17.00	-	-	28.10	3	-	2			-	-	324
Byrnes,Thomas D	Dickens, Jethro P	14	11	3	13	32	4.00	-	-	22.54	2	-	6			-	-	456
Wu,Ryan         6         4         1         19*         28         9.33         -         75.68         3         -         -         1         368           Jones, Dean N         15         11         5         14*         28         4.67*         -         46.67*         5         1         4         -         -         573           Siu, Daniel H         1         1         -         27         27         27.00         -         38.03         3         -         -         -         573           Page, Benjamin P         5         3         2         13         21         21.00         -         22.58         2         -         2         -         1         1         -         36           Irving-Holliday, Blaize M         19         6         3         10         13         4.33         -         30.95         1         -         6         1         -         98           Shafiq, Wahab         1         1         -         12         12         12.00         -         85.71         -         6         1         1         998           Letton, Benjamin J         1         1		3	5	-	18	31	6.20	-	-	54.39	1	-	-			-	-	61
Jones, Dean N  15 11 5 14* 28 4.67 - 46.67 5 1 4  Siu, Daniel H  1 1 - 27 27 27.00 - 38.03 3 27  Page, Benjamin P  5 3 2 13 21 21.00 - 22.58 2 - 2 - 2 - 1 121  Hansen, Mark A  1 1 1 - 16 16 16.00 - 39.02 3 - 1 - 6 1 - 998  Shafiq, Wahab  1 1 1 - 12 12 12.00 - 120.00 1 1 - 6 1 - 998  Shafiq, Wahab  1 1 1 - 11 11 11.00 - 47.83 1 3 1 - 92  Letton, Benjamin J  1 1 1 - 11 11 11.00 - 47.83 1 3 1 - 92  Letton, Benjamin P  2 3 - 7 11 3.67 - 47.83 1 3 1 21  Stanton, Matthew H T  13 7 2 4 11 2.20 - 14.67 1 - 1 1 1 1 5 56  Karmakar, Bikram P  2 3 - 6 10 3.33 - 10.20 - 10.00 1 - 1 - 1 1 1 5 56  Karmakar, Bikram P  2 3 - 6 10 3.33 - 32.26 2 - 2 10.00 1 - 10.00 1 - 10.00 1 - 10.00 1 - 10.00 1 - 10.0		3	3	-	17	30	10.00	-	-	20.98	-	-	2			-	-	80
Jones, Dean N   15	Wu.Rvan	6	4	1	19*	28	9.33	-	-	75.68	3	-	-			-	1	368
Siu, Daniel H		15	11	5	14*	28	4.67	-	-	46.67		1	4			-	-	573
Page, Benjamin P         5         3         2         13         21         21.00         -         -         22.58         2         -         2         -         1         121           Hansen, Mark A         1         1         1         -         16         16         16.00         -         -         39.02         3         -         1         -         -         36           Irving-Holliday, Blaize M         19         6         3         10         13         4.33         -         30.95         1         -         6         1         -         998           Shafiq, Wahab         1         1         -         12         12.00         -         -         120.00         1         1         -         -         92           Letton, Benjamin J         1         1         1         -         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         11         12.00         -         47.83         1         -         -         11         1         -         21         11		1	1	-	27	27	27.00	-	-	38.03	3	-	-			-	-	27
Hansen,Mark A		5	3	2	13	21		-	-			-	2			-	1	121
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M		1	1	-	16	16	16.00	-	-	39.02	3	-	1			-	-	36
Shafiq,Wahab		19	6	3	10	13	4.33	-	-	30.95	1	-	6			1	_	998
de Silva, Chaanuk A         2         2         1         10*         12         12.00         -         85.71         -         -         3         1         -         92           Letton, Benjamin J         1         1         1         -         11         11         11.00         -         47.83         1         -         -         -         11           Batey, Callum W         2         3         -         7         11         3.67         -         47.83         1         -         -         -         11           Stanton, Matthew H T         13         7         2         4         11         2.20         -         14.67         1         -         1         1         -         536           Karmakar, Bikram P         2         3         -         6         10         3.33         -         32.26         2         -         -         10           Tuckfield, Hugo F         14.5         12         4         5*         10         1.25         -         100.00         -         -         790           Greenberg, Jake L         1         1         1         5*         5         5.00		1	1	-	12	12	12.00	-	-	120.00	1	1	-			-	-	12
Letton, Benjamin J Batey, Callum W 2 3 - 7 11 3.67 - 47.83 1 11 Batey, Callum W 13 7 2 4 11 2.20 - 14.67 1 - 1 1 1 - 536 Karmakar, Bikram P 2 3 - 6 10 3.33 - 32.26 2 10 Tuckfield, Hugo F 14.5 12 4 5* 10 1.25 - 10.20 4 4 790 Greenberg, Jake L 1 1 1 5* 5 5 100.00 4 4 790 Greenberg, Jake L 1 1 1 5* 5 5 5 100.00 4 4 790 Greenberg, Jake L 1 1 1 5* 5 5 5 100.00 4 4 790 Greenberg, Jake L 1 1 1 - 5 5 5 5.00 71.43 1 5 5 Furlong, Samuel P 1 1 - 4 4 4 4.00 17.39 15 Stening, Thomas L 3 2 2 3* 3 14.29 33 Bennett, Joshua M 13 6 3 2* 3 1.00 - 5 5.88 3 3 - 513 Lucas, Sam R E 1.5 1 - 1 1 1.00 5.88 1 1 - 1 51 Dabarera, Ramesh L 2 1 1 1 1 1.00 5.88 1 1 - 101 Clark, Bradley J 1 1 1 - 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 10 Kishor, Kamal 1 1 1 - 0 0 0 0.000 0.000		2	2	1	10*	12		-	-		-	-	-	3	1	-	-	92
Batey, Callum W         2         3         -         7         11         3.67         -         47.83         1         -         -         -         21           Stanton, Matthew H T         13         7         2         4         11         2.20         -         14.67         1         -         1         1         -         536           Karmakar, Bikram P         2         3         -         6         10         3.33         -         32.26         2         -         -         10           Tuckfield, Hugo F         14.5         12         4         5*         10         1.25         -         100.00         -         -         4         -         790           Greenberg, Jake L         1         1         1         5*         5         5         -         -         100.00         -         -         -         790           Greenberg, Jake L         1         1         1         5*         5         5         0         -         71.43         1         -         -         -         790           Greenberg, Jake L         1         1         1         5         5         5				-	11			-	-		1	-	-			-	-	
Stanton, Matthew H T         13         7         2         4         11         2.20         -         14.67         1         -         1         -         536           Karmakar, Bikram P         2         3         -         6         10         3.33         -         -         32.26         2         -         -         -         10           Tuckfield, Hugo F         14.5         12         4         5*         10         1.25         -         10.20         -         4         -         -         790           Greenberg, Jake L         1         1         1         5*         5         5         -         -         100.00         -         -         4         -         -         790           Greenberg, Jake L         1         1         1         5*         5         5         5         0         -         71.43         1         -         4         4         4.00         -         71.43         1         -         -         4         4         4.00         -         17.39         -         -         -         4         4         5         15         1         1         1.00		2	3	-	7	11	3.67	-	-		1	-	-			-	-	21
Karmakar, Bikram P         2         3         -         6         10         3.33         -         32.26         2         -         -         -         10           Tuckfield, Hugo F         14.5         12         4         5*         10         1.25         -         10.20         -         -         4         -         -         790           Greenberg, Jake L         1         1         1         5*         5         -         -         100.00         -         -         -         5         5           Furlong, Samuel P         1         1         -         5         5         5.00         -         71.43         1         -         -         -         5           Jones, Andrew C         1         1         -         4         4         4.00         -         717.39         -         -         -         -         15           Jones, Andrew C         1         1         -         4         4         4.00         -         17.39         -         -         -         -         -         4           Stening, Thomas L         3         2         2         3*         1.00				2				-	-		1	-	1			1	-	
Tuckfield, Hugo F Greenberg, Jake L 1		2	3	-	6	10	3.33	-	-	32.26	2	-	-			-	-	10
Greenberg, Jake L  1 1 1 5* 5 5 100.00 5  Furlong, Samuel P  1 1 1 - 5 5 5 5.00 - 71.43 1 15  Jones, Andrew C  1 1 1 - 4 4 4 4.00 - 173.39 4  Stening, Thomas L  Sennett, Joshua M  13 6 3 2* 3 1.00 - 5.88 - 3 3 - 513  Lucas, Sam R E  1.5 1 - 1 1 1 1.00 - 5.88 - 1 1 - 1 51  Dabarera, Ramesh L  2 1 - 1 1 1 1.00 - 5.88 - 1 1 - 1 51  Clark, Bradley J  Kishor, Kamal  1 1 - 0 0 0 0.00 - 0.00 0.00				4				-	-			-	4			-	-	
Furlong, Samuel P		-		1				-	-		_	-	-			-	-	
Jones, Andrew C         1         1         -         4         4         4.00         -         -         17.39         -         -         -         -         4         4         4.00         -         -         17.39         -         -         -         -         4         4         4.00         -         -         17.39         -         33         -         -         -         5.88         -         -         3         -         -         513           Lucas, Sam R E         1.5         1         -         1         1.00         -         -         5.88         -         -         3         -         -         513           Lucas, Sam R E         1.5         1         -         1         1.00         -         -         9.09         -         -         1         1         51         -         -         -         -         - <td< td=""><td></td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td>5.00</td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td></td><td>1</td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td></td></td<>		1	1	-			5.00	-	-		1	-	-			-	-	
Stening, Thomas L       3       2       2       3*       3       -       -       14.29       -       -       -       -       33         Bennett, Joshua M       13       6       3       2*       3       1.00       -       -       5.88       -       -       3       -       -       513         Lucas, Sam R E       1.5       1       -       1       1       1.00       -       -       5.88       -       -       1       51         Dabarera, Ramesh L       2       1       -       1       1       1.00       -       -       9.09       -       -       1       -       101         Clark, Bradley J       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       0.00       - <td></td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>_</td> <td>-</td> <td></td>		1	1	-				-	-		-	-	-			_	-	
Bennett, Joshua M  13 6 3 2* 3 1.00 5.88 3  - 513  Lucas, Sam R E  1.5 1 - 1 1 1 1.00 5.88 1 1 - 1 51  Dabarera, Ramesh L  2 1 - 1 1 1 1.00 9.09 1 - 1 - 101  Clark, Bradley J  1 1 - 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00  Kishor, Kamal  1 1 - 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00  Jamil, Hassan  1 1 1 - 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 10  Richards, Corey J  1 1 1 0* 0 0.00 0.00  Byrnes, Peter A  1 1 1 0* 0 0.00 1 20  Stone, Jacob A		3		2		3		-	-		-	-	-			-	-	
Lucas, Sam R E       1.5       1       -       1       1       1.00       -       -       5.88       -       -       1       51         Dabarera, Ramesh L       2       1       -       1       1       1.00       -       -       9.09       -       -       1       -       101         Clark, Bradley J       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       0.00       -       -       -       -       -       -       101         Kishor, Kamal       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       -       -       -       -       10         Jamil, Hassan       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       -       -       -       10         Richards, Corey J       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       <							1 00	_	_		_	_	3			-	_	
Dabarera,Ramesh L       2       1       -       1       1       1.00       -       -       9.09       -       -       1       -       101         Clark,Bradley J       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       0.00       -       <			-					-	-		-	-				_	1	
Clark,Bradley J       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -		-	1	_	1	1		_	_		_	_	1			_		
Kishor,Kamal       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       -       -       -       -       10         Jamil,Hassan       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       -       -       -       10         Richards,Corey J       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       -       -       -       -       -         Byrnes,Peter A       1       1       1       0*       0       -       -       -       0.00       -       -       1       -       -       -       20         Stone,Jacob A       1       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       1       -       -       -       40			1	_	-	0		_	_		_	_	-			_	_	
Jamil, Hassan       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -       -       -       -       -       10         Richards, Corey J       1       1       -       0       0       0.00       -			-								_	_	_			_	_	
Richards, Corey J			-	-	-	-		-	-		_	-	-			-	-	
Byrnes,Peter A 1 1 1 0* 0 0.00 1 - 20 Stone,Jacob A 1 1 40			-		-	-		_			_	_	_			_	_	
Stone, Jacob A         1         -         -         -         -         -         -         40			-	1		-		_	_		_	_	1			_	_	
			-	-	-	-	_	_	_	-	_	_				_	_	
	Extras	' '				1994							•					10

 BOWLING - Combined Club Statistics 2015/2016 (All Grades & Competitions - Grade,1LO,1T20,MC,PG & GS)

 Overs Bowled:
 6656.5

 Runs Scored Against:
 23659

 Wickets Taken:
 1036

 Average / Wicket:
 22.84

 Balls / Wicket:
 39.32

 Runs / Over:
 3.49

 Highest Score Against:
 515 - 6th Grade vs Penrith (SF)

 Lowest Score Against:
 38 - 4th Grade vs Randwick-Petersham (Rd14)

 Name
 O
 M
 W
 R
 Best
 Avg
 Econ
 S/R
 5wi

LOWOOL GOOTO / Igainot.					nonam (rt						
Name	0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Appleton,Mark S	174	39	41	535	6/4	13.05	3.07	25.46	1	5	-
Venianakis, John A	207	38	40	644	6/75	16.10	3.11	31.05	1	21	12
Howard,Oscar G H	211.2	51	38	582	5/24	15.32	2.75	33.37	3	32	9
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	207.4	34	38	713	5/86	18.76	3.43	32.79	1	25	32
White, Declan O D	242	36	37	821	5/54	22.19	3.39	39.24	1	43	-
Ward, Anthony L	191.2	23	35	673	6/21	19.23	3.52	32.80	1	40	2
McLean, Hayden C	248.5	57	33	702	3/16	21.27	2.82	45.24	-	20	10
Atallah, Marcus A	311.4	78	33	927	4/44	28.09	2.97	56.67	-	5	1
Turner, Jake M	242	38	32	1033	4/55	32.28	4.27	45.38	-	6	50
Charlwood, Alexander G	164	40	29	428	7/36	14.76	2.61	33.93	1	6	1
Tuckfield,Hugo F	163.4	31	27	528	4/46	19.56	3.23	36.37	-	25	3
Connolly, Joshua J	298.5	33	26	1107	5/79	42.58	3.70	68.96	1	5	-
Lupton, John C	123.4	26	25	363	4/20	14.52	2.94	29.68	-	98	1
Ward, Christopher N	166.2	32	24	539	5/75	22.46	3.24	41.58	1	10	-
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	130.2	18	22	456	4/54	20.73	3.50	35.55	-	71	5
Ho,Gavin T	165.1	17	22	628	3/17	28.55	3.80	45.05	-	12	5
Janzen, Nicholas R	158	22	21	553	5/27	26.33	3.50	45.14	1	13	1
Melnyk, Anthony B	114.1	30	19	303	3/9	15.95	2.65	36.05	-	8	2
Jones, Dean N	144	27	18	506	3/48	28.11	3.51	48.00	-	28	5
Stanton, Matthew H T	143	28	18	520	4/73	28.89	3.64	47.67	-	7	5
Tanner, Nivek D	91	19	17	287	5/22	16.88	3.15	32.12	1	21	3
McLean,Brandon J	131	10	17	579	3/76	34.06	4.42	46.24	-	10	8
Dickens, Jethro P	161.5	29	16	546	2/9	34.13	3.37	60.69	-	13	5
Bennett, Joshua M	140.5	23	16	561	4/29	35.06	3.98	52.81	-	3	5
Morgan, Jack A D	80.2	20	15	310	3/21	20.67	3.86	32.13	-	9	3
Charlwood, Nicholas R	93.4	18	15	353	5/38	23.53	3.77	37.47	1	24	-
Gunning,Pyke O L	45.5	5	14	175	4/25	12.50	3.82	19.64	-	44	3
Hoque, Saief	111.3	24	14	420	5/32	30.00	3.77	47.79	1	14	6
Rizwan,Raza	69.5	16	13	210	4/47	16.15	3.01	32.23	-	2	4
Bryson,Matthew T	36.5	6	12	124	5/31	10.33	3.37	18.42	1	10	4
Ruffell,Freddie W A	84.3	14	12	296	2/3	24.67	3.50	42.25	-	22	16
Rea, Michael P	83.2	15	12	335	2/25	27.92	4.02	41.67	-	40	2
Manning Bancroft, Jack T	78.1	8	12	349	4/36	29.08	4.46	39.08	-	16	1
Wu,Ryan	36	11	11	110	5/19	10.00	3.06	19.64	1	10	1
Maisey,William P	78	21	11	211	4/40	19.18	2.71	42.55	-	41	-
Shankar, Siddharth	111.2	24	11	333	4/52	30.27	2.99	60.73	-	12	17

Name	0	М	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Karunasinghe, Vinod	111	20	10	389	2/19	38.90	3.50	66.60	-	32	-
Atallah,Thomas G	179.2	51	10	393	3/17	39.30	2.19	107.60	-	2	-
Crichton, Samuel L S	32	8	9	95	4/6	10.56	2.97	21.33	-	2	2
Makin,Ryan W	24	2	9	109	5/34	12.11	4.54	16.00	1	12	4
Muraleedaran, Krijan	41	5	9	177	5/53	19.67	4.32	27.33	1	8	1
Gilmore, Angus H	61	8	9	219	3/43	24.33	3.59	40.67	-	7	11
Carvosso, Rhys	59.4	10	9	252	3/45	28.00	4.22	39.78	_	12	-
Garland, Matthew B J	108.1	33	9	264	2/20	29.33	2.44	72.11	_	23	1
Mellick, Joshua M	46.3	7	8	191	3/26	23.88	4.11	34.88	-	10	-
Samarasinghe, Chamath S	104.2	31	8	197	2/19	24.63	1.89	78.25	_	32	3
Thanabalasingam,Nirmalan R	63.3	15	7	175	3/37	25.00	2.76	54.43	_	1	1
du Plessis,Rico	76.4	13	7	258	2/15	36.86	3.37	65.71	_	-	1
Patel.Ankit	49.2	9	6	179	3/68	29.83	3.63	49.33	_	1	5
Tripathi, Abhishek	85.3	11	6	316	2/55	52.67	3.70	85.50	_	30	-
Stewart, Timothy J	41	18	5	81	3/17	16.20	1.98	49.20	_	4	_
Wakim, Charles A	21	3	4	66	3/33	16.50	3.14	31.50	_	-	_
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	24	5	4	86	3/15	21.50	3.58	36.00	_	_	_
Bhandari, Danny	20	4	4	87	3/24	21.75	4.35	30.00	_	15	_
Vanos,Jeremy A	22	2	4	93	2/33	23.25	4.23	33.00	_	1	2
Tan, Jonathan J H	39.2	8	4	116	2/17	29.00	2.95	59.00	_	7	-
Dabarera,Ramesh L	12	1	3	33	2/19	11.00	2.75	24.00	_	4	_
Mack, Katie M	17		3	81	1/15	27.00	4.76	34.00	_	4	7
Mulvenna, Daniel R	28.3	1	3	129	1/4	43.00	4.53	57.00	_	4	2
Ali.Aadil M	46.1	2	3	228	1/20	76.00	4.94	92.33	_	2	-
Page,Benjamin P	18	2	2	70	1/18	35.00	3.89	54.00	-	3	-
Senarath,Diluka K	17	2	2	74	2/38	37.00	4.35	51.00	_	2	2
Stening,Hamish F	27.2	8	2	74	1/11	37.00	2.71	82.00	_	3	-
Lochner, Nicholas R	21	3	2	77	1/38	38.50	3.67	63.00	_	2	1
Geraghty, Fionn P	20	1	2	117	1/21	58.50	5.85	60.00	_	4	2
Nayak,Agnish	1.1	1	1	0	1/0	0.00	0.00	7.00	-	-	-
Bowcock,Daniel S	3	1	1	5	1/5	5.00	1.67	18.00			-
Stone, Jacob A	8	3	1	27	1/27	27.00	3.38	48.00	_	3	_
Lucas,Sam R E	8	-	1	33	1/33	33.00	4.13	48.00	-	-	1
de Silva.Pranesh D	11		1	45	1/33	45.00	4.09	66.00	-	4	1
Hardwicke-Owen.Jack	17	4	1	80	1/32	80.00	4.71	102.00		7	1
Stening, Thomas L	19.2	2	1	80	1/17	80.00	4.14	116.00	-	1	2
Batchelor.Oliver R	15.2	2	1	94	1/59	94.00	6.27	90.00	-	5	1
Voleti,Aditya	3	-		6	0/6	-	2.00	90.00		-	
Furlong,Samuel P	12	3	-	34	0/34	-	2.83	-			
Kishor,Kamal	7	- -	-	20	0/34	-	2.86	-	-	1	-
Gowland, Mitchell	10	-	-	40	0/20	-	4.00	-		'	-
	10	-	-	40	0/6		4.00	-	-	-	-
Henry, James A		-				-		-			
Shafiq,Wahab	6	-	-	31	0/31	-	5.17	-	-	5	-
Nguyen,Sam James A D	-	-	-	6	0/6	-	6.00	-	-	-	1
Jamil,Hassan	5	-	-	35	0/35	-	7.00	-	-	9	-
Xu,Alan	1	-	-	7	0/7	-	7.00	-	-	-	-
Walker, Nicholas J	2	-	-	16	0/16	-	8.00	-	-	-	-
Siu,Daniel H	1	-	-	10	0/10	-	10.00	-	-	-	-
Absent			4								
Extras				691							

PARTNERSHIPS - Combined Club Statistics 2015/2016 (All Grades & Competitions - Grade,1LO,1T20,MC,TCC,PG & GS)

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Gr	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	PG4	Northern Districts	PG	Ali,Aadil M	71	Batchelor,Oliver R	127	144
	3	Blacktown	1	du Plessis,Rico	65	Ali,Aadil M	162	130
	12	Georges River	6G	Stewart, Timothy J	22	Mellick, Joshua M	83	110
2nd	3	Blacktown	1	Ali,Aadil M	162	Dawson, David G	87	166
	11	Gordon	2	Gowland,Mitchell	80	Batchelor,Oliver R	65	150
	14	Gordon	6B	Karunasinghe, Vinod	26	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	99	115
	5	Fairfield-Liverpool	1	Ali,Aadil M	72	Dawson, David G	53	112
	14	Randwick-Petersham	1	Wakim,Charles A	44	Gowland,Mitchell	132	106
	10	Hawkesbury	6G	Nguyen,Sam James A D	51	Rea,Michael P	95	102
	11	Randwick-Petersham (Green)	6G	Stewart, Timothy J	30	Nguyen,Sam James A D	79*	101
3rd	7	Manly Warringah	1	Wakim,Charles A	126	Dawson, David G	169	259
	4	Hawkesbury	1	Dawson, David G	86	Wakim, Charles A	108	177
	QF	Sutherland	2	Atallah,Marcus A	65	Rizwan,Raza	112	129
	3	Gordon	6G	Muraleedaran,Krijan	58	Maisey,William P	89	118
	14	Randwick-Petersham	4	Rea,Michael P	49	Mulvenna, Daniel R	100*	112
4th	6	Western Suburbs	2	Atallah,Marcus A	100	McLean,Brandon J	114	191
	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Dawson, David G	56	Wakim,Benjamin P	91	143
	12	Sydney University	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	72*	Dawson, David G	43*	122*
	2	St.George	5	Hood,Philip J	93	Mulvenna, Daniel R	27	112
	14	Randwick-Petersham	4	Crichton,Samuel L S	68*	Mulvenna, Daniel R	100*	108*
	15	North Sydney	5	Melnyk,Anthony B	29	Redman, Andrew J	94*	107
5th	1	Bankstown	3	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	41	Manning Bancroft, Jack T	83	103
	10	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Wakim,Benjamin P	62	Walker, Nicholas J	52	100
6th	14	Hawkesbury	6G	Samarasinghe,Chamath S	54	Makin,Ryan W	68	100
7th	6	University of NSW (Gold)	6B	Tan,Jonathan J H	104	Janzen, Nicholas R	32*	76
8th	13	Eastern Suburbs	1	Turner,Jake M	28	Walker, Nicholas J	126*	66
9th	7	Manly Warringah	5	Charlwood, Alexander G	35	Howard,Oscar G H	50*	72
10th	7	Manly Warringah	4	Tripathi, Abhishek	25	Ward, Christopher N	24*	49

Partners!	nip Averag	ges							
Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg	Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	124	-	3147	25.38	6th	108	7	1852	18.34
2nd	124	1	3510	28.54	7th	98	5	1670	17.96
3rd	123	2	3915	32.36	8th	93	13	1351	16.89
4th	121	6	3426	29.79	9th	76	7	863	12.51
5th	114	4	2565	23.32	10th	67	12	677	12.31

Bat 1	Bat 2	Inn	NO	Highest P/S	Total Runs	Avg
Dawson, David G	Wakim, Charles A	15	0	259	871	58.07
Dawson, David G	Wakim, Benjamin P	10	1	143	517	57.44
Wakim,Benjamin P	Walker, Nicholas J	9	0	100	387	43.00
Ali,Aadil M	Dawson, David G	5	0	166	385	77.00
Ali,Aadil M	du Plessis,Rico	8	0	130	369	46.12
Batchelor,Oliver R	Ruffell,Freddie W A	12	0	74	288	24.00
Atallah,Marcus A	McLean,Brandon J	3	0	191	260	86.67
Byrnes,Joseph J	Rizwan,Raza	7	0	80	243	34.71
Atallah,Marcus A	Batchelor,Oliver R	6	1	79	212	42.40
Bhandari, Danny	Ruffell,Freddie W A	8	0	58	212	26.50
Ali,Aadil M	Batchelor,Oliver R	5	0	144	210	42.00
Atallah,Marcus A	Byrnes, Joseph J	4	0	98	208	52.00
Maisey, William P	Muraleedaran,Krijan	2	0	118	200	100.00
Nguyen,Sam James A D	Stewart, Timothy J	4	0	101	196	49.00
Gowland, Mitchell	Rizwan,Raza	3	0	93	189	63.00
Wakim,Benjamin P	Wakim,Charles A	6	0	70	189	31.50
Gowland, Mitchell	Wakim,Charles A	4	0	106	184	46.00
Batchelor,Oliver R	Jackson, Connor S	4	0	92	179	44.75
Batchelor,Oliver R	Byrnes,Joseph J	6	0	74	178	29.67
Melnyk,Anthony B	Redman,Andrew J	2	0	107	177	88.50
Atallah,Marcus A	Rizwan,Raza	3	0	129	177	59.00
Gavan, Joshua P	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	6	0	88	171	28.50
Patel,Ankit	Thanabalasingam,Nirmalan R	4	0	68	169	42.25
Crichton,Samuel L S	Mulvenna,Daniel R	4	1	108*	164	54.67
Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	Patel, Ankit	4	0	77	164	41.00
Connolly, Joshua J	Walker, Nicholas J	5	1	52	155	38.75
Mellick, Joshua M	Stewart, Timothy J	4	0	110	153	38.25
Turner, Jake M	Walker,Nicholas J Batchelor,Oliver R	5 1	0	66 150	151 150	30.20
Gowland,Mitchell Dawson,David G	du Plessis.Rico	6	0	82		150.00
Rea,Michael P	Tanner, Nivek D	3	0	85	144 140	24.00 46.67
de Silva,Pranesh D		3	0	69	138	46.00
Atallah,Marcus A	Muraleedaran,Krijan Walker,Nicholas J	4	0	92	137	34.25
Charlwood, Nicholas R	Ruffell, Freddie W A	5	0	54	137	27.40
Ho,Gavin T	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	4	0	54 54	132	33.00
Melnyk,Anthony B	Mulvenna, Daniel R	2	0	83	131	65.50
Muraleedaran,Krijan	Tanner, Nivek D	4	1	79	130	43.33
Henry, James A	McLean,Brandon J	4	1	86*	130	43.33
McLean,Brandon J	Maladay,Lewin R	3	Ö	48	129	43.00
Patel, Ankit	Tsoukalas,Nikolas G	4	0	74	129	32.25
Henry, James A	Wakim,Benjamin P	5	Ö	85	129	25.80
Bowcock,Daniel S	Roach, Jack P	2	0	80	128	64.00
Gavan, Joshua P	Mack,Katie M	5	Ō	74	119	23.80
Karunasinghe, Vinod	Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	2	0	115	117	58.50
Hood, Philip J	Mulvenna, Daniel R	2	0	112	117	58.50
Muraleedaran, Krijan	Nguyen,Sam James A D	3	1	62*	116	58.00
Attenborough, Jack R K	Muraleedaran,Krijan	3	0	55	116	38.67
du Plessis,Rico	Walker, Nicholas J	2	0	68	115	57.50
Byrnes, Joseph J	Charlwood, Nicholas R	3	0	85	113	37.67
Manning Bancroft, Jack T	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	3	0	103	113	37.67
Rea,Michael P	Mulvenna, Daniel R	1	0	112	112	112.00
Geraghty, Fionn P	Stanton, Murray J	4	0	72	111	27.75
Mellick, Joshua M	Muraleedaran,Krijan	5	0	31	109	21.80
Charlwood, Nicholas R	Patel, Ankit	4	0	65	108	27.00
Jackson, Connor S	Maladay,Lewin R	5	1	32*	106	26.50
Stening, Hamish F	Voleti, Aditya	2	0	64	105	52.50
Nguyen,Sam James A D	Rea, Michael P	1	0	102	102	102.00
Gowland, Mitchell	Wakim,Benjamin P	2	0	79	102	51.00
Nayak,Agnish	Xu,Alan	3	0	62	102	34.00
Samarasinghe, Chamath S	Makin,Ryan W	1	0	100	100	100.00
Charlwood, Nicholas R	Jackson,Connor S	2	0	72	100	50.00
Voleti, Aditya	Gunning,Pyke O L	2	0	59	100	50.00

# PLAYER OF THE YEAR POINTS 2015/2016

	Practice Attendance			ĺ	Total		
Player	No.	%	Points	Points	Mts	Avg	Points
Dawson,David G	13	31.0	130	1907	15	127.13	2037
Appleton, Mark S	28	66.7	280	1403	14	100.21	1683
Atallah,Marcus A Howard.Oscar G H	39 21	92.9 50.0	390 210	1255 1386	14 13	89.64 106.62	1645 1596
Wakim,Charles A	41	97.6	410	1153	14	82.36	1563
Maladay,Lewin R	27	64.3	270	1169	9.5	123.05	1439
Walker, Nicholas J	34	81.0	340	1094	15	72.93	1434
Wakim,Benjamin P	39	92.9	390	1040	15	69.33	1430
Turner, Jake M	30	71.4	300	1072	15	71.47	1372
Venianakis, John A	31 38	73.8 90.5	310 380	1031 955	12 15	85.92 63.67	1341 1335
Connolly,Joshua J Ward,Anthony L	13	31.0	130	1203	13	92.54	1333
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	30	71.4	300	998	14	71.29	1298
Rea,Michael P	26	61.9	260	1028	15	68.53	1288
Ho,Gavin T	35	83.3	350	930	15	62.00	1280
McLean,Brandon J	38	90.5	380	848	13	65.23	1228
White,Declan O D Stanton,Murray J	36 18	85.7 42.9	360 180	857 1034	12.5 13	68.56 79.54	1217 1214
Charlwood, Alexander G	15	35.7	150	1052	12	87.67	1202
Ward, Christopher N	19	45.2	190	977	13	75.15	1167
Ruffell,Freddie W A	30	71.4	300	833	13	64.08	1133
Mulvenna,Daniel R	26	61.9	260	870	12	72.50	1130
Coleman,Andrew J	15	35.7	150	976	11	88.73	1126
Batchelor,Oliver R	24	57.1	240	886	15	59.07	1126
Lupton,John C Muraleedaran,Krijan	37 20	88.1 47.6	370 200	741 884	13 12	57.00 73.67	1111 1084
Gunning, Pyke O L	26	61.9	260	812	12	67.67	1072
Janzen, Nicholas R	4	9.5	40	1019	9	113.22	1059
Tuckfield,Hugo F	25	59.5	250	790	14.5	54.48	1040
Charlwood, Nicholas R	18	42.9	180	857	12	71.42	1037
McCormick,Sam A	23	54.8	230	787	13	60.54	1017
Melnyk,Anthony B	22 18	52.4 42.9	220 180	790 795	15 12	52.67 66.25	1010 975
Stening,Hamish F Byrnes,Thomas A	30	42.9 71.4	300	662	12.5	52.96	975 962
Byrnes, Joseph J	31	73.8	310	643	12	53.58	953
Ali,Aadil M	22	52.4	220	691	9	76.78	911
du Plessis,Rico	28	66.7	280	631	14	45.07	911
Patel, Ankit	15	35.7	150	751	14.5	51.79	901
Jones, Dean N	33 7	78.6 16.7	330 70	558 817	14 12	39.86 68.08	888 887
Gowland,Mitchell McLean,Hayden C	39	92.9	390	484	13	37.23	874
Tanner, Nivek D	32	76.2	320	531	12.5	42.48	851
Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	34	81.0	340	503	15	33.53	843
Rizwan,Raza	22	52.4	220	622	11	56.55	842
Gunewardhane, Yushan N A	22	52.4	220	592	11.5	51.48	812
Atallah,Thomas G Bhandari,Danny	34 24	81.0 57.1	340 240	467 566	13 11.5	35.92 49.22	807 806
Voleti,Aditya	40	95.2	400	390	16	24.38	790
Jackson,Connor S	31	73.8	310	478	14	34.14	788
Makin,Ryan W	13	31.0	130	657	12	54.75	787
Bennett, Joshua M	26	61.9	260	513	12	42.75	773
Hoque, Saief	11 30	26.2	110 300	657 453	12	54.75 34.85	767 753
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K Manning Bancroft,Jack T	11	71.4 26.2	110	642	13 8	80.25	752
Shankar, Siddharth	21	50.0	210	523	12	43.58	733
Maisey,William P	9	21.4	90	631	8	78.88	721
Lawrence,Ronald Jnr B	7	16.7	70	647	11	58.82	717
Stanton, Matthew H T	16	38.1	160	536	13	41.23	696
Thanabalasingam,Nirmalan R Gavan,Joshua P	18 28	42.9 66.7	180 280	506 392	12 13	42.17 30.15	686 672
Morgan, Jack A D	19	45.2	280 190	392 481	10	30.15 48.10	672 671
Henry, James A	31	73.8	310	353	12	29.42	663
Dickens,Jethro P	20	47.6	200	456	13	35.08	656
Stewart,Timothy J	20	47.6	200	450	10.5	42.86	650
Geraghty, Fionn P	30	71.4	300	333	13	25.62	633
Bowcock,Daniel S Bascaran,Kabilan	13 2	31.0 4.8	130 20	502 605	14	35.86 60.50	632 625
Garland, Matthew B J	27	64.3	270 270	345	10 11.5	30.00	615
Roach, Jack P	8	19.0	80	514	13	39.54	594
Nguyen,Sam James A D	0	0.0	0	586	12	48.83	586
Crichton,Samuel L S	6	14.3	60	504	3	168.00	564
Redman, Andrew J	9	21.4	90	462	4	115.50	552 545
Mack,Katie M Karunasinghe,Vinod	31 13	73.8 31.0	310 130	235 410	9.5 11	24.74 37.27	545 540
Samarasinghe, Chamath S	2	4.8	20	505	9	56.11	540 525
Mellick, Joshua M	14	33.3	140	385	9	42.78	525 525
Xu,Alan	17	40.5	170	298	10	29.80	468
Tan,Jonathan J H	0	0.0	0	460	9	51.11	460
Hood, Philip J	0	0.0	0	431	14	30.79	431
Carvosso,Rhys Senaratha,Nikhil R A	9 6	21.4 14.3	90 60	324 350	6 9	54.00 38.89	414 410
Gilmore, Angus H	3	7.1	30	339	6	56.50	369
Nayak,Agnish	6	14.3	60	308	10	30.80	368
Tripathi, Abhishek	8	19.0	80	257	11	23.36	337

		Practice Atte	endance	1	On Field	1	Total
Player	No.	%	Points	Points	Mts	Avg	Points
Vanos,Jeremy A	15	35.7	150	117	2	58.50	267
De Soysa,Shevantha T	5	11.9	50	184	5	36.80	234
Wu,Ryan	0	0.0	0	206	1	206.00	206
Bryson,Matthew T	0	0.0	0	180	2	90.00	180
Ferrara, Alex	6	14.3	60	120	4	30.00	180
Lochner, Nicholas R	0	0.0	0	160	2	80.00	160
Stening,Thomas L	12	28.6	120	33	3	11.00	153
Byrnes,Thomas D	9	21.4	90	61	3	20.33	151
Dabarera,Ramesh L	1	2.4	10	101	2	50.50	111
Batey,Callum W	8	19.0	80	21	2	10.50	101
de Silva,Chaanuk A	0	0.0	0	92	2	46.00	92
Shafiq,Wahab	8	19.0	80	12	1	12.00	92
Senarath, Diluka K	0	0.0	0	91	2	45.50	91
Lucas,Sam R E	3	7.1	30	51	1.5	34.00	81
Siu,Daniel H	2	4.8	20	27	1	27.00	47
Stone, Jacob A	0	0.0	0	40	1	40.00	40
Hansen,Mark A	0	0.0	0	36	1	36.00	36
Furlong,Samuel P	2	4.8	20	15	1	15.00	35
Page,Benjamin P	0	0.0	0	33	1	33.00	33
Letton,Benjamin J	1	2.4	10	11	1	11.00	21
Byrnes,Peter A	0	0.0	0	20	1	20.00	20
Richards, Corey J	2	4.8	20	0	1	0.00	20
Jamil, Hassan	0	0.0	0	10	1	10.00	10
Kishor, Kamal	0	0.0	0	10	1	10.00	10
Karmakar,Bikram P	0	0.0	0	10	2	5.00	10
Greenberg, Jake L	0	0.0	0	5	1	5.00	5
Jones,Andrew C	0	0.0	0	4	1	4.00	4
Clark,Bradley J	0	0.0	0	0	1	0.00	0

Description	Points Obtained	Description	Points Obtained
1.Batting		2.Bowling	
1 run	1 point	1 wicket	20 points
50-99 runs / Inn	25 bonus points	3 wickets / Inn	25 bonus points
100-199 runs / Inn	100 bonus points	4 wickets / Inn	50 bonus points
>200 runs / Inn	200 bonus points	5 wickets / Inn	100 bonus points
	·	6 wickets / Inn	150 bonus points
3.Fielding (Catching)		4.Fielding (Wicket Keeping)	
1 catch	20 points	1 dismissal	15 points
3 catches / Inn	25 bonus points	3 dismissal's / Inn	25 bonus points
4 catches / Inn	50 bonus points	4 dismissal's / Inn	50 bonus points
5 catches / Inn	100 bonus points	5 dismissal's / Inn	100 bonus points
6 catches / Inn	150 bonus points	6 dismissal's / Inn	150 bonus points
5.Fielding (Run Outs)		6.For Being in a Winning Si	de
Direct Hit	20 points	Per Team Member	10 points
In-Direct	10 points (to 2 players)		·
7.Practice Attendance - 10	points awarded per practice or fitness se	ssion attended.	

Inclusion's / Exclusion's: Includes points obtained only through playing Grade's 1 - 7, regular season rounds. Does not include points obtained through playing 1st Grade LO or 1720 games played on a Sunday, Poidevin-Gray Shield ,A.W. Green Shield ,Quarter Finals, Semi - Finals or Finals. Only includes official practice sessions where all club members are invited to participate. Includes designated pre-season practice sessions. Does not include official practice sessions that have been "rained out", or that fall on or around public holidays. Points for practice attendance are awarded to those who are absent due to representative duties.

### **CAREER STATISTICS**

The individual, team and partnership records published on the following pages are for those seasons since the clubs inception into the Sydney Grade Competition (1973/74). For records prior to this time, refer to the 1972/73 annual report, which was the last for the clubs affiliation in the Municipal & Shires Competition.

#### TOP CAREER STATISTICS

The table below outlines the minimum requirements that have been applied when printing the top career statistics on the following pages. When these minimum requirements have not been meet, the top 5 players have been published. Current players have been highlighted in **bold italic** type:

Competition / Grade	Batting (Runs)	Bowling (Wickets)	Fielding (Dismissals)
Combined Competitions/Grades	5000 or 2000 current players **	300 or 100 for current players**	150 or 75 for current players**
Combined 1 <sup>st</sup> Grade	3000 or 500 current players	150 or 50 current players	125 or 50 for current players
Limited (50) Over's	1000 or 500 current players	35 or 15 for current players	50 or 25 for current players
1st Grade Twenty / 20	Top 5	Top 5	Top 5
2 <sup>nd</sup> to 5 <sup>th</sup> Grades & Other Comps	2000 or 1000 current players	125 or 50 for current players	50 or 25 for current players
** Current players - have played at le	east one game this season		

More detailed career statistics can also be found on the clubs website www.cricket.unsw.edu.au.

#### **QUALIFICATION CRITERIA FOR CLUB RECORDS**

The following table outlines the requirements needed to hold club records. The top 10 players who meet the criteria been listed in the **Club Records** section of this annual report. Records can be held by multiple players. Record information is based on the data that is currently available.

Competition / Grade	Batting	Bowling
Two Day Competitions **	250 runs	15 wickets
Limited (50) Over Competitions (1LO, PG, AWGS)	150 runs	8 wickets
1st Grade Twenty / 20	100 runs	5 wickets
** Records for 1st Grade are a combination of the Two Day, 1LO & 1T20 com	petitions	

All available information relating to bowlers Hat Tricks and 10 wickets taken in a match has been listed in the Club Records section of this annual report.

Note – where two teams have been entered into the same grade or competition, player statistics have been combined if a player has played in both teams.

#### **DEFINITIONS**

The following table provides explanation of what is included in each grouping or category in the Career Statistics section of this annual report:

All Grades & Shires	SCA + M&S + Other Competitions Combined + State Challenge
Sydney Cricket Association (SCA)	1 <sup>st</sup> Grade to 5 <sup>th</sup> Grade + 1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Limited Overs + 1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Twenty 20 + Poidevin Gray Shield + A.W.Green Shield
1 <sup>st</sup> Grade (Combined)	1 <sup>st</sup> Grade (Two Day Comp.) + 1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Limited Overs + 1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Twenty 20
1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Limited Overs (1LO)	All 1LO matches that form part of the 1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Limited Overs Competition.
1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Twenty 20 (1T20)	All 1T20 matches that form part of the 1 <sup>st</sup> Grade Twenty 20 Competition
Other Competitions (Combined)	City & Suburban (CS) + M & S D Grade (MSD) + Moore Park (MP) + Metropolitan Cup (MC) + Tim Creer Cup (TCC)

#### PARTNERSHIP RECORDS

Highest partnership for each wicket (per grade) have been listed, as well as; a) All other partnerships of +150 for two day competitions; b) All other partnerships of +100 for LO competitions; c) All other partnerships of +50 for 1T20 competition. Otherwise, the top two partnerships only for each wicket have been listed.

#### **RETROSPECTIVE CHANGES DIARY**

**2007 – 1LO** - The Sydney Cricket Association made the decision to combine the statistics for 1st grade two day and 1st grade limited over (50 over's) competitions for historical purposes. (Which was not done in the initial seasons following the inception of the 1st grade limited over's competition in 92/93). As a result there are some changes to the records that have been published in past annual reports.

**June 2010 – 1T20** – The Sydney Cricket Association made the decision to combine 1T20 statistics for the 2009/10 season with the other 1st grade competitions (as 1T20 games formed part of the 1st grade competition) As a result there are some changes to the data that was published in the 2009/10 annual report.

However, the inaugural season of the 1T20 (2008/09) still remains separate from the rest of the first grade statistics as it did not form part of the 1st grade competition that season, and was run as a separate tournament.

To be clear – 1T20 statistics from 2008/09 now contribute toward player 1T20 career statistics, combined season statistics for 08/09 and player combined career statistics, but do not contribute toward player 1st grade statistics.

**2014 – 1T20** – The 1T20 competition for 2012/13 did not form part of the 1st Grade competition, did not contribute to club championship points, and therefore should not have contributed to player 1st Grade statistics.

Our statistics database has been updated and may lead to changes to certain players 1st Grade statistics.

**August 2015 – 1T20** - The Sydney Cricket Association made the decision to combine the 1T20 statistics for seasons 08/09, 12/13, 13/14, & 14/15 with 1st grade two day and 1st grade limited over (50 over's) competitions for historical purposes. (Which was not done initially for those seasons). As a result there are some changes to the records that have been published in past annual reports.

#### **INITIATIVES**

The clubs statistics are in a constant state of review and improvement. Efforts to source and fully digitize scorebooks from past seasons continues. Any errors found when digitizing scorebooks have been correct which has resulted to some minor changes to certain player's career statistics. The **scorebook digitisation table** on the following page outlines which seasons / grades have been fully digitized, and to what level they have been digitized (based on the information currently available). The task of scanning and posing past annual reports and other publications on the clubs website also continues.

#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS**

The following people should be acknowledged for their assistance with the statistics:

- Chris Ward for assisting with the week to week leg work chasing Captains for scorecard, proofing scorecards and data entry.
- Our reliable group of regular scorers who really do make our job much easier Janelle Carew, Terry Stamp, Ian "Great" White, George "Vegas" Venianakis and emergency scorer Michael Rea (a Great Clubman who is willing to do anything to help out being able to find his vehicle not with standing! Sorry Mick, you will never live this down)

In the spirit of continual update and improvement to our statistics and other historical information, please forward your information or comments to cricket@unsw.edu.au.

### Damen Sue HONOURARY STATISTICIAN & RECORD KEEPER

# Peter Maguire DATABASE MANAGER

### **SCOREBOOK DIGITISATION TABLE**

Season	1	1LO	1T20	2	3	4	5	6	7	PG	GS	IV	OT
1973-74	XB1	n/a	n/a	A2	Х	X	X	X	n/a	X	n/a	Χ	X
1974-75	XB1	n/a	n/a	A2	Х	Х	Х	Х	n/a	XB1	n/a	Х	X
1975-76	XB1	n/a	n/a	A2	Х	Х	Х	Х	n/a	X	n/a	Х	X
1976-77	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	Х	Х	Х	n/a	X	n/a	Х	X
1977-78	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	Х	Х	Х	n/a	X	n/a	Х	X
1978-79	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	Х	Х	Х	n/a	X	n/a	Х	X
1979-80	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	Х	Х	n/a	n/a	X	n/a	Х	X
1980-81	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	X	Х	Х	Х	n/a	XB1	n/a	X	Х
1981-82	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	Х	Х	Х	n/a	XB1	n/a	Х	X
1982-83	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	Х	Х	Х	n/a	XB1	n/a	Х	X
1983-84	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	Х	Х	n/a	n/a	XB1	n/a	Х	X
1984-85	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	X	Х	Х	n/a	n/a	X	n/a	Х	X
1985-86	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	X	X	XB1	n/a	X	n/a	Χ	X
1986-87	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	X	X	XB1	n/a	X	n/a	Χ	X
1987-88	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	X	Х	Х	Х	n/a	X	n/a	Х	X
1988-89	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	X	Х	X	XB1	n/a	XB1	n/a	X	X
1989-90	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	X	X	X	n/a	X	n/a	Χ	X
1990-91	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	Х	X	X	XB1	n/a	X	n/a	X	X
1991-92	XB1	n/a	n/a	XB1	X	Χ	Х	X	n/a	X	n/a	X	X
1992-93	XB1	XB1	n/a	XB1	X	Х	X	X	X	Χ	n/a	Х	X
1993-94	XB1	XB1	n/a	X	X	Х	X	X	Х	X	n/a	X	X
1994-95	XB1	A4	n/a	Χ	X	Х	X	X	XB1	X	n/a	Х	X
1995-96	XB1	X	n/a	XB1	X	Х	X	XB1	X	X	n/a	Х	X
1996-97	A2	A2	n/a	A2	X	Х	X	X	X	X	n/a	X	X
1997-98	XB1	X	n/a	XB1	X	Х	X	X	n/a	X	A2	X	X
1998-99	XB1	X	n/a	A2	X	X	X	X	X	X	A2	X	X
1999-00	XB1	XB1	n/a	XB1	X	X	X	Х	X	X	Х	X	X
2000-01	A1	A1	n/a	XB1	A2	Х	Х	Х	X	XB1	XB1	X	X
2001-02	XB1	XB1	n/a	XB1	X	X	X	XB1	X	XB1	XB1	X	X
2002-03	XB1	XB1	n/a	XB1	X	X	X	XB1	n/a	XB1	XB1	X	X
2003-04	XB1	XB1	n/a	XB1	X	Х	X	XB1	n/a	XB1	XB1	X	X
2004-05	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	u/a	A2/A5
2005-06	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	u/a	n/a
2006-07	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	u/a	n/a
2007-08	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	A1	n/a
2008-09	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A4	A1	A1	A1	n/a
2009-10	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	n/a
2010-11	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	n/a	A1	A1	X	A1
2011-12	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1/A1
2012-13	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1
2013-14	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1
2014-15	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1
2015-16	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1	A1

	Key – Scorebook Digitization Table
A1	Full scorecard information digitized, including batsmen's balls faced and batting time (when available)
A2	Full scorecard information digitized, including batsmen's batting time (when available). Batsmen's balls faced unavailable
А3	Partial scorecard information digitized only. The following information is unavailable:  Batting: Balls faced, batting time, 4s, and 6s. Bowling: Wides, No Balls. Fielding: Run Out information. Partnership / FOW information also unavailable (except partnership information detailed in the annual report)
A4	Partial scorecard information digitized only. The following information is unavailable:  Batting: Balls faced, batting time, 4s, and 6s. Bowling: Wides, No Balls.Fielding: Run Out information. Partnership / FOW information also unavailable.
A5	Partial scorecard information digitized only. The following information is unavailable:  Batting: Balls faced, batting time. Partnership / FOW information also unavailable.
B1	Top partnership information (as listed in annual report) only have been digitized.
Х	Statistics based on summary information as provided in annual reports only
n/a	Not Applicable
u/a	Unavailable

# **ALL GRADES & SHIRES**

### **ALL GRADES & SHIRES - BATTING**

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Robson,James G	471	80	165*	13616	34.82	77	11
Martel, Jock B	392	25	212	9946	27.10	51	8
Taylor, Alexander J	502	44	123	9383	20.49	ua	ua
Livingstone, Gregory R	306	32	204*	8952	32.67	51	12
Dixon,James S	392	41	139*	8052	22.94	39	5
Carson,David J	293	34	173	7585	29.29	35	10
Bowcock,Daniel S	247	20	222	6585	29.01	39	4
Jebb,David C	267	20	131	6351	25.71	32	6
Jones, Clayton W	280	21	159	6297	24.31	32	3
Meagher,David P	228	31	154	6020	30.56	29	8
Bundy,Harold C	243	27	151	5921	27.41	ua	ua
Dawson,David G	139	25	200*	5783	50.73	31	14
Creed,Murray W	140	17	207*	5751	46.76	36	12
Christian, Daniel T	207	23	163*	5607	30.47	25	11
Bhandari,Danny	238	21	185	5589	25.76	26	5
Chapman,Christopher J	219	27	124*	5503	28.66	26	4
Gowland,Mitchell	203	6	198	5327	27.04	29	7
Epstein, Anthony	338	45	95	5245	17.90	11	-
Baker,James M	179	16	180*	5171	31.72	23	8
Pratt,Anthony D	260	35	138	5151	22.89	20	5
Other Current Players:							
Wakim,Charles A	161	11	146*	4563	30.42	22	8
Wakim,Benjamin P	169	13	166*	4447	28.51	22	6
Walker, Nicholas J	128	14	138	3036	26.63	15	5 2
Jones,Andrew C	177	8	104*	2796	16.54	10	2
Rea,Michael P	132	14	165	2362	20.02	10	2
Hansen,Mark A	79	9	120	2115	30.21	13	2
Mulvenna,Daniel R	85	8	100*	2079	27.00	13	1
Tan,Jonathan J H	100	13	120*	1978	22.74	11	2
Hood,Philip J	114	11	168	1930	18.74	6	1
Tsoukalas,Nikolas G	94	11	91	1837	22.13	7	-
Crichton,Samuel L S	83	9	92	1821	24.61	9	-

### **ALL GRADES & SHIRES - BOWLING**

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Stark,Robert W	635	4218	1099	10587	16.67	30	8 - 16
Robinson, Greig G	630	4240	1072	11803	18.73	ua	6 - 26
Garland, Geoffrey M	591	2369	444	8040	13.60	ua	ua
Dixon,James S	569	4836	1221	13184	23.17	15	5 - 31
Middleton, John Mck	475	2062	375	6598	13.89	ua	ua
Robson, James G	457	4378	1466	9033	19.77	8	6 - 26
Schofield,Philip J	445	1473	221	5528	12.42	ua	ua
Zehner, Eric J W	419	2819	462	10003	23.87	11	8 - 36
Livingstone, Stanley E	407	1436	99	7081	17.40	ua	ua
Gregg, Michael J	390	3471	840	9250	23.72	8	7 - 40
Clark, Glen A	389	2853	683	7459	19.17	11	9 - 18
Ray,Mark	323	2113	586	5657	17.51	16	8 - 46
Merrell,Ralph W	323	1955	290	6724	20.82	10	6 - 51
Quinlin,David	322	2695	677	7444	23.12	12	7 - 19
Stephen, Darren J	310	2204	508	6378	20.57	15	8 - 58
Other Current Players:							
Appleton,Mark S	261	1719	350	5733	21.97	4	6 - 4
Lupton, John C	235	1829	416	4967	21.14	7	7 - 40
Charlwood, Alexander G	212	1447	259	4954	23.37	4	7 - 36
Ward, Christopher N	195	1406	284	4789	24.56	5	6 - 54
Bhandari, Danny	190	1470	292	4787	25.19	3	5 - 36
Atallah,Thomas G	167	1516	270	5390	32.28	4	7 - 63
Garland,Matthew B J	151	1112	205	3723	24.66	3	6 - 19
Venianakis, John A	128	718	109	2652	20.72	2	6 - 75
White, Declan O D	127	824	149	2647	20.84	3	5 - 18
Atallah, Marcus A	113	992	195	3346	29.61	1	6 - 74

# ALL GRADES & SHIRES - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Neilan,Andrew M	231	70	301	Wicketkeeper
Kovacs ,Michael	220	35	255	Wicketkeeper
Dawson,David G	220	34	254	Wicketkeeper
Back, Michael	187	43	230	Wicketkeeper
Barford, John P	187	32	219	Wicketkeeper
Robson, James G	215	-	215	•
Nikolovski,Richard	171	36	207	Wicketkeeper
Barrington,Clem H	137	68	205	Wicketkeeper
Sanders, Matthew R	143	43	186	Wicketkeeper
Dixon,James S	162	-	162	·
Martel, Jock B	160	2	162	
Nott,Benjamin P J	148	14	162	Wicketkeeper
Epstein, Anthony	153	8	161	·
MacFarlane, John D	139	22	161	Wicketkeeper
Smith,Roger T	125	34	159	Wicketkeeper
Morson, Michael	136	21	157	Wicketkeeper

Other Current Players:				
Wakim,Benjamin P	112	24	136	Wicketkeeper
Walker,Nicholas J	104	14	118	Wicketkeeper
Bascaran,Kabilan	95	19	114	Wicketkeeper
Hood,Philip J	83	24	107	Wicketkeeper
Bhandari, Danny	104	-	104	
Gowland,Mitchell	98	-	98	
Stanton,Murray J	69	25	94	Wicketkeeper
Bowcock,Daniel S	91	-	91	-
Rea,Michael P	61	1	62	
Wakim,Charles A	61	-	61	
de Silva,Chaanuk A	44	15	59	Wicketkeeper
McCormick,Sam A	40	11	51	Wicketkeeper
Maladay,Lewin R	47	4	51	Wicketkeeper
Roach, Jack P	50	-	50	
Atallah,Thomas G	49	-	49	
Stening,Hamish F	39	10	49	Wicketkeeper

# **SYDNEY GRADE ONLY**

# SCA - BATTING

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Robson, James G	470	80	165*	13615	34.91	77	11
Livingstone, Gregory R	306	32	204*	8952	32.67	51	12
Martel, Jock B	340	16	212	8746	26.99	44	8
Dixon, James S	392	41	139*	8052	22.94	39	5
Carson, David J	292	34	173	7566	29.33	35	10
Bowcock,Daniel S	246	19	222	6551	28.86	39	4
Jebb,David C	266	20	131	6244	25.38	32	5
Meagher, David P	227	31	154	6017	30.70	29	8
Jones, Clayton W	266	20	159	5856	23.80	28	3
Dawson,David G	139	25	200*	5783	50.73	31	14
Creed,Murray W	139	17	207*	5714	46.84	36	12
Christian, Daniel T	206	23	163*	5605	30.63	25	11
Bhandari,Danny	238	21	185	5589	25.76	26	5
Chapman, Christopher J	218	27	124*	5465	28.61	26	4
Gowland,Mitchell	203	6	198	5327	27.04	29	7
Baker, James M	179	16	180*	5171	31.72	23	8
Pratt, Anthony D	260	35	138	5151	22.89	20	5
Other Current Players:							
Wakim, Charles A	160	11	146*	4562	30.62	22	8
Wakim,Benjamin P	166	12	166*	4421	28.71	22	6
Walker,Nicholas J	128	14	138	3036	26.63	15	5
Rea,Michael P	124	13	165	2212	19.93	9	2
Mulvenna,Daniel R	84	8	100*	2065	27.17	13	1
Hood,Philip J	113	11	168	1920	18.82	6	1
Crichton,Samuel L S	83	9	92	1821	24.61	9	-
Roach,Jack P	94	6	104*	1735	19.72	7	1
Byrnes,Joseph J	53	2	127	1651	32.37	7	5
Tsoukalas,Nikolas G	89	10	73	1638	20.73	6	-
Atallah,Marcus A	89	6	100	1596	19.23	6	1
Atallah,Thomas G	115	32	77*	1515	18.25	3	-
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	64	5	140	1408	23.86	4	3
Patel, Ankit	62	1	126	1404	23.02	4	2

### SCA - BOWLING

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Stark,Robert William	635	4218	1099	10587	16.67	30	8 - 16
Dixon, James Stuart	569	4836	1221	13184	23.17	15	5 - 31
Robinson, Greig G	461	3658	969	9728	21.10	17	6 - 26
Robson, James George	457	4373	1465	9011	19.72	8	6 - 26
Zehner,Eric J W	392	2716	461	9589	24.46	9	7 - 46
Clark,Glen Alexander	386	2843	682	7428	19.24	11	9 - 18
Ray,Mark	323	2113	586	5657	17.51	16	8 - 46
Quinlin,David	322	2695	677	7444	23.12	12	7 - 19
Gregg, Michael J	319	2949	740	7554	23.68	7	7 - 40
Merrell,Ralph W	315	1933	290	6609	20.98	10	6 - 51
Stephen, Darren J	310	2204	508	6378	20.57	15	8 - 58
Other Current Players:							
Appleton,Mark S	250	1664	337	5585	22.34	4	6 - 4
Lupton, John C	212	1645	390	4371	20.62	7	7 - 40
Bhandari,Danny	190	1470	292	4787	25.19	3	5 - 36
Ward, Christopher N	187	1373	275	4678	25.02	4	6 - 54
Atallah,Thomas G	163	1472	263	5247	32.19	4	7 - 63
Charlwood, Alexander G	147	1076	198	3714	25.27	4	7 - 36
Venianakis, John A	126	688	104	2528	20.06	2	6 - 75
White, Declan O D	123	796	145	2563	20.84	3	5 - 18
Atallah,Marcus A	112	974	188	3290	29.38	1	6 - 74
Stanton, Matthew H T	88	618	118	2154	24.48	1	5 - 20
Gowland,Mitchell	78	476	55	1994	25.56	1	5 - 50
Turner, Jake M	70	452	74	1833	26.19	-	4 - 18
Rea,Michael P	66	373	43	1774	26.88	-	4 - 25
Crichton,Samuel L S	65	570	59	2488	38.28	-	4 - 6
Connolly, Joshua J	59	542	63	2060	34.92	4	5 - 26
Ho,Gavin T	57	416	40	1749	30.68	1	5 - 48
Jones, Dean N	54	446	76	1618	29.96	-	3 - 28

### SCA - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Neilan,Andrew M	231	70	301	Wicketkeeper
Kovacs ,Michael	220	35	255	Wicketkeeper
Dawson,David G	220	34	254	Wicketkeeper
Back,Michael	187	43	230	Wicketkeeper
Robson,James G	215	-	215	•
Nikolovski,Richard	171	36	207	Wicketkeeper
Barford, John P	176	30	206	Wicketkeeper
Sanders, Matthew R	142	43	185	Wicketkeeper
Dixon, James S	162	-	162	•
Martel, Jock B	160	2	162	
Nott,Benjamin P J	148	14	162	Wicketkeeper
Smith,Roger T	125	34	159	Wicketkeeper
Morson,Michael	136	21	157	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				•
Wakim,Benjamin P	108	24	132	Wicketkeeper
Walker, Nicholas J	104	14	118	Wicketkeeper
Bascaran,Kabilan	95	19	114	Wicketkeeper
Hood,Philip J	82	24	106	Wicketkeeper
Bhandari, Danny	104	-	104	•
Gowland, Mitchell	98	-	98	
Bowcock,Daniel S	91	-	91	
Wakim,Charles A	61	-	61	
Rea,Michael P	57	1	58	
McĆormick,Sam A	40	11	51	Wicketkeeper
Maladay,Lewin R	47	4	51	•
Atallah, Thomas G	49	-	49	
Stening,Hamish F	39	10	49	Wicketkeeper
Roach,Jack P	48	-	48	•

# 1<sup>ST</sup> GRADE CAREER STATISTICS (COMBINED)

### 1ST GRADE (COMBINED) - BATTING

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Robson,James G	310	42	124	8327	31.07	45	6
Livingstone,Gregory R	271	26	201*	7470	30.49	42	6
Carson,David J	242	31	173	6062	28.73	30	6
Dawson,David G	139	25	200*	5783	50.73	31	14
Creed,Murray W	130	16	169	5216	45.75	35	10
Chapman,Christopher J	191	25	124*	4553	27.43	21	3
Baker, James M	145	14	180*	4180	31.91	14	7
Gowland,Mitchell	160	6	198	4112	26.70	22	6
Ray,Mark	175	7	105	4025	23.96	23	1
Christian, Daniel T	144	17	161	3908	30.77	17	8
Dixon,James S	241	28	106*	3885	18.24	12	2
Slater, Michael J	77	7	213*	3873	55.33	19	13
Pratt,Anthony D	195	22	121	3382	19.55	14	1
Young,Jason C	85	10	161*	3247	43.29	22	5
Lang, Timothy E	145	24	102*	3036	25.09	14	1
Other Current Players:							
Wakim,Charles A	91	5	138*	2557	29.73	10	5
Wakim,Benjamin P	72	8	152*	1941	30.33	15	1
Walker, Nicholas J	54	9	126*	1149	25.53	6	1
Henry,James A	41	5	127*	1136	31.56	7	2
du Plessis,Rico	45	2	80	1018	23.67	8	-
Turner,Jake M	29	2	76	439	16.26	1	-
Ali,Aadil M	11	0	162	420	38.18	1	1

# 1ST GRADE (COMBINED) - BOWLING

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Dixon,James S	387	3517	884	9559	24.70	11	5 - 44
Ray,Mark	307	2113	586	5467	17.81	16	8 - 46
Lang, Timothy E	248	1830	385	5673	22.88	7	7 - 20
Grattan-Smith, Padriac J	235	1591	373	4648	19.78	8	8 - 44
Lawson, Geoffrey F	213	1565	419	3753	17.62	7	8 - 38
Horley, Jonathon	197	1538	278	5212	26.46	7	7 - 71
Pratt, Anthony D	189	1896	420	6022	31.86	6	6 - 43
Robson, James G	186	2078	669	4600	24.73	3	5 - 24
Day, James R F	179	1242	224	4410	24.64	3	5 - 26
Saunders, Warren R	167	1420	339	4190	25.09	5	6 - 14
Christian, Daniel T	167	1134	136	4555	27.28	4	8 - 57
Salisbury, Ian D K	159	1011	211	2741	17.24	8	7 - 55
Trafford, David	151	1190	244	4041	26.76	3	7 - 43
Other Current Players:							
Turner, Jake M	70	452	74	1833	26.19	-	4 - 18
Connolly, Joshua J	59	542	63	2060	34.92	4	5 - 26
Gowland, Mitchell	48	331	44	1353	28.19	-	4 - 30
White, Declan O D	42	277	43	931	22.17	1	5 - 54
Henry, James A	24	141	20	536	22.33	-	4 - 8

1ST GRADE (COMBINED) - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Dawson,David G	220	34	254	Wicketkeeper
Neilan, Andrew M	193	47	240	Wicketkeeper
Back,Michael	142	30	172	Wicketkeeper
Robson, James George	162	-	162	•
Kovacs ,Michael	113	16	129	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				•
Gowland,Mitchell	70	-	70	
Walker,Nicholas J	45	-	45	
Henry, James A	34	-	34	
Wakim,Charles A	33	-	33	
Wakim, Benjamin P	22	-	22	

# 1ST GRADE LIMITED-OVER CAREER STATISTICS

### **1ST GRADE LIMITED OVERS - BATTING**

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Carson,David Jeffrey	62	7	99*	1518	27.60	10	-
Creed,Murray W	41	4	135*	1405	37.97	8	3
Dawson,David G	33	8	108*	1263	50.52	9	2
Gowland,Mitchell	44	1	114	1169	27.19	7	1
Christian, Daniel T	46	7	89	1042	26.72	6	-
Other Current Players:							
Wakim, Charles A	17	0	96	562	33.06	3	_
Walker, Nicholas J	11	2	79*	285	31.67	2	-
Wakim, Benjamin P	16	1	52	276	18.40	2	-

### **1ST GRADE LIMITED OVERS - BOWLING**

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Lang, Timothy E	62	381	52	1423	22.95	2	5 - 26
Day, James R F	61	343	40	1341	21.98	-	4 - 7
Christian, Daniel T	47	276	18	1392	29.62	1	5 - 55
Salisbury, Ian D K	41	133	23	341	8.32	2	5 - 17
Zehner, Eric J W	39	278	13	1318	33.79	1	5 - 42
Other Current Players:							
White, Declan O D	14	49	3	200	14.29	1	5 - 54
Gowland, Mitchell	12	61	4	289	24.08	-	4 - 30
Turner, Jake M	11	66	4	306	27.82	-	3 - 45

### 1ST GRADE LIMITED OVERS - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Neilan, Andrew M	62	16	78	Wicketkeeper
Dawson, David G	61	13	74	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				-
Gowland, Mitchell	16	-	16	
Henry, James A	15	-	15	

# 1st Grade Twenty20 Career Statistics

# **1ST GRADE TWENTY 20 - BATTING**

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Dawson,David G	26	5	88*	826	39.33	4	-
Wakim,Charles A	24	1	91	433	18.83	2	-
Gowland,Mitchell	20	0	72	283	14.15	1	-
Lang,Timothy E	16	1	79*	259	17.27	1	-
Day, James R F	13	1	62	215	17.92	1	-

### **1ST GRADE TWENTY 20 - BOWLING**

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Talay,Louis A	20	44	0	230	11.50	-	4 - 17
Turner, Jake M	12	23	0	165	13.75	-	4 - 18
Byrne, James A	11	46	0	261	23.73	-	1 - 4
Day,James R F	10	39	2	241	24.10	-	3 - 17
Tremain.Christopher P	9	40	0	250	27.78	-	2 - 23

### 1ST GRADE TWENTY 20 - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Dawson,David G	18	9	27	Wicketkeeper
Wakim, Charles A	8	-	8	
Lang, Timothy E	7	-	7	
Gowland, Mitchell	6	-	6	
Rogers, Thomas S	6	-	6	
Walker, Nicholas J	6	-	6	

# **2ND GRADE CAREER STATISTICS**

### 2ND GRADE - BATTING

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Bhandari, Danny	179	16	185	4489	27.54	21	5
Martel, Jock B	172	9	109	4106	25.19	22	2
Coots, Duncan	97	5	148	3007	32.68	13	4
Elliott, Michael R	103	7	164	2772	28.88	8	7
Hayward, Matthew W	69	9	155	2223	37.05	8	5
Carson,Peter W	102	17	103*	2135	25.12	13	1
Other Current Players:							
Walker, Nicholas J	52	2	138	1505	30.10	9	3
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	47	2	140	1088	24.18	4	2
Byrnes, Joseph J	35	1	118*	974	28.65	3	3
Atallah,Marcus A	36	1	100	890	25.43	4	1
Atallah,Thomas G	64	17	77*	882	18.77	2	-
Gowland,Mitchell	20	0	80	552	27.60	5	-

### 2ND GRADE - BOWLING

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Clements, Andrew P R	185	1597	571	3250	17.57	7	6 - 20
Bhandari, Danny	169	1297	266	4164	24.64	3	5 - 36
Mullen, Mark D	150	900	212	2768	18.45	4	6 - 19
Pym,Richard E	145	986	171	3105	21.41	2	6 - 43
Zehner,Eric J W	141	978	170	3349	23.75	2	6 - 32
Kirkwood, Geoffrey	135	862	191	2462	18.24	6	6 - 43
Gainsford, David J A	135	983	195	2924	21.66	3	6 - 45
Robinson, Greig G	128	1030	248	2805	21.91	5	6 - 26
Hamwood, Mark	127	1080	260	2877	22.65	6	6 - 63
Other Current Players:							
Atallah,Thomas G	76	857	176	2820	37.11	1	5 - 108
Atallah,Marcus A	53	470	120	1471	27.75	1	6 - 74
Venianakis, John A	46	335	50	1203	26.15	1	6 - 75
Irving-Holliday,Blaize M	27	135	22	444	16.44	-	4 - 33
Thanabalasingam,Suthangon K	23	182	26	746	32.43	-	3 - 45

### 2ND GRADE - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Kovacs ,Michael	78	11	89	Wicketkeeper
Morson, Michael	77	8	85	Wicketkeeper
Bhandari, Danny	84	-	84	·
Martel, Jock B	77	1	78	
Deegan, Paul G	64	10	74	Wicketkeeper
Smith,Roger T	62	12	74	Wicketkeeper
Wakim, Benjamin P	57	7	64	Wicketkeeper
Walker, Nicholas J	49	13	62	Wicketkeepe
Nikolovski, Richard	48	10	58	Wicketkeeper
Trimble, Peter Wayne	57	-	57	•
Other Current Players:				
Maladay,Lewin R	31	3	34	Wicketkeepe
Atallah, Thomas G	23	-	23	•
Atallah Marcus A	14	_	14	

# **3RD GRADE CAREER STATISTICS**

### 3RD GRADE - BATTING

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Bowcock,Daniel S	171	13	106	4214	26.67	26	1
Dixon, James S	98	6	139*	2873	31.23	18	3
Meagher, David P	86	11	154	2364	31.52	13	2
Jebb, David C	101	9	128	2258	24.54	10	2
Jones, Clayton W	92	7	159	2240	26.35	13	1
Other Current Players:							
Manning Bancroft, Jack T	36	4	137*	853	26.66	2	2
Tsoukalas,Nikolas G	41	3	69	840	22.11	3	-
Bhandari, Danny	28	0	85	571	20.39	3	-
Jackson, Connor S	15	2	81*	481	37.00	4	-
Ho.Gavin T	20	2	66	447	24.83	2	-

### **3RD GRADE - BOWLING**

SKD GKADE - BOWLING							
Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Ingleson, John E	189	1338	335	3662	19.38	9	8 - 27
Appleton,Mark S	127	708	138	2443	19.24	1	6 - 4
Hetherington, William	112	725	211	1808	16.14	4	6 - 74
Robinson, Greig G	110	812	213	2197	19.97	5	6 - 27
Dennis, Gregory M	107	970	205	2856	26.69	1	5 - 44
Other Current Players:							
Manning Bancroft, Jack T	42	240	18	1211	28.83	-	4 - 36
Jones, Dean N	36	292	47	1108	30.78	-	3 - 44
Ho, Gavin T	24	206	21	829	34.54	-	3 - 17

3RD G	RADE -	· DISM	ISS	ΔI S	3
-------	--------	--------	-----	------	---

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Bowcock,Daniel S	69	-	69	
Bascaran, Kabilan	46	6	52	Wicketkeeper
Higgins,Oliver W	43	7	50	Wicketkeeper
Cummins, Damien	46	4	50	•
Campbell, Richard	30	14	44	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				•
McCormick,Sam A	22	6	28	Wicketkeeper
Stening, Hamish F	16	3	19	Wicketkeeper
Manning Bancroft, Jack T	15	-	15	-

# 4TH GRADE CAREER STATISTICS

### 4TH GRADE - BATTING

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Jebb,David C	134	8	131	3429	27.21	19	3
Robson,James G	72	17	149	2468	44.87	14	3
Martel, Jock B	57	2	212	2097	38.13	10	4
Fleming, Tallaesen	75	3	154	1917	26.63	8	5
Bowcock,Daniel S	63	5	145	1897	32.71	12	2
Other Current Players:							
Hood,Philip J	84	6	168	1491	19.12	4	1
Rea, Michael P	74	7	165	1451	21.66	4	2
Roach, Jack P	52	4	73	1006	20.96	4	-
Mulvenna,Daniel R	30	3	100*	867	32.11	7	1
Patel, Ankit	25	1	107*	676	28.17	2	1
Gavan, Joshua P	15	1	98	409	29.21	3	-

### 4TH GRADE - BOWLING

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Stark,Robert W	293	1999	562	4757	16.24	15	7 - 25
Robson, James G	160	1424	526	2484	15.53	2	6 - 26
Gregg, Michael J	114	974	254	2564	22.49	1	5 - 54
Mag,Michael	106	813	197	2604	24.57	2	5 - 64
Lupton, John C	94	<i>7</i> 57	206	1848	19.66	4	7 - 40
Other Current Players:							
Ward, Christopher N	66	431	78	1478	22.39	1	5 - 75
Stanton, Matthew H T	55	373	64	1282	23.31	1	5 - 20
Rea, Michael P	38	203	22	988	26.00	-	4 - 25
Carvosso,Rhys	19	133	24	527	27.74	-	3 - 22

### 4TH GRADE - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Barford, John P	98	20	118	Wicketkeeper
Sanders, Matthew R	75	26	101	Wicketkeeper
Hood, Philip J	61	16	77	Wicketkeeper
Stark,Robert W	51	-	51	•
Little, David A	32	9	41	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				•
Rea, Michael P	35	-	35	
Roach, Jack P	30	-	30	
Ward, Christopher N	19	-	19	
Bowcock, Daniel S	17	-	17	

# **5TH GRADE CAREER STATISTICS**

# **5TH GRADE - BATTING**

Name	lnn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Epstein, Anthony	138	16	70*	2437	19.98	7	-
Robson, James G	59	14	165*	2135	47.44	14	2
Taylor, Alexander J	88	8	85	2118	26.48	9	-
James, Peter E	88	14	103	1692	22.86	3	1
Gerber, Simon B H	50	5	107	1517	33.71	9	2
Other Current Players:							
Mulvenna,Daniel R	33	4	<i>7</i> 5*	749	25.83	2	-
Lawrence, Ronald Jnr B	25	1	81*	437	18.21	2	-
Voleti, Aditya	19	0	102	413	21.74	2	1
Nguyen,Sam James A D	24	0	77	370	15.42	2	-
Gavan, Joshua P	14	0	81	364	26.00	1	-

# 5TH GRADE - BOWLING

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Stark,Robert W	273	1711	440	4200	15.38	13	8 - 16
Merrell,Ralph W	259	1644	265	5375	20.75	9	6 - 51
Gregg,Michael J	165	1438	358	3685	22.33	6	7 - 40
Robinson, Greig G	141	1112	363	2724	19.32	6	6 - 46
Taylor,Lachlan R	139	970	201	2736	19.68	5	6 - 18
Other Current Players:							
Charlwood, Alexander G	96	640	117	2176	22.67	2	7 - 36
Lupton,John C	41	234	51	692	16.88	1	6 - 29
Tuckfield,Hugo F	24	146	22	504	21.00	-	4 - 46
Melnyk,Anthony B	23	123	24	390	16.96	-	3 - 9
Gunning,Pyke O L	17	63	3	273	16.06	-	3 - 6

**5TH GRADE - DISMISSALS** 

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
MacFarlane, John D	70	8	78	Wicketkeeper
Barford, John P	66	10	76	Wicketkeeper
Epstein, Anthony	68	2	70	•
Rudd, Jason	62	4	66	Wicketkeeper
Mitchell,Peter B	50	11	61	Wicketkeeper
Stanton, Murray J	35	16	51	Wicketkeeper
Sanders, Matthew R	42	9	51	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				
Mulvenna, Daniel R	18	-	18	
Byrnes, Thomas A	16	-	16	Wicketkeeper
Charlwood, Alexander G	15	-	15	•
Nguyen,Sam James A D	11	-	11	

# POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD CAREER STATISTICS

### **POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD - BATTING**

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Christian, Daniel T	19	0	102	794	41.79	5	2
Robson, Angus J	25	3	130*	704	32.00	5	1
Gowland, Mitchell	22	0	100	651	29.59	2	1
Hoare, Todd J	21	4	101	644	37.88	2	1
Cooper,Tom L W	18	2	100*	629	39.31	4	1
Other Current Players:							
Atallah, Marcus A	18	3	31*	216	14.40	-	-
Tsoukalas Nikolas G	13	3	39*	181	18 10	_	_

#### POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD - BOWLING

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Watson, Gregory G	51	207	58	515	10.10	6	5 - 23
Christian, Daniel T	44	170	14	678	15.41	1	5 - 33
Fleming, Atticus	43	280	78	677	15.74	1	7 - 44
Lawson, Geoffrey F	38	166	46	441	11.61	3	7 - 43
Sinclair,Peter	33	160	31	493	14.94	-	4 - 28
Langdon,Andrew P	33	219	33	824	24.97	-	3 - 19
Other Current Players:							
White, Declan O D	27	107	13	407	15.07	-	4 - 26
Venianakis, John A	25	83	3	378	15.12	-	4 - 21
Atallah Marcus A	25	170	15	649	25.96	_	4 - 44

### POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Neilan, Andrew M	19	13	32	Wicketkeeper
Nikolovski, Richard	18	9	27	Wicketkeeper
Bascaran, Kabilan	20	4	24	Wicketkeeper
Wakim,Benjamin P	12	10	22	Wicketkeeper
Howard, Steven J	18	2	20	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				
Maladay,Lewin R	11	1	12	Wicketkeeper
Ho,Gavin T	7	-	7	-

# **AW GREEN SHIELD CAREER STATISTICS**

### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - BATTING

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Jagot, Thomas A	24	6	108	763	42.39	5	1
Christian, Daniel T	16	2	163*	561	40.07	3	1
Robson, Angus J	20	1	104*	471	24.79	2	1
Pararajasingham, Samuel	16	0	63	365	22.81	2	-
Erickson, Jack A	17	3	119*	356	25.43	-	1
Other Current Players:							
Tanner, Nivek D	12	1	44	174	15.82	-	-
de Silva,Pranesh D	10	0	33	166	16.60	-	-
Bryson, Matthew T	11	0	28	148	13.45	-	-

### **A.W.GREEN SHIELD - BOWLING**

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Langdon,Andrew P	24	163	47	435	18.13	-	4 - 7
Venianakis, John A	23	124	22	362	15.74	-	4 - 22
Erickson, Jack A	23	177	19	636	27.65	-	3 - 21
White, Declan O D	19	112	20	309	16.26	1	5 - 21
Kellaway, Nicholas D L	18	122	29	306	17.00	-	2 - 13
Other Current Players:							
Tanner, Nivek D	11	66	13	214	19.45	1	5 - 22
Bryson,Matthew T	9	53	5	220	24.44	1	5 - 31

#### **A.W.GREEN SHIELD - DISMISSALS**

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Wakim,Benjamin P	12	4	16	Wicketkeeper
Churchill, Zachary J	10	5	15	Wicketkeeper
Jagot,Thomas A	13	-	13	
Nabarro, Jordan	10	1	11	Wicketkeeper
Harold, Marc	7	4	11	Wicketkeeper

# **OTHER COMPETITIONS CAREER STATISTICS**

(CITY & SUBURBAN, SHIRES D GRADE, MOORE PARK, METROPOLITAN CUP, TIM CREER CUP)

**OTHER COMPETITIONS (COMBINED) - BATTING** 

Name	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100
Jones, Andrew C	132	6	100	2170	17.22	8	1
Wickremasena, Ruchera	97	11	104	2131	24.78	10	1
Tan, Jonathan J H	64	10	120*	1604	29.70	10	2
Karmakar, Bikram P	93	5	109*	1456	16.55	4	1
Nguyen,Sam James A D	40	6	111*	1075	31.62	7	1
Other Current Players:							
Makin,Ryan W	44	8	78	831	23.08	3	-
Xu,Alan	67	5	64	787	12.69	4	-
de Silva, Chaanuk A	63	8	104	762	13.85	1	1
Stanton, Murray J	24	3	120*	556	26.48	2	1
Lawrence, Ronald Jnr B	15	1	99	503	35.93	5	-
Garland.Matthew B J	92	21	28*	473	6.66	-	-

OTHER COMPETITIONS (COMBINED) - BOWLING

Name	Wkts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avg	5wi	Best
Garland, Matthew B J	145	1049	195	3522	24.29	3	6 - 19
Payne,Todd	124	637	31	1848	14.90	8	7 - 28
Wunsch, Anthony	113	751	120	2086	18.46	1	5 - 63
Phillips, Michael	113	657	116	2684	23.75	1	5 - 76
Autar,Ravi C	88	436	65	1565	17.78	2	5 - 23
Other Current Players:							
Hoque,Saief	52	281	66	895	17.21	1	5 - 32
Ward, Anthony L	51	291	43	1155	22.65	1	6 - 21
Kishor,Kamal	39	209	25	768	19.69	-	4 - 40
Janzen,Nicholas R	26	191	27	652	25.08	1	5 - 27
Tan.Jonathan J H	25	185	34	617	24.68	-	3 - 13

OTHER COMPETITIONS (COMBINED) - DISMISSALS

Name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Ward,Robert	64	6	70	Wicketkeeper
de Silva,Chaanuk A	44	15	59	Wicketkeeper
Whitton, Thomas B	36	21	57	Wicketkeeper
Hughes,David	36	8	44	Wicketkeeper
Stanton, Murray J	33	9	42	Wicketkeeper
Other Current Players:				•
Garland,Matthew B J	32	-	32	
Xu,Alan	23	5	28	Wicketkeeper
Karmakar,Bikram P	26	-	26	•
Hoque,Saief	21	-	21	
Makin,Ryan W	19	-	19	

# **CLUB RECORDS (BY SEASON)**

# **ALL GRADES (COMBINED)**

Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
1223	Phelps,Matthew J	1994 / 95	20	22	2	173	61.15	ua	6	2	ua	ua
1139	Creed,Murray W	2004 / 05	24	26	6	169	56.95	56.03	4	4	116	14
1108	Dawson, David G	2011 / 12	23	24	5	200*	58.32	70.30	4	4	128	1
1072	Christian, Daniel T	2002 / 03	24	29	2	161	39.70	ua	6	3	127	14
997	Creed,Murray W	2008 / 09	21	23	4	150*	52.47	65.94	5	4	95	12
961	Dawson,David G	2015 / 16	18	19	3	169	60.06	58.31	6	2	107	8
921	Gowland,Mitchell	2008 / 09	26	29	1	99	32.89	70.04	8	0	101	15
911	Christian, Daniel T	2003 / 04	24	26	0	120	35.04	ua	5	2	ua	ua
896	Dawson, David G	2014 / 15	19	19	4	118	59.73	58.45	3	4	99	0
886	Jeffrey,Andrew D	2005 / 06	18	20	1	194	46.63	63.60	3	2	85	10
856	Lamb, Alexander	1999 / 00	18	20	3	111	50.35	ua	5	2	ua	ua
847	Dawson, David G	2012 / 13	19	21	3	146	47.06	61.20	5	1	96	3
837	Byrnes,Joseph J	2013 / 14	17	17	1	127	52.31	54.60	3	4	105	2
834	Lang,Timothy E	2008 / 09	23	24	5	102*	43.89	77.22	6	1	84	23
814	Young, Jason C	1995 / 96	18	17	1	161	50.88	ua	6	2	ua	ua
811	Wakim, Charles A	2014 / 15	19	19	1	138*	45.06	67.36	5	2	90	3
801	Creed,Murray W	2007 / 08	19	19	1	166	44.50	59.69	5	1	78	10
799	Dawson, David G	2013 / 14	18	21	5	113	49.94	54.13	5	1	80	2
794	Sinclair,Peter	1990 / 91	16	29	4	102	31.76	ua	3	1	ua	ua
790	Batchelor,Oliver R	2015 / 16	22	24	1	127	34.35	55.95	6	1	92	2
787	Robson, James G	1981 / 82	17	20	5	124	52.47	ua	5	1	ua	ua
781	Chapman, Christopher J	1974 / 75	26	31	4	87*	28.93	ua	5	0	ua	ua
775	Wakim,Benjamin P	2015 / 16	18	19	1	91	43.06	67.27	7	0	93	3
770	Cooper,Tom L W	2006 / 07	20	22	3	149*	40.53	65.87	5	2	94	5
767	Martel, Jock B	1989 / 90	14	15	2	212	59.00	ua	4	3	ua	ua

### **ALL GRADES COMBINED - BATTING AVERAGE**

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
102.50	Hayward, Matthew W	2002 / 03	8	8	2	155	615	ua	2	3	77	4
93.00	Slater,Michael J	1996 / 97	2.5	3	0	126	279	ua	2	1	30	6
85.20	Robson, James G	2006 / 07	11	9	4	165*	426	76.48	3	1	50	3
81.63	Stamm,Jeremy	1997 / 98	14	14	6	201*	653	ua	4	3	ua	ua
80.00	Dejong,Steven	2001 / 02	4	4	0	119	320	ua	1	2	41	0
72.60	Carson,David J	2010 / 11	7	7	2	116	363	61.42	0	2	40	2
72.13	Adams, Christopher J	2000 / 01	9	11	3	109*	577	66.94	2	3	81	3
70.75	Buddin,Terrance L	1978 / 79	3	5	1	102*	283	ua	2	1	ua	ua
69.80	Slater,Michael J	2001 / 02	5.5	6	1	111	349	ua	3	1	44	9
68.00	Robson, James G	1998 / 99	13	12	5	149	476	ua	2	1	ua	ua
66.20	Burden,Michael	1979 / 80	8	8	3	99	331	ua	2	0	ua	ua
63.67	Livingstone, Gregory R	1991 / 92	15	14	2	204*	764	ua	4	3	ua	ua
63.56	Gerber,Simon B H	2005 / 06	12	12	3	132	572	55.86	3	2	75	0
61.15	Phelps,Matthew J	1994 / 95	20	22	2	173	1223	ua	6	2	ua	ua
60.06	Dawson,David G	2015 / 16	18	19	3	169	961	58.31	6	2	107	8
60.00	Dixon,Donald	1984 / 85	6	6	1	84	300	ua	3	0	ua	ua
59.73	Dawson,David G	2014 / 15	19	19	4	118	896	58.45	3	4	99	0
59.57	Bell,David E	2001 / 02	7	7	0	104	417	ua	3	1	43	2
59.55	Robson, James G	1989 / 90	14	14	3	112*	655	ua	4	1	ua	ua
59.00	Martel, Jock B	1989 / 90	14	15	2	212	767	ua	4	3	ua	ua
58.70	Weerakkody, Nivan	2005 / 06	13	13	3	124	587	69.14	4	1	45	0
58.67	Slater, Michael J	1997 / 98	8	9	0	152	528	ua	0	3	ua	ua
58.32	Dawson,David G	2011 / 12	23	24	5	200*	1108	70.30	4	4	128	1
58.13	Slater, Michael J	2002 / 03	7	8	0	193	465	ua	0	2	49	8
57.86	Madden,Keith	1980 / 81	11	12	5	78*	405	ua	4	0	ua	ua

### ALL GRADES COMBINED - BOWLING AGGREGATE

Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
64	Robson,Samuel D	2005 / 06	24	292.2	40	1162	18.16	27.41	66.25	6/28	3
58	Stark,Robert W	2001 / 02	15	344.5	124	743	12.81	35.67	35.91	7/25	4
55	Hetherington, William	1977 / 78	13	198.1	47	494	8.98	28.82	31.17	8/48	2
55	Stark,Robert W	2002 / 03	14	251.2	51	731	13.29	27.42	48.47	8/16	4
55	Ray,Mark	1980 / 81	17	447.1	179	784	14.25	48.78	29.22	5/23	4
55	Dixon,James S	1980 / 81	22	394	118	858	15.60	42.98	36.29	5/47	1
54	Dixon,James S	1981 / 82	21	373.1	120	822	15.22	41.46	36.71	5/40	4
54	Salisbury,lan D K	1998 / 99	15	326	68	853	15.80	36.22	43.61	6/37	4
54	Lang,Timothy E	2005 / 06	18	309.5	61	943	17.46	34.43	50.73	6/20	4
53	Merrell,Ralph W	1977 / 78	6	205.7	15	793	14.96	31.08	48.15	6/51	4
52	Watkins,Phillip W	1974 / 75	13	189.5	27	829	15.94	29.17	54.65	7/22	4
52	Perger,Nigel	1982 / 83	16	343	99	872	16.77	39.58	42.37	6/58	4
52	Lang,Timothy E	2004 / 05	24	349.3	78	942	18.12	40.33	44.92	7/20	2
51	Watson, Gregory G	1975 / 76	23	247.3	59	645	12.65	38.80	32.59	ua	5
50	Lawson, Geoffrey F	1976 / 77	22	234.7	48	763	15.26	37.58	40.61	7/43	2
50	Tremain, Christopher P	2011 / 12	31	299.2	42	1093	21.86	35.92	60.86	5/61	1
49	Campbell,Steven G	1976 / 77	15	193.6	25	734	14.98	31.63	47.35	5/23	3
49	Ryan, Michael B	1980 / 81	11	351	103	862	17.59	42.98	40.93	6/48	2
49	Brown,Craig A	1974 / 75	22	215.1	28	878	17.92	35.12	51.02	7/31	2
49	Campbell,Steven G	1975 / 76	20	207.6	26	884	18.04	33.92	53.19	6/68	3
49	Langford-Smith,David	2002 / 03	19	314.5	53	1201	24.51	38.55	63.58	5/53	1
48	Lupton, John C	1991 / 92	11	252	71	641	13.35	31.50	42.39	7/40	4
48	Robinson,Greig G	1977 / 78	11	227.3	40	645	13.44	37.90	35.46	5/27	1
48	Van der Sluys,Steven	1974 / 75	17	218.5	35	691	14.40	36.44	39.51	6/10	3
48	Ray,Mark	1981 / 82	14	370.4	134	762	15.88	46.33	34.26	8/46	4

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5w
4.94	Culhane, Daniel J	2006 / 07	7	42.2	12	17	84	14.94	33.07	8/14	1
5.86	Graham,David	1987 / 88	5	69	15	28	164	14.79	39.61	8/48	1
8.72	Gosling,Max	1980 / 81	6	42	ua	18	157	14.00	62.30	ua	ua
8.94	Manoosingh, Trevor R R	2012 / 13	6	122.4	38	32	286	23.00	38.86	6/12	4
8.98	Hetherington,William	1977 / 78	13	198.1	47	55	494	28.82	31.17	8/48	2
9.06	Radley,Kevin	1978 / 79	ua	60	16	17	154	28.24	32.08	5/32	1
9.33	Lawson, Geoffrey F	1980 / 81	8	129.1	41	24	224	32.29	28.90	7/48	2
10.17	March,Roger S	1975 / 76	9	93.2	10	23	234	32.43	31.37	ua	ua
10.31	Salisbury,lan D K	1999 / 00	12	174.2	45	36	371	29.06	35.47	7/55	3
10.63	Fuss,Gary P	2001 / 02	7	95.3	17	24	255	23.88	44.50	5/25	1
11.22	Kishor,Kamal	2012 / 13	12	63.1	13	18	202	21.06	53.30	4/40	0
11.37	Sebesfi, Nicholas	1982 / 83	12	112	16	27	307	24.89	45.68	7/26	2
11.46	Robson, James G	1997 / 98	14	271	92	41	470	39.66	28.91	6/26	2
11.47	Stark,Robert W	1997 / 98	10	160	62	30	344	32.00	35.83	6/40	2
11.47	Martin, John	1988 / 89	11	71	16	15	172	28.40	40.38	4/17	0
11.86	Vonwiller, Christoph C	1997 / 98	13	98.2	21	22	261	26.82	44.24	6/60	1
11.88	Tremain, Christopher P	2012 / 13	12	149.4	28	41	487	21.90	54.23	6/41	5
11.89	Carr, Daniel J	2012 / 13	10	73.2	12	18	214	24.44	48.64	4/8	0
12.00	Middleton, John Mck	1980 / 81	6	91	ua	20	240	27.30	43.96	2/37	0
12.23	Stark,A	1977 / 78	7	77	7	22	269	28.00	43.67	5/78	1
12.28	Salisbury,lan D K	2004 / 05	11	154.5	28	32	393	29.03	42.30	5/43	1
12.31	Holt,Gregory	1981 / 82	16	188.3	40	42	517	26.93	45.71	6/46	4
12.31	Raza,Syed B	2013 / 14	15	58	8	16	197	21.75	56.61	4/32	0
12.39	Taylor,Lachlan R	1997 / 98	5	61	8	18	223	20.33	60.93	5/68	1
12.43	Carson,Peter W	2001 / 02	8	77.4	13	21	261	22.19	56.01	7/60	1

Catches	Name	Season	Mts	W/K	Name	Season	Mts	W/K	St
(Fielder)				Dis.				Catches	
22	Robson, James G	1975 / 76	23	55	Neilan, Andrew M	2004 / 05	23	40	15
20	Henry,James A	2009 / 10	18	51	Maladay,Lewin R	2015 / 16	17.5	47	4
19	Trimble,Peter W	1990 / 91	17	48	Dawson, David G	2011 / 12	23	43	5
19	Gowland,Mitchell	2006 / 07	21	47	Kovacs ,Michael	1994 / 95	19	43	4
18	March,Roger S	1977 / 78	30	46	Neilan, Andrew M	2001 / 02	20	31	15
18	Hamman,Rowan M K	1999 / 00	23	46	Sutton,Luke D	2002 / 03	18	41	5
18	Britton, Christopher M	2002 / 03	18	45	Neilan, Andrew M	1999 / 00	24	34	11
17	Ray,Mark	1975 / 76	16	43	Smith,Roger T	2002 / 03	21	39	4
17	Everett,Bruce	1982 / 83	14	43	Neilan, Andrew M	2003 / 04	19	33	10
17	Dillon,Andrew	1983 / 84	ua	43	Nikolovski,Richard	2007 / 08	19	40	3
17	Barrow,Simon P	1985 / 86	ua	42	Nikolovski,Richard	2006 / 07	15	36	6
17	Sinclair,Peter	1989 / 90	12	42	Bascaran,Kabilan	2011 / 12	23	35	7
16	Brown, Craig A	1974 / 75	22	41	Smith,Roger T	2003 / 04	19	34	7
16	Smith,lan E	1976 / 77	16	41	Neilan, Andrew M	2005 / 06	18	36	5
16	Dixon,Peter	1981 / 82	20	39	Nikolovski,Richard	2005 / 06	25	23	16
16	Sinclair,Peter	1988 / 89	16	39	Dawson, David G	2014 / 15	19	26	13
16	Robson, Angus J	2011 / 12	23	37	Morson,Michael	1995 / 96	15	35	2
16	Rogers, Thomas S	2013 / 14	25	37	Neilan, Andrew M	1998 / 99	15	23	14
15	Robson, James G	1974 / 75	26	36	Nikolovski,Richard	2004 / 05	20	29	7
15	Martel, Jock B	1979 / 80	13	36	Dawson, David G	2009 / 10	18	33	3
15	Pratt,David T	1979 / 80	ua	36	Dawson, David G	2012 / 13	19	35	1
15	Dixon, James S	1980 / 81	22	35	Dawson, David G	2013 / 14	18	31	4
15	Robson, James G	1980 / 81	17	34	Bascaran,Kabilan	2013 / 14	22	31	3
15	Hetherington, William	1982 / 83	17	33	Nott,Benjamin P J	1994 / 95	23	32	1
15	Scolari,Peter L	1983 / 84	ua	33	Mitchell,Peter B	1999 / 00	18	30	3
15	Carson, Peter W	2000 / 01	15	33	Higgins, Oliver W	2002 / 03	21	27	6
15	Bowcock, Daniel S	2006 / 07	15	32	Hanger, Christopher M	1980 / 81	17	24	8
15	Gowland, Mitchell	2012 / 13	24	32	Kovacs , Michael	1988 / 89	24	26	6
15	Wakim, Charles A	2012 / 13	24	32	Morson, Michael	1997 / 98	15	27	5
15	Lang, Timothy E	2012 / 13	23	32	Neilan, Andrew M	2006 / 07	16	32	0
15	Ho,Gavin T	2014 / 15	18	32	Churchill, Zachary J	2011 / 12	24	22	10

# **FIRST GRADE**

Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
1223	Phelps,Matthew J	1994 / 95	20	22	2	173	61.15	ua	6	2	ua	ua
1108	Dawson, David G	2011 / 12	23	24	5	200*	58.32	70.30	4	4	128	1
1102	Creed,Murray W	2004 / 05	23	25	6	169	58.00	56.11	4	4	112	14
997	Creed, Murray W	2008 / 09	21	23	4	150*	52.47	65.94	5	4	95	12
961	Dawson, David G	2015 / 16	18	19	3	169	60.06	58.31	6	2	107	8
896	Dawson, David G	2014 / 15	19	19	4	118	59.73	58.45	3	4	99	0
886	Jeffrey,Andrew D	2005 / 06	18	20	1	194	46.63	63.60	3	2	85	10
847	Dawson, David G	2013 / 13	19	21	3	146	47.06	61.20	5	1	96	3
834	Lang,Timothy E	2008 / 09	23	24	5	102*	43.89	77.22	6	1	84	23
814	Young, Jason C	1995 / 96	18	17	1	161	50.88	ua	6	2	ua	ua

1ST GRADE (COMBINED) - BATTING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s	
93.00	Slater, Michael J	1996 / 97	2.5	3	0	126	279	ua	2	1	30	6	
72.13	Adams, Christopher J	2000 / 01	9	11	3	109*	577	66.94	2	3	81	3	
69.80	Slater, Michael J	2001 / 02	5.5	6	1	111	349	ua	3	1	ua	ua	
68.00	Creed,Murray W	2003 / 04	4	4	0	104	272	51.81	2	1	ua	ua	
61.15	Phelps,Matthew J	1994 / 95	20	22	2	173	1223	ua	6	2	ua	ua	
60.06	Dawson, David G	2015 / 16	18	19	3	169	961	58.31	6	2	107	8	
59.73	Dawson, David G	2014 / 15	19	19	4	118	896	58.45	3	4	99	0	
59.55	Robson, James G	1989 / 90	14	14	3	112*	655	ua	4	1	ua	ua	
58.67	Slater,Michael J	1997 / 98	8	9	0	152	528	ua	0	3	ua	ua	
58.32	Dawson, David G	2011 / 12	23	24	5	200*	1108	70.30	4	4	128	1	

											Oldb I	Records
	DE (COMBINED) - BOWI											
	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Rur		Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
	Ray,Mark	1980 / 81	17	447.1	179	78		14.25	48.78	1.75	5 - 23	4
	Salisbury,lan D K Lang,Timothy E	1998 / 99 2005 / 06	15 18	326 309.5	68 61	85: 94:		15.80 17.46	36.22 34.43	2.62 3.04	6 - 37 6 - 20	4 4
	Perger,Nigel	1982 / 83	16	343	99	87		16.77	39.58	2.54	6 - 58	4
	Lang,Timothy E	2004 / 05	23	340.3	77	92		18.08	40.06	2.71	7 - 20	2
	Langford-Smith,David	2002 / 03	19	314.5	53	120		24.51	38.55	3.81	5 - 53	1
48	Van der Sluys,Steven	1974 / 75	17	218.5	35	69	1	14.40	36.44	3.16	6 - 10	3
	Ray,Mark	1981 / 82	14	370.4	134	76		15.88	46.33	2.06	8 - 46	4
	Stephen,Darren J Dixon,James S	2002 / 03 1980 / 81	18 17	286.1 327.2	60 97	100 67		21.32 14.59	36.53 42.70	3.50 2.05	7 - 78 5 - 47	2 1
ST GRAI	DE (COMBINED) - BOWI	ING AVER	AGE									
Avge	Name		ason	Mts Ove		dns	Wkts	Runs		Econ	B/B	5wi
9.33	Lawson, Geoffrey F		0 / 81	8 129		41	24	224	32.29	1.73	7 - 48	2
10.31	Salisbury,lan D K		9/00	12 174		45	36	371	29.06	2.13	7 - 55	3
10.97	Tremain, Christopher P		3/14	9 142		28	39	428	21.95	3.00	6 - 41	5
12.28 12.73	Salisbury,lan D K Lawson,Geoffrey F		)4 / 05 '9 / 80	11 154 3 79.		28 11	32 15	393 191	29.03 31.87	2.54 2.40	5 - 43 8 - 38	1 1
12.73	Lawson, Geoffrey F		9 / 60 '8 / 79	5 79. 5 88		14	20	258	35.20	2.40	5 - 33	1
13.13	Lawson, Geoffrey F		7 / 78	10 130		34	24	315	43.46	2.42	ua	ua
13.94	Perger,Nigel		1 / 82	7 100		27	17	237	35.59	2.35	ua	ua
14.25	Ray,Mark	198	80 / 81	17 447	.1 1	79	55	784	48.78	1.75	5 - 23	4
14.40	Van der Sluys,Steven		'4 / 75 	17 218	.5 3	35	48	691	36.44	3.16	6 - 10	3
ST GRAI Catches	DE (COMBINED) - FIELD Name	Season	KET KEE Mts	PING W/K	Name	)			Season	Mts	W/K	St.
(Fielder)	_			Dis.							Catches	
20	Henry, James A	2009 / 10	18	55		n,Andre			2004 / 05		40	15
17	Ray,Mark	1975 / 76	16	48		on,Dav			2011 / 12		43	5
15 15	Robson, James G	1980 / 81	17	47		cs ,Mich			1994 / 95	19	43	4
15 15	Lang,Timothy E	2012 / 13 2012 / 13	23 24	46 43		n,Luke			2002 / 03 2003 / 04	18 19	41 33	5 10
14	Gowland,Mitchell Martel,Jock B	2012 / 13 1974 / 75	24 19	43 43		n,Andre ovski,Ri			2003 / 04	19	33 40	3
14	Campbell,Steven G	1982 / 83	17	41		n,Andre			2007 / 06		36	5
14	Robson, James G	1985 / 86	11	39		on,Dav			2014 / 15		26	13
14	Carson, David J	2004 / 05	23	36		on,Dav			2009 / 10		33	3
	•			36	Daws	on,Dav	id G		2012 / 13	19	35	1
ST GRAI	DE (TWO DAY) - HIGHES	ST SCORES	;									
Score	Name	Season	Ball	s Mins	4s	6s C	ppone	nt		Venue		
213*	Slater,Michael J	1999 / 0			30		t.Georg			Hurstville		
201*	Livingstone, Gregory R	1985 / 8		372	29		Vaverle			Trumper F		
200*	Dawson,David G	2011 / 1			32			Suburbs	6	Village Gr		
198	Gowland,Mitchell	2011 / 1			19		arrama		h	Old Kings		
194	Jeffrey, Andrew D	2005 / 0			18			k-Peters		Petershan		
193 184	Slater, Michael J	2002 / 0 1991 / 9		372	19		syaney Randwic	Universit	У	Sydney U		
180*	Slater, Michael J Baker, James M	1989 / 9		ua 377	ua 15			ık am-Marri	ckville	Coogee C Village Gr		
173	Phelps,Matthew J	1909 / 9		ua ua	ua	_	Banksto		OKVIIIG	Bankstow		
173	Carson, David J	1997 / 9		ua			anksto			David Phil		
ST GRAI	DE (TWO DAY) - BEST E	OWLING										
Figures			Season	Overs		nent				Venue		
8 / 38	Lawson, Geoffrey F		1979 / 80			al Cum	berland			Old Kings		
8 / 44	Grattan-Smith,Padriad	: J	1984 / 85		Rand		vurbo			Coogee Over Pratten Pa		
8 / 46 8 / 57	Christian, Daniel T		1981 / 82 2001 / 02		Penri	ern Sub	ourbs			Village Gre		
8 / 65	Heysen, David C H		2001 / 02			stown				Village Gre		
7 / 20	Lang, Timothy E		2002 / 05			belltow	ın-Cam	den		Raby 1	CII	
7 / 21	Van der Sluys,Steven		1975 / 76		Mosn		ni-Cain	uen		Village Gre	en	
7 / 43	Trafford, David		1994 / 95		Mosn					Allan Borde		
7 / 48	Lawson, Geoffrey F		1980 / 81		Wave					Village Gre		
7 / 54	Grattan-Smith,Padriac	: J	1976 / 77	20	West	ern Sub	ourbs			Village Gre	en	
ST GRAI 1976/77	DE (TWO DAY) - BOWLI 7 5/18 & 4/33		Bankstov				D I Gr	attan-Sm	ith			
1981/82		VS. VS.	Western				M.Ray	attari-OIII	101			
2001/02		VS.	Penrith	Ouburbs			D.T.Ch	ristian				
		VS.	Western	Suburbs			D.J.Ste					
							C.P.Tre					
2002/03 2012/13	3 5/16 & 5/25	VS.	Randwick	k-Petersham			O.F.III	JIIIaiii				
2002/03 2012/13	3   5/16 & 5/25 <b>DE (TWO DAY) - BOWLI</b>			K-Petersnam								
2002/03 2012/13	DE (TWO DAY) - BOWLI		RICKS	k-Petersnam Itown-Camde	n		J.R.F.					
2002/03 2012/13 <b>ST GRAI</b> 2012/13	DE (TWO DAY) - BOWLI	NG - HAT T vs. ST TEAM SO	RICKS Campbel		n			Day	enue			

Total		Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue	
8 / 422		2015 / 16	96	Manly Warringah	Village Green	
417		2012 / 13	141.4	Sydney	Village Green	
5 / 400	dec	1997 / 98	100	Manly Warringah	Manly Oval	
7 / 397	dec	2015 / 16	87	Blacktown	Joe McAleer Oval	
7 / 390	dec	2015 / 16	96	Hawkesbury	Owen Earle Oval	
393		2002 / 03	102.5	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	
7 / 388	dec	2007 / 08	96	Sydney University	Village Green	
5 / 379	dec	2010 / 11	92	Sydney	Drummoyne Oval	
7 / 376	dec	2003 / 04	96	St.George	Village Green	
8 / 375	dec	2004 / 05	96	Mosman	Village Green	

	E LIMITED OVERS - I					116			<b>-</b>			
Runs 395	Name Creed,Murray W	Season 2004 / 05	Mts 9			HS 135*	79.00	<b>S</b> ,		0s 100 1 2	s 4s 36	<b>6s</b> 5
384	Cooper, Tom L W	2004 / 03	7			149*	64.00	81		2 1	45	4
349	Phelps,Matthew J	1994 / 95	5			120	87.25			2 1	ua	ua
302	Dawson, David G	2011 / 12	7			102*	75.50	74		2 1	23	0
300	Watson, Michael G	2001 / 02	5			108	75.00			2 1	27	4
285	Creed, Murray W	2005 / 06	7		1	87	47.50	50		3 0	18	0
280	Lang,Timothy E	2008 / 09	8			92*	46.67	80		2 0	21	8
277 275	Clarence, Gregory W	2011 / 12	7 8			85*	69.25	71		3 0 1 1	34 23	0 2
268	Creed,Murray W Dawson,David G	2008 / 09 2009 / 10	5		1	118 96	34.38 67.00	70 75		3 0	23 24	5
				3	•	30	07.00	73	., ,	5 0	24	3
Avge	DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Run	s :	S/R 5	0s 100	s 4s	6s
153.00	Adams, Christopher J	2000 / 01	2	2	1	98*	153	7	6.12	2 0	20	0
101.00	Dawson, David G	2014 / 15	4	4	2	108*	202			1 1	19	0
87.25	Phelps,Matthew J	1994 / 95	5	5	1	120	349			2 1	ua	ua
79.00 75.50	Creed, Murray W	2004 / 05	9 7	7 7	2	135*	395			1 2 2 1	36	5
75.00 75.00	Dawson, David G Watson, Michael G	2011 / 12 2001 / 02	5	5	3 1	102* 108	302 300			2 1	23 ua	0 ua
69.25	Clarence, Gregory W	2011 / 12	7	7	3	85*	277			3 0	34	0
67.00	Dawson, David G	2009 / 10	5	5	1	96	268			3 0	24	5
64.00	Cooper,Tom L W	2006 / 07	7	7	1	149*	384			2 1	45	4
62.00	Wakim, Charles A	2015 / 16	3	3	0	96	186	8	1.94	2 0	19	1
	E LIMITED OVERS - I											
Score 149*	Player Name Cooper.Tom L W	<b>Season</b> 2006 / 07	Balls 132	Mins 169	<b>4s</b> 15		pponent George			Venue Hurstvil	lle Oval	
149"	Creed,Murray W	2006 / 07 2004 / 05	132	215	10		.George				and Oval	
123	Coots, Duncan	1992 / 93	ua	ua	ua		ampbellto	own		Village		
120	Phelps,Matthew J	1994 / 95	ua	ua	ua	ua ua				ua	-	
118	Creed, Murray W	2008 / 09	128	171	7		estern S			Pratten		
114	Gowland, Mitchell	2007 / 08	127	180	11		utherland			Village		
113 111	Slater, Michael J	2002 / 03	106	127	12		orth Sydr ordon	iey		Village		
111 108*	Slater,Michael J Dawson,David G	2001 / 02 2014 / 15	109 130	120 156	10 10		ordon acktown			Killara ( Village		
108	Watson, Michael G	2001 / 02	ua	183	10		estern S	uburbs		Village		
	E LIMITED OVERS - I						00100			·ago	0.00	
Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Мс	dns	Runs	Av ge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
16	Day,James R F	2004 / 05	9	78.2	1	10	273	17.06	29.38	3.49	4 - 22	0
15	Salisbury,lan D K	2004 / 05	6	45.4		7	122	8.13	18.27	2.67	4 - 30	0
15	Day, James R	2007 / 08	6	44		2	207	13.80	17.60	4.70	4 - 7	0
14 13	Langford-Smith,David Reed,Michael T	2002 / 03 2012 / 13	6 6	54.2 47.1		4 7	252 183	18.00 14.08	23.29 21.77	4.64 3.88	4 - 29 4 - 16	0
13	Lang, Timothy E	2005 / 06	7	65		, 13	223	17.15	30.00	3.43	5 - 26	1
13	Cox, Timothy D	2004 / 05	9	77.1		11	253	19.46	35.62	3.28	3 - 25	Ö
13	Talay,Louis A	2011 / 12	6	42.4		0	280	21.54	19.69	6.56	4 - 48	0
12	White, Declan O D	2015 / 16	4	38		3	155	12.92	19.00	4.08	5 - 54	1
12	Lang,Timothy E	2006 / 07	5	43	(	6	157	13.08	21.50	3.65	5 - 30	1
1ST GRAD Avge	DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name	BOWLING AVERA Season	AGE Mts	Overs	Mdn	s W	kts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
7.00	Salisbury,lan D K	1998 / 99	3	26	5		9	63	17.33	2.42	5 - 19	1
7.22	Salisbury,lan D K	1999 / 00	3	27.4	5		9	65	18.44	2.35	5 - 17	1
8.13	Salisbury,lan D K	2004 / 05	6	45.4	7		15	122	18.27	2.67	4 - 30	0
10.88	Dixon,James S	1994 / 95	5	29	7		8	87	21.75	3.00	3 - 19	0
11.38	Salisbury,lan D K	1997 / 98	4	34	6		8	91	25.50	2.68	2 - 14	0
11.64 11.78	van der Gugten,Timm Banham,Richard W	2008 / 09 2012 / 13	5 5	33.2 39.2	2 6		l1 9	128 106	18.18 26.22	3.84 2.69	5 - 21 4 - 12	1 0
11.76	Horley, Jonathon	1992 / 93	3	39.2 27	2		9	100	18.00	3.96		U
11.91											6 - 37	1
	Day, James R F	2012 / 13	6	42	7		Ĭ 11	131	22.91		6 - 37 4 - 56	1 0
12.92	Day,James R F White,Declan O D	2012 / 13 <b>2015 / 16</b>				1		131 <b>155</b>	22.91 <b>19.00</b>	3.12 <b>4.08</b>		1 0 <b>1</b>
1ST GRAD	White,Declan O D E LIMITED OVERS - I	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING	6 <b>4</b>	42	7 <b>3</b>	1	11			3.12 <b>4.08</b>	4 - 56	0
1ST GRAD Figures	White,Declan O D  E LIMITED OVERS - E  Name	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se	6 4 eason	42 38 Overs	7 3 s Opp	onent	11 1 <b>2</b>			3.12 <b>4.08</b> Venue	4 - 56 <b>5 - 54</b>	0
1ST GRAD Figures 6 / 37	White,Declan O D  E LIMITED OVERS - I  Name  Horley,Jonathon	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199	6 4 eason 92 / 93	42 38 Overs	7 <b>3</b> <b>Opp</b> Cam	oonent npbelltov	11 1 <b>2</b>			3.12 <b>4.08</b> <b>Venue</b> Village Gi	4 - 56 <b>5 - 54</b> reen	0
1ST GRAD Figures 6 / 37 5 / 17	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199	6 4 eason 92 / 93 99 / 00	42 38 Overs 10 10	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord	ponent npbelltov	11 1 <b>2</b>			3.12 4.08 Venue Village Gi Chatswood	4 - 56 <b>5 - 54</b> reen od Oval	0
1ST GRAD Figures 6 / 37	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - B Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 19: 19: 19:	6 4 eason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99	42 38 Overs 10 10 6	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Banl	oonent npbelltov	11 12 wn			3.12 <b>4.08</b> <b>Venue</b> Village Gi	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval n Oval	0
1ST GRAD Figures 6 / 37 5 / 17 5 / 19	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 190	6 4 eason 92 / 93 99 / 00	42 38 Overs 10 10	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Bank Wes	ponent npbelltov don kstown	I1 I2 wn burbs			3.12 4.08 Venue Village Gr Chatswood Bankstow	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval n Oval ark	0
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - B Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J	2015 / 16  BEST BOWLING  Se  199 199 199 199 190 200 200	6 4 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10	7 3 Cam Gord Banl Wes Nort Cam	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne	vn burbs ey wn-Camo	155		3.12 4.08 Venue Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval rn Oval ark reen	0
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten, Timi Lang, Timothy E Connolly, Joshua J Lang, Timothy E	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 19: 19: 19: 20: 20: 20: 20: 20:	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Bank Wes Nort Cam Wes	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul	wn burbs ey wn-Camo	155		3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval m Oval ark reen ark	0
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Timi Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 190 200 200 200 200	6 4  Peason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Banl Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairf	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Live	wn burbs ey wn-Camo	155		3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gi Chatswood Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval n Oval ark reen ark	0
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten, Timi Lang, Timothy E Connolly, Joshua J Lang, Timothy E	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 19 19 19 20 20 20 20 20 20	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10	7 3 Cam Gorc Banl Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairf St.G	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul	wn burbs ey wn-Camo	155		3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval vn Oval ark reen ark reen Oval	0
1ST GRAD Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten, Timi Lang, Timothy E Connolly, Joshua J Lang, Timothy E Heysen, David C H Zehner, Eric J W Robson, Samuel D	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 190 200 200 200 200 200	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1	7 3 Cam Gorc Banl Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairf St.G	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Live George	vn burbs ey wn-Camo	155		3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gr Chatswood Bankstow Pratten P Village Gr Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gr Hurstville	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval vn Oval ark reen ark reen Oval	0
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49  IST GRAD Catches	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Timi Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 190 200 200 200 200 200	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING	7 3 Cam Gorc Banl Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairf St.G	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Live George	vn burbs ey wn-Camo	155		3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gr Chatswood Bankstow Pratten P Village Gr Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gr Hurstville	reen od Oval rreen ark reen Oval s Oval W/K	0 1
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49 Catches (Fielder)	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Timi Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name	2015 / 16  BEST BOWLING  Se  199 199 199 190 200 200 200 200 200 7 FIELDING & WICK Season	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING S W/K Dis.	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Bank Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairt St.G Parr	ponent npbelltov don kstern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Liv George ramatta	wn burbs ey wn-Camo burbs erpool	155	19.00 Season	3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi Hurstville Old Kings	reen od Oval ark reen oval oval oval oval oval with reen oval oval oval oval oval oval oval oval	0 1
1ST GRAD Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/36 5/35 5/42 5/49 1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder)	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry,James A	2015 / 16  BEST BOWLING  Se  199 199 199 199 200 200 200 200 200 FIELDING & WICH Season	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING s W/K Dis. 23	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Bank Wess Nort Cam Wes Fairf St.G Parr	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Live George ramatta me wson, De	wn burbs ey wn-Camo burbs erpool	155	19.00 Season	Venue Village Gr Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gr Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gr Hurstville Old Kings	reen od Oval on Oval ark reen Oval o	0 1 St.
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49  1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder) 9 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name  Henry,James A Salisbury,lan D K	2015 / 16  BEST BOWLING  Se  199  199  199  200  200  200  200  FIELDING & WICH  Season  2009 / 10  1999 / 00	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE 05 5 0 3	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING S W/K Dis. 23 21	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Bank Wess Nort Cam Wess Fairf St.G Parr	ponent npbelltow don kstown kstern Sul th Sydnen pbelltow stern Sul field-Live George ramatta me wson,Da illan,And	burbs ywn-Camc burbs erpool	155	19.00 Season 2011 / 12 2004 / 05	3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gi Chatswood Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi Hurstville Old Kings  Mts  7 9	reen od Oval ark reen Oval ark s Oval W/K Catches 21 13	0 1 St.
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49  1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder) 9 5 5 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry,James A	2015 / 16  BEST BOWLING  Se  199 199 199 199 200 200 200 200 200 FIELDING & WICH Season	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING s W/K Dis. 23	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Bank Wes Nort Cam Wes Fair St.G Parr	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Live George ramatta me wson, De	wn burbs y wn-Camo burbs erpool avid G lrew M	155	19.00 Season	Venue Village Gr Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gr Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gr Hurstville Old Kings	reen od Oval on Oval ark reen Oval o	0 1 St.
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49 1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder) 9 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten, Timi Lang, Timothy E Connolly, Joshua J Lang, Timothy E Heysen, David C H Zehner, Eric J W Robson, Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry, James A Salisbury,lan D K Danenbergsons, Karl	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 190 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 2	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE 0 5 0 3 6 6 6 6	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING W/K Dis. 23 21 15	7 3 S Opp Cam Gore Bank Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairff St.G Parr.  Nai Da' Nei Nei Nei Nei	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Liv seorge ramatta me  wson,Da iilan,And iilan,And iilan,And	wn burbs y wn-Camo burbs erpool avid G lrew M	155	19.00 Season 2011 / 12 2004 / 05 2005 / 06	Venue Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi Hurstville Old Kings	4 - 56 5 - 54  reen od Oval rn Oval ark reen Oval 6 Oval W/K Catches 21 13 12	0 1 St.
1ST GRAD Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49 1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder) 9 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry,James A Salisbury,lan D K Danenbergsons,Karl Salisbury,lan D Jeffrey,Andrew D Gowland,Mitchell	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 190 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 2	6 4  Pason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE 0 5 0 3 6 6 6 7 8	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING s W/K Dis. 23 21 15 15 14 13	7 3 S Opp Cam Gorr Banl Wess Nort Cam Wes Fairf St.G Parr	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Live George ramatta me wson,Da illan,And illan,And colovski, wson,Da	burbs burbs burbs burbs burbs burbs erpool  avid G lrew M lrew M lrew M Richard avid G	155	Season  2011 / 12 2004 / 05 2005 / 06 2003 / 04 2008 / 09 2009 / 10	Venue Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi Hurstville Old Kings  Mts  7 9 7 8 5	reen od Oval on Oval ark reen Oval o	0 1 St.
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 Catches (Fielder) 9 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry,James A Salisbury,lan D K Danenbergsons,Karl Salisbury,lan D Jeffrey,Andrew D Gowland,Mitchell Tremain,Christopher P	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 200 200 200 200 FIELDING & WICH 1999 / 00 2002 / 03 2004 / 05 2008 / 08 2011 / 12	6 4  Peason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE 0 3 6 6 7 7 6 8 7	9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING W/K Dis. 23 21 15 15 14 13 12	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Bank Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairf St.G Parr Nair Nei	ponent npbelltov don kstown stern Sulth Sydne npbelltov stern Sulf ifield-Live George ramatta  me  wson,Da illan,And	burbs burbs burbs burbs burbs berpool  avid G lrew M lrew M lrew M Richard avid G lrew M	155	Season  2011 / 12 2004 / 05 2005 / 06 2003 / 04 2008 / 09 2009 / 10 2006 / 07	Venue Village Gr Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gr Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gr Hurstville Old Kings  Mts  7 9 7 7 8 5 7	reen odd Oval ark reen Oval oval Oval W/K Catches 21 13 12 11 13 11 12	0 1 St.
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49  1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder) 9 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry,James A Salisbury,lan D K Danenbergsons,Karl Salisbury,lan D Jeffrey,Andrew D Gowland,Mitchell	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 190 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 2	6 4  Peason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE 0 3 6 6 7 7 6 8 7	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING S W/K Dis. 23 21 15 14 13 12 12	7 3 S Opp Cam Gord Banli Wes Nort Cam Wes Fairf St.G Parr Nair Nei Nei Nei Nik Da Nei Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Ni	ponent Inpbellton Inpb	wn burbs ey wn-Camo burbs erpool avid G Irew M Irew M Richard avid G Irew M Richard	155	Season  2011 / 12 2004 / 05 2005 / 06 2003 / 04 2008 / 09 2009 / 10 2006 / 07 2007 / 08	Venue Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi Hurstville Old Kings  Mts  7 9 7 7 8 5 7 7	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval yn Oval ark reen Oval 6 Oval W/K Catches 21 13 12 11 13 11 12 10	0 1 St.
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49  1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder) 9 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry,James A Salisbury,lan D K Danenbergsons,Karl Salisbury,lan D Jeffrey,Andrew D Gowland,Mitchell Tremain,Christopher P	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 200 200 200 200 FIELDING & WICH 1999 / 00 2002 / 03 2004 / 05 2008 / 08 2011 / 12	6 4  Peason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE 0 3 6 6 7 7 6 8 7	42 38  Overs  10 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1  EPING S W/K Dis.  23 21 15 14 13 12 12 10	7 3 S Opp Cam Gore Banl Wess Nort Cam Wes Fairff St.G Parr.  Nai Da's Nei Nei Nei Nik Da's Nei Nei Nik Nei	ponent Inpbelltov don kstown stern Sul th Sydne npbelltov stern Sul field-Liv George ramatta Inp wson,Da iilan,And iilan,And iilan,And colovski, wson,Da colovski, wson,Da	burbs ey wn-Camo burbs erpool  avid G lrew M lrew M Richard avid G lrew M Richard	155	Season  2011 / 12 2004 / 05 2005 / 06 2003 / 04 2008 / 09 2009 / 10 2006 / 07 2007 / 08 2012 / 13	Venue Village Gi Chatswoo Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi Hurstville Old Kings  Mts  7 9 7 7 8 5 7 7 5	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval yn Oval ark reen Oval 6 Oval W/K Catches 21 13 12 11 13 11 12 10 10	St. 2 8 3 4 1 2 0 2 0
Figures 6/37 5/17 5/19 5/21 5/26 5/26 5/30 5/35 5/42 5/49  1ST GRAD Catches (Fielder) 9 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	White,Declan O D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Horley,Jonathon Salisbury,lan D K Salisbury,lan D K van der Gugten,Tim Lang,Timothy E Connolly,Joshua J Lang,Timothy E Heysen,David C H Zehner,Eric J W Robson,Samuel D DE LIMITED OVERS - I Name Henry,James A Salisbury,lan D K Danenbergsons,Karl Salisbury,lan D Jeffrey,Andrew D Gowland,Mitchell Tremain,Christopher P	2015 / 16 BEST BOWLING Se 199 199 199 200 200 200 200 FIELDING & WICH 1999 / 00 2002 / 03 2004 / 05 2008 / 08 2011 / 12	6 4  Peason 92 / 93 99 / 00 98 / 99 08 / 09 05 / 06 14 / 15 00 / 01 06 / 07 05 / 06  KET KE 0 3 6 6 7 7 6 8 7	42 38 Overs 10 10 6 8 9 10 10 8 9.5 9.1 EPING S W/K Dis. 23 21 15 14 13 12 12	7 3 S Opp Cam Gore Banl Wess Nort Cam Wes Fairl St.G Parr.  Nai Nei Nei Nik Da Nei Nik Da Kok Nik Da Kok Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Nik Ni	ponent Inpbellton Inpb	burbs ey wn-Came burbs erpool  avid G lrew M lrew M Richard avid G lrew M Richard	155	Season  2011 / 12 2004 / 05 2005 / 06 2003 / 04 2008 / 09 2009 / 10 2006 / 07 2007 / 08	3.12 4.08  Venue  Village Gi Chatswood Bankstow Pratten P Village Gi Raby 1 Pratten P Village Gi Hurstville Old Kings  Mts  7 9 7 7 8 5 7 7 5 4	4 - 56 5 - 54 reen od Oval yn Oval ark reen Oval 6 Oval W/K Catches 21 13 12 11 13 11 12 10	0 1 2 8 3 4 1 2 0 0 2

UNSW C	ricket (	Club Anr	nual Report 2	2015/2016								Club	Record
1ST @P /	7DE I II	MITED 4	OVERS - HIM	SHEST TEAM	SCOPE	:							
	tal	WILLED	Season			onent				Venue			
	301		2000 / 0			rsham-Mar	rickville			Village Gre	en		
	289		2006 / 07			ly Warringa	ıh			Village Gre			
	289		2007 / 08			erland				Village Gre			
	282		2011 / 12		Penr					Village Gre			
	279		2004 / 05			eorge				Sutherland			
	277 77		2014 / 15 2004 / 05			ktown dwick-Peter	rcham			Village Gre Village Gre			
	277		2004 / 03			eorge	SHAIH			Hurstville C			
	272		1997 / 98			rsham-Mar	rickville			David Philli			
	265		2009 / 10		Gord					Chatswood			
			20 - BATTIN	G AGGREGA		lta laas	. NO	110	A	C/D	<b>50</b> -	400-	15 C5
Runs 216	Nam Daw	son,Davi	d G	Season 2014 / 15		lts Inns	NO 1	HS 88*	<b>Avge</b> 72.00	<b>S/R</b> 124.86	<b>50s</b>		<b>4s 6s</b> 22 0
182	Daw	son,Davi	d G	2012 / 13		5 5	1	44	45.50	100.55	0		19 1
165		im,Charle		2014 / 15		4 4	0	91	41.25	114.58	1		14 1
134 127		son,Dav II,Matthe		<b>2016 / 16</b> 2011 / 12		<b>3 3</b> 5	1 2	<b>79</b> * 36*	<b>67.00</b> 42.33	<b>122.94</b> 127.00	<b>2</b> 0		<b>11 3</b> 16 4
	•			IG AVERAGE	• `	3	2	30	42.00	127.00	O	O	10 4
Avge	Nam		ZU - DATTIN	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s 4s	6s
72.00		son,Davi		2014 / 15	4	4	1	88*	216	124.86	2	0 22	
67.00		son,Dav		2015 / 16	3	3	1	79*	134	122.94	2	0 11	
45.50		son,Davi		2012 / 13	5	5	1	44	182	100.55	0	0 19	
42.33 41.25		II,Matthe im,Charle		2011 / 12 2014 / 15	5 4	5 4	2	36* 91	127 165	127.00 114.58	0 1	0 16 0 14	
41.25 34.67		ım,Cnarı son,Davi		2014 / 15	4	4	1	91 48*	104	97.20	0	0 14	
1ST GR	ADE TV	VENTY	20 - HIGHES	ST SCORE									
Score	Nam	е		Season I		Mins 4s		pponent	_	Venue			
91 88*		im,Charle		2014 / 15	66 66	71 7		ewcastle		Village		Oval	
88" 79*		son,Davi ,,Timothy		2014 / 15 2008 / 09	66 48	76 13 58 5		utherland utherland			McGrath me Thom		
79*		son,Dav		2015 / 16	63	81 <b>7</b>		orth Sydn	οv	Tunks		as Ovai	
72		land, Mitc		2012 / 13	43	50 9		ydney	-y		rd Park		
62	Day,	James R	F	2010 / 11	42	53 4	3 Fa	airfield-Live	erpool	Village	Green		
		VENTY	20 - BOWLII	NG AGGREGA				_		0/0		D/D	
Wkts 10	Name	Jake M		<b>Season</b> 2014 / 15	Mts 4	Overs 14	Mdns 0	Runs 92	<b>Avge</b> 9.20	<b>S/R</b> 8.40	<b>Econ</b> 6.57	<b>B/B</b> 4-18	<b>5wi</b> 0
8	Talay,L			2014 / 13	5	13.4	0	92 75	9.20	10.25	5.49	4-10 4 - 17	0
8	Talay,L			2010 / 11	4	16	0	79	9.88	12.00	4.94	3 - 13	0
8		mes R F		2012 / 13	6	22	2	120	15.00	16.50	5.45	3 - 17	Ö
7		/lichael T		2012 / 13	4	13	0	47	6.71	11.14	3.62	3 - 7	0
6		Steven		2008 / 09	3	9.3	0	61	10.17	9.50	6.42	4 - 19	0
6   4ST OD 4		r Gugten		2011 / 12	. 4	13.5	0	96	16.00	13.83	6.94	2 - 24	0
Avge	Nam		20 - BOWLII	NG AVERAGE Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Eco	on B/B	5wi
6.71	Ree	d,Michae	ΙΤ	2012 / 13	4	13	0	7	47	11.14	3.6		0
9.20	Turn	er,Jake N	И	2014 / 15	4	14	0	10	92	8.40	6.5	7 4 - 18	0
9.38		y,Louis A		2011 / 12		13.4	0	8	75	10.25	5.4		0
9.88		y,Louis A		2010 / 11	4	16	0	8	79	12.00	4.9		0
10.17 13.80		ers,Steve	en J stopher P	2008 / 09 2011 / 12	3 5	9.3 16.4	0 0	6 5	61 69	9.50 20.00	6.4 4.1		0 0
	•		20 - BEST B		3	10.4	U	3	09	20.00	4.1	4 2-23	U
Figure	es	Name		Sea			ers	Opponen			Venue		
4/3			I,James L		2 / 13		3	Northern			Village G		
4/8			James A	2010			3	Blacktown			Joe McAl		
4 / 13 4 / 18			Louis A ,Jake M		l / 12 l / 15		4 4	Bankstow Newcastle			Village G Village G		
4/1			s,Steven J		3/09		5.3	Bankstow			Bankstow		
1ST GRA	ADE TV	VENTY	20 - FIELDIN	IG & WICKET	KEEPII	NG							
Catche (Fielder		ıme		Season	Mts	W/K Dis.	Name			Season	Mts	W/K Catches	St.
5	W	akim,Cha		2012 / 13	6	8		n,David G		2011 / 12	5	6	2
4		wers,Ste		2008 / 09	3	5		n,David G		2012 / 13	5	4	1
4 3		i <b>,Aadil N</b> rne,Jam		<b>2015 / 16</b> 2011 / 12	<b>2</b> 5	5 3		n,David G n,David G		2014 / 15 2009 / 10	4 2	2 2	3 1
3		me,jame wland,M		2011 / 12	5 6	3	Daw50	,Daviu G		2003/ IU	2	2	'
3		ng,Timot		2012 / 13	6								
3	Ro	gers,Tho	omas S	2012 / 13	6								
3		alker,Nic		2015 / 15	3								
1ST GRA		VENTY	20 - HIGHES Season	ST TEAM SCO Overs	RE Oppon	ent			V	enue			
6/18			2012 / 13	20	Sydney					oddard Park	(		
3 / 17			2014 / 15	20	Newcas					illage Green			
5 / 17			2015 / 16	20	Illawarı					orth Dalton	park		
6/17			2011 / 12	20		elltown-Car	mden			aby 1	th Over		
3 / 16 8 / 16			2014 / 15 2010 / 11	20 20	Sutherla	and n Suburbs				lenn McGrat ratten Park	ın Oval		
163			2010 / 11	20 20	Sutherla					ratten Park rahame Tho	mas Ova	ı	
9/16			2011 / 12	20		Suburbs				averley Ova		••	
161			2008 / 09	20	Banksto					ankstown O			
7 / 15	57	- 1	2012 / 13	20	Campb	elltown-Car	mden		N	orth Sydney	Oval		

### SECOND GRADE

Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
847	Lamb, Alexander	1999 / 00	17	19	3	111	52.94	ua	5	2	109	0
706	Coots,Duncan	1990 / 91	16	19	0	148	37.16	ua	2	2	ua	ua
694	Richardson, Timothy S	2005 / 06	16	18	2	129	43.38	55.12	3	2	87	0
660	Bhandari,Danny	1999 / 00	15	17	1	185	41.25	ua	5	1	61	1
649	Coots, Duncan	1999 / 00	17	18	2	106	40.56	ua	5	1	65	0
615	Hayward,Matthew W	2002 / 03	8	8	2	155	102.50	ua	2	3	77	4
549	Sutton,Luke D	1998 / 99	12	14	1	117	42.23	ua	1	2	43	0
548	Atallah, Marcus A	2015 / 16	13	14	0	100	39.14	57.32	3	1	76	2
527	Richardson, Timothy S	2006 / 07	13.5	16	0	164	32.94	64.82	1	1	70	2
520	Watt,Michael	1978 / 79	13	13	1	166	43.33	ua	3	1	ua	ua

### 2ND GRADE - BATTING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
122.00	Livingstone, Gregory R	1991 / 92	4	4	1	204*	366	ua	2	2	ua	ua
102.50	Hayward, Matthew W	2002 / 03	8	8	2	155	615	ua	2	3	77	4
82.25	Carson,David J	2010 / 11	6	6	2	116	329	61.96	0	2	35	2
81.25	Hamman,Rowan M K	1999 / 00	4	5	1	91	325	ua	3	0	40	2
75.00	Elliott,Michael R	2002 / 03	4	4	0	164	300	ua	0	2	40	10
66.80	Wakim,Benjamin P	2012 / 13	4	5	0	160	334	66.93	1	1	43	4
65.50	Shaw,Andrew C	1990 / 91	4	4	0	129	262	ua	1	1	ua	ua
65.50	Hayward, Matthew W	1994 / 95	5	5	1	149	262	ua	1	1	ua	ua
63.75	Phelps,Matthew J	1992 / 93	4	5	1	130*	255	ua	1	1	ua	ua
63.67	Boyer, Matthew	1991 / 92	7	8	2	129*	382	ua	1	2	ua	ua

### 2ND GRADE - HIGHEST SCORE

Score	Player Name	Season	Balls	Mins	4s	6s	Opponent	Venue
207*	Creed,Murray W	2010 / 11	277	336	28	1	Sydney University	Village Green
204*	Livingstone, Gregory R	1991 / 92	ua	ua	ua	ua	St. George	ua
193	Day,Benjamin M	2001 / 02	298	368	23	1	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green
185	Bhandari, Danny	1999 / 00	ua	260	19	0	Balmain	Village Green
171	Eades,Glen	1989 / 90	ua	ua	ua	ua	Manly Warringah	ua
168*	Churchill,Zachary J	2012 / 13	347	400	12	1	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1
166*	Wakim,Benjamin P	2013 / 14	196	238	24	0	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green
166	Watt,Michael	1978 / 79	ua	ua	ua	ua	Balmain	ua
164	Elliott,Michael R	2002 / 03	ua	246	23	3	Sydney University	Village Green
164	Richardson, Timothy S	2006 / 07	250	249	27	0	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green
160	McNeil, James L	2009 / 10	252	284	24	0	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green
160	Wakim,Benjamin P	2012 / 13	194	194	24	3	Penrith	Village Green

### 2ND GRADE - BOWLING AGGREGATE

Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
50	Watkins,Phillip W	1974 / 75	11	167.5	25	726	14.52	26.82	4.33	7 - 22	4
47	March,Roger S	1977 / 78	30	238.4	47	702	14.94	40.60	2.94	7 - 55	1
45	Campbell,Steven G	1976 / 77	12	175.6	22	667	14.82	31.24	3.80	5 - 23	3
44	Clements, Andrew P R	1990 / 91	17	366.3	139	745	16.93	49.98	2.03	6 - 20	3
39	Mullen,Mark D	1997 / 98	14	196	56	580	14.87	30.15	2.96	6 - 45	2
38	Clark,Glen A	1984 / 85	15	269	74	658	17.32	42.47	2.45	9 - 18	2
38	Watkins,Phillip W	1975 / 76	15	198.4	30	716	18.84	41.79	3.61	6 - 44	2
37	Gallop,David J	1992 / 93	13	275.4	69	720	19.46	44.70	2.61	5 - 50	1
35	Gainsford, David J A	1992 / 93	13	249.1	55	627	17.91	42.71	2.52	6 - 45	1
35	Pym,Richard E	1982 / 83	16	236	48	636	18.17	40.46	2.69	6 - 43	1

### 2ND GRADE - BOWLING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
8.47	Tremain, Christopher P	2010 / 11	3	47.4	11	15	127	19.07	2.66	7 - 41	1
12.13	Robinson, Greig G	1977 / 78	8	111	21	24	291	37.00	2.62	5 - 27	1
13.19	Kirkwood, Geoffrey	1979 / 80	9	166.5	49	31	409	32.29	2.45	5 - 34	2
13.26	Cox,Bradley S	2002 / 03	7	108.3	42	19	252	34.26	2.32	7 - 61	2
13.29	Wijeratne, Asoka H	1976 / 77	15	91.6	26	21	279	34.95	3.04	4 - 9	0
13.56	Perger,Nigel	1981 / 82	3	81	15	16	217	30.38	2.68	6 - 39	1
13.61	Clements, Andrew P R	1991 / 92	15	233.3	91	33	449	42.45	1.92	5 - 27	1
14.11	Shah,Jwalit	2011 / 12	7	71.4	11	19	268	22.63	3.74	7 - 94	1
14.50	Kirkwood, Geoffrey	1974 / 75	7	66	11	16	232	33.00	3.52	5 - 59	1
14.52	Watkins,Phillip W	1974 / 75	11	167.5	25	50	726	26.82	4.33	7 - 22	4

# 2ND GRADE - BEST BOWLING

Figures			Overs	Opponent	Venue
9 / 18	Clark,Glen A	1984 / 85	ua	Randwick	ua
8 / 58	Hayward, Matthew W	1993 / 94	ua	Mosman	ua
8 / 84	Debello,Steven	1988 / 89	ua	Penrith	ua
7 / 22	Watkins,Phillip W	1974 / 75	11	Randwick	Village Green
7 / 26	Buddin, Terrance L	1975 / 76	12.3	Sydney DCC	Village Green
7 / 41	Tremain, Christopher P	2010 / 11	23.4	Sydney	Village Green
7 / 55	March,Roger S	1977 / 78	18	Petersham-Marrickville	ua
7 / 57	Trafford,David	1993 / 94	ua	Gordon	ua
7 / 61	Cox,Bradley S	2002 / 03	24	Campbelltown-Camden	Village Green
7 / 68	Price ,Stephen	1979 / 80	ua	Gordon	ua

2ND GRADE - E	BOWLING - 10 W	ICKETS II	N A MATCH		
1974/75	6/51 & 5/49	VS.	Western Suburb	S	P.W.Watkins
1974/75	6/47 & 4/39	VS.	Sydney DCC		P.W.Watkins
1975/76	6/44 & 4/72	VS.	Northern District	S	C.A.Brown
1981/82	6/39 & 4/62	VS.	Sutherland		N.Perger
1984/85	9/18 & 4/53	VS.	Randwick		G.A.Clark
1990/91	5/67 & 4/39	VS.	Petersham-Marr	ickville	A.P.R.Clements
2011/12	6/38 & 4/32	VS.	Mosman		R.C.Close
2ND GRADE - E	<b>SOWLING - HAT</b>	TRICKS			
1977/78	?	VS.	Waverley		G.G.Robinson
1996/97	5/33	VS.	North Sydney		D.J.Stephen
2006/07	5/64 (20)	VS.	Mosman	(Rawson Oval)	C.M.Thomas

### 2ND GRADE - FIELDING & WICKET KEEPING

Catches (Fielder)	Name	ame Season Mts W/K Dis.		Name	Season	Mts	W/K Catches	St.	
19	Trimble.Peter W	1990 / 91	17	34	Maladay,Lewin R	2015 / 16	10.5	31	3
18	March,Roger S	1977 / 78	30	33	Mitchell,Peter B	1999 / 00	18	30	3
17	Everett,Bruce	1982 / 83	14	32	Morson, Michael	1997 / 98	14	27	5
15	Martel, Jock B	1979 / 80	13	31	Nott,Benjamin P J	1994 / 95	15	30	1
15	Sinclair,Peter	1989 / 90	12	31	Morson, Michael	1995 / 96	12	29	2
13	Smith,Ian E	1978 / 79	16	28	Kovacs , Michael	1987 / 88	13	25	3
13	Trimble,Peter W	1991 / 92	14	27	Deegan, Christopher	1977 / 78	15	27	0
12	Buddin, Terrance L	1976 / 77	14	26	Deegan, Paul G	1979 / 80	13	20	6
12	Leahy, Mark C	2002 / 03	16	26	Smith,Roger T	2004 / 05	12	20	6
	,			26	Nikolovski, Richard	2006 / 07	12	20	6

### 2ND GRADE - HIGHEST TEAM SCORE

Total		Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue	
471		1978 / 79	ua	Balmain	ua	
6 / 398		2015 / 15	83.3	Western Suburbs	Village Green	
5/393	dec	2013 / 14	96	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	
7 / 386	dec	2002 / 03	100	Blacktown	Village Green	
8 / 378	dec	2010 / 11	96	Sydney University	Village Green	
371		2001 / 02	99.1	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	
9 / 371	dec	2009 / 10	90.1	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	
8 / 368		2003 / 04	94	Northern Districts	Village Green	
7 / 368	dec	2006 / 07	88	Hawkesbury	Village Green	
8 / 367	dec	2004 / 05	96	Gordon	Killara Oval	

# **THIRD GRADE**

### **3RD GRADE - BATTING AGGREGATE**

,,,,	ADE DATING ACCINE	// · · ·										
Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
625	Meagher, David P	1988 / 89	14	16	0	154	39.06	ua	3	1	ua	ua
583	Dixon,James S	1998 / 99	14	16	0	109	36.44	ua	4	1	ua	ua
577	Livingstone, Gregory R	1994 / 95	13	14	3	114	52.45	ua	3	3	ua	ua
570	Pratt,David T	1978 / 79	16	18	2	100	35.63	ua	2	1	ua	ua
561	Pratt, Anthony D	2001 / 02	11	14	2	138	46.75	ua	2	2	73	7
510	Jones, Clayton W	1984 / 85	15	19	2	64	30.00	ua	4	0	ua	ua
504	Bowcock, Daniel S	2007 / 08	14	13	1	85	42.00	67.47	6	0	61	5
500	Meagher, David P	1987 / 88	11	13	0	126	38.46	ua	2	1	ua	ua
499	Bowcock, Daniel S	1999 / 00	15	14	2	74	41.58	ua	5	0	ua	ua
477	Dixon, James S	2005 / 06	11	11	2	139*	53.00	95.21	3	2	67	10

# 3RD GRADE - BATTING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
53.00	Dixon,James S	2005 / 06	11	11	2	139*	477	95.21	3	2	67	10
52.45	Livingstone, Gregory R	1994 / 95	13	14	3	114	577	ua	3	3	ua	ua
51.00	Jackson,Connor S	2014 / 15	7	7	1	81*	306	70.18	3	0	40	2
48.50	Robb,Elvin	1986 / 87	6	7	1	106	291	ua	1	1	ua	ua
48.38	Kellaway,lan	1982 / 83	ua	11	3	101*	387	ua	1	2	ua	ua
48.29	Jones, Clayton W	1982 / 83	ua	7	0	159	338	ua	1	1	ua	ua
47.33	Mohideen,Sohail A	2001 / 02	8	8	2	99	284	ua	2	0	29	1
46.75	Pratt, Anthony D	2001 / 02	11	14	2	138	561	ua	2	2	73	7
44.86	Prattent, Nicholas M	1990 / 91	ua	8	1	107*	314	ua	2	1	ua	ua
44.38	Higgins,Oliver W	2006 / 07	8	8	0	96	355	54.62	3	0	43	2

### 3RD GRADE - HIGHEST SCORE

Score	Name	Season	Balls	Mins	4s	6s	Opponent	Venue
197	Foster,lan C	2003 / 04	209	255	34	0	North Sydney	North Sydney No 2
163	Coots,Duncan	1988 / 89	ua	ua	ua	ua	Sydney University	ua
159	Jones, Clayton W	1982 / 83	ua	ua	ua	ua	Central Cumberland	ua
155	Deegan,Christopher	1979 / 80	ua	ua	ua	ua	Manly Warringah	ua
154*	McDonald,Gavin S	2001 / 02	ua	ua	17	0	Randwick-Petersham	Snape Park
154	Meagher,David P	1988 / 89	ua	ua	ua	ua	Mosman	ua
153	Carson,Peter W	2002 / 03	ua	198	21	5	Western Suburbs	Blick Oval
151*	McNeil, James L	2009 / 10	201	250	21	1	Hawkesbury	Bensons Lane 3
139*	Dixon,James S	2005 / 06	128	161	24	2	Campbelltown-Camden	David Phillips North
138	Pratt, Anthony D	2001 / 02	ua	239	19	2	Penrith	David Phillips North

3RD GRADE - BOW	LING AGGREGATE
-----------------	----------------

Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
46	Stephen, Darren J	2004 / 05	11	207.5	42	592	12.87	27.11	2.85	7 - 19	2
41	Hetherington, William	1980 / 81	ua	234	78	510	12.44	34.24	2.18	6 - 74	2
41	Appleton,Mark S	2015 / 16	14	174	39	535	13.05	25.46	3.07	6 - 4	1
40	Bolton, John	1979 / 80	ua	247.3	61	642	16.05	37.13	2.59	9 - 28	2
38	McBarron,Graeme	1979 / 80	ua	214	65	487	12.82	33.79	2.28	5 - 37	2
34	Ingleson,John E	1978 / 79	15	228	52	653	19.21	53.65	2.86	6 - 34	2
32	Garland, Geoffrey M	1975 / 76	ua	106	19	362	11.31	26.50	3.42	5 - 11	2
31	Robinson, Greig G	1983 / 84	ua	206	67	517	16.68	39.87	2.51	5 - 34	2
30	Hoy,Mark	1984 / 85	10	210	66	543	18.10	42.00	2.59	6 - 63	1

### 3RD GRADE - BOWLING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
6.13	Ingleson,John E	1976 / 77	2	32	10	16	98	16.00	3.06	7 - 41	2
9.62	Clements, Andrew P R	1987 / 88	6	115	35	21	202	32.86	1.76	5 - 25	3
9.87	Appleton,Mark S	2011 / 12	6	50.5	13	15	148	20.33	2.91	3 - 18	0
11.31	Garland, Geoffrey M	1975 / 76	ua	106	19	32	362	26.50	3.42	5 - 11	2
11.40	Robinson, Greig G	1984 / 85	5	84.4	31	15	171	33.87	2.02	6 - 27	2
12.44	Hetherington,William	1980 / 81	ua	234	78	41	510	34.24	2.18	6 - 74	2
12.82	McBarron,Graeme	1979 / 80	ua	214	65	38	487	33.79	2.28	5 - 37	2
12.87	Stephen,Darren J	2004 / 05	11	207.5	42	46	592	27.11	2.85	7 - 19	2
13.05	Appleton,Mark S	2015 / 16	14	174	39	41	535	25.46	3.07	6 - 4	1
13.06	Wijeratne, Asoka H	1974 / 75	8	71	13	16	209	35.50	2.94	ua	ua

### 3RD GRADE - BEST BOWLING

Figures	Name	Name Season Overs Opponent		Opponent	Venue
9 / 28	Bolton, John	1979 / 80	ua	Southern Districts	ua
8 / 27	Ingleson,John E	1975 / 76	ua	Sydney DCC	ua
7 / 16	Towers,Steven J	2007 / 08	12	Mosman	Rawson Oval
7 / 19	Stephen, Darren J	2004 / 05	13.3	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 2
7 / 25	Thomas, Russell J	1998 / 99	ua	Parramatta	ua
7 / 26	Ingleson,John E	1974 / 75	ua	Waverley	ua
7 / 27	Culhane, Daniel J	1996 / 97	ua	Petersham-Marrickville	Marrickvile Oval
7 / 37	Buddin,Terrance L	1975 / 76	ua	Manly Warringah	ua
7 / 38	Price ,Stephen	1979 / 80	ua	Manly Warringah	ua
7 / 41	Ingleson, John E	1976 / 77	ua	Manly Warringah	ua

### 3RD GRADE - BOWLING - 10 WICKETS IN A MATCH

1975/76	5/47 & 5/26	VS.	Nepean	M.N.Bryce
1976/77	5/29 & 4/28	VS.	Sydney	J.E.Ingleson
1979/80	5/27 & 5/48	VS.	Central-Cumberland	J.Sands
1986/87	6/32 & 4/59	VS.	Fairfield-Liverpool	A.P.R.Clements

### 3RD GRADE - BOWLING - HAT TRICKS

1979/80 5/21 vs. Macquarie University J.Bolton

### **3RD GRADE - FIELDING & WICKET KEEPING**

Catches (Fielder)	Name	Season	Mts	W/K Dis.	Name	Season	Mts	W/K Catches	St.
16	Smith,Ian E	1976 / 77	15	30	Bascaran,Kabilan	2011 / 12	14	26	4
15	Pratt, David T	1979 / 80	ua	25	Cummins, Damien	1987 / 88	12	25	0
12	Jones, Clayton W	1977 / 78	ua	24	Heil, Cameron L	1996 / 97	14	23	1
12	Dillon, Andrew	1983 / 84	ua	22	Smith,Roger T	2003 / 04	11	17	5
12	Darmody,Leon	1984 / 85	16	21	Higgins,Oliver W	2002 / 03	10	18	3
12	Dixon, James S	1998 / 99	14	19	Cummins, Damien	1988 / 89	12	15	4
12	Bowcock, Daniel S	2006 / 07	12	19	Nikolovski, Richard	2004 / 05	11	15	4
11	Lamb, Alexander	1997 / 98	ua	18	MacFarlane, John D	1981 / 82	9	13	5
11	Pratt, Anthony D	2000 / 01	13	18	Kostoglou, Stephen G	2009 / 10	10	13	5
				18	Campbell, Richard	1977 / 78	ua	11	7

# 3RD GRADE - HIGHEST TEAM SCORE

Total		Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue
9 / 386		2004 / 05	91	Fairfield-Liverpool	David Phillips South
363		2004 / 05	80.3	Gordon	David Phillips South
359		2003 / 04	79.3	North Sydney	North Sydney 2
357		2002 / 03	81.4	Western Suburbs	Blick Oval
357		2005 / 06	73.4	Bankstown	Grahame Thomas Oval
6 / 356	dec	2006 / 07	80	North Sydney	David Phillips North
8 / 354	dec	2005 / 06	77	Campbelltown-Camden	David Phillips North
4 / 342		1982 / 83	ua	Mosman	ua .
7 / 337	dec	2014 / 15	80	Parramatta	David Phillips South
8 / 331		2001 / 02	87	Sutherland	David Phillips North

### FOURTH GRADE

Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
767	Martel, Jock B	1989 / 90	14	15	2	212	59.00	ua	4	3	ua	ua
628	Mitchell,Peter B	1996 / 97	na	15	1	98	44.86	ua	1	0	ua	ua
628	Robson, James G	1996 / 97	na	18	2	71	39.25	ua	7	0	ua	ua
608	Williams, Alexander J	1998 / 99	15	17	2	99*	40.53	ua	5	0	ua	ua
564	Jones, Clayton W	1987 / 88	14	15	2	123	43.38	ua	3	1	ua	ua
542	Martel, Jock B	1990 / 91	14	15	0	196	36.13	ua	2	1	ua	ua
532	Garland, Geoffrey M	1980 / 81	15	18	1	87	31.29	ua	4	0	ua	ua
507	Sackett,John	1982 / 83	na	15	1	127	36.21	ua	3	1	ua	ua
495	Jebb,David C	2002 / 03	15	17	1	70	30.94	ua	3	0	59	1
492	Jebb,David C	2001 / 02	14	15	2	85*	37.85	ua	4	0	55	0

### 4TH GRADE - BATTING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
177.00	Murn,Scott W R	2012 / 13	3	4	2	152*	354	59.00	1	2	46	2
81.80	Dermody,Damen P	1997 / 98	5	6	1	132*	409	na	1	2	na	na
79.00	Norbury,Stephen A	1991 / 92	4	4	0	126	316	na	1	2	na	na
68.00	Robson, James G	1998 / 99	13	12	5	149	476	na	2	1	na	na
60.20	Hansen,Mark A	2011 / 12	5	6	1	108	301	58.56	1	1	48	1
59.71	Robson, James G	1995 / 96	11	11	4	104*	418	na	1	1	na	na
59.00	Martel, Jock B	1989 / 90	14	15	2	212	767	na	4	3	na	na
56.29	Stamm, Jeremy	1997 / 98	12	12	5	117*	394	na	3	1	na	na
52.60	Martel, Jock B	1988 / 89	5	5	0	98	263	na	2	0	na	na
51.22	Carson,Peter W	2009 / 10	12	12	3	152*	461	76.20	1	2	58	3

### 4TH GRADE - HIGHEST SCORE

Score	Name	Season	Balls	Mins	4s	6s	Opponent	Venue
212	Martel, Jock B	1989 / 90	ua	ua	ua	ua	North Sydney	ua
196	Martel, Jock B	1990 / 91	ua	ua	ua	ua	Sydney University	David Phillips South
168	Hood,Philip J	2011 / 12	191	255	25	5	Hawkesbury	David Phillips South
165	Rea,Michael P	2009 / 10	177	ua	22	0	Hawkesbury	David Phillips North
158	Gerber,Simon B H	1997 / 98	ua	ua	ua	ua	St. George	ua
154	Fleming,Tallaesen	2007 / 08	188	257	17	5	Blacktown	David Phillips North
152*	Carson,Peter W	2009 / 10	175	241	19	1	Fairfield-Liverpool	David Phillips North
152*	Murn,Scott W R	2012 / 13	223	290	20	1	Penrith	David Phillips South
151*	Bachmann,Hugh A	2006 / 07	151	183	19	5	Mosman	Allan Border Oval
149	Robson, James G	1998 / 99	ua	ua	ua	ua	Mosman	ua

### 4TH GRADE - BOWLING AGGREGATE

Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
41	Robson, James G	1997 / 98	14	271	92	470	11.46	39.66	1.73	6 - 26	2
40	Robson, James G	1995 / 96	11	343	104	657	16.43	51.45	1.92	ua	ua
39	Stark,Robert W	1999 / 00	14	278.5	85	646	16.56	42.90	2.32	7 - 40	1
35	Stark,Robert W	1981 / 82	13	193.4	44	519	14.83	33.20	2.68	5 - 29	2
34	Lupton, John C	1991 / 92	9	177	45	451	13.26	31.24	2.55	7 - 40	3
34	Calver,Benjamin	1989 / 90	10	172.2	31	503	14.79	30.41	2.92	7 - 69	1
34	Robinson, Greig G	1988 / 89	12	202	35	577	16.97	35.65	2.86	ua	ua
34	Elliott,Andrew	1990 / 91	12	215.3	51	605	17.79	38.03	2.81	8 - 49	2
32	March,Roger S	1976 / 77	8	126.4	24	367	11.47	31.63	2.90	8 - 71	2
31	Robson, James G	1994 / 95	ua	362.5	163	497	16.03	70.23	1.37	ua	ua
31	Quinlin,David	1992 / 93	13	254	62	786	25.35	49.16	3.09	7 - 26	2

### 4TH GRADE - BOWLING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
8.35	Lockett,Benjamin M	2001 / 02	3	66.5	14	20	167	20.05	2.50	6 - 39	2
10.17	March,Roger S	1975 / 76	9	93.2	10	23	234	32.43	2.51	ua	ua
11.44	Clark, Glen A	1977 / 78	6	72.4	16	16	183	36.25	2.52	6 - 50	1
11.46	Thomas,Russell J	2000 / 01	12	133.3	31	26	298	30.81	2.23	5 - 9	1
11.46	Robson, James G	1997 / 98	14	271	92	41	470	39.66	1.73	6 - 26	2
11.47	Stark,Robert W	1997 / 98	10	160	62	30	344	32.00	2.15	6 - 40	2
11.47	March,Roger S	1976 / 77	8	126.4	24	32	367	31.63	2.90	8 - 71	2
12.42	Hamwood, Mark	1990 / 91	5	99	23	19	236	31.26	2.38	6 - 40	2
12.57	Molesworth, David	1978 / 79	10	102	20	21	264	38.86	2.59	6 - 55	2
12.75	Debello,Steven	1985 / 86	ua	106.5	21	24	306	26.71	2.86	6 - 47	1

### 4TH GRADE - BEST BOWLING

Figures	Name	Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue
10 / 19	Besgrove,Peter J	1975 / 76	ua Randwick		ua
8 / 49	Elliott,Andrew	1990 / 91	ua	Hawkesbury	ua
8 / 71	March,Roger S	1976 / 77	ua	Waverley	ua
7 / 25	Stark,Robert W	1996 / 97	ua	ua	ua
7 / 26	Quinlin,David	1992 / 93	ua	Hawkesbury	ua
7 / 40	Lupton, John C	1991 / 92	ua	Manly Warringah	ua
7 / 40	Stark,Robert W	1999 / 00	ua	ua	ua
7 / 48	Taylor,Lachlan R	1996 / 97	ua	ua	ua
7 / 54	Watson, Gregory G	1973 / 74	ua	Randwick	ua
7 / 54	Stark,Robert W	2002 / 03	18.1	Campbelltown-Camden	David Phillips North

4711 00 400				
4TH GRADE -	ROWLIN	IG - 10 W	ICKETSII	NAMAICH

1973/74	7/54 & 5/15	VS.	Randwick	G.G.Watson
1975/76	10/19 & 5/29	VS.	Randwick	P.J.Besgrove
1985/86	6/47 & 4/54	VS.	North Sydney	S.Debello
1990/91	6/40 & 4/42	VS.	Waverley	M.Hamwood
2001/02	5/42 & 6/39	VS.	Penrith	B.M.Lockett

### 4TH GRADE - BOWLING - HAT TRICKS

2003/04 2014/15 <b>2015/16</b>	7/61 5/92 <b>4/6</b>	vs. vs. vs.	Northern Districts Manly Warringah Randwick-Petersham	R.G.J.Call R.W.Stark J.Webb S.L.S.Crichton
1974/75	?	VS.	Randwick	R.G.J.Carr

### 4TH GRADE - FIELDING & WICKET KEEPING

Catches	Name	Season	Mts	W/K	Name	Season	Mts	W/K	St.
(Fielder)				Dis.				Catches	
12	Epstein, Anthony	1973 / 74	18	25	Barford, John P	1976 / 77	13	21	4
12	Epstein, Anthony	1974 / 75	17	25	Morson, Michael	1994 / 95	ua	18	7
12	Robb,Elvin	1984 / 85	15	23	Higgins,Oliver W	2000 / 01	9	19	4
12	Martel, Jock B	1989 / 90	14	23	Searle,Paul B	2005 / 06	9	23	0
12	Stark,Robert W	1997 / 98	10	22	Back,Michael	1984 / 85	9	17	5
12	Stark,Robert W	1998 / 99	12	21	Cooper,Bruce	1987 / 88	11	14	7
12	Mag,Michael	2006 / 07	14	21	Barford, John P	1975 / 76	16	13	8
11	Merrell,Ralph W	1974 / 75	16	19	Sanders, Matthew R	2006 / 07	14	15	4
11	Holt, Gregory	1982 / 83	ua	18	Little,David A	1991 / 92	10	12	6
11	Roach, Jack P	2011 / 12	10	17	Barford, John P	1978 / 79	14	16	1
11	Rea,Michael P	2015 / 16	13	17	Sanders, Matthew R	1989 / 90	13	13	4

### 4TH GRADE - HIGHEST TEAM SCORE

Total		Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue
5 / 418	dec	2006 / 07	80	Mosman	Allan Border Oval
5 / 373		1990 / 91	ua	Sydney University	ua
5 / 361	dec	2012 / 13	80	Penrith	David Phillips South
9 / 359	dec	2009 / 10	80	Blacktown	David Phillips North
3 / 352	dec	2009 / 10	71	Hawkesbury	David Phillips North
5 / 348	dec	2011 / 12	69	Hawkesbury	David Phillips South
8 / 344		1983 / 84	ua	Gordon	ua .
9 / 339	dec	2006 / 07	80	Bankstown	Grahame Thomas Oval
9 / 338	dec	2002 / 03	89	Sydney University	David Phillips North
336		2015 / 16	76.5	Blacktown	David Phillips South

# **FIFTH GRADE**

### **5TH GRADE - BATTING AGGREGATE**

Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
590	Lindsay,Andrew	1996 / 97	ua	15	2	138	45.38	ua	4	1	ua	ua
550	Vonwiller, Christoph C	1996 / 97	ua	19	4	101*	36.67	ua	3	1	ua	ua
519	Robson, James G	2005 / 06	16	14	3	90	47.18	45.97	4	0	41	0
507	Robson, James G	2002 / 03	16	17	4	111*	39.00	ua	2	1	33	0
504	Epstein, Anthony	1981 / 82	13	18	0	59	28.00	ua	3	0	ua	ua
500	Sanders, Matthew R	1996 / 97	ua	14	1	72	38.46	ua	4	0	ua	ua
482	Taylor, Alexander J	1981 / 82	16	17	1	67	30.13	ua	4	0	ua	ua
444	Cutler, Jeffrey N	1976 / 77	12	19	2	101*	26.12	ua	1	1	ua	ua
436	Gerber, Simon B H	2002 / 03	13	15	1	92	31.14	ua	3	0	54	0
432	Epstein, Anthony	1977 / 78	14	19	3	70*	27.00	ua	2	0	ua	ua

### **5TH GRADE - BATTING AVERAGE**

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
259.00	Stamm, Jeremy	1997 / 98	2	2	1	201*	259	na	1	1	na	na
133.00	Raffan, Neil G H	2007 / 08	2	2	0	148	266	52.26	0	2	34	0
85.20	Robson, James G	2006 / 07	11	9	4	165*	426	76.48	3	1	50	3
83.67	Bell,David E	2001 / 02	3	3	0	104	251	na	2	1	24	2
80.00	Dejong,Steven	2001 / 02	4	4	0	119	320	na	1	2	41	0
70.25	Goldsmith, David	1980 / 81	5	5	1	80	281	na	4	0	na	na
63.40	Robson, Angus J	2006 / 07	5	5	0	162	317	64.69	1	1	38	0
63.33	Zavos,Zachery	1997 / 98	7	7	1	101*	380	na	1	2	na	na
57.86	Madden,Keith	1980 / 81	11	12	5	78*	405	na	4	0	na	na
56.83	Gerber, Simon B H	1994 / 95	na	9	3	100	341	na	2	1	na	na

### 5TH GRADE - HIGHEST SCORE

Score	Name	Season	Balls	Mins	4s	6s	Opponent	Venue
222	Bowcock, Daniel S	1996 / 97	ua	185	35	2	North Sydney	David Phillips South
201*	Stamm,Jeremy	1997 / 98	ua	ua	ua	ua	Western Suburbs	David Phillips South
200	Azhar, Ashlee B	2003 / 04	ua	304	18	7	UTS Balmain	David Phillips South
195	Chandra,Sandeep	2000 / 01	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua
173	Martel,Jock B	1992 / 93	ua	ua	ua	ua	Hawkesbury	David Phillips North
167	Roper,Danniel	1985 / 86	ua	ua	ua	ua	Northern Districts	ua
165*	Robson, James G	2006 / 07	230	238	25	2	Sutherland	Tonkin Park
162	Robson, Angus J	2006 / 07	209	239	22	0	Bankstown	David Phillips South
153*	Day,Phillip	1981 / 82	ua	ua	ua	ua	Central Cumberland	ua
148	Raffan,Neil G H	2007 / 08	285	272	20	0	Sydney University	David Phillips South

Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
58	Stark,Robert W	2001 / 02	15	344.5	124	743	12.81	35.67	2.15	7 - 25	4
53	Merrell,Ralph W	1977 / 78	ua	205.7	15	793	14.96	31.08	3.85	6 - 51	4
43	Stark,Robert W	2002 / 03	12	214.1	44	634	14.74	29.88	2.96	8 - 16	3
41	Gregg,Michael J	1986 / 87	9	225	54	578	14.10	32.93	2.57	7 - 40	2
40	Hetherington,William	1977 / 78	8	130.1	28	265	6.63	26.03	2.04	8 - 48	2
40	Wiblin,S G	1974 / 75	13	180	26	698	17.45	36.00	3.88	6 - 69	1
39	McManis,Philip G	1976 / 77	6	128.7	20	488	12.51	26.44	3.79	7 - 35	3
35	Gale.Christopher	1981 / 82	12	261	65	647	18.49	44.74	2.48	ua	ua

#### 5TH GRADE - BOWLING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
5.24	Graham,David	1987 / 88	4	54	11	25	131	12.96	2.43	8 - 48	1
6.60	Perger,Nigel	1976 / 77	3	43	11	15	99	22.93	2.30	ua	ua
6.63	Hetherington,William	1977 / 78	8	130.1	28	40	265	26.03	2.04	8 - 48	2
8.96	Holt, Gregory	1981 / 82	7	88	22	26	233	20.31	2.65	6 - 46	3
9.39	Ryan,Michael B	1988 / 89	6	92	25	23	216	24.00	2.35	7 - 40	1
10.00	Vonwiller, Christoph C	1997 / 98	7	81.2	17	20	200	24.40	2.46	6 - 60	1
10.11	Haradasa, Derick K C	1975 / 76	7	109	16	27	273	32.30	2.50	6 - 38	3
10.74	Thompson,Patrick G	1978 / 79	4	63	14	19	204	26.53	3.24	7 - 40	2
11.47	Martin, John	1988 / 89	11	71	16	15	172	28.40	2.42	4 - 17	ua
11.73	Appleton,Mark S	2003 / 04	6	64	19	15	176	25.60	2.75	6 - 10	1

#### **5TH GRADE - BEST BOWLING**

Figures	Name	Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue
8 / 16	Stark,Robert W	2002 / 03	14.5	Manly Warringah	David Phillips South
8 / 30	Hamilton,Steven	1976 / 77	ua	Northern Districts	ua
8 / 48	Hetherington,William	1977 / 78	ua	Central Cumberland	ua
8 / 48	Graham,David	1987 / 88	ua	North Sydney	ua
8 / 51	Newton,G	1982 / 83	ua	Southern Districts	ua
8 / 58	Stephen,Darren J	2003 / 04	29.2	Randwick-Petersham	Kensington Oval
7 / 19	Quinlin,David	1990 / 91	ua	Parramatta	ua
7 / 25	Stark,Robert W	2001 / 02	14	Parramatta	Coleman Oval
7 / 26	Varatharajan,Giri	1984 / 85	17	Waverley	ua
7 / 29	McKendry, Anthony T	1979 / 80	ua	North Sydney	ua

#### 5TH GRADE - BOWLING - 10 WICKETS IN A MATCH

1975/76	6/42 & 5/46	vs. Sydney University	D.K.C.Haradasa
1976/77	5b 7/36 & 3/25	vs. North Sydney	P.W.Watkins
1977/78	5b 8/48 & 3/33	vs. Central Cumberland(B)	W.Hetherington
1982/83	5a 8/51 & 4/43	vs. Southern Districts	G.Newton
1996/97	6/20 & 4/18	vs. ?	J.Finlay
2001/02	7/34 & 7/25	vs. Parramata	R.W.Stark

#### **5TH GRADE - BOWLING - HAT TRICKS**

1976/77 5/32 vs. ? N.Perger 1994/95 3/10 vs. ? R.W.Stark

#### **5TH GRADE - FIELDING & WICKET KEEPING**

Catches (Fielder)	Name	Season Mts W/K Dis.		Name	Season	Mts	W/K Catches	St.	
12	Gonski,Steven	1976 / 77	11	31	Barford, John P	1981 / 82	16	29	2
11	Tinyow,D	1979 / 80	11	29	Mitchell, Peter B	2002 / 03	16	23	6
11	Madden,Keith	1981 / 82	15	26	Sanders, Matthew R	1996 / 97	ua	22	4
11	Sheperd,Glen R	1997 / 98	12	26	Madden,Keith	1978 / 79	ua	21	5
11	Quinlin,David	2000 / 01	15	25	Barford, John P	1977 / 78	12	22	3
11	Stark,Robert W	2001 / 02	15	24	MacFarlane, John D	1976 / 77	13	22	2
10	Joyce, John	1984 / 85	15	24	Rudd,Jason	1999 / 00	12	21	3
10	Crowl,Samuel J	2005 / 06	11	23	MacFarlane, John D	1978 / 79	12	22	1
10	Kargas,Evan	2005 / 06	9	23	MacFarlane, John D	1977 / 78	14	19	4
10	Mulvenna, Daniel R	2015 / 16	9.5	20	Sackett, John	1987 / 88	11	18	2

#### **5TH GRADE - HIGHEST TEAM SCORE**

Total		Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue
3 / 445		1996 / 97	ua	North Sydney	ua
6 / 416	dec	1977 / 78	ua	Sutherland	ua
392		2005 / 06	138.4	Campbelltown-Camden	Village Green
9 / 387	dec	2005 / 06	82	Sydney University	David Phillips South
7 / 382	dec	1995 / 96	ua	Bankstown	ua
5 / 363	dec	2002 / 03	88	Parramatta	David Phillips South
4 / 354	dec	2006 / 07	80	Bankstown	David Phillips South
9 / 342	dec	1992 / 93	ua	Hawkesbury	David Phillips South
337		2013 / 14	84.2	Manly Warringah	David Phillips North
4 / 324		1981 / 82	ua	Randwick	ua
8 / 323		2004 / 05	82	Mosman	David Phillips North
6 / 323		2008 / 09	83	Northern Districts	Somerville Park

#### **POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD**

Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
323	Cooper,Tom L W	2007 / 08	7	7	1	100*	53.83	102.54	2	1	45	7
320	Chapman, Christopher J	1975 / 76	5	6	1	121*	64.00	72.73	2	1	40	2
304	Christian, Daniel T	2002 / 03	5	5	0	102	60.80	99.35	1	2	42	2
299	Day,James R F	2005 / 06	8	8	2	75*	49.83	78.89	2	0	23	5
276	Lollback,Mark	1990 / 91	ua	8	0	73	34.50	ua	2	0	ua	ua
265	Dixon,James S	1980 / 81	5	6	0	65	44.17	ua	3	0	ua	ua
263	Cooper,Tom L W	2005 / 06	6	6	1	74*	52.60	110.50	2	0	42	4
263	McKay,Stuart W	2005 / 06	8	8	1	92	37.57	66.75	1	0	27	1
261	Robson,James G	1976 / 77	5	5	3	89	130.50	ua	2	0	ua	ua
249	Sinclair,Peter	1990 / 91	ua	9	1	51	31.13	ua	1	0	ua	ua

#### POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD - BATTING AVERAGE

Avge	Player Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
163.00	Hoare,Todd J	1997 / 98	2	2	1	101	163	ua	1	1	ua	ua
130.50	Robson, James G	1976 / 77	5	5	3	89	261	ua	2	0	ua	ua
64.00	Chapman, Christopher J	1975 / 76	5	6	1	121*	320	72.73	2	1	40	2
60.80	Christian, Daniel T	2002 / 03	5	5	0	102	304	99.35	1	2	42	2
56.25	Wakim, Charles A	2010 / 11	5	5	1	95*	225	119.05	3	0	29	2
54.67	Robson, Angus J	2010 / 11	4	4	1	130*	164	79.61	0	1	15	1
53.83	Cooper,Tom L W	2007 / 08	7	7	1	100*	323	102.54	2	1	45	7
52.75	Paine,Michael K	1993 / 94	5	5	1	92*	211	ua	1	0	ua	ua
52.60	Cooper,Tom L W	2005 / 06	6	6	1	74*	263	110.50	2	0	42	4
52.33	Robson,Samuel D	2006 / 07	3	3	0	79	157	61.81	2	0	10	0

#### **POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD - HIGHEST SCORE**

Score	Name	Season	Balls	Mins	4s	6s	Opponent	Venue
171*	Hamman,Rowan M K	1998 / 99	ua	ua	ua	ua	Eastern Suburbs	ua
130*	Robson, Angus J	2010 / 11	153	195	13	1	St.George	Hurstville Oval
127	Batchelor, Oliver R	2015 / 16	127	181	16	0	Northern Districts	Village Green
121*	Chapman, Christopher J	1975 / 76	159	176	19	0	Gordon	Chatswood Oval
120*	Williams, David L	1974 / 75	ua	236	8	1	Waverley	Waverley Oval
114*	Elliott,Michael R	2000 / 01	ua	ua	10	4	St.George	Village Green
110	Jacobs,Alan J	1973 / 74	ua	ua	ua	ua	Sydney University	Village Green
109	Johnson, Andrew W	1993 / 94	ua	ua	ua	ua	Petersham-Marrickville	ua
105	Byrnes, Joseph J	2013 / 14	132	176	11	0	Parramatta	Village Green
105	Lamb, Alexander	1997 / 98	ua	ua	ua	ua	Bankstown	ua
105	Elliott, Michael R	1999 / 00	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua

#### POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD - BOWLING AGGREGATE

Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
35	Watson, Gregory G	1975 / 76	7	123.1	33	301	8.60	28.14	2.44	ua	5
25	Brown, Craig A	1974 / 75	7	82.4	13	292	11.68	26.40	3.54	7 - 31	2
23	Lawson, Geoffrey F	1976 / 77	5	89.7	23	246	10.70	31.26	2.74	7 - 43	2
23	Fleming, Atticus	1988 / 89	9	151	33	390	16.96	39.39	2.58	7 - 44	1
22	Robson,Samuel D	2005 / 06	7	64	14	214	9.73	17.45	3.34	6 - 28	1
20	Sinclair,Peter	1988 / 89	9	90	16	257	12.85	27.00	2.86	4 - 28	0
20	Fleming,Atticus	1989 / 90	ua	129	45	287	14.35	38.70	2.22	6 - 51	ua
18	Le Lievre, Hugh M J	2007 / 08	7	57.2	13	177	9.83	19.11	3.09	5 - 32	1
18	McCallum, Alistair	1988 / 89	9	91	21	271	15.06	30.33	2.98	5 - 57	1
17	White Declan O D	2014 / 15	5	46.1	7	160	9.41	16.29	3.47	4 - 26	0

#### POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD - BOWLING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
7.00	Hamwood,Mark	1981 / 82	6	60.3	19	15	105	24.20	1.74	6 - 46	2
7.75	Medley,Ryan J	2007 / 08	5	22.5	0	12	93	11.42	4.07	4 - 28	0
8.38	O'Brien,Stephen P	1985 / 86	3	24	ua	8	67	18.00	2.79	ua	ua
8.60	Watson, Gregory G	1975 / 76	7	123.1	33	35	301	28.14	2.44	ua	5
9.41	White, Declan O D	2014 / 15	5	46.1	7	17	160	16.29	3.47	4 - 26	0
9.73	Robson,Samuel D	2005 / 06	7	64	14	22	214	17.45	3.34	6 - 28	1
9.83	Le Lievre, Hugh M J	2007 / 08	7	57.2	13	18	177	19.11	3.09	5 - 32	1
10.60	Christian, Daniel T	1999 / 00	5	48	4	15	159	19.20	3.31	5 - 33	1
10.70	Lawson, Geoffrey F	1976 / 77	5	89.7	23	23	246	31.26	2.74	7 - 43	2
11.68	Brown, Craig A	1974 / 75	7	82.4	13	25	292	26.40	3.54	7 - 31	2

#### **POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD - BEST BOWLING**

Figures	Name	Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue
7 / 31	Brown, Craig A	1974 / 75	17	Petersham-Marrickville	Village Green
7 / 43	Lawson, Geoffrey F	1976 / 77	22	Central Cumberland	SCG No 2
7 / 44	Fleming,Atticus	1988 / 89	20	Sutherland	David Phillips South
7 / 60	Lawson, Geoffrey F	1977 / 78	15	Randwick	Village Green
6 / 23	Medley,Ryan J	2008 / 09	9.3	Parramatta	Village Green
6 / 28	Robson,Samuel D	2005 / 06	10	Penrith	Village Green
6 / 42	Robson,James G	1974 / 75	14.6	Randwick	Coogee Oval
6 / 46	Hamwood,Mark	1981 / 82	23	Sydney University	ua
6 / 48	Ryan,Michael B	1980 / 81	20	Sydney University	ua
6 / 51	Fleming,Atticus	1989 / 90	ua	Manly Warringah	ua

POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD - FIELDING & WICKET KEEPING

Catches	Name	Season	Mts	W/K	Name	Season	Mts	W/K	St.
(Fielder)				Dis.				Catches	
10	Robson, James G	1975 / 76	7	14	Nikolovski,Richard	2005 / 06	8	7	7
9	Martin,Timothy	1997 / 98	6	14	Wakim,Benjamin P	2008 / 09	6	7	7
7	Brown, Craig A	1974 / 75	7	13	Neilan, Andrew M	1999 / 00	7	10	3
7	Scolari,Peter L	1983 / 84	4	13	Nikolovski,Richard	2004 / 05	7	11	2
7	Robson,Samuel D	2005 / 06	7	12	Maladay,Lewin R	2015 / 16	5	11	1
6	Chapman, Christopher J	1974 / 75	7	11	Howard, Steven J	1975 / 76	4	10	1
6	Abbott, John	1988 / 89	7	11	Kovacs ,Michael	1988 / 89	9	7	4
6	Sinclair,Peter	1988 / 89	9	10	Barbour, David R	1974 / 75	7	5	5
6	Robson, Angus J	2011 / 12	8	10	Little,David A	1989 / 90	ua	10	0
				10	Neilan, Andrew M	2001 / 02	5	6	4
				10	Smith,Roger T	2003 / 04	4	9	1
				10	Bascaran,Kabilan	2013 / 14	7	10	0

#### POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD - HIGHEST TEAM SCORE

Total	Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue
4 / 338	1997 / 98	50	Bankstown	ua
5 / 311	2005 / 06	50	North Sydney	North Sydney 2
5 / 290	2015 / 16	50	Northern Districts	Village Green
8 / 283	2008 / 09	50	Parramatta	Village Green
3 / 279	2010 / 11	50	St.George	Hurstville Oval
7 / 276	1990 / 91	ua	Western Suburbs	ua
9 / 271	2007 / 08	50	North Sydney	Village Green
9 / 262	2014 / 15	50	Gordon	Village Green
9 / 261	2002 / 03	49.2	St.George	Hurstville Oval
2 / 257	1998 / 99	39	Eastern Suburbs	ua

#### **AW GREEN SHIELD**

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - BATTING AGGREGATE

Runs	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
410	Jagot,Thomas A	2011 / 12	9	9	2	108	58.57	73.74	3	1	46	7
365	Christian, Daniel T	1998 / 99	7	7	2	163*	73.00	ua	2	1	44	4
287	Churchill,Zachary J	2011 / 12	9	9	3	61*	47.83	63.64	1	0	28	1
282	Robson, Angus J	2007 / 08	7	7	1	104*	47.00	57.55	2	1	33	0
278	Henry, Thomas J	2012 / 13	8	8	1	94	39.71	55.71	2	0	25	4
250	Gray,Scott	2008 / 09	7	7	1	124*	41.67	81.70	1	1	22	2
246	Foster,lan C	1999 / 00	7	7	0	104	35.14	ua	0	1	ua	ua
235	Brooks, Anthony	2001 / 02	7	7	0	82	33.57	ua	1	0	32	1
217	Erickson, Jack A	2011 / 12	9	7	3	119*	54.25	58.81	0	1	26	0
216	Tsoukalas, Nikolas G	2012 / 13	8	8	1	71	30.86	64.29	1	0	25	3

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - BATTING AVERAGE

Name	Name	Season	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
73.00	Christian, Daniel T	1998 / 99	7	7	2	163*	365	ua	2	1	44	4
58.57	Jagot,Thomas A	2011 / 12	9	9	2	108	410	73.74	3	1	46	7
54.25	Erickson, Jack A	2011 / 12	9	7	3	119*	217	58.81	0	1	26	0
47.83	Churchill,Zachary J	2011 / 12	9	9	3	61*	287	63.64	1	0	28	1
47.00	Robson, Angus J	2007 / 08	7	7	1	104*	282	57.55	2	1	33	0
41.67	Gray,Scott	2008 / 09	7	7	1	124*	250	81.70	1	1	22	2
41.40	Tartak, Daniel	2000 / 01	5	5	0	93	207	ua	1	0	ua	ua
39.71	Henry,Thomas J	2012 / 13	8	8	1	94	278	55.71	2	0	25	4
38.25	Lambros, Andrew D	2007 / 08	7	5	1	71	153	66.23	1	0	14	1
36.40	Jagot,Thomas A	2010 / 11	6	6	1	78	182	42.13	1	0	12	0

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - HIGHEST SCORE

Score	Name	Season	Balls	Mins	4s	6s	Opponent	Venue
163*	Christian, Daniel T	1998 / 99	151	206	21	0	Petersham-Marrickville	Village Green
124*	Gray,Scott	2008 / 09	130	168	13	0	Hawkesbury	Village Green
119*	Erickson, Jack A	2011 / 12	164	190	16	0	Gordon	Village Green
108	Jagot,Thomas A	2011 / 12	137	175	15	1	Parramatta	Village Green
104*	Robson, Angus J	2007 / 08	152	179	12	0	Randwick-Petersham	Village Green
104	Foster,lan C	1999 / 00	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua
103*	Robson,Samuel D	2004 / 05	164	225	7	0	Bankstown	Jensen Park
101*	Sevior, Marcus J G	2009 / 10	123	188	5	0	North Sydney	Village Green
100	Wakim, Benjamin P	2004 / 05	154	245	13	0	Western Suburbs	David Phillips South
94	Henry, Thomas J	2012 / 13	146	183	11	1	Penrith	Village Green

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - BOWLING AGGREGATE

Wkts	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
16	Langdon, Andrew P	1998 / 99	7	79	29	171	10.69	29.63	2.16	4 - 7	0
14	White, Declan O D	2012 / 13	7	63.4	16	124	8.86	27.29	1.95	5 - 21	1
14	Carr,Daniel J	2012 / 13	7	53.2	9	129	9.21	22.86	2.42	4 - 8	0
14	Medley,Ryan J	2004 / 05	7	61.5	18	161	11.50	26.50	2.60	5 - 16	1
14	Parsons,Eriq L	2006 / 07	7	61.2	14	192	13.71	26.29	3.13	4 - 27	0
14	Venianakis, John A	2012 / 13	8	78.2	13	206	14.71	33.57	2.63	4 - 22	0
14	Matthews, Nolan G P	2003 / 04	7	49.2	13	233	16.64	21.14	4.72	4 - 21	0
14	Murphy,Sameer K	2013 / 14	7	69.1	9	236	16.86	29.64	3.41	4 - 28	0
14	Kellaway, Nicholas D L	2011 / 12	9	88.3	17	241	17.21	37.93	2.72	2 - 13	0
13	Tartak,Daniel	1999 / 00	7	64	14	203	15.62	29.54	3.17	4 - 20	0

ΔW	GREEN.	SHIFL	ם -	ROWI	ING	<b>AVFR</b>	ΔGF

Avge	Name	Season	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
8.86	White, Declan O	2012 / 13	7	63.4	16	14	124	27.29	1.95	5 - 21	1
9.21	Carr,Daniel J	2012 / 13	7	53.2	9	14	129	22.86	2.42	4 - 8	0
10.69	Langdon, Andrew P	1998 / 99	7	79	29	16	171	29.63	2.16	4 - 7	0
11.50	Medley,Ryan J	2004 / 05	7	61.5	18	14	161	26.50	2.60	5 - 16	1
12.38	Bryson, Matthew T	2015 / 16	5	26.5	4	8	99	20.13	3.69	5 - 31	1
12.44	Tanner, Nivek D	2015 / 16	5	44	12	9	112	29.33	2.55	5 - 22	1
12.63	Duffy,Owen B	2011 / 12	9	28.2	2	8	101	21.25	3.56	4 - 12	0
12.67	Jagot,Thomas A	2010 / 11	6	43	11	9	114	28.67	2.65	4 - 20	0
13.71	Parsons,Eriq L	2006 / 07	7	61.2	14	14	192	26.29	3.13	4 - 27	0
13.80	Dinclik,Ayden W	2012 / 13	7	49.5	10	10	138	29.90	2.77	4 - 23	0

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - BEST BOWLING

Figures	Name	Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue	
6 / 29	Melnyk, Anthony B	2014 / 15	10	Western Suburbs	Pratten Park	
5 / 16	Medley,Ryan J	2004 / 05	9.4	Western Suburbs	David Phillips South	
5 / 21	White, Declan O D	2012 / 13	12	North Sydney	Village Green	
5 / 22	Tanner, Nivek D	2015 / 16	10	Campbelltown-Camden	David Phillips North	
5 / 24	Emery,Kieran J C	2007 / 08	12	Sydney	Drummoyne Oval	
5 / 31	Bryson,Matthew T	2015 / 16	9	Penrith	Village Green	
5/32	Webb, Alexander	2009 / 10	11	Gordon	Killara Oval	
5 / 51	Wilding,Mihkel	1997 / 98	11	Petersham-Marrickville	Marrickville Oval	
4/7	Langdon, Andrew P	1998 / 99	12	Eastern Suburbs	Waverley Oval	
4/8	Carr, Daniel J	2012 / 13	6	Sydney University	Sydney University 2	

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - BOWLING - HAT TRICKS

2012/13 5/21 vs. North Sydney D.O.D.White

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - FIELDING & WICKET KEEPING

Catches (Fielder)	Name	Season	Mts	W/K Dis.	Name	Season	Mts	W/K Catches	St.
7	Atallah,Thomas G	2006 / 07	7	16	Wakim,Benjamin P	2004 / 05	7	12	4
6	Winder,Adam	2003 / 04	7	15	Churchill, Zachary J	2011 / 12	9	10	5
6	Jagot,Thomas A	2011 / 12	9	11	Harold,Marc	2003 / 04	7	7	4
5	Hill,Joshua	1997 / 98	9	10	Britton, Christopher M	1999 / 00	5	10	0
5	Phillips,Samual	2000 / 01	7	10	Radhakrishnan, Nikethan	2013 / 14	7	7	3
5	Robson, Angus J	2007 / 08	7	9	McGilvray,A	1997 / 98	8	9	0
				9	Tartak,Mark	1998 / 99	5	6	3
				9	Patel, Ankit	2012 / 13	8	8	1
				9	Fely,Benjamin L	2015 / 16	5	8	1
				8	Braid, Alexander R	2001 / 02	7	8	0

#### A.W.GREEN SHIELD - HIGHEST TEAM SCORE

Total	Season	Overs	Opponent	Venue	
5 / 283	1998 / 99	60	Petersham-Marrickville	Village Green	
8 / 281	2011 / 12	60	Campbelltown-Camden	David Phillips South	
2 / 272	2009 / 10	53.2	North Sydney	Village Green	
6 / 250	2006 / 07	60	Sydney University	David Phillips North	
7 / 249	2008 / 09	60	Eastern Suburbs	Waverley Oval	
249	2012 / 13	59.5	Sydney	Village Green	
5 / 245	1998 / 99	60	Randwick	David Phillips South	
9 / 244	2007 / 08	60	North Sydney	David Phillips North	
8 / 243	1998 / 99	60	Western Suburbs	Blick Oval	
9 / 237	2011 / 12	52	St.George	Village Green	

#### **OTHER COMPETITIONS**

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - BATTING AGGREGATE

Runs	Name	Season	Comp	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Avge	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
698	Roberts,Matthew	1998 / 99	MP5	10	12	3	125*	77.56	ua	5	2	ua	ua
566	Weerakkody, Nivan	2005 / 06	MC	10	11	3	124	70.75	71.11	3	1	45	0
429	Robertson, Rodger W D	1981 / 82	CS	13	11	4	73*	61.29	ua	1	0	ua	ua
418	Ford,Aaron J	2009 / 10	MC	11	11	0	81	38.00	56.26	4	0	33	1
394	Marsden,Lachlan T	2011 / 12	MC	15	15	0	83	26.27	60.62	3	0	45	0
383	Hughes,David	1986 / 87	MSD	13	14	1	53	29.46	ua	1	0	ua	ua
381	Wickremasena, Ruchera	1999 / 00	MC	13	15	2	93*	29.31	ua	3	0	ua	ua
374	Jones, Andrew C	1994 / 95	MP3	12	12	1	82	34.00	ua	3	0	ua	ua
366	Kalagara,Suresh K	2005 / 06	MC	11	11	1	116	36.60	104.87	2	1	33	2
356	Tan,Jonathan J H	2011 / 12	TCC	12	11	4	77*	50.86	83.96	4	0	45	5
356	Robertson, Rodger W D	1982 / 83	CS	8	8	0	115	44.50	ua	3	1	ua	ua

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - BATTING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Comp	Mts	Inns	NO	HS	Runs	S/R	50s	100s	4s	6s
300.00	Mullen,Mark D	1990 / 91	MP3	ua	5	4	231*	300	ua	0	2	ua	ua
127.00	Campion,Warren	1993 / 94	MP1	ua	4	2	111*	254	ua	0	2	ua	ua
77.56	Roberts, Matthew	1998 / 99	MP5	10	12	3	125*	698	ua	5	2	ua	ua
76.25	Schirmer,Scott	1990 / 91	MP3	ua	6	2	83	305	ua	3	0	ua	ua
70.75	Weerakkody,Nivan	2005 / 06	MC	10	11	3	124	566	71.11	3	1	45	0
61.29	Robertson,Rodger W D	1981 / 82	CS	13	11	4	73*	429	ua	1	0	ua	ua
57.40	Garton,Sean J	2009 / 10	MC	5	5	0	139	287	73.40	2	1	30	1
50.86	Tan,Jonathan J H	2011 / 12	TCC	12	11	4	77*	356	83.96	4	0	45	5
49.33	Murray,lan F	1985 / 86	MSD	ua	6	0	91	296	ua	3	0	ua	ua
47.57	Ferguson,Stuart H	2000 / 01	MC	8	8	1	152*	333	ua	2	1	ua	ua

OTHER COMPETITIONS -	<b>HIGHEST</b>	SCORE
----------------------	----------------	-------

Score	Name	Season	Comp	Balls	Mins	4s	6s	Opponent	Venue
231*	Mullen,Mark D	1990 / 91	MP3	ua	ua	ua	ua	Randwick	David Phillips South
223	Choudhury, Manas	2010 / 11	MC	245	ua	34	4	Penrith	David Phillips South
174*	Garry, Andrew	1996 / 97	MP3	ua	ua	ua	ua	Archers	ua
152*	Kesby, Donald	1991 / 92	MP2	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua
152*	Ferguson,Stuart H	2000 / 01	MC	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua	ua
146	Maguire,Peter H	2013 / 14	MC	110	194	24	2	Western Suburbs	David Phillips North
144	Gavan, Joshua P	2013 / 14	MC	207	271	21	1	Western Suburbs	David Phillips North
139	Garton,Sean J	2009 / 10	MC	148	ua	18	1	Penrith	Rance Oval
136	Harris,Peter A	2004 / 05	MC	151	ua	21	0	South Sydney	David Phillips North
133	Syed,Faraz	2009 / 10	MC	165	ua	16	3	Georges River	Bland Oval

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - BOWLING AGGREGATE

Wkts	Name	Season	Comp	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Runs	Avge	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
50	Taylor,Damien	1998 / 99	MP5	10	189	36	587	11.74	22.68	3.11	5 - 24	4
43	Payne,Todd	1999 / 00	MP2	10	199	ua	568	13.21	27.77	2.85	7 - 72	5
39	Phillips,Michael	1990 / 91	MP3	ua	171	34	646	16.56	26.31	3.78	ua	ua
37	Bell,David J	1986 / 87	MSD	16	249	77	529	14.30	40.38	2.12	4 - 41	0
37	Howard,Oscar G H	2015 / 16	MC	13	202.2	50	537	14.51	32.81	2.65	5 - 24	3
35	Acret, Anthony	1999 / 00	MC	11	162.2	31	464	13.26	27.83	2.86	4 - 26	0
34	Payne,Todd	1998 / 99	MP5	9	181	31	584	17.18	31.94	3.23	5 - 56	1
32	Manoosingh, Trevor R R	2012 / 13	MC	6	122.4	38	286	8.94	23.00	2.33	6 - 12	4
32	Payne,Todd	2000 / 01	MP2	11	165	ua	439	13.72	30.94	2.66	7 - 28	2
32	Hettiarachchi,Ravin M	2008 / 09	MC	9	109.1	8	441	13.78	20.47	4.04	5 - 20	1
31	Charlwood, Alexander G	2011 / 12	TCC	19	117	15	422	13.61	22.65	3.61	4 - 15	0

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - BOWLING AVERAGE

Avge	Name	Season	Comp	Mts	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	S/R	Econ	B/B	5wi
4.94	Culhane,Daniel J	2006 / 07	MC	7	42.2	12	17	84	14.94	1.98	8 - 14	1
7.48	Sebesfi, Nicholas	1982 / 83	CS	8	70	9	23	172	18.26	2.46	7 - 26	2
8.72	Gosling,Maxwell	1980 / 81	CS	6	42	ua	18	157	14.00	3.74	ua	ua
8.74	Sample,Mark	1981 / 82	CS	9	73	22	19	166	23.05	2.27	5 - 23	1
8.94	Manoosingh, Trevor R R	2012 / 13	MC	6	122.4	38	32	286	23.00	2.33	6 - 12	4
10.00	Mag,Michael	1996 / 97	MP1	ua	38.1	ua	15	150	15.27	3.93	5 - 17	2
11.12	Borda,Kenneth C	1973 / 74	CS	8	44	4	17	189	20.71	4.3	ua	ua
11.22	Kishor,Kamal	2012 / 13	TCC	12	63.1	13	18	202	21.06	3.20	4 - 40	0
11.28	Middleton, John Mck	1980 / 81	CS	5	81	ua	18	203	27.00	2.51	ua	ua
11.74	Taylor,Damien	1998 / 99	MP5	10	189	36	50	587	22.68	3.11	5 - 24	4

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - BEST BOWLING

Figures	Name	Season	Comp	Overs	Opponent	Venue
8 / 14	Culhane, Daniel J	2006 / 07	MC	8.2	Sydney University	David Phillips South
8 / 36	Zehner,Eric J W	1996 / 97	MP3	ua	ua	ua
7 / 23	Schofield,Kenneth J	1974 / 75	CS	ua	Old Knox Grammarians	ua
7 / 26	Sebesfi, Nicholas	1982 / 83	CS	ua	Parramatta	ua
7 / 28	Payne,Todd	2000 / 01	MP2	ua	ua	ua
7 / 46	Holden,Thomas	1995 / 96	MP3	23	ua	ua
7 / 72	Payne,Todd	1999 / 00	MP5	ua	ua	ua
6/12	Manoosingh,Trevor R R	2012 / 13	MC	7.2	Randwick-Petersham	Snape Park
6 / 14	Agrawal,Mukul	2000 / 01	MC	ua	ua	ua
6 / 18	Amin,Rupesh	1999 / 00	MC	ua	ua	ua

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - BOWLING - 10 WICKETS IN A MATCH

1996/97	M1	5/17 & 5/34	١	/s. Wo	olpack Wolves	M.Mag

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - BOWLING - HAT TRICKS

1999/00 1999/00 <b>2015/16</b>	MC 5/32 & 3/47 MC ? MC 5/24 (Double Hat Trick)	vs. Roseville vs. ? <b>vs. Sydney</b>	M.S.Lucas M.Anderson <b>O.G.H.Howard</b>
1995/96	M1 5/36	vs. Woolpack Wolves	A.Cavill
1987/88	M1 5/49	vs. Baulkham Hills	C.Michie
1986/87	SD ?	vs. Canterbury	P.Warrington

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - FIELDING & WICKET KEEPING

Catches (Fielder)	Name	Season	Comp	Mts	W/K Dis.	Name	Season	Comp	Mts	W/K Catches	St.
10	Wunsch, Anthony	1990 / 91	MP3	ua	37	Hughes,David	1986 / 87	MSD	13	29	8
10	Maguire,Peter H	2012 / 13	TCC	8	31	Ward,Robert	1998 / 99	MP5	15	28	3
9	Wickremasena, Ruchera	1990 / 91	MP3	ua	23	Stanton, Murray J	2015 / 16	MC	14	16	7
9	Maguire,Peter H	2001 / 02	MC	12	21	Ward,Robert	2000 / 01	MP2	9	19	2
8	Phillips, Michael	1991 / 92	MP2	ua	19	de Silva,Chaanuk A	2013 / 14	TCC	12	12	7
8	Anderson, Timothy	1998 / 99	MP5	13	18	Ward,Robert	1999 / 00	MP5	12	17	1
8	Smart, Timothy	1998 / 99	MP5	7	18	de Silva, Chaanuk A	2012 / 13	TCC	18	17	1
8	Taylor, Damien	1998 / 99	MP5	10	15	Tate,Benjamin D	2004 / 05	MC	12	13	2
8	Serov,Paul	2003 / 04	MC	12	15	Whitton, Thomas B	2008 / 09	MC	10	7	8
8	Weerakkody, Nivan	2005 / 06	MC	10	14	Stanton, Murray J	2012 / 13	MC	8	13	1
8	Hogue, Saief	2015 / 16	MC	11	13	Barford, John P	1985 / 86	MSD	ua	11	2
					13	Smith Liam	2001 / 02	MC	11	11	2

#### OTHER COMPETITIONS - HIGHEST TEAM SCORE

Total		Season	Comp	Overs	Opponent	Venue
375		2005 / 06	MC	148	UTS Balmain	David Phillips North
366		2010 / 11	MC	76.5	Penrith	David Phillips South
4/360	dec	2013 / 14	MC	65.3	Western Suburbs	David Phillips North
9 / 356	dec	2004 / 05	MC	82	South Sydney	David Phillips North
8 / 355	dec	2012 / 13	MC	80	Randwick-Petersham	David Phillips South
9 / 335	dec	2011 / 12	MC	80	Blacktown	Whalan 2
333		2009 / 10	MC	75.3	Georges River	Bland Oval
327		2002 / 03	MC	74.3	Maccabi	Kensington Oval
320		2005 / 06	MC	49.4	Burwood	David Phillips South
318		2005 / 06	MC	82.5	Randwick-Petersham	David Phillips South

### **PARTNERSHIP RECORDS**

Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	2005/06	UTS-Balmain	Village Green	A.D.Jeffrey	146	M.W.O'Connor	112	259
	2009/10	Parramatta	Old Kings Oval	M.W.Creed	65	B.S.Dean	102	178
	1995/96	Fairfield-Liverpool	Rosedale Oval	M.J.Phelps	81	A.W.Johnson	154*	174
	2007/08	Eastern Suburbs	Village Green	M.Gowland	112	T.S.Richardson	84	171
	1988/89	North Sydney	Village Green	J.M.Baker	88	A.C.Shaw	103	170
	1997/98	Northern Districts	Asquith Park	J.S.Dixon	50	M.J.Slater	152	163
2nd	1991/92	Randwick	Coogee Oval	M.J.Slater	184	G.R.Livingstone	126	253
	1999/00	St.George	Hurstville Oval	D.J.Carson	85	M.J.Slater	213*	251
	1997/98	Manly Warringah	Manly Oval	A.D.Pratt	121	M.J.Slater	149	246
	1992/93	Western Suburbs	Village Green	M.J.Slater	112	G.R.Livingstone	97	226
	1993/94	Mosman	Village Green	M.Boyer	85*	J.C.Young	97*	169*
	2015/16	Blacktown	Joe McAleer Oval	A.M.Ali	162	D.G.Dawson	87	166
	2001/02	Eastern Suburbs	Village Green	D.J.Carson	68	L.D.Sutton	122	165
	2011/12	Mosman	Rawson Oval	M.Gowland	77	D.G.Dawson	83	158
	1996/97	Manly Warringah	Village Green	M.W.Hayward	61	J.S.Dixon	103*	153
	1985/86	Campbelltown-Camden	ua	J.M.Baker	88	D.P.Meagher	102	151
3rd	2005/06	Sydney University	Village Green	D.T.Christian	135*	D.J.Carson	134*	273*
	2015/16	Manly Warringah	Village Green	C.A.Wakim	126	D.G.Dawson	169	259
	2013/14	Gordon	Village Green	D.G.Dawson	113	B.P.Wakim	152*	244
	2014/15	Sydney	Drummoyne Oval	C.A.Wakim	138*	D.G.Dawson	105*	226*
	1995/96	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby No 1	M.W.Hayward	75	J.C.Young	161	212
	1997/98	Campbelltown-Camden	David Phillips North	I.D.K.Salisbury	119*	M.J.Slater	106	211
	2003/04	Hawkesbury	Village Green	D.T.Christian	106	M.W.Creed	104	207
	1997/98	Western Suburbs	David Phillips North	I.D.K.Salisbury	100	B.P.J.Nott	130	197
	2002/03	Sydney University	Sydney Uni No 1	L.D.Sutton	84	M.J.Slater	193	195
	2015/16	Hawkesbury	Owen Earle Oval	D.G.Dawson	86	C.A.Wakim	108	177
	2007/08 1990/91	Sydney University Campbelltown-Camden	Village Green	D.T.Christian M.J.Slater	106 104	M.W.Creed	166 89	171 169
	2008/09	Manly Warringah	ua Village Green	M.Gowland	77	M.Crawley M.W.Creed	137*	154
	1985/86	Parramatta	ua	G.R.Livingstone	83	J.G.Robson	80	154
	2013/14	Fairfield-Liverpool	Rosedale Oval	M.Gowland	73	D.G.Dawson	83*	152
4th	2005/06	Randwick-Petersham	Petersham Oval	A.D.Jeffrey	194	T.L.W.Cooper	92	269
401	2005/06	Fairfield-Liverpool	Rosedale Oval	T.L.W.Cooper	109	J.R.F.Day	133	215
	2004/05	Northern Districts	Village Green	D.T.Christian	136	D.J.Carson	81*	192
	1984/85	Manly Warringah	ua	J.G.Robson	75*	S.Keers	97	165
	2002/03	Parramatta	Village Green	D.T.Christian	68	D.J.Carson	119	165
5th	2002/03	Mosman	Village Green	M.R.Elliott	59	M.G.Watson	96	155
Otti	2013/14	Sydney University	Village Green	J.R.F.Day	70	C.A.Wakim	117	153
6th	1979/80	Sutherland	Sutherland Oval	P.Tout	140*	T.L.Buddin	93*	173*
Otti	2004/05	Mosman	Village Green	T.E.Lang	84	M.W.Creed	169	146
7th	1995/96	Manly Warringah	Manly Oval	J.Horley	77	M.W.Hayward	89	141
7 111	1983/84	Manly Warringah	Village Green	D.P.Meagher	91	J.S.Dixon	106*	139
8th	2003/04	Western Suburbs	Village Green	M.R.Elliott	131*	E.J.W.Zehner	50*	142*
Our	1986/87	Western Suburbs	ua	G.R.Livingstone	119	A.D.Pratt	52	135
9th	1983/84	Western Suburbs	Pratten Park	S.G.Campbell	57	N.Perger	54*	111
3111	2004/05	Manly Warringah	Village Green	C.Brown	90	E.J.W.Zehner	39*	111
	1997/98	Randwick	David Phillips North	M.W.Hayward	83	W.R.Saunders	41*	107
10th	2011/12	Western Suburbs	Village Green	C.P.Tremain	81*	D.G.Dawson	200*	188*
1001	2011/12	Penrith	Village Green	T.E.Lang	102*	R.Nikolovski	200	92
	2000/09	ı emitti	village Green	i.L.Laiiy	102	IV:IAIVOIOA9VI	۷١	34

FIRST GRADE - LIMITED OVERS (1LO)

Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	2007/08	Sutherland	Village Green	D.J.Carson	79	M.Gowland	114	207
	2000/01	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1	D.J.Carson	56	T.S.Richardson	99	129
2nd	2009/10	Sydney	Village Green	M.W.Creed	75*	D.G.Dawson	73*	163*
	2004/05	UTS-Balmain	Drummoyne Oval	C.Brown	77*	M.W.O'Connor	68*	148*
	2001/02	Bankstown	Bankstown Oval	L.D.Sutton	53	T.S.Richardson	104*	131
	2000/01	Petersham-Marrickville	Village Green	D.J.Carson	95	C.J.Adams	55	124
	2000/01	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	T.S.Richardson	48	C.J.Adams	98*	123
	2005/06	Hawkesbury	Village Green	M.W.Creed	37	A.D.Jeffrey	90	117
	1992/93	Campbelltown-Camden	Village Green	D.Coots	123	J.G.Robson	45	113
	2014/15	Blacktown	Village Green	C.A.Wakim	55	D.G.Dawson	108*	104
3rd	2008/09	St.George	Hurstville Oval	B.S.Dean	66	M.Gowland	94	163
	2011/12	Penrith	Village Green	G.W.Clarence	85*	D.G.Dawson	94*	162*
	1993/94	Western Suburbs	Pratten Park	M.J.Slater	84	G.Breusch	59	150
	2006/07	St.George	Hurstville Oval	M.W.Creed	62	T.L.W.Cooper	149*	138
	2002/03	North Sydney	Village Green	L.D.Sutton	33	M.J.Slater	113	128
	2011/12	Northern Districts	Mark Taylor Oval	G.W.Clarence	54*	D.G.Dawson	74*	125*
	2004/05	Randwick-Petersham	Village Green	D.T.Christian	62	M.W.Creed	107	120
4th	2008/09	Western Suburbs	Pratten Park	T.E.Lang	71	M.W.Creed	118	188
	2001/02	Western Suburbs	Village Green	D.J.Carson	61	M.G.Watson	108	125
	2006/07	St.George	Hurstville Oval	T.E.Lang	50	T.L.W.Cooper	149*	100
5th	2014/15	Hawkesbury	Village Green	N.J.Walker	43	M.Gowland	78	111
	2013/14	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1	D.G.Dawson	90	D.Bhandari	55	105
	2012/13	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	T.E.Lang	43*	J.R.F.Day	50*	99*
6th	2004/05	St.George	Sutherland Oval	T.E.Lang	64*	M.W.Creed	135*	150*
	2008/09	Blacktown	Village Green	S.L.Crichton	47	T.E.Lang	92*	116
	2007/08	Bankstown	Bankstown Oval	M.R.Elliott	78	D.J.Carson	43*	113
7th	2014/15	Sydney University	Sydney University 1	J.M.Turner	76	C.P.Tremain	26	86
	2006/07	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1	T.L.W.Cooper	72	S.D.Robson	39*	59
8th	2003/04	Campbelltown-Camden	Village Green	D.J.Carson	99*	A.M.Neilan	44	79
	2008/09	Mosman	Allan Boarder Oval	T.Van Der Gugten	22	S.W.McKay	55*	51
9th	2007/08	Northern Districts	Village Green	M.C.Sykes	67	R.Nikolovski	21*	90

	2002/03	Hawkesbury	Bensons Lane 1	M.W.O'Connor	40*	D.Langford-Smith	44*	75*
10th	2000/01	Parramatta	Merrylands Oval	D.Langford-Smith	34	D.C.H.Heysen	20*	54
	2003/04	Manly Warringah	Manly Oval	A.M.Neilan	31	C.M.Thomas	14*	47

Note - Partnership information is not available from the following seasons: 1994/95 ,1995/96 ,1997/98 & 1998/99

FIRST GRADE - TWENTY20 (1T20)

Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	2012/13	Sydney	Goddard Park	M.Gowland	72	C.A.Wakim	60	132
	2013/14	Bankstown	Village Green	M.Gowland	38	J.R.F.Day	38	86
2nd	2014/15	Newcastle	Village Green	C.A.Wakim	91	D.G.Dawson	49	104
	2008/09	Bankstown	Bankstown Oval	S.L.S.Crichton	44	M.W.O'Connor	42	79
3rd	2010/11	Blacktown	Joe McAleer Oval	J.A.Henry	44	D.G.Dawson	48*	85
	2015/16	Randwick-Petersham	Village Green	B.P.Wakim	23	D.G.Dawson	54	67
4th	2014/15	Sutherland	Glenn McGrath Oval	B.P.Wakim	50*	D.G.Dawson	88*	110*
	2011/12	Bankstown	Village Green	G.W.Clarence	25*	M.D.Birrell	36*	39*
5th	2015/16	Illawarra	North Dalton Park	N.J.Walker	46	R.du Plessis	29*	68
	2008/09	Randwick-Petersham	Grahame Thomas Oval	M.W.Creed	51*	W.Lindsay	15*	23*
6th	2015/16	North Sydney	Tunks Park	B.J.McLean	15	D.G.Dawson	79*	56
	2011/12	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1	N.J.Walker	14	J.L.McNeil	30*	26
7th	2013/14	Randwick-Petersham	Coogee Oval	T.A.Jagot	20	N.J.Walker	48*	47
	2011/12	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1	C.P.Tremain	26*	J.L.McNeil	30*	39*
8th	2012/13	Campbelltown-Camden	North Sydney Oval	C.P.Tremain	56*	T.S.Rogers	39*	90*
	2015/16	Randwick-Petersham	Village Green	J.J.Connolly	7*	J.A.Henry	9*	12*
9th	2008/09	Sutherland	Grahame Thomas Oval	R.T.Lyons	21	T.E.Lang	79*	46
	2010/11	Mosman	Village Green	W.Lindsay	13	N.J.Walker	23*	34
10th	2008/09	Sutherland	Grahame Thomas Oval	J.Webb	9	T.E.Lang	79*	28
	2011/12	Eastern Suburbs	Waverley Oval	L.A.Talay	6*	J.L.McNeil	30*	19*

#### **2ND GRADE**

Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	1999/00	Western Suburbs	David Phillips North	D.Bhandari	87	H.P.E.Nott	82	171
	2007/08	Manly Warringah	Village Green	A.J.Robson	43	S.W.McKay	95	126
2nd	1992/93	Sutherland	ua	A.D.Pratt	130*	M.J.Phelps	118*	240*
	1999/00	Balmain	Village Green	A.Lamb	104	D.Bhandari	185	234
	2006/07	Hawkesbury	Village Green	S.W.McKay	95	M.C.Sykes	100	178
	2006/07	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	M.Gowland	66	T.S.Richardson	164	174
	1981/82	Sydney University	ua	A.H.Wijeratne	114	J.M.Baker	50	170
	2005/06	Randwick-Petersham	Village Green	T.S.Richardson	77	M.R.Elliott	105	167
	1986/87	Sydney University	ua	J.Sackett	55	J.Large	108	159
	2015/16	Gordon	Village Green	M.Gowland	80	O.R.Batchelor	65	150
3rd	1998/99	Petersham-Marrickville	Village Green	A.W.Johnson	119	L.D.Sutton	117	219
	1989/90	Manly Warringah	ua	G.Eades	171	D.Coots	88	216
	1992/93	Waverley	ua	M.W.Hayward	137*	G.Breusch	100*	166
	1991/92	Penrith	ua	P.Sinclair	89	M.Boyer	129*	165
	2007/08	Western Suburbs	Pratten Park	W.Lindsay	91	J.Webb	145	165
	1990/91	Petersham-Marrickville	ua	M.Boyer	81	A.C.Shaw	73	151
	1999/00	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1	D.Coots	72	D.Bhandari	87	150
4th	2012/13	Penrith	Village Green	T.A.Jagot	72	B.P.Wakim	160	226
	1990/91	Campbelltown-Camden	ua	P.Sinclair	102	P.W.Trimble	129	202
	2015/16	Western Suburbs	Village Green	M.A.Atallah	100	B.J.McLean	114	191
	2014/13	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	N.J.Walker	53	B.P.Wakim	166*	155
5th	2011/12	Mosman	Village Green	T.A.Jagot	61	C.A.Wakim	116	174
	1985/86	North Sydney	North Sydney No2	M.Delgigante	61	P.L.Scolari	71	147
6th	2010/11	Northern Districts	Waitara Oval	H.G.Campbell	101	D.J.Carson	115*	182
	2002/03	Sydney University	Village Green	M.R.Elliott	164	M.W.Hayward	89*	161
	2010/11	Penrith	Village Green	S.A.Gardner	71	D.J.Carson	116	154
7th	2002/03	Fairfield-Liverpool	Rosedale Oval	E.J.W.Zehner	93	M.W.Hayward	106*	167
	1980/81	Gordon	ua	N.Perger	96	R.Campbell	69	151
8th	2002/03	St.George	Hurstville Oval	E.J.W.Zehner	73	M.W.Hayward	155	172
	2006/07	Sutherland	Village Green	M.W.Hayward	93	G.W.Walker	86	158
9th	2006/07	North Sydney	North Sydney 2	M.Treuberg	60	R.Nikolovski	110	164
	2005/06	Western Suburbs	Pratten Park	A.D.Zell	92	C.M.Thomas	31*	93
10th	1999/00	St.George	Village Green	E.J.W.Zehner	72	T.F.Buckett	54*	124
	1985/86	Waverley	ua	Patrick Crammond	73*	J.Sackett	48*	89*
11-4-		information is not available						

Note - Partnership information is not available from the following seasons: 1993/94 , 1994/95

#### **3RD GRADE**

0110	J. (							
Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	2004/05	Fairfield-Liverpool	David Phillips South	D.C.Jebb	128	S.D.Robson	85	174
2nd	1990/91	Parramatta	ua	M.Boyer	120	N.M.Prattent	107*	204
3rd	2003/04	North Sydney	North Sydney No 2	M.W.Creed	110	I.C.Foster	197	250
4th	2001/02	Eastern Suburbs	David Phillips North	A.D.Pratt	108	A.W.Johnson	131*	212
5th	2005/06	Gordon	Beauchamp Park	A.J.O'Sullivan	84	M.S.Owers	70	141
6th	1983/84	Gordon	ua	P.Day	106	J.Sackett	88	179
7th	2002/03	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby No 2	R.A.Dooley	68	D.J.Stephen	69	128
8th	1993/94	Gordon	ua	M.Morson	72*	D.Quinlin	20*	100*
9th	1982/83	Sydney	ua	S.Price	42	A.Dillon	36	79
10th	1978/79	Sydney	ua	R.Campbell	99	T.G.Thompson	35*	88

#### **FOURTH GRADE**

Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	1980/81	Balmain	ua	George MacDonald	95	G.M.Garland	51	165
2nd	1993/94	Penrith	ua	G.Hill	109	C.De Silva	60	195
3rd	1990/91	Sydney University	David Phillips South	J.B.Martel	196	D.C.Jebb	102*	196
4th	1990/91	Balmain	ua	J.Horley	131*	N.M.Prattent	70*	205*
5th	2006/07	Mosman	Allan Border Oval	S.J.Towers	101	H.A.Backmann	151*	195
6th	2011/12	Western Suburbs	Blick Oval	M.A.Hansen	108	J.R.Shankar	105*	185
7th	1982/83	Gordon	ua	J.E.Ingleson	92	M.Woodley	61	142
8th	2003/04	Randwick-Petersham	David Phillips North	P.B.Mitchell	47	D.W.Ross	58	113
9th	1989/90	North Sydney	ua	J.B.Martel	212*	G.G.Robinson	26*	100*
10th	1991/92	Mosman	ua	S.A.Norbury	126	W.R.Saunders	15*	82

**FIFTH GRADE** 

1994/95   Mosman	Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score		Score	P/Ship
2004/05	1st		Manly-Warringah	ua					188
1981/82   Sydney University (B)   Ua		1994/95	Mosman	ua	S.B.H.Gerber	100	P.B.Searle	92	173
2nd         2001/02         Eastern Suburbs         David Phillips South David Phillips South Phillips Sou			Eastern Suburbs	Snape Park	A.I.Stuart			88	169
2001/02   Sutherland   David Phillips South   S.Dejong   88   D.E.Bell   79   173   1785/86   Mosman   Ua   Ua   Ua   S.B.H.Gerber   100* A.Steward   76* 171   1994/95   Parramatta   Ua   S.B.H.Gerber   107   C.J.Morris   91   174   1994/95   Parramatta   Ua   S.B.H.Gerber   107   C.J.Morris   91   174   174   175		1981/82	Sydney University (B)			79	D.Dixon	79	158*
1985/86   Mosman   Ua	2nd	2001/02	Eastern Suburbs	David Phillips South	S.Dejong	119	T.J.Thompson	98	214
2005/06   Campbelltown-Camden   Village Green   S.B.H.Gerber   107   C.J.Morris   91   170   1994/95   Parramatta   Ua   S.B.H.Gerber   78* M.C.Leahy   88   168   169   169   169   160		2001/02	Sutherland	David Phillips South					173
1994/95			Mosman	ua					171*
3rd         1996/97         North Sydney         David Phillips South David Phillips South A.B.Azhar         C.C.Vonwiller         101*         D.S.Bowcock         222         288           2003/04         UTS-Balmain         David Phillips South David Phillips South Pillips South P			Campbelltown-Camden	Village Green					170
2003/04   UTS-Balmain   David Phillips South   A.B.Azhar   200   S.D.Robson   53*   220   1981/82   Randwick   ua   J.Martin   100*   E.Robb   100   161   100   161   100   162   100   162   100   163   100		1994/95	Parramatta	ua	S.B.H.Gerber	78*	M.C.Leahy	88	169
1981/82	3rd	1996/97	North Sydney	David Phillips South	C.C.Vonwiller	101*	D.S.Bowcock	222	289
1982/83   University of NSW (B)   Ua   M.Delgigante   84   J.Martin   72   157		2003/04	UTS-Balmain	David Phillips South	A.B.Azhar	200	S.D.Robson	53*	220
4th         1992/93         Bankstown         ua         R.Wickremasena         78         B.L.Christie         103*         177           2001/02         Parramatta         Coleman Oval         M.W.Pigg         123         D.E.Bell         68         15           5th         1992/93         Hawkesbury         David Phillips North         D.J.Sue         69         J.B.Martel         173         21:           2003/04         Eastern Suburbs         David Phillips South         T.A.L.Hood         121*         S.D.Robson         52*         178           2005/06         Sydney University         David Phillips South         H.A.Bachmann         145         J.G.Robson         84         16*           2004/05         Fairfield-Liverpool         David Phillips North         H.A.Bachmann         110         J.G.Robson         74*         158           1997/98         Gordon         ua         G.J.Harris         95         J.Stamm         58         15*           6th         2002/03         Parramatta         David Phillips South         P.W.Carson         144         J.G.Robson         111         25*           7th         2008/09         Northern Districts         Somerville Park         A.C.Jones         104*         <		1981/82	Randwick	ua	J.Martin	100*	E.Robb	100	165
2001/02         Parramatta         Coleman Oval         M.W.Pigg         123         D.E.Bell         68         15           5th         1992/93         Hawkesbury         David Phillips North         D.J.Sue         69         J.B.Martel         173         21:           2003/04         Eastern Suburbs         David Phillips South         T.A.L.Hood         121*         S.D.Robson         52*         178           2005/06         Sydney University         David Phillips South         H.A.Bachmann         145         J.G.Robson         84         16*           2004/05         Fairfield-Liverpool         David Phillips South         H.A.Bachmann         110         J.G.Robson         74*         155           1997/98         Gordon         ua         G.J.Harris         95         J.Stamm         58         15           6th         2002/03         Parramatta         David Phillips South         P.W.Carson         144         J.G.Robson         111         255           1984/85         Sydney University         ua         M.Back         77         V.Popovich         67         150           7th         2008/09         Northern Districts         Somerville Park         A.C.Jones         104*         S.D.Pearce		1982/83	University of NSW (B)	ua	M.Delgigante	84	J.Martin	72	157
5th         1992/93         Hawkesbury         David Phillips North         D.J.Sue         69         J.B.Martel         173         213           2003/04         Eastern Suburbs         David Phillips South         T.A.L.Hood         121*         S.D.Robson         52*         178           2005/06         Sydney University         David Phillips South         H.A.Bachmann         145         J.G.Robson         84         16*           2004/05         Fairfield-Liverpool         David Phillips North         H.A.Bachmann         110         J.G.Robson         74*         155           1997/98         Gordon         ua         G.J.Harris         95         J.Stamm         58         15*           6th         2002/03         Parramatta         David Phillips South         P.W.Carson         144         J.G.Robson         111         25*           1984/85         Sydney University         ua         M.Back         77         V.Popovich         67         15*           7th         2008/09         Northern Districts         ua         V.Popovich         98         R.Glennister         57         12*           8th         2007/08         Sydney University         David Phillips South         N.G.H.Raffan         148	4th	1992/93	Bankstown	ua	R.Wickremasena	78	B.L.Christie	103*	173
2003/04   Eastern Suburbs   David Phillips South   T.A.L.Hood   121* S.D.Robson   52*   178   2005/06   Sydney University   David Phillips South   H.A.Bachmann   145   J.G.Robson   84   16*		2001/02	Parramatta	Coleman Oval	M.W.Pigg	123	D.E.Bell	68	151
2005/06   Sydney University   David Phillips South   H.A.Bachmann   145   J.G.Robson   84   16   2004/05   Fairfield-Liverpool   David Phillips North   H.A.Bachmann   110   J.G.Robson   74*   150	5th	1992/93		David Phillips North	D.J.Sue	69	J.B.Martel		213
2004/05			Eastern Suburbs		T.A.L.Hood	121*	S.D.Robson	52*	178*
1997/98         Gordon         ua         G.J.Harris         95         J.Stamm         58         153           6th         2002/03         Parramatta         David Phillips South 1984/85         P.W.Carson M.Back         144         J.G.Robson 111         255           1984/85         Sydney University ua         M.Back         77         V.Popovich 67         156           7th         2008/09         Northern Districts         Somerville Park ua         A.C.Jones N.G.Jones 104*         S.D.Pearce 76*         148           1982/83         Southern Districts         ua         V.Popovich 98         R.Glennister 57         125           8th         2007/08         Sydney University David Phillips South ua         N.G.H.Raffan 148         V.Jauregui         27*         133           1996/97         Eastern Suburbs         ua         G.A.Clark         54*         M.Mag         50*         112           9th         1980/81         University of NSW (A)         ua         L.Darmody         106*         S.Gibbs         25*         112           2010/11         Sydney         ELS Hall Park David Phillips North         R.A.Dooley         47         T.J.Stewart         30*         73           10th         1984/85         Sutherland		2005/06	Sydney University	David Phillips South	H.A.Bachmann	145	J.G.Robson	84	161
6th         2002/03         Parramatta         David Phillips South 1984/85         P.W.Carson M.Back         144         J.G.Robson 111         258           1984/85         Sydney University         ua         M.Back         77         V.Popovich         67         150           7th         2008/09         Northern Districts         Somerville Park         A.C.Jones         104*         S.D.Pearce         76*         148           1982/83         Southern Districts         ua         V.Popovich         98         R.Glennister         57         12           8th         2007/08         Sydney University         David Phillips South         N.G.H.Raffan         148         V.Jauregui         27*         13           1996/97         Eastern Suburbs         ua         G.A.Clark         54*         M.Mag         50*         112           9th         1980/81         University of NSW (A)         ua         L.Darmody         106*         S.Gibbs         25*         112           2010/11         Sydney         ELS Hall Park         B.K.Toms         12         B.M.Romano         55         73           2014/15         Penrith         David Phillips North         R.A.Dooley         47         T.J.Stewart         30* <th></th> <th></th> <th>Fairfield-Liverpool</th> <th>David Phillips North</th> <th></th> <th>110</th> <th></th> <th>74*</th> <th>159</th>			Fairfield-Liverpool	David Phillips North		110		74*	159
1984/85   Sydney University   Ua   M.Back   77   V.Popovich   67   150		1997/98	Gordon			95	J.Stamm	58	153
7th         2008/09         Northern Districts         Somerville Park ua         A.C.Jones         104*         S.D.Pearce         76*         148           1982/83         Southern Districts         ua         V.Popovich         98         R.Glennister         57         123           8th         2007/08         Sydney University         David Phillips South ua         N.G.H.Raffan         148         V.Jauregui         27*         13           1996/97         Eastern Suburbs         ua         G.A.Clark         54*         M.Mag         50*         112           9th         1980/81         University of NSW (A)         ua         L.Darmody         106*         S.Gibbs         25*         112           2010/11         Sydney         ELS Hall Park         B.K.Toms         12         B.M.Romano         55         73           2014/15         Penrith         David Phillips North         R.A.Dooley         47         T.J.Stewart         30*         73           10th         1984/85         Sutherland         ua         D.J.Bell         73*         Gregory Clarke         18         84	6th		Parramatta	David Phillips South		144	J.G.Robson		255
1982/83         Southern Districts         ua         V.Popovich         98         R.Glennister         57         123           8th         2007/08         Sydney University         David Phillips South         N.G.H.Raffan         148         V.Jauregui         27*         133           1996/97         Eastern Suburbs         ua         G.A.Clark         54*         M.Mag         50*         112           9th         1980/81         University of NSW (A)         ua         L.Darmody         106*         S.Gibbs         25*         112           2010/11         Sydney         ELS Hall Park         B.K.Toms         12         B.M.Romano         55         73           2014/15         Penrith         David Phillips North         R.A.Dooley         47         T.J.Stewart         30*         73           10th         1984/85         Sutherland         ua         D.J.Bell         73*         Gregory Clarke         18         84		1984/85	Sydney University	ua	M.Back	77	V.Popovich	67	150
8th         2007/08 1996/97         Sydney University 1996/97         David Phillips South ua         N.G.H.Raffan G.A.Clark         148 V.Jauregui 50° 112         27* 13° 112           9th         1980/81 1980/81 University of NSW (A) 2010/11 Sydney         ua         L.Darmody 106° S.Gibbs 25° 112         S.Gibbs 25° 112         12° 112           2014/15 Penrith         David Phillips North David Phillips North 1984/85         R.A.Dooley 47 T.J.Stewart 30° 73         30° 73           10th         1984/85 Sutherland         ua         D.J.Bell 73° Gregory Clarke         18         84	7th	2008/09	Northern Districts	Somerville Park	A.C.Jones	104*	S.D.Pearce	76*	148*
1996/97         Eastern Suburbs         ua         G.A.Clark         54*         M.Mag         50*         112           9th         1980/81         University of NSW (A)         ua         L.Darmody         106*         S.Gibbs         25*         112           2010/11         Sydney         ELS Hall Park         B.K.Toms         12         B.M.Romano         55         73           2014/15         Penrith         David Phillips North         R.A.Dooley         47         T.J.Stewart         30*         73           10th         1984/85         Sutherland         ua         D.J.Bell         73*         Gregory Clarke         18         84		1982/83	Southern Districts	ua	V.Popovich	98	R.Glennister	57	123
1996/97   Eastern Suburbs   Ua   G.A.Clark   54* M.Mag   50*   112	8th	2007/08	Sydney University	David Phillips South	N.G.H.Raffan	148		27*	133
2010/11         Sydney         ELS Hall Park         B.K.Toms         12         B.M.Romano         55         73           2014/15         Penrith         David Phillips North         R.A.Dooley         47         T.J.Stewart         30*         73           10th         1984/85         Sutherland         ua         D.J.Bell         73*         Gregory Clarke         18         84		1996/97	Eastern Suburbs	ua	G.A.Clark	54*		50*	112*
2014/15         Penrith         David Phillips North         R.A.Dooley         47         T.J.Stewart         30*         73           10th         1984/85         Sutherland         ua         D.J.Bell         73*         Gregory Clarke         18         84	9th	1980/81	University of NSW (A)	ua		106*		25*	112*
10th 1984/85 Sutherland ua D.J.Bell 73* Gregory Clarke 18 84		2010/11	Sydney	ELS Hall Park	B.K.Toms	12	B.M.Romano	55	73
		2014/15	Penrith	David Phillips North	R.A.Dooley	47	T.J.Stewart	30*	73
2003/04 Sutherland Tonkin Oval M.S.Appleton 21 G.P.Fuss 76* 63	10th	1984/85	Sutherland	ua		73*	Gregory Clarke	18	84
		2003/04	Sutherland	Tonkin Oval	M.S.Appleton	21	G.P.Fuss	76*	63

**POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD** 

Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	1993/94	Waverley	ua	P.Urquhart	100	M.K.Paine	ua	155
	2012/13	Northern Districts	Mark Taylor Oval	T.D.Gallop	65	A.J.Robson	70	145
	2015/16	Northern Districts	Village Green	A.M.Ali	71	O.R.Batchelor	127	144
	2007/08	North Sydney	Village Green	M.Gowland	81	R.Flannigan	52	132
	1988/89	Campbelltown-Camden	ua	P.Sinclair	55	A.C.Shaw	61	110
	2014/15	Gordon	Village Green	J.J.Byrnes	56	R.B.Lawrence Jnr	45	101
2nd	2005/06	North Sydney	North Sydney 2	S.W.McKay	92	T.L.W.Cooper	70	106
	2010/11	St George	Hurstville Oval	C.A.Wakim	60	A.J.Robson	130*	97
3rd	2010/11	St George	Hurstville Oval	J.L.McNeil	60	A.J.Robson	130*	155
	2012/13	Penrith	Village Green	T.S.Rogers	29*	A.J.Robson	98*	121*
	2007/08	Randwick-Petersham	Petersham Oval	T.L.W.Cooper	62	J.Webb	50	117
	2008/09	Mosman	Rawson Oval	B.S.Dean	49	R.J.Medley	69*	106
4th	2006/07	Sydney University	Village Green	M.C.Sykes	50	S.D.Robson	79	94
	2015/16	Northern Districts	Village Green	O.R.Batchelor	127	C.S.Jackson	51	92
5th	2007/08	Sutherland	Village Green	T.L.W.Cooper	100*	H.M.J.Le Lievre	49*	119*
	2007/08	Sydney	Drummoyne Oval	T.L.W.Cooper	89	S.L.S.Crichton	22	85
6th	2004/05	Western Suburbs	David Phillips Nth	G.J.Pereira	52	S.W.McKay	36*	91
	2013/14	Sutherland	Glenn McGrath Oval	J.A.Venianakis	45	T.A.Jagot	103	80
7th	2004/05	Northern Districts	Waitara Oval	R.Nikolovski	44	S.D.Robson	79*	104
	2011/12	Sutherland	Village Green	T.D.Gallop	66	T.G.Atallah	43	97
8th	2012/13	Sydney University	Village Green	H.G.Nichols	57	S.W.R.Murn	62*	118
	2010/11	Sydney	Village Green	T.A.Jagot	17	T.van der Gugten	98*	77
9th	2009/10	Sydney University	Sydney Uni. 1	S.G.Kostoglou	14	J.R.N.Brown	28*	39
	2012/13	Manly Warringah	Manly Oval	K.Bascaran	19	S.W.R.Murn	27	34
10th	2003/04	Manly Warringah	Manly Oval	A.P.Langdon	16*	M.D.M.Smith	19	38
	2015/16	Penrith	Howell Oval	D.O.D.White	15	H.C.McLean	20*	35
Note		n information is not availab						

Note - Partnership information is not available from the following seasons: 1973/74, 1975/76, 1976/77, 1977/78, 1978/79, 1979/80, 1984/85, 1985/86, 1986/87, 1987/88, 1989/90, 1990/91, 1991/92, 1992/93, 1993/94, 1994/95, 1995/96, 1996/97, 1997/98, 1998/99, 1999/00.

**A.W.GREEN SHIELD** 

Wkt	Season	Opponent	Venue	Bat 1	Score	Bat 2	Score	P/Ship
1st	2007/08	Randwick-Petersham	Village Green	M.J.Edwards	67	A.J.Robson	104*	141
	2008/09	Eastern Suburbs	Waverly Oval	D.Ferrara	55	J.Deacon	67	130
	2011/12	St.George	Village Green	J.Habib	74	O.B.Duffy	64	128
	2011/12	Gordon	Killara Oval	O.B.Duffy	52	R.B.Lawrence Jnr	53	109
2nd	2009/10	North Sydney	Village Green	S.W.R.Murn	87	M.J.G.Sevior	101*	152
	2004/05	Bankstown	Jensen Park	H.A.Bachmann	71	S.D.Robson	103*	127
	2006/07	Sydney University	David Phillips North	A.Kemmery	88	A.J.Robson	45	116
3rd	2012/13	Sydney	Village Green	R.B.Lawrence Jnr	64	J.G.Lyras	71	132
	2002/03	Mosman	Village Green	S.D.Robson	33	C.Lawry	82	113
4th	2011/12	Sutherland	Village Green	J.A.Jagot	82*	Z.J.Churchill	46*	127*
	1998/99	Petersham-Marrickville	Village Green	M.Wilding	39	D.T.Christian	163*	101
5th	2003/04	Campbelltown-Camden	Raby 1	R.Jayanetti	84	A.Winder	56	123
	1998/99	Randwick	David Phillips South	A.Allan	40	D.T.Christian	83*	87
6th	2004/05	UTS-Balmain	David Phillips South	T.van der Gugten	60	S.L.S.Crichton	76	127
	2006/07	Fairfield-Liverpool	Rosedale Oval	K.J.C.Emery	77	M.G.Phelps	47	127
	1998/99	Petersham-Marrickville	Village Green	D.T.Christian	163*	B.Wolrige	26*	91*
7th	2008/09	Hawkesbury	Village Green	S.Gray	124*	T.A.Jagot	18*	86*
	2002/03	Hawkesbury	Village Green	M.Brooks	35	P.Aley	37	71
8th	2006/07	Northern Districts	Village Green	T.G.Atallah	36	E.L.Parsons	18	56
	2009/10	Sydney University	St.Pauls College	T.C.Wakim	30	J.A.Erickson	22	50
9th	2011/12	Gordon	Village Green	D.O.D.White	19	J.A.Erickson	119*	59
	2009/10	Campbelltown-Camden	Village Green	G.T.Ho	50*	M.R.Hopper	15*	57*
10th	2002/03	Sutherland	Caringbah Oval	P.Windred	23	B.Bently	15*	39
	2011/12	Gordon	Village Green	N.D.L.Kellaway	12	J.A.Erickson	119*	36
	2013/14	Fairfield-Liverpool	Village Green	C.S.Maritz	38	R.Gopal	6*	36

Score

Bat 2

Score P/Ship

Note - Partnership information is not available from the following seasons: 1999/00

#### OTHER (NON SCA) COMPETITIONS (COMBINED)

(City & Suburban, Shires D Grade, Moore Park, Metropolitan Cup, Tim Creer Cup) 
 Wkt
 Season

 1st
 2012/13
 MC
 Opponent Venue Bat 1 Blacktown David Phillips South S.Kumar

VVI	ocason		Орропен	Venue	Dati	JUUI	Datz	OCOIC	i /oilip
1st	2012/13	MC	Blacktown	David Phillips South	S.Kumar	59	T.G.Perera	84*	149
	2013/14	TCC	Warringah	Frank Gray Oval	L.G.Peters	66	J.P.Gavan	112	146
	2006/07	MC	Hawkesbury	David Phillips South	A.C.Jones	59	V.Jauregui	55	110
	2015/16	MC	Georges River	Lance Hutchinson Oval	T.J.Stewart	22	J.M.Mellick	83	110
	1988/89	MP1	Sydney University	ua	A.J.Taylor	24	C.McIntosh	67	104
	2008/09	MC	Sydney University	St.Pauls College	R.A.Dooley	37	N.Saleh	66	104
	2005/06	MC	Holroyd-Hills	Castlewood	M.R.Kaye	54	A.C.Jones	100	102
	2011/12		North West Sydney	David Phillips South	B.P.Karmakar	27	G.T.Ho	96*	100
2nd	1994/95	MP3	Mascot	ua	A.C.Jones	72	C.Neal	100	171
2110	2007/08	MC	Blacktown	Whalan 2	S.A.Butler	48	J.C.Mark	95	125
	2011/12	MC	Sydney	David Phillips South	S.A.D.Nguyen	47	L.T.Marsden	80	117
	2013/14		Mt.Pritchard-Sthn Dist.	David Phillips South	C.A.de Silva		T.G.Perera	44	115
	2015/14	MC	Gordon	David Phillips South	V.Karunasinghe	26	R.B.Lawrence Jnr	99	115
	2005/06	MC		David Phillips North	S.K.Kalagara		N.Weerakkody	87*	106
	2005/06 2015/16		Randwick-Petersham				M.P.Rea	95	106 102
		MC	Hawkesbury	Owen Earle Oval	S.A.D.Nguyen	51			102
	2015/16	MC	Randwick-Petersham	David Phillips North	T.J.Stewart	30	S.A.D.Nguyen	79*	-
	2014/15	MC	North Sydney	David Phillips North	G.Araujo	32	M.Ali	93	100
3rd	2013/14	MC	Western Suburbs	David Phillips North	J.P.Gavan	144	P.H.Maguire	146	223
	2008/09	MC	Sydney	Jubilee Oval	R.M.Hettiarachchi	56	A.S.K.Sukumar	62	143
	2015/16	MC	Gordon	David Phillips North	K.Muraleedaran	58	W.P.Maisey	89	118
	2014/15	MC	Fairfield-Liverpool	David Phillips North	J.Mohan	30	S.A.D.Nguyen	80	107
	2012/13	TCC	South Sydney	Alan Davidson Oval	P.H.Maguire	48*	G.Araujo	53*	101*
4th	1990/91	MP3	Randwick	ua	M.D.Mullen	231*	S.Schirmer	88	269
	2002/03	MC	Burwood Briars	Ron Routley Oval	C.Anderson	85*	G.Spenceley	90*	173*
	2011/12	TCC	Lane Cove	Village Green	N.J.Williams	48*	S.A.D.Nguyen	111*	120*
	2006/07	MC	Randwick-Petersham	David Phillips South	R.A.Dooley	53	A.C.Jones	64	119
	1994/95	MP3	Waverley	ua .	C.Neal	86	R.Wickremasena	36	113
	2001/02	MC	Fairfield-Liverpool	David Phillips South	P.Serov	34	D.J.Dunne	99	113
	2009/10	MC	Penrith	David Phillips South	S.Kumar	72	A.J.Ford	58	111
	2003/04	MC	South Sydney	Alan Davidson Oval	D.S.Schroder	67	M.S.Weise	83	102
5th	1990/91	MP3	Randwick	ua	R.Wickremasena	u/a	M.Simms	u/a	134
	2004/05	MC	Randwick-Petersham	David Phillips South	J.J.H.Tan	70	B.D.Tate	80	126
	2005/06	MC	Penrith	Rance Oval	M.Kulkarni	61	J.J.H.Tan	65	101
6th	2011/12	MC	Sydney University	David Phillips South	R.B.Lawrence Jnr	41	J.Habib	100	126
0	2009/10	MC	Georges River	Bland Oval	L.J.Williams	53	A.J.Ford	79	123
	2004/05	MC	South Sydney	David Phillips North	P.A.Harris		M.S.Appleton	73	110
	2013/14		Mt.Pritchard-Sthn Dist.	David Phillips South	R.W.Makin	31*	S.A.D.Nguyen	78*	105*
	2015/14	MC	Hawkesbury	Bensons Lane 2	C.S.Samarasinghe	54	R.W.Makin	68	100
7th	1986/87	MSD			S.Bell	69	J.Ross	55*	102
/tn		_	Canterbury Randwick-Petersham	ua Kanaingtan Oval			I.G.Camejo	55 48*	98
	2010/11	MC		Kensington Oval	A.Arya	56			
	2013/14	MC	Blacktown	Alexandria Park	R.T.Stocker	69	N.Radhakrishnan	30	98
8th	1995/96	MP1	Woolpack Wolves	ua	C.C.Vonwiller	92*	A.Wunsch	43	123
	2014/15	TCC	Auburn	Mona Park No 3	K.Kishor	27*	R.L.Dabarera	68*	92*
9th	2008/09	MC	North Sydney	Tunks Park	E.L.Parsons	63	L.J.Williams	55*	111
	2005/06	MC	Gordon Colts	David Phillips South	Nirjon Kader	87	C.O'Brien	32	74
10th	2010/11	MC	Penrith	David Phillips South	M.Choudhury		P.Bhatia	20*	108
	2013/14	MC	Blacktown	Alexandria Park	A.Gnyawali	32	W.J.Craft	38*	74

#### **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

## **Annual Report**

University NSW Cricket Club 30 June 2016

Prepared by Peter Scolari

## Contents

Compilation Report	3
Profit & Loss	4
Movements in Equity	6
Balance Sheet	7

Annual Report University NSW Cricket Club 30 June 2016

Page 2 of 7



## **Compilation Report**

#### University NSW Cricket Club For the year ended 30 June 2016

We have compiled the accompanying special purpose financial statements of University NSW Cricket Club, which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2016, the profit and loss for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The specific purpose for which the special purpose financial statements have been prepared is set out in Note 1.

#### 1. Director's Responsibility

The directors of University NSW Cricket Club are solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose financial statements and have determined that the significant accounting policies adopted as set out in Note 1 to the financial statements are appropriate to meet their needs and for the purpose that the financial statements were prepared.

#### 2. Our Responsibility

On the basis of information provided by the directors of University NSW Cricket Club, we have compiled the accompanying special purpose financial statements in accordance with the significant accounting policies adopted as set out in Note 1 to the financial statements and APES 315: Compilation of Financial Information.

Our procedures use accounting expertise to collect, classify and summarise the financial information, which the directors provided, in compiling the financial statements. Our procedures do not include verification or validation procedures. No audit or review has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed.

The special purpose financial statements were compiled exclusively for the benefit of the directors of University NSW Cricket Club. We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the contents of the special purpose financial statements.

Suite 1506, Level 15, 109 Pitt Streer Scolari Comerford 11 July 2016 Signed

Principal Phil Comerford CA Peter Scolari CA P. Comerford Pty Ltd Peter Scolari & Co Pty Ltd ACN 097 123 334 ACN 079 093 799 The accompanying notes form part of these financial stahttps://go.xero.com/Reports/PracticeSettings.aspx#tements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of Scolari Comerford Accountants.

Annual Report University NSW Cricket Club 30 June 2016

## **Profit & Loss**



#### University NSW Cricket Club For the 12 months ended 30 June 2016

	Jun-16	Jun-15
Income		
Annual Dinner	(2,108)	2,087
CA Grant Income	10,000	14,060
CNSW Coaching	16,400	15,800
CNSW General	32,382	24,388
Fees Income	34,654	27,578
In2Cricket	77.	1,350
Old Boys Game	2,882	4,607
Sponsorship Income	26,364	7,091
Sundry Income	-	664
Test Match Breakfast	574	2,816
UNSW S&R	11,250	-
Total Income	132,398	100,440
Gross Profit	132,398	100,440
Plus Other Income		
Interest Income	837	-
Interest Received	-	1,504
Total Other Income	837	1,504
Less Operating Expenses		
Annual Report / Trophies	273	-
AUG's	1,209	175
Balls & Gear	17,358	23,821
Bank Charges	5	2
Bank Merchant Fees	625	333
Coaching	42,250	53,220
Computer Expenses	539	1,420
Golf Day Expenses	-	5,234
Insurance	318	-
Metro Cup Fees	1,000	
Other Coaching	11,200	
Other Expenses		8,632
Overseas Player	3,237	4,158
Player Equipment	22,788	2,417
Practice Co-Ordinator	3,600	1,609
Premier's Dinner	977	5,990
Repairs & Maintenance (428)	20,618	
SCG Nets	13,809	8,487
Scholarships	4,000	
Scoring	2,983	2,655
Social Night	177	
Umpires	2,276	719
Total Operating Expenses	149,242	118,873

Principal Phil Comerford CA Peter Scolari CA P. Comerford Pty Ltd Peter Scolari & Co Pty Ltd ACN 097 123 334 ACN 079 093 799 The accompanying notes form part of these financial stahttps://go.xero.com/Reports/PracticeSettings.aspx#tements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of Scolari Comerford Accountants.

Annual Report University NSW Cricket Club 30 June 2016

Page 4 of 7

# scolari

## **Profit & Loss**

No. of the last of	Jun-16	Jun-15
Net Profit	(16,008)	(16,929)

#### Notes

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements and the accompanying Compilation Report.

Principal Phil Comerford CA Peter Scolari CA P. Comerford Pty Ltd Peter Scolari & Co Pty Ltd ACN 097 123 334 ACN 079 093 799 The accompanying notes form part of these financial stahttps://go.xero.com/Reports/PracticeSettings.aspx#tements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of Scolari Comerford Accountants.

Annual Report University NSW Cricket Club 30 June 2016

Page 5 of 7

## Movements in Equity



#### University NSW Cricket Club As at 30 June 2016

	30 Jun 2016	30 Jun 2015
Equity		
Opening Balance	112,707	
Current Year Earnings	(16,008)	(16,929)
Retained Earnings	×	129,636
Total Equity	96,699	112,707

#### Notes

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements and the accompanying Compilation Report.

Principal Phil Comerford CA Peter Scolari CA P. Comerford Pty Ltd Peter Scolari & Co Pty Ltd ACN 097 123 334 ACN 079 093 799 The accompanying notes form part of these financial stahttps://go.xero.com/Reports/PracticeSettings.aspx#tements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of Scolari Comerford Accountants.

Annual Report University NSW Cricket Club 30 June 2016

Page 6 of 7



## **Balance Sheet**

#### University NSW Cricket Club As at 30 June 2016

	30 Jun 2016	30 Jun 2015
Assets		
Bank		
Cheque Account 10886015	38,301	42,415
Online Saver 10902433	63,603	62,755
Total Bank	101,905	105,169
Current Assets		
Trade Debtors	14,782	31,150
Total Current Assets	14,782	31,150
Total Assets	116,687	136,319
Liabilities		
Current Liabilities		
GST Account	(2,693)	1,612
Income in Advance		22,000
Trade Creditors	22,680	
Total Current Liabilities	19,987	23,612
Total Liabilities	19,987	23,612
Net Assets	96,699	112,707
Equity		
Current Year Earnings	(16,008)	(16,929)
Retained Earnings	112,707	129,636
Total Equity	96,699	112,707

#### Notes

Signed .....

 $This \, statement \, is \, to \, be \, read \, in \, conjunction \, with \, the \, Notes \, to \, the \, Financial \, Statements \, and \, the \, accompanying \, Compilation \, Report.$ 

Principal Phil Comerford CA Peter Scolari CA P. Comerford Pty Ltd Peter Scolari & Co Pty Ltd ACN 097 123 334 ACN 079 093 799 The accompanying notes form part of these financial stahttps://go.xero.com/Reports/PracticeSettings.aspx#tements. These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report of Scolari Comerford Accountants.

Annual Report University NSW Cricket Club 30 June 2016

Page 7 of 7



## The Way

**Forward** 

It is our mission to be the most successful club in NSW.

This will be achieved by promoting community, cricket in the encouraging spirit and team ensuring individuals reach their maximum potential.

Our club has a proud history of developing talent both on and off the cricket field.

www.cricket.unsw.edu.au